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CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW
1.1 Mayor’s Foreword
The mandate of the governing party from the
electorate was to improve the quality of their
lives. This mandate inds expression in the iveyear strategic development agenda as captured in
the IDP of the municipality.

Positive feedback has also been received from
external bodies such as National Treasury and
Development Bank of South Africa with Moody’s
re lecting a “positive” outlook for the Sol Plaatje
Municipality.

As we re lect on the events leading up to the tabling of this annual report we can state with conidence that our objective to stabilise the overall
functionality of the municipality has yielded positive results.

Admittedly, much work lies ahead, but we can
with assurance state that Sol Plaatje Municipality
functions at a higher level and meets its service
delivery plans with few exceptions.

We have greatly enhanced service delivery capabilities in the municipal area. The completion of
the irst phase of refurbishment of the Homevale
Waste Water Treatment Plant will provide more
capacity and improve the quality of the ef luent
water. This is in addition to other bulk infrastructure initiatives i.e. additional electricity capacity
that has been sourced from Eskom, and the refurbishment of the old water puri ication plant
at Riverton. Several multi million rand projects
have also been tabled for development after the
upliftment of the moratorium on land and development.

Agnes Ntlhangula
Executive Mayor

All our portfolio committees are functioning
properly, decisions are properly and procedurally
taken, reports timeously and correctly tabled. The
required overall inancial position of Sol Plaatje
Municipality has improved and capital spending
being within a required norm. In terms of improved audit outcomes we are on track to achieve
a clean audit earlier than the projected date of
2014.
Investment Plans were approved by Council which
will see a huge capital injection in infrastructure
over the next 24 months. This lays the basis to unlock development in Sol Plaatje Municipality well
into the next ten years.
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1.2 Overview of the Municipality

The Demographics

Sol Plaatje Municipality (Local Municipality NC091)
is situated on the north eastern border of the
Northern Cape Province within the Frances Baard
District Municipality, almost in the centre of South
Africa. This is indicated in the map of South Africa
below.

The Municipality’s jurisdictional area includes
the City of Kimberley, which is the capital of the
Northern Cape and is well connected to the rest
of South Africa by road, rail and air. Ritchie, a
small urban settlement (total population approximately 11,000 persons) is situated on the most
southern boundary of the municipal area approximately 30km due south of Kimberley. The rest
of the municipal area comprises mainly private
commercial farmland with extensive cattle and
game farming and small pockets of crop cultivation along the banks of the Vaal -, Modder - and
Riet Rivers. The total population of the rural area
is approximately 8,000 persons.

The origins of the name
“Sol Plaatje”
Sol Plaatje Municipality is named after a proli ic
journalist Solomon T Plaatje. Solomon Plaatje was
one of the most gifted and versatile Black South
Africans of his generation. He made an outstanding contribution in the ield of literature in both
his native tongue, Setswana and English. He was
an accomplished linguist luent in several languages and the irst Black South African to publish a novel in English. Solomon Plaatje sang the
irst recording of Nkosi Sikelele’ iAfrica. He died
in 1932 and was buried in the West End Cemetery
in Kimberley.

4
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rush, the Big Hole, became a world famous tourist attraction which is now a world class open-air
museum. The city holds an old-world charm with
it being famous for its high quality diamonds and
for the rich history and culture that it possesses.
Although lacking the furious pace of South Africa’s larger urban areas today, the Victorian grandeur of stately buildings still complements the
urban setup.

200,000

The Economy

150,000

Although it has been a long time since the “diamond rush” and the then economic boom of the
region, Sol Plaatje Municipality is still the largest
contributor to the economy of the Northern Cape.
It contributes 60,4% to the GDP of the Northern Cape. The four main contributing sectors to
the economy are community services (30,9%),
inance (21,6%), transport (16,5%) and trade
(11,3%). Mining now only contributes 8,6% to
the local economy.

Sol Plaatje is therefore in essence an urban municipality as 99,2% of the population of 245,606
persons, made up of 52,120 households, resides
in the City of Kimberley.
Population by local municipality - Frances Baard
300,000

100,000
50,000
0

NC091: Sol Plaatje NC092: Dikgatlong NC093: Magareng NC094: Phokwane

Census 2001

205,983

35,765

21,735

61,320

Census 2007

245,606

40,752

20,433

46,409

Sol Plaatje Municipality covers an area of
187,300ha with a population density of 1,3 persons per square kilometre. In the ten year period
1996 to 2006 the population growth was only
0.87%. Table below indicates the population of
Sol Plaatje in relation to the other three local municipalities in the Frances Baard District.

The total number of people employed in both the
formal and informal sectors is 63,335 (29,4% of
the population) while the number of persons unemployed, according to the expanded de inition
of unemployment, are 31,584 (14,7% of the population). Between 1996 and 2007 the unemployment rate increased by 4,3% and stands at 38,8%
at present (2007).

The population residing in the municipal area is
relatively young with 28% of the population below the age of 15 years and 6% above the age 65
years. Only 8,1% of the persons above the age of
20 have a higher education while 9,1% has no
schooling at all. It is also estimated that 32,4% of
the residents of SPM are living in poverty.

Sol Plaatje has historically developed sound basic
infrastructure, which has accommodated large
mines and industries. Kimberley has many pleasant neighbourhoods, a school system that performs above national norms and a relative compact layout that locates former “township” areas
close to the city centre. In addition the municipality has one of the highest accesses to household
services, namely:

The History
Kimberley still holds the title ‘Diamond Capital of the world’. In 1871 an 83.5 carat diamond
was found on a farm close to the present location of Kimberley, which led to one of the biggest
diamond rushes in the world. After the diamond
rush, Kimberley became the world’s largest producer of diamonds. Kimberley contributed greatly
toward South Africa’s economic development due
to this diamond rush. The origins of this diamond
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• Households residing in formal house ..........................83,8%
• Households with electricity connection .....................89,2%
• Households with weekly waste removal ....................91,8%
• Households with lush toilet ............................................84,4%
• Households with piped water in dwelling/yard.... 92,3%
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living, services and work – with speci ic reference to ensure the upgrading and maintenance of existing infrastructure and the creation of new infrastructure for growth.

The high level and access to services also creates a
challenge for Sol Plaatje in the sense that it is dificult to keep up with providing these household
services. Due to this fact, many people migrate to
Sol Plaatje in anticipation of receiving these services which puts a huge strain on the municipality not only in terms of its inancial resources, but
also on its infrastructure.

3

The Kimberley CBD remains the economic
and institutional heart of Sol Plaatje Municipality. The viability of the CBD is critical in
maintaining the role of Kimberley as a service centre to surrounding settlements, a
place worthy of connecting to. The viability
of the CBD is also critical to the city’s ability
to provide opportunities for new enterprises
to emerge.

Furthermore Sol Plaatje is located within a weak
economic region which, in considering the above
challenges, had to creatively develop a strategy
to ensure a long term sustainable development
path. This strategy is founded in the municipality’s space-economy - meaning the geographic
distribution of settlements (large and small), the
activities within them (residential, commercial,
institutional, recreational, etc.), and the relationship of these settlements and activities to the
infrastructure that connects and supports them,
and links in turn to surrounding agriculture and
nature areas.

4

5

Strengthen neighbourhood centres for
convenience
Neighbourhood centres are needed to provide in the daily needs of residents in deined areas for commercial and social services. However, these centres should not
individually or collectively compete with the
CBD, in that way harming Sol Plaatje Municipality’s overall position as a service centre
or the municipality’s ability to facilitate job
creation.

The re ined strategy further comprises seven key
points:
Strengthen critical connections
The irst key point for the municipality is
to strengthen critical connections between
its broader jurisdictional area and Kimberley speci ically. The municipality is part of
a broader settlement system, and will not
sustain itself without strong connections to
other settlements, their needs, or activities
within them.
2

Ensure good access to the CBD and between neighbourhoods
Critical to maintaining the CBD is ensuring
convenient access to it, from and between
surrounding neighbourhoods.

At the heart of the re ined strategy is institution
building. Without a strong, well-managed municipal institution, Sol Plaatje Municipality will not be
able to meet its challenges.

1

Strengthen the Kimberley CBD as the
heart of the city and municipality

6

Prioritise improvements to disadvantaged areas while making the beneϐits of
Kimberley more broadly available
The municipality has made signi icant progress in improving living conditions in disadvantaged areas, ranging from the provision
of housing to eradicating service backlogs
and improving the quality of public space.
Nevertheless, it is important to also make
Kimberley’s oﬀerings more broadly available to all residents, speci ically through the
provision of housing in areas well-located in
relation to the CBD.

Maintain and enhance Kimberley and
existing outlying settlements as sustainable, attractive centres of living, services
and work within their existing footprints
Related to maintaining and strengthening
critical connections to the municipality is
managing Kimberley and outlying settlements as sustainable, attractive centres of

6
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28 elected as ward Councillors (23 ANC, 4 DA
and 1 Independent) and 27 proportional representative Councillors (17 ANC, 7 DA, 1 ACDP,
1 AZAPO, 1 ID).

Maximise the capacity and economic potential of the river valleys
The municipality should, through incentives
and other measures, stimulate appropriate
development in the river valleys and surrounding agricultural areas.

The Municipality has 28 wards with elected ward
committees.

The Seven-point Strategy is utilised as a framework or a backdrop against which development
programmes are assessed.

This report re lects Council for period ending May
2011. After the demarcation process had been
completed the number of wards increased to 31
and the number of councillors to 62.

Governance Model
During the reporting period Sol Plaatje Municipality was governed by an executive mayoral system, with the following standing committees of
Council:

The Council and standing committees meet on a
monthly basis. Twenty three (23) Council Meetings were held during the reporting year which
consisted of ordinary, special and informal Council meetings.

•
•

Administrative Structures

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Finance
Aesthetic and Development, Planning and
Infrastructure
Housing
Local Economic Development
MIG and IGR
Organisational Development
Security and Protection Services
Social Development and Health
Sport, Arts and Culture

The municipal administration was headed by a
municipal manager with ive executive directors,
each heading a directorate and reporting directly
to the municipal manager.
The following organogram indicates the accounting lines as well as the functional areas of each
directorate:
During the preparation of this report the three
vacant positions of executive directors were illed
and they assumed duty on 1 September 2011.

Council consisted of 55 members, 26 female
and 29 male. The municipal Council was further
represented by the following political parties,
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EXECUTIVE MAYOR
COUNCIL

Municipal Manager
(IDP, Internal Audit, PMU, Policy Unit, Legal Services

Infrastructure and
Services

Community
Development and
Social Services

Financial Services

Corporate Services

Strategy, Economic
Development and
Planning

ED: Infrastructure &
Services (Acting)

ED: Community &
Social Development
Services (Acting)

ED: Financial Services
(Acting)

ED: Corporate Services

ED: Strategy, Economic
Development &
Planning

Responsibilities:

Responsibilities:

Responsibilities:

Responsibilities:

Responsibilities:

Administration

Parks & Recreation

Budget & Treasury

Administration

Administration

Roads and Storm water

Traffic Services

Asset and Risk
Management

Communications

Water and Sanitation

Motor Registration &
Licensing

Local Economic
Development &
Tourism

Water and Sewerage
Purification
Technical Support
(CEE)

Employment Equity
Contracts & Demand
Management

Gender & Special
Programmes

Emergency Services
Library Services

Building Services

Expenditure
Management

Employee Relations
Property Services

Environmental Health
Operations & Planning
(CEE)

Personal Health

Distribution (CEE)

Social Developmental

Fleet (CEE)

Sustainable Energy and
Climate Change Unit
(SECCU)

Risk Management

Supply Chain
Management

Market
Human Resources
GURP

Revenue Management

Motor Workshop (CEE)

Urban Planning

Security
Information Technology
Management

Office of Executive
Mayor
Councillor Support

Mechanical Workshop
(CEE)

Committee Services

Housing

During the preparation of this report the three vacant positions of executive directors were illed and
they assumed duty on 1 September 2011.
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Administrative Structures
The Municipal Manager heads the Administration, with ive executive directors, each heading a directorate and
reporting directly to the Municipal Manager. The organogram below indicates the accounting lines as well as the
functional areas of each Directorate:

EXECUTIVE MAYOR
COUNCIL

Agnes Ntlhangula Vincent Diraditsile
Executive Mayor
Speaker
Municipal Manager
(IDP, Internal Audit, Planning & Strategy Development, Legal Services)

Goolam Akharwaray
Municipal Manager

ED: Infrastructure
& Services

ED: Community
& Social
Development
Services

ED: Financial
Services

ED: Corporate
Services

ED: Strategy,
Economic
Development &
Planning

Gail Jele

Ruth Sebolecwe

Lydia Mahloko

Luanne Fouché

Nomonde
Tyabashe-Kesiamang

Cllr PM Vilakazi
Chairperson Oversight Committee (now known as MPAC)
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1.3 Executive Summary

Municipal Vision
Sol Plaatje, a dynamic municipality that provides
a comprehensive range of aﬀordable services to
all its residents.

•

Regardless of the potential consequences,
honesty will always be the best policy.
•

Mission of Sol Plaatje Municipality

Focusing on institutional transformation and
management systems

•

Ensuring access to quality, reliable and affordable services

•

Strengthening relations with all stakeholders

•

Maximising income through responsible inancial discipline

•

Providing a challenging and rewarding working environment for all its employees.

This mission provides the foundation for the
achievement of the municipality’s priorities.
Sol Plaatje Municipality’s Core Values
The municipality has developed a set of value
statements which are intended to govern and
modify behaviour across the organisation. These
values will be portrayed throughout the organisation.
•

•

•

Integrity
At every level of interface with our customers, partners, peers and subordinates our
conduct will be exemplary and constructive
at all times.

Development Orientation
We recognise that the success of the municipality does not depend on our own success
alone, and we will actively seek participation
of the public, other spheres of government
and municipalities in our region, and to link
with other municipalities nationally and internationally.

Linkage with National Key Performance Areas for Local Government
Sol Plaatje Municipality, through its IDP, endorsed
the ive national key performance areas, namely:
1

Local Economic Development

2

Basic and Sustainable Service Delivery and
Infrastructure Development

3

Municipal Financial Viability and Management

4

Municipal Institutional Development and
Transformation

5

Good Governance and Public Participation

Customer Focus
In everything that we do on a daily basis customer satisfaction will be our priority and in
this regard the needs of the customer will be
paramount.

Openness and Transparency
Information and knowledge will be shared
willingly in an open manner. There will be
no hidden agendas.

To be a dynamic, sustainable and ef icient municipality by:
•

Honesty

Within each of the KPAs the Municipality developed its own strategic objectives to address its
own unique key priority issues. During subsequent reviews of the IDP since 2007/2008 emphasis shifts were needed within these objectives;
on the one hand to make the objectives attainable

10
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in the speci ic context of Sol Plaatje Municipality
circumstances, and on the other to emphasise the
overarching objectives related to the space-economy and long term growth.
Sol Plaatje Municipality has therefore focused on
the following overarching strategic objectives, informed by municipality’s space-economic development strategy, within each of the national KPAs
to ensure a sustainable growth path for the City of
Kimberley and the Municipality as a whole:
•

In terms of Local Economic Development
Sol Plaatje Municipality ensured that growth
is infrastructure led and driven to date.
Growth was constrained due to the global
economic downturn, and limitation of its infrastructure capacity.
The key focus on economic growth was to remove the obstacles to growth and create an
enabling environment. To that end a bulk infrastructure Intervention Plan was approved
by Council that seeks to enhance sewerage,
water and electrical capacity.
These projects are targeted for completion
by end of 2012 and aim to achieve as its
stated objectives enabling new development
projects. Furthermore, Council lifted the
moratoria on the sale of land as well as that
on development.
In addition, other projects such as the Galeshewe SMME Village and the Informal Trade
Facilities at Ritchie commenced, and are progressing well.
All of these interventions, as a collective,
seek to stimulate the revival of the economy.

•

Sol Plaatje Municipality will provide sustainable services to all its residents, but
will prioritise those areas in greatest need.
The provision of basic services is an on-going daily obligation performed by the municipality with the aim of ensuring certainty,
regularity and quality of such services. Various interventions were embarked upon in
this regard.
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Water
A dedicated focus has been embarked upon
to upgrade the bulk water infrastructure.
The various elements of this programme focuses on upgrading and/or replacing pumps,
cleaning reservoirs and clari iers and recommissioning the old plant as a backup
supply.
These actions are focused at all facilities i.e.
Riverton, Newton Reservoir and Ritchie Water Works. The projects commenced in the
year at hand and will continue into the next.
The municipality also aim to achieve a blue
drop status in water management by 2013.
A focused intervention in the sector resulted
in a blue drop score of 84% (improving from
64%).
A non revenue water loss minimisation project was undertaken with the aim of detecting causes of losses (e.g. leaks, bypassing of
meters, etc.) and to take corrective actions.
This project is likely to yield results only in
the 2012/2013 inancial year.
Electricity
Council resolved to increase the electricity capacity by 80MvA (to bring the total
to 200MvA) and to upgrade the network
and various sub-stations. Eskom has been
commissioned in this regard with the project scheduled for completion in 2012. The
Southridge substation upgrade was already
completed in this inancial year. Electri ication projects in areas such as Soul City,
Greenpoint and Madalane were also completed at a cost of R3,461,247.
Sewerage
The emergency project to improve the functioning of Homevale Waste Water Treatment
Works will be completed by February 2012.
Subsequent thereto projects to further upgrade the Ritchie and Beacons ield Waste
Water Treatment Works was undertaken
and should be completed in the 2011/2012
inancial year.

De Beers contributed R1.4 million towards
the irst phase of the refurbishment project
at the Beacons ield Waste Water Treatment
Works which was completed in June 2011.
Phase 2 of the project will cost R12,133,625
and will be completed in April 2012.

Other Matters

The Homevale Waste Water Treatment Works
will be upgraded by a further 15Ml. this project is scheduled to be completed by October
2012. The Homevale upgrading project will
cost an approximate amount of R140 million.

Due to the unusually higher rainfall during
January-June 2011, resulting in lood conditions and damage to property, the municipality was obliged to render emergency support
to aﬀected households by irstly relocating
them to safety and thereafter assisting with
mitigating the impact of the damage.

The collective impact of the above interventions will result in an increasing capacity
at Ritchie to 2Ml, Homevale 48Ml and Beacons ield to 9Ml. The upgrading of Ritchie
Waste Water Treatment Works cost R15.2
million. These interventions should allow
for increased densi ication and development
projects for between 10-15 years.

Considerable investment has gone into the
upgrading of social amenities such as the
various swimming pools in the city (with assistance from external bodies) and improvements in parks under the GURP project.

•

The intervention focused on eradicating inancial risks, a dedicated focus on revenue
collection, reviewing budget achievability on
an on-going basis and generally improving
inancial management in the municipality.
To achieve these aims various projects were
embarked upon such as the replacement
of prepaid electricity meters. By end of the
inancial year 2,911 (of the 3,000) were replaced.
The fact that income and expenses are now
generally balanced has contributed to improve cash low management and to the rebuilding of reserves (approximately R100
million). This has improved the liquidity ratio to 1:1,91 by end June 2011.

Roads
The road repair programme focused mainly on pothole repairs resulting in about
30,000m2 of road being repaired. The project started in the previous inancial year
when about 20,000m2 was done. However,
the higher rainfalls and lood conditions
caused considerable damage resulting in the
increase of road deterioration.
Cleaning, Waste Removal

Financial Viability and Management

•

Cleaning projects were reactivated and 15
persons per ward were hired as part of the
EPWP II Programme to focus on cleaning in
the city, to supplement the normal cleaning
actions. The heavy rains during the periodJanuary to June 2011 complicated the task. A
dedicated focus was placed on waste removal services with the acquisition of two new
compactors.

Institutional Development and Transformation
At the heart of the development strategy of
Sol Plaatje Municipality is institution building. Needless to say, without a strong, wellmanaged municipal institution, Sol Plaatje
Municipality will not be able to meet its challenges. An institution building process was
started in 2009 to ensure a more eﬀective
and performance orientated organisation
which included issues such as:

In pursuance of a renewed focus on the environment, the integrated waste management
plan was inalised. It seeks to provide a basis
for the future handling of waste in terms of
collections, treatment and disposal, monitoring and compliance.

•

12

A review of the macro and micro organisational structure to align it with the objectives of local government and the IDP.
The issue is also being examined from an
appropriate point of view.
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•

A review of the HR Policies to address
human resource attraction and retention
as well as human resource management,
development and administration. A revised HR Procedures Handbook was also
produced.

•

A reconciliation of the payroll with the
organisational establishment

•

A review of the eﬀectiveness of the Local
Labour Forum (LLF).
The recommendations and proposals of
the above reviews are being implemented on a continuous basis.

•

Good Governance and Public Participation
Noting the historical administrative inef iciencies, poor audit outcomes and procedural violations various interventions focused
on addressing these matters.
The governance model was revised and approved. As a result of the revision, the mayoral committee was appointed on a full-time
basis from November 2010.
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Some 24 policies were approved to streamline and facilitate decision-making. Although
not legally required, performance contracts
were mooted for middle managers as a good
governance measure so as to enhance performance in the institution. The process will
unfold in future where each manager will be
expected to have a signed performance contract to be used as a basis for measuring performance.
The top 30 risks were also identi ied and a
Risk Management Plan put in place to mitigate these risks.
Various interventions were continued as
part of operation clean audit aiming to ensure that improved audits are achieved by
2013/2014 or earlier - hopefully earlier!

Conclusion
In a general sense the overall functionality and
governance of the municipality has improved
considerably, and the inancial viability of the municipality is being strengthened and improved. Although much work still lies ahead, the conditions
are conducive for continued growth and service
provision.

14
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CHAPTER 2 MUNICIPAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
2.1 IDP Strategic Development Objectives
The Sol Plaatje Five-year Integrated Development
Plan (IDP) is the blueprint that sets out the strategic development objectives it aims to achieve.
Successes that have been achieved during the
2010/2011 inancial year, and will continue to be
achieved, include the following:

Local Economic Development Infrastructure led and driven
As an enabler of local economic development Sol
Plaatje Municipality needs to stimulate economic
growth and job creation from that which it controls. In this sense infrastructure is especially
important as economic growth needs to be leveraged oﬀ infrastructure development.
As a means to unlock growth in the economy the
factors that inhibit growth were reviewed, and
strategies embarked upon to stimulate growth.
This resulted in bulk infrastructure upgrade plans
being approved to increase electricity capacity
and network capability, upgrading the sewerage
works at Homevale, Ritchie and Beacons ield as
well as speci ic water infrastructure supply systems.
Tenders were awarded and implementation is underway. It is projected that these projects should
come to fruition in the 2012/2013 inancial year.
These interventions opened the way to lift the
moratorium on development as well as the moratorium on the sale of land.
An allied project to resolve the problem at Kamfersdam by installing a pipeline to divert water
away and thereby mitigate the risk to the trademark lamingos as well as the two rail lines (linking Sol Plaatje with the rest of South Africa and
Africa via Namibia) was commenced as a joint
venture with Transnet.
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Partnering with DBSA and MIG as the inancing
partner R61,7 million was invested in these projects during the 2010/2011 reporting period.
SPM also successfully accessed and implemented
the EPWP incentive grant and through this programme created jobs totalling approximately
110,880 workdays. This resulted in the municipality receiving the national Kamoso award for
the best performing municipality in this regard.

Sustainable and affordable service
delivery according to areas of greatest
need
Apart from addressing the pressing need for municipal services in especially disadvantaged areas,
Sol Plaatje Municipality also focused on improving the water quality and certainty of supply. The
infrastructure upgrades mentioned earlier seek
to achieve part of this endeavour. However various actions to improve the quality yielded considerable improvements with the Blue Drop score
improving from 64% to 84% in the year. The municipality also achieved a 71% in the Green Drop
assessment being the best in the province. This
re lects improvement in water and sanitation
management.
The report also details several service delivery
improvements focused upon, such as the acquisition of two new refuse compactors for waste
removal services, improved indigent veri ication
processes, and closing of approximately 20,000
potholes.

Municipal Governance and Financial
Stability, Viability and Sustainability
The focused interventions to improve overall governance and inancial management saw improvements in the overall functioning of Council com-

mittees and management structures including
middle managers being required to sign performance agreements. This report is also evidenced
by improved revenue collection, better control of
expenditure and payment of creditors within the
stipulated time frames. Capital spending has improved as evidenced by MIG achieving a 100% of
spending by the end of the year. A further indicator

is the improved cash position of the municipality
and the fact that DBSA viewed SPMs risk pro ile
as having improved considerably, resulting in suficient con idence to grant a capital loan of R262
million. Linked to the above is a dedicated focus
to turn around a decade of poor audit outcomes
and achieve a clean audit by 2014. The success of
the Operation Clean Audit Report (OPCAR), is evi-

denced by the improved Auditor-General report
from a decade of disclaimers to a quali ied report.
The IDP and the budget, which indicate the inancial resources to achieve these objectives, are
strategic plans and must be operationalised to
be implemented. This is done through an annual
Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
(SDBIP). The SDBIP is irstly, the implementation

and management tool to ensure that budgetary
decisions that were adopted by Council for the
2010/2011 inancial year are aligned with the
IDP, and secondly, it serves as the detailed plan,
approved by the executive mayor, for implementing Sol Plaatje Municipality’s annual budget and
delivering municipal services. Section 2.2 indicates performance of this plan.

Table 1: The summary of ϔinancial performance is indicated in the table below
Description
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Property rates and taxes
Fines
Licences and permits
Government grants and subsidies
Service charges
Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest earned: outstanding debtors
Interest on investments
Other income
Employee related costs
Remuneration of councillors
Repairs and maintenance
Bulk purchases
General expenses
Grants and subsidies paid
SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT)
FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Non current assets
Consumer deposits
Creditors
Unspent conditional grants
Non current liabilities
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
Operating budget actuals
Capital budget actuals
Value of GVR
Average tariﬀ increases
Number of municipal inance interns

5 year Average

2010/2011

2009/2010

2008/2009

2007/2008

2006/2007

150,372,144
3,931,209
3,751,209
155,433,858
422,422,507
11,074,087
38,899,426
6,843,092
20,248,772
270,991,705
10,727,638
42,539,260
158,189,469
151,353,174
952,547
59,989,204

209,350,661
3,634,590
3,125,280
190,806,628
571,405,692
12,740,245
31,282,531
4,801,581
26,288,454
364,339,736
13,330,953
51,065,386
234,314,846
212,983,878
3,191,000
26,878,112

189,423,946
3,776,691
3,089,183
219,084,299
471,453,386
11,130,646
39,476,418
3,984,460
25,425,876
304,399,586
11,380,466
53,826,249
196,224,388
175,944,576
350,000
90,688,837

132,441,486
4,187,923
6,425,257
154,780,058
406,650,596
10,760,696
36,334,394
5,916,648
25,385,668
259,603,835
9,573,994
52,336,881
143,605,360
124,278,987
300,000
61,072,053

120,750,409
4,307,087
2,622,746
117,247,007
330,625,136
10,480,433
48,051,954
11,450,596
11,154,417
227,546,153
9,607,027
32,265,230
112,341,689
111,952,404
531,368
62,568,621

99,894,218
3,749,755
3,493,579
95,695,641
313,970,671
10,262,921
39,351,835
8,062,176
13,446,678
199,362,788
9,656,230
23,202,551
104,461,061
115,501,307
390,367
58,738,398

43,409,976
230,422,415
603,411,636
9,129,141
77,483,294
10,508,039
127,872,662
510,890,173

70,002,668
267,878,824
910,392,198
10,225,457
112,989,700
9,238,545
264,669,861
835,632,534

51,238,735
268,976,993
869,473,699
11,857,366
106,265,502
3,436,299
210,258,820
629,922,885

16,738,735
266,783,143
534,158,260
8,980,853
73,651,397
6,429,245
64,956,808
242,530,936

79,038,735
189,295,692
464,964,878
8,706,501
54,461,282
27,552,361
46,599,946
196,633,713

31,007
157,153,388
406,591,274
7,507,437
39,178,202
5,883,743
50,611,495
649,730,796

751,766,414
86,540,076
9,273,430,731
13.00%
1

1,030,046,427
79,196,326
13,937,207,000
17.22%
4

883,278,328
108,627,968
13,769,304,000
20.46%
5

721,810,673
95,138,763
12,743,048,000
15.43%
2

594,507,566
106,214,300
12,693,267
5.84%
3

529,189,076
43,523,024
5,904,901,388
6.03%
3
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Table 2 below indicates the performance of Sol
Plaatje Municipality within the diﬀerent Key Performance Areas against the consolidated service
delivery targets for the 2010/2011 inancial year

2.2 Performance on Consolidated Service Delivery
Targets for 2010/2011

compared to the 2009/2010 inancial year’s performance. These targets were made public as part
of the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan during July 2010.

Table 2: Performance against Consolidated Service Delivery Targets 2011/2012 SDBIP
2009/2010
Municipal
KPA

IDP Objective

2.1 To ensure
adequate provision
and maintenance of
bulk infrastructure

KPI Name

2.2 To ensure
sustainable delivery
in respect of water
and sanitation,
electricity, solid
waste management
and roads and storm
water services to all
residents of SPM

Directorate

A planned, prioritised, costed and
environmentally sound municipal
infrastructure investment framework
(MIIF) completed by 30 June 2010

% completion of
MIIF

2,028 additional subsidised houses
provided by SPM Housing Department
in accordance with IHSP by
30 June 2013

No. of households Infrastructure

3,050 additional households in formal
settlements with sanitation by 30 June
2013 (Total Backlog 8,290 includes
informal settlements)

Sustainable
Service
Delivery
(SSD)

Unit of
Measurement

Infrastructure

Annual Actual
Target Achieved

2010/2011
Revised
Actual
Annual
Achieved
Target

Comments

Not a target in this
inancial year

0%

0%

This target was adjusted during mid-year aligned to the adjustments budget. Speci ic funds for this project could not be sourced.
A feasibility study was completed and it is envisaged that the MIIF
will be completed in the next inancial year.

3,358

546

584

Additional funding was allocated by COGHSTA to complete blocked
projects, which resulted in the over achievement of the target.

1,277

1250

560

0

0

Water and sanitation: This target was adjusted during mid-year,
aligned to the adjustment budget. Speci ic funds for this project
could not be sourced.

3,050 of additional households in
formal areas with a metered water
No. of households Infrastructure
connection by 30 June 2013 (Total Backlog 8,290 includes informal settlements)

400

560

700

0

This target was adjusted during mid-year, aligned to the adjustments budget. Speci ic funds for this project could not be sourced.

336 additional households provided
with electricity connections by 30 June
2013 (Total Backlog 8,421)

No. of households Infrastructure

300

136

166

336

Electrical Engineering: Soul City 194, Mathibe 37 and Greenpoint
105. Through an adjustment budget at mid-year additional funds
were allocated to complete Soul City and Mathibe

50kms of roads surfaced by 30 June
2013. (Total backlog 207Km)

No. of households Infrastructure

10Km

3,5Km

6,5Km

5,2Km

Roads and storm water: Target was overstated. With available funding only 5.2Km was achieved

Achieve 75% Blue Drop status by
30 June 2011

% blue drop
status achieved

Infrastructure

Not a target in this
inancial year

75%

84%

Water and sanitation: Due to focused attention to the management
of water service, the municipality achieved second position in the
province for blue drop status.

All households (formal and informal)
provided with once a week refuse
removal and solid waste disposal
collection by 30 September 2010
(Backlog 4,300)

No. of additional
households

Community and
Social
Development
Services

New
households
added

859

4,300

2,000

Only 2,000 additional households could be served with the available funding and equipment

An integrated Environmental
Management Plan developed by
31 December 2011

% progress in
completing and
approval of Plan

Community
and Social
Development
Services

100%

10%

50%

50%

SECCU: Target achieved as a State of Environment report has been
received for review at 30 June 2011. The Plan will be completed by
31 December 2012.
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2009/2010
Municipal
KPA

Sustainable
Service
Delivery
(SSD)

IDP Objective

KPI Name

Unit of
Measurement

Annual Actual
Target Achieved

Comments

An integrated Waste Management Plan
developed and implemented by
31 December 2010

% progress in
completing and
approval of Plan

Community and
Social Development
Services

100%

75%

100%

100%

This Plan was adopted by Council in August 2011.

An approved Integrated Human
Settlement Plan by 31 December 2010

% progress in
approving IHSP

Infrastructure

100%

100%

100%

100%

This Plan adopted by Council in October 2011.

Capital spent as % of total Budget in
Top Quartile of bench mark
Municipalities

Position in
annual publication of capital
Financial Services
spent of benchmark municipalities (20-25%)

Not a target in this
inancial year

17%

7,67%

Await of icial publishing by National Treasury. The igure reported
is from the Municipality’s audited annual inancial statements.

Electricity losses reduced to 12% by
30 June 2013.
(Norm 7%)

% electricity
losses

Infrastructure

12%

16.00%

18,12%

Electrical Engineering: This is an estimate as it is dif icult to reconcile what was bought in bulk from Eskom and sold by the Municipality to consumers.

Ensuring additional 80MVA electricity
supply by 31 December 2010

% progress in
applying for
additional
capacity of
80MVA by end of
December 2010

Infrastructure

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

Electrical Engineering: Application submitted and deposit paid to
Eskom.

Preparation of a Non-revenue Water
Minimisation Study to reduce water
losses by 31 December 2010

% completion of
study

Infrastructure

Not a target in this
inancial year

50%

40%

Infrastructure

22%

33%

38,5%

Water losses reduced to 15% by 30 June
% water losses
2014 (Norm 10%)
A planned, prioritised, aﬀordable and
equitable operational plan for each
2.3 To ensure
community service (personal health,
sustainable delivery
municipal health, library, parks and
of community services recreation, emergency services, traf ic
to all residents of SPM services and social development
services) by 30 September 2010

Good
Governance
and Public
Participation
(GGPP)

Directorate

2010/2011
Revised
Actual
Annual
Achieved
Target

Community and
% progress in
Social
completing and
Development
approval of plans
Services

An agreed model for community based
% progress
5.1 To institutionalise planning by 30 September 2010
community based
planning at strategic No. of ward committees functional and
and operational levels involved in planning and developmental No. of wards
activities

20

100%

16.43%

42%

50%

Of ice of the
Municipal Manager

Not a target in this
inancial year

Of ice of the
Municipal Manager

28
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The NRWM study is still underway, quick wins to the project have
been identi ied and will be implemented in the next inancial year
(2011/2012). Some of these quick wins include the following
interventions: Repair 406 leaking water meters; 720 water meters
that are covered by soil/dirt and install 276 missing water meters.
It expected that the implementation of these projects will bring a
signi icant change to the status of the water losses.

100%

100%

Each Community service submitted its operational plan by September 2011. The actual performance of each Community service
in terms of this plan is measured on a monthly basis to ensure that
there is performance.

100%

60%

Target has been adjusted as resources are not available at present
to implement a ward-based planning system.

28

28
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2009/2010
Municipal
KPA

IDP Objective

5.2 To enhance the
public pro ile,
reputation and
positioning of SPM

Good
Governance
and Public
Participation
(GGPP)

5.3 To ensure an
unquali ied audit
report by
30 November 2013

KPI Name

Unit of
Measurement

Directorate

Annual Actual
Target Achieved

2010/2011
Revised
Actual
Annual
Achieved
Target

Comments

75% of Council Resolutions
implemented on a quarterly basis

% of Council
resolutions
implemented
(total no resoluOf ice of the
tions taken/no
Municipal Manager
of resolutions
implemented and
signed oﬀ ) on a
quarterly basis

Not a target in this
inancial year

75%

74%

This achievement is according to the Council Resolutions Register.

Council adopted Communication,
Marketing and Positioning Strategy
(including corporate image)
implemented 30 September 2010

% completion of
Strategy

Corporate Services

100%

100%

90%

Communication and PR: Document adopted by EMT. To be tabled to
Council for approval.

Council meet on a monthly basis

No. of Council
meetings

Of ice of the
Municipal Manager

Not a target in this
inancial year

10

15

Include normal monthly Council meetings as well as special Council
meetings.

Council Resolution register in place by
31 July 2010

% completion of a
Of ice of the
Council resolution
Municipal Manager
register

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

Automated register in place and functional.

% progress in
Of ice of the
Develop a complaints management plan preparing and
by 30 August 2010
adopting the Plan Municipal Manager

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

Service Delivery & Improvement: Strategy development completed,
inal draft submitted to management for approval.

Ensure a clean audit report by 30 June
2011.

% of December
Of ice of the
2010 OPCAR
activities achieved Municipal Manager

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

Executive Director: Financial Services: Implementation of OPCAR is
in progress. The achievements will be audited by Internal Audit to
give management assurance of such.

Audits in terms of Internal Audit Plan
completed annually

Number of
reports

Of ice of the
Municipal Manager

14

12

12

Functional and eﬀective Audit
Committee

No. of Audit
Committee and
Performance
Audit Committee
meetings held

Of ice of the
Municipal Manager

Not a target in this
inancial year

4

4

Develop and roll out an Enterprise Risk
Management Framework
30 September 2011

% completion of
ERMF

Of ice of the 100%
Municipal Manager

90%

100%

100%

Ensure eﬀective and up to date By-laws
annually

% completion of
By-laws revised
annually

Of ice of the
Municipal Manager

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

Customer Relations Management
Strategy approved by
30 September 2010 and implemented

% progress in
completing
Strategy

Corporate Services

40%

100%

100%
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2009/2010
Municipal
KPA

IDP Objective

1.1 To provide an
enabling environment
for LED in SPM within
the context of
National and
Provincial
Frameworks

Local
Economic
Development
(LED)

1.2 To initiate, lead
and sustain an
investment
environment for job
creation in the SPM
Area

KPI Name

Unit of
Measurement

Directorate

Annual Actual
Target Achieved

2010/2011
Revised
Actual
Annual
Achieved
Target

Comments

LED incentive strategy

Incentive strategy
is approved by
Strategy and
Council by
Economic
December 2010
for possible inclu- Development
sion in adjustment
budget

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

LED programmes and initiatives
tangibly demonstrates IDP, SDF and
IHSP Objectives

Development
approvals, as relected in Council Strategy and
Economic
resolutions, in
line with IDP, SDF Development
and IHSP
Objectives

100%

100%

100%

100%

LED: Unit: Completed in July 2010

LED, GURP and NDPG initiatives
tangibly enhances densi ication and
equitable access to public amenities
aligned to SDF

Physical location Strategy and
indicated on maps Economic
(as built plans)
Development

Not a target in this
inancial year

25%

25%

GURP: All the names and co-ordinates were sent to the GIS Manager,
although problems were experienced with some streets. The mapping of all the submitted names was done.

Review of Land Policy

% progress in
Land Policy
adopted by
Council by
August 2010

Strategy and
Economic
Development

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

Urban Planning: The LUMS has not been promulgated; technical
issues realised in the content. Town Planning Unit exploring diﬀerent avenues in attempt to proclaim the document. Interpretation
Act, 1957 (Act No. 33 of 1957), with speci ic reference to Section
12(2)(c) may assist with further progressing with the promulgation
process.

Review of LED strategy

Council to approve a reviewed
LED strategy by
August 2010

Strategy and
Economic
Development

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

LED: Unit: Completed

Tacit agreements with organised
business, labour, civil society and other
spheres of government regarding the
role and responsibilities of the
Municipality via LED

Signed
agreements

Strategy and
Economic
Development

Not a target in this
inancial year

3

3

LED: Unit: A draft MOU between SPM and Eskom is currently being
developed. The MOU will include COGHSTA to be key stakeholder.

Agreement with external stakeholders
on nature and focus of investment plan
for job creation

Establishment of
LED forums

Strategy and
Economic
Development

4

1

LED: Unit: Only one LED forum was held during December 2010 for
year 2010/2011.

Number of jobs created through
initiatives of the SPM (including LED,
EPWP, capital, maintenance etc) –
man-days

Man-days jobs
provided

Strategy and
Economic
Development

280,000

273,784
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Municipality received an award for best performing in EPWP
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2009/2010
Municipal
KPA

IDP Objective

KPI Name

Unit of
Measurement

% of procurement budget spent on
procuring goods and services from local % budget spent
BEE and SMME service providers

1.3 To leverage
municipal assets and
the municipal
% of procurement budget spent on
procurement
procuring goods and services from local % budget spent
process with the view
service providers
to stimulate
redistribution and
Contractor
growth
SMME support towards SMME Village
appointed by
August 2010

Financial
Viability and
Management
(FVM)

Directorate

Annual Actual
Target Achieved

Financial Services

60%

60%

Financial Services

Not a target in this
inancial year

Strategy and
Economic
Development

Not a target in this
inancial year

2010/2011
Revised
Actual
Annual
Achieved
Target

40%

40%

60%

60%

100%

100%

85%

66%

100%

100%

Comments

LED: Unit: Completed the appointment of the contractor in February 2011.
There were challenges experienced with the projects funded by
other grants that led to under-achievement of the set target

100% of the capital budget (including
grants) spent by 30 June 2013

% budget spent

Financial Services

85%

Development of a Revenue
Enhancement Strategy by
30 September 2010

% progress in
completing the
Revenue
Enhancement
Strategy

Of ice of the
Municipal Manager

Not a target in this
inancial year

Financial Services

Not a target in this
inancial year

100%

100%

Revenue Management: An advertising campaign is being formulated and ad hoc veri ications are being done by the Indigent Management Section daily.

Financial Services

Not a target in this
inancial year

10%

0%

The municipality received no appeals on all tenders awarded in the
2010/2011 year which shows improved policy implementation.

Financial Services

87%

77%

85%

85%

Revenue Management: No interface between ITRON and e-Venus
automated blocking not possible. Only able to act on conventional
meters which total a meagre amount of R90 million of the debt.

1:1

0,84:1

2:1

2:1

The available cash covered an average of two months operational
expenditure

Financial Services

5%

6,83%

10%

10%

Debt coverage
(Total operating
revenue-operating
grants received)/ Financial Services
debt service payments due within
the year)

2:1

2,54:1

1:1

3:1

Ensure provision of free basic services
% spent on
in line with the SPMs approved Indigent
indigent subsidy
Policy annually
Implementation of an eﬀective and ef icient Supply Chain Management System No. of successful
To ensure sound
by decreasing the no of successful apappeals
inancial management peals to 5% by 30 June 2013
and inancial viability
of SPM by 30 June
Improve in Revenue enhancement by
2013
ensuring a collection rate of 92% of bill- % collection rate
ing by 30 June 2014

Increase the cost coverage ratio to 3:1
annually or maintain the current status
by 30 June 2013

Cost coverage
(Available cash
+ investments)/
Financial Services
monthly ixed operating expenditure

Increase the municipal reserves by at
least 10% per annum from the previous % increase
year’s actual balance

Maintain the debt coverage ratio at
current levels or at least 2:1 against net
assets of the municipality
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Though the growth is positive, it is not at the legislated levels of
three months coverage
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2009/2010
Municipal
KPA

Municipal
Institutional
Development
and
Transformation (MIDT)

IDP Objective

4.1 To provide an
overarching framework for sustainable
municipal performance improvement

KPI Name

Unit of
Measurement

Directorate

Reducing the ratio of outstanding
service debtors to revenue to 10% by
30 June 2013

Service debtors to
revenue –
(Total outstanding Financial Services
service debtors/
revenue received
for services)

Ensuring 100% expenditure of the
allocated budget to implement the
Workplace Skills Plan annually

% expenditure

Corporate Services

Ensuring that all levels of personnel on
the organogram of the SPM are 100%
representative and in line with SPMs
employment equity plan by June 2012

Quarterly
reporting on
achieving target
of representation

Annual Actual
Target Achieved

1:2,92

20%

20%

96%

0%

100%

100%

Corporate Services

60%

70%

100%

100%

Improving the turnaround time for
building plan approval to two weeks by Turnaround time
(weeks)
30 June 2011

Strategy and
Economic
Development

2

3

4/8

4/8

Improving the turnaround time for de- Turnaround time
velopment applications (rezoning) to 12 (weeks)
weeks by 30 June 2011

Strategy and
Economic
Development

12

16

12

12
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4:5

2010/2011
Revised
Actual
Annual
Achieved
Target

Comments

The inancial systems will be synchronised in future to assist with
the eﬀective collection mechanisms that will subsequently impact
on the debt service ratio.

Urban Planning: An application that is less than 500m2 is processed
within a period of 30 days after receipt of the application and, where
the architectural area of such building is 500m2 or larger, within a
period of 60 days after receipt of the application.
Urban Planning: Town Planning on track in terms of its Departmental SDBIP KPI
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2.3 Backlogs in Service Delivery

Backlogs in regard to housing related services are
still a huge concern for the municipality. During
the inancial year under review not many of these
backlogs could be eradicated as priority was given
to the bulk infrastructure challenges that exist.
The municipality does not necessarily budget for
these type of services but rather relies on housing
development grants from COGHSTA, electri ication subsidies from the DoE and a small portion
of MIG funding.

Water Backlogs
Backlogs for the water service are based on the
number of households without access to the service. These backlogs include both formal and
informal areas within the municipality. At the
beginning of the inancial year backlogs for the
water service were standing at an estimate of
7,730 households.
During the inancial year, one project was focused
in this area which was the Water Reticulation
Promise Land (700 households). Due to the delays in implementation the project was not completed and therefore the water backlogs remained
the same.

Electricity Backlogs
Backlogs for the electricity service are linked to
the number of households without access to this
service. These backlogs include both formal and
informal areas within the municipality. At the beginning of the inancial year backlogs in terms of
the electrical service stood at an estimate of 8,154
households.
During the inancial year 2010/2011 336 households were electri ied; these households are located in Soul City (194); Greenpoint (105) and
Mathibe Grounds (37) areas within the municipality. With 336 backlogs being eradicated the
estimated backlog will reduce to 7,818 for the
electricity service.
Table 3: Service Delivery Backlogs
Service

Households

Access to Water and Sanitation

7,730

Access to Electricity

7,818

Housing

8,290

Informal settlements to be

Approximately

formalised

10,000

Solid Waste Removal

4,300

Sanitation Backlogs
Backlogs for the sanitation service are based on
the number of households without access to the
service. These backlogs include both formal and
informal areas within the municipality. At the
beginning of the inancial year backlogs in terms
of the sanitation service were standing at an estimate of 7,730 households. During the inancial
year 2010/2011 no reticulation projects were
planned due to focus being given to bulk sanitation projects which means the sanitation backlogs remained the same.

Road Backlogs
Backlogs on municipal roads are estimated based
on the number of kilometres of roads not surfaced
in the municipal jurisdiction. These backlogs include all dirt/earth and gravel roads within the
residential areas but exclude backlogs relating to
surfaced roads which are maintenance related.
At the beginning of the inancial year the roads
backlogs were standing at an estimate of 205.5
kilometres.
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Despite the housing related backlogs the municipality has bulk infrastructure backlogs which are
presently a priority.

During the inancial year 2010/2011 at least
5.2km of streets were constructed in various
wards from diﬀerent funding sources. With 5.2km
of streets being constructed during the inancial
year the remaining backlog is reduced to an estimated 200.3Km.

The Table below indicates the bulk infrastructure
backlogs:

Table 4 : Bulk Infrastructure backlog
Bulk Infrastructure

Backlog

Homevale Waste Water Treatment Works

10 – 15Ml per day

Beacons ield Waste Water Treatment Works

2Ml per day

Ritchie Sewerage Oxidation Plant

1, 5Ml per day.

Ritchie Water Treatment Plant

Refurbish and Upgrade existing infrastructure.

Bulk Electricity Supply (and network upgrade)

Additional 80MVA Infrastructure on the Noti ied
Maximum Demand (NMD)

Upgrade of key electrical substations/transformers

Various substations/transformers to be upgraded as to
receive the increased capacity

Riverton Water Treatment Plant

Refurbish existing infrastructure to bring it to its
optimum operational capacity

Carters Ridge and Newton Water Reservoirs

Linked to the above backlogs is old and ageing
infrastructure that hampers development and
service delivery and also impacts negatively on
the Municipality’s revenue streams and possible
new investments. These are indicated in the table
below:
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Table 5: Maintenance backlogs and losses at 30
June 2011
Infrastructure

Backlog

Streets maintenance (e.g. potholes)

84Km of
surfaced
streets

Gravel Streets to be surfaced

200,3Km

Electricity losses

18,22%

Water losses

52%

2.4 Level and Standard of Service

There is a diﬀerence between the level and standard of service and this must be considered when
calculating backlogs.
A poor standard of service should actually be seen
as a backlog – piped water (house connection) that
cannot deliver water to a household due to pipe
bursts may be considered as a backlog.
A well functioning communal standpipe should
in fact not be considered as a backlog although
it is a much lower level of service as piped water.
Sol Plaatje Municipality has therefore calculated
its backlogs according to the level of services described below.

•

•

Sanitation Service
The Cabinet approved the Strategic Framework for
Water Services (2003), which de ines a basic sanitation facility as:
The infrastructure necessary to provide a sanitation
service which is safe, reliable, private, protected from
the weather, ventilated, keeps smells to the minimum,
is easy to keep clean, minimises the risk of the spread
of sanitation related diseases by facilitating the appropriate control of disease carrying ϔlies and pests,
and enables safe and appropriate treatment and/or
removal of human waste and wastewater in an environmentally sound manner.

Water Service
The Strategic Framework for Water Services of the
former Department of Water Aﬀairs and Forestry
(September 2003), de ines a basic water supply facility as:
The infrastructure necessary to supply 25 litres of potable water per person per day within 200 metres of
a household and with a minimum ϔlow of 10 litres per
minute (in case of communal water points) or 6,000
litres of potable water supplied per formal connection
per month (in case of yard or house connections).

This would include the infrastructure necessary
for the abstraction, conveyance, treatment and
distribution of potable water, water intended to be
converted to potable water or water for commercial use, but not water for industrial use.
There is a range of water supply service options
that generally fall below the minimum RDP level.
This includes unimproved traditional sources,
tanker systems, and some forms of private water
cartage and vending. Sol Plaatje Municipality has
adopted the following level of services for its different needs; this is for both formal and informal
areas:
•

Communal standpipes - Basic level of service
(within 200 metres from the dwelling i.e. RDP
standard).

Yard taps - Basic level of service (where the
supply is to a single tap in the yard, possibly
with a connection to an external toilet of lush
sanitation is used)
House connections - Full level of service (supply connected to a pipe work system which
runs to bathrooms and kitchen in the house).

A basic sanitation service is de ined in the Strategic Framework for Water Services as:
The provision of a basic sanitation facility which is easily accessible to a household, the sustainable operation
of the facility, including the safe removal of human
waste and waste water from the premises where this is
appropriate and necessary, and the communication of
good sanitation, hygiene and related practices.

The inal choice of the type of service rests with
the Water Services Authority (WSA). In order for
the WSA to take such a decision they must ensure
that it is practical as well as inancially viable and
sustainable.
Several sanitation systems are widely applied in
South Africa, but do not meet the basic level of
service requirements. Bucket toilets and unimproved pit toilets are the most obvious, but problems have also been experienced with the operation and maintenance of other systems. Chemical
toilets are prohibitively expensive for continuous
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use and should only be considered as a short-term
and temporary measure (i.e. three to ive months).
Sol Plaatje Municipality has adopted the following
level of services for its diﬀerent needs; this is for
both formal and informal areas:
•
VIP toilets and other approved dry, on-site
sanitation systems.
•
Septic tanks (usually used in areas not serviced with sewers but where full lush systems are installed, may also be an upgradeable
option or as an option where the household
takes some of the treatment responsibility
from the municipal authority). Suitable for
less densely populated areas with soil conditions that have good drainage properties.
•
Full water-borne sanitation (the household
takes minimal responsibility for treatment
and disposal).
Sanitation service levels need to be planned in
conjunction with the availability of water resources and supply. Where lush systems are required,
there must be suf icient water available and the viability of the system must take the cost of supplying water into account.

Electricity Service
Electricity distribution (de ined as electricity reticulation in the constitution) is a municipal function
and supplied by the municipality, with Eskom’s
distribution arm being a large scale service provider serving a large proportion of South Africa’s
municipalities. The bulk supply up to the municipal boundary is not a municipal function but virtually the exclusive domain of Eskom. Costs for the
total reticulation have been aggregated by service
level and divided by the users served by a particular system hence the diﬀerence in cost of service.
The level of service referred to here concerns the
residential category that the municipality supplies. In terms of the Department of Energy (DoE)
a basic provision of electricity that is subsidised is
20 amp per household and in relation to Free Basic Electricity the proposed levels of service are
50kWh per household per month for a grid-based
system for qualifying domestic consumers.
Sol Plaatje municipality took a resolution to provide each new household with a 60 amp grid connection. This decision was prompted by the fact
that after developing low income areas house-
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holds tent to upgrade their standard of living and
therefore require a higher level of service which
the municipality may not be ready to provide at
the time, therefore to curb this the municipality
provides a higher level of service to accommodate
future upgrades. This approach may seem to be an
expensive option but may also be cost eﬀective in
the long run.

Roads Service
Currently, there is not a national policy that de ines
a basic level of service for roads serving households in residential areas. However, the Municipal
Infrastructure Investment Framework refers to
all-weather access to within 500m of the dwelling.
This could be interpreted as a basic level of service.
In urban areas, it is generally possible to improve
upon this speci ication and to provide for access
by a vehicle to each erf. In some rural areas, where
there are very small, scattered settlements, it may
not be feasible to provide all-weather access to
within 500m of every dwelling.
Sol Plaatje Municipality has adopted the following
level of service options for its residential roads:
•
All-weather access to within 500m of the
dwelling
•
Paved width (intermediate or full level of service)
•
Hot premix or other black top surfaces
•
Access to each erf with graded or gravelpaved road (basic)
•
Access to each erf with a narrow paved road
or a wider road with a narrow paved width
(intermediate or full level of service).
Due to rainfall leading to surface run-oﬀ; high trafic volumes, gravel roads are not recommended in
the SPM area. Paved roads, constructed using labour-intensive construction methods, are the preferred option.
The adaptability and suitability of the proposed
road surface to the storm water drainage to be
used is considered as it is a strong linkage that
exists between roads and storm water service options (in a similar manner that water and sanitation services are linked). Certain of these roads are
constructed in such a way that they carry storm
water, thus serving a dual purpose.

2.5 Relating Backlogs to Municipal Spending on Service
Delivery Infrastructure
Sol Plaatje Municipal Council faces a unique challenge of capacity as well as ageing bulk infrastructure which is unable to provide to the needs of a
growing city. The demand for growth in housing,
commercial developments and other social and
economic infrastructure has resulted in the city’s
infrastructural capacity being overstretched.
From the bulk infrastructure backlogs it is clear
that current capacity is below the desired need.
In addition due to age and lack of renewal (and
inadequate maintenance) some of the reticulation infrastructure result in considerable losses
e.g. 52% losses in water.
An application for the upgrading of the Notiied Maximum Demand (NMD) from 120MVA to
200MVA was submitted to Eskom. This application will provide suf icient bulk electricity requirements but not mitigate the inherent risk of
operating substations at maximum capacity. The

present Noti ied Maximum Demand from Eskom
is 120MVA, but is limited to 112MVA. Eskom has
approved the municipal application for increased
NMD (demand) from 120MVA to 140MVA. The
infrastructure to be constructed will have a capacity of 200MVA, this is in preparation for future
needs. The Southridge Transformer was recently
upgraded and has been commissioned.
It is the intention of SPM to inance its capital
needs through National Government Grant funding (e.g. MIG) and/or loan inancing or a combination thereof.
As indicated previously Sol Plaatje Municipality
made budgetary provision to service a long term
capital loan of R262 million for the next MTREF
period, part of the loan will be in a form of bridging inance from the MIG funding. An application
for bridging MIG funds has been submitted to National Treasury.
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2.6 Relevance to the Municipal IDP

The rolling ive-year Integrated Development
Plan (IDP) contains key municipal plans and
priorities for the current political term of of ice.
Central to the execution of the IDP is the need for
economic growth and job creation as well as the
need to maintain, upgrade and extend municipal
infrastructure in order to facilitate much needed
economic development. These considerations
impact on all choices and decisions the SPM have
to make. Marketing the city and attracting international and regional investment are also key elements in inancing the execution of Sol Plaatje’s
IDP.
However, consistent under-investment in the
city’s existing and new productive infrastructure
are threatening the foundations of the local economy, and provision of the agreed level of service
is a huge challenge to the inancial sustainability
of the Municipality.
Sol Plaatje is further located within a weak economic region1 which, in considering the above
challenges, had to creatively develop a strategy
to ensure a long term sustainable development
path. This strategy is founded in the Municipality’s space-economy - meaning the geographic
distribution of settlements (large and small), the

1. Frances Baard Growth and Development Strategy - December 2007
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activities within them (residential, commercial,
institutional, recreational, and so on), and the
relationship of these settlements and activities
to the infrastructure that connects and supports
them, and links in turn to surrounding agriculture
and nature areas.
Related to maintaining and strengthening critical
connections both physical and non-physical to the
Municipality is managing Kimberley and existing
outlying settlements as sustainable, attractive
centres of living, services and work. Kimberley
will not prosper without critical connections in a
broader settlement pattern, and it cannot hope to
maintain or strengthen these connections unless
it is maintained as a place worth living and working in.
This aspect has a number of dimensions. The irst
relates to service infrastructure, the basis for activity of all kinds in the city. Bulk infrastructure
refurbishment, extension and maintenance have
been under severe stress in the Municipality for
a number of years, limiting opportunity for new
investment and the viability of existing places of
living, services and work. Creative partnerships
will be required to plan, fund and implement the
necessary work.

2.7 Approval of Land Use Change and Building Plans
2010/2011
During this inancial year the Sol Plaatje Municipality’s Land Use Management System was put
in place in line with the Spatial Development
Framework to enhance the spatial development
of the municipal area.

Approval of Land Use Change Applications
In terms of legislation (Northern Cape Planning
and Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 7 of 1998),
an application for the amendment of the zoning
scheme should take approximately forty weeks on
average. The moratorium on new developments,
imposed on 5 August 2009, due to infrastructure
capacity and the absence of a land policy negatively aﬀected this stipulated time frame. On 20
December 2010, the moratorium on development was lifted by Council; however, abiding by
the legal time frame with regard to applications
for amendment of the zoning scheme still posed a
challenge due to the backlogs.

The inability to control the compilation of intersectoral comments also contributed to not being able to abide by the legal time frames, hence
the approval of all applications taking more than
twelve months to process. This process has since
been adapted to speed-up the inter-sectoral comments.
During the 2010/2011 inancial year, 66 approvals were anticipated. Forty-one land change applications were approved, while 23 residential
business applications were approved. There is a
noted drop in the actual number of residential
business applications approved in 2010/2011
inancial year; this is due to the moratorium in
place on all residential business applications in
line with the Spatial Development Framework
and Land Use Management System. The Table below gives a summary of the land use changes during the 2010/2011 inancial year.

Approval of Zoning Plans
The table below gives a summary of zoning plans processed during the inancial year under review.
Table 6: Summary Zoning Plans 2010/2011
Applications
outstanding
1 July 2010
24
15
2
1
0
0
23
65

Category

Residential
Suburban Business
Commercial
Institutional
Resort
Undetermined
Subdivision
TOTAL

Number
of new
applications
received
2010/2011

Applications
approved
during the
ϔinancial year
2010/2011

13
0
2
0
0
1
9
25

18
18
2
0
1
1
8
48

36

Total value of
applications
received
(Rand)
19,500
3,000
2,000
12,210
36,710

Applications
outstanding
30 June 2011
30
23
4
2
1
0
30
90
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1,245

1

525,420,000 Totals

420,000 Hospitals and clinics

Schools, crèches, hospitals and
3,780,000 libraries

- Shopping space

0

3

- Of ice and banking space

Tourism accommodation and
5,880,000 casinos

- Blocks of lats

14,280,000 Townhouses

3,360,000 Church, sports, and recreation clubs

0

14

0

34

8

Industrial and warehouse space
10,500,000 and workshops

376,320,000 Additions to Dwelling houses

896

25

110,880,000 Dwelling houses

Category

264

Applications
outstanding at
Total value of
the
applications
beginning of
(Rand)
the 2010/2011
ϔinancial year

Table 7: Summary of Building Plans 2010/2011

1,288

2

4

5

9

6

4

46

9

12

877

314

Number
of new
applications
submitted
during the
2010/2011
ϔinancial
year

540,960,000

840,000

1,680,000

2,100,000

3,780,000

2,520,000

1,680,000

19,320,000

3,780,000

5,040,000

368,340,000

131,880,000

Total value of
applications
submitted
(Rand)

758

2

6

5

9

4

0

36

2

9

129

556

Number
of new
applications
approved
during the
2010/2011
ϔinancial
year

318,360,000

840,000

2,520,000

2,100,000

3,780,000

1,680,000

-

5,120,000

840,000

3,780,000

54,180,000

233,520,000

Total value of
applications
approved
(Rand)

1,775

1

1

0

0

16

4

44

15

28

1,644

22

748,020,000

420,000

2,940,000

-

-

6,720,000

1,680,000

18,480,000

6,300,000

11,760,000

690,480,000

9,240,000

Application
outstanding
during the Total value of
ending
applications
of the
(Rand)
2010/2011
ϔinancial
year
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CHAPTER 3 HUMAN RESOURCE AND OTHER
ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT
3.1 General Information
Following a number of successive audit quali ications and queries, the Council and Executive Management Team of Sol Plaatje Municipality decided
in March 2010 to commence with a multi-disciplinary assignment called Operation Clean Audit
Report (OPCAR) aimed at achieving a clean audit
in respect of all inancial and institutional aspects
raised in successive audit reports.
Specialists in organisational development and
human resources were contracted to assist the
municipality in this endeavour. In October 2010
a irst report on the results of the institutional
interventions (OPCAR Phase 1) was released and
included issues such as:
•

An assessment of Gaps and a Revised Human
Resource Policies and Procedures Handbook

•

The reconciliation of the payroll with the staﬀ
establishment and initial veri ication of contract workers (April May, June 2010 payroll)

•

An assessment of the eﬀectiveness of the Local Labour Forum, including recommendations for improvement
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•

The micro organisational Structure

•

A Human Resource Strategy Report.

During November 2010 the OPCAR (institutional)
activities were followed up, for example:
•

A detailed veri ication of contract workers,
including extensive consultations with management, staﬀ and unions

•

The con irmation of the current “as is” organogram and collating of inputs pertaining
to the “to be” operational/micro structure.

These specialists worked in close collaboration
with the Director Corporate Services, senior Human Resource of icials, and consulted representatives from all directorates as well as trade unions
over several months to verify the list of contract
workers and produce an up to date as-is organogram for the municipality.
This work is ongoing and will see an institutional
transformation that can address the challenges
facing the municipality in achieving its constitutional mandate.

3.2 Detail Information

During the Audit Outcome of 2009/2010 inancial year, Corporate Services received a clean Audit Report.

rised with the Municipality and encouraged to
make use of the Employee Wellness Programme
as and when required.

Human Resources

Skills development for both employees and residents of Sol Plaatje is critical and in line with the
IDP. Two employees participating in the Electrical
Apprenticeship programme have quali ied. This
approach maximises human development and
capacitates people for both present and future
employment. A total of 430 employees received
training in the 2010/2011 inancial year, at a cost
of R1,134,908.

The Workplace Skills Plan was submitted on time
and a grant of R595,828 was received of which
R576,388 was spent. The format of the needs
analysis was reviewed to ensure a more user
friendly and accurate document, informing the
Workplace Skills Plan.
Human Resources policies have been reviewed
which resulted in streamlining the Recruitment
and Selection procedures. Induction took place
every two months where of icials were familia-

The following table provides a breakdown of
training bene iciaries as a percentage of the total
per group:

Occupational Group

Total %

Legislators

8.20

Directors and Corporate Managers

16.67

Professionals

19.15

Technicians and Trade Workers

20.28

Community and Personal Service Workers

39.43

Clerical and Administrative Workers

17.88

Machine Operators and Drivers

27.12

Labourers

21.39

A break-down of ABET attendance is as follows:
Abet Levels

Number

Abet Level 1

1

Abet level 2

3

Abet Level 3

1

Abet Level 4

1
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Summary of Beneϐiciary Trained Data

Training Course

Total number of Black bene iciaries .................. 405
Black bene iciaries as % of total
bene iciaries ......................................................... 94.16%
Total number of woman bene iciaries .............. 119
Woman bene iciaries as % of total
bene iciaries ......................................................... 27.80%
The Municipality’s External Capacity Development and Skills Development Programmes all
meet the National Quali ication’s Authority requirements.
The Council recognises that raising motivation
and skills levels is essential to continued improved service delivery.
The following table indicates the number of employees trained per course:
Total number of bene iciaries............................... 430
Bene iciaries as % of total employees..........21.7%
Skills development of the employees of Council is
a top priority, and is aimed at developing skilled
employees to perform their jobs to acceptable
standards.
The Skills programme planned for 2009/2010
inancial year targeted all employees from executive to elementary levels. Emphasis was placed
on the Abet training, Basic Safety, Batho Pele/Client Services, First Aid, Health and Safety, Driver
Training, Emergency Services related training,
Security related training and Water Puri ication.
Training Course

Number

Abet Level 1

1

Abet level 2

3

Abet Level 3

1

Abet Level 4

1

Accident Reporting and Investigation

2

Archival Protective Enclosures

1

Basic Computer Training

9

Basic First Aid Accredited Training

28

Basic Health and Safety

27
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Basic Safety, Health and Environment
Protection Representative
Basic Transport Management Course
Batho Pele
Cataloguing and Classi ication
Code 10 Drivers Licence
Code 14 Drivers Licence
Employee Right and Obligations
Fire Arm Training Level 1
Fire Arm Training: Combination H/G and
S/G Ri le
Fire Arm Training: Knowledge (Level 2)
First Aid Accredited Training (Level 2)
First Aid Level 1 and Level 2
First Aid Level 3
Induction Training
Labour Relations
MS Word 2003 Level 1
HV Regulations
Supervisor Accredited Training
Preventative Conservation of Photographs
Pump Operator
Samtrac
Self Contained Breathing Aparatus
Third Year Electrical Apprenticeship
Training
Water and Waste Water: Chlorine
Water and Waste Water Assessment:
Chlorine
Water and Waste Water Assessment:
Primary Setting
Water and Waste Water Assessment:
Sampling
Water and Waste Water Re-assessment:
Chlorine
Water and Waste Water Re-assessment:
Knowledge
Water and Waste Water Re-assessment:
Sludge
Water and Waste Water Re-assessment:
Sand ilter
Water and Waste Water: Operate primary
settling process
Water Rescue
Workplace Communication

Number
161
1
27
2
9
8
23
63
84
36
16
22
10
49
23
33
13
6
1
8
1
12
2
9
7
10
5
2
1
1
2
10
5
32

Staff Movements
Staﬀ movements – terminations and appointments for the current inancial year – are indicated in the
table below:
African

Male
Coloured
Indian

White

African

Female
Coloured
Indian

White

Terminations

32

18

0

0

3

2

0

2

Appointments

26

23

1

2

13

7

0

3

Promotions

8

6

0

1

2

0

0

0

The above terminations represent a staﬀ turnover of 3.17%, which is well within the acceptable norm
for Local Government.

Pension Funds
The following table presents information on the pension funds in existence in Sol Plaatje Municipality.
Number of
Members

Pension Fund
SALA

Contribution
Employee
Employer

Deϔined
Beneϔits

Deϔined

421

8,6

20,78

All

-

1,004

9

23,06

135

869

CAPE JOINT RETIREMENT

855

9

18

All

-

CAPE JOINT RETIREMENT
CONTRACT EMPLOYEES

1

7,5

19,5

All

-

SAMWU

47

9

18

45

All

MEPF

77

7,5

22

All

-

MCPF

7

15

13,75

All

-

IMATU / SANLAM

2

8,6

20,78

All

-

CAPE JOINT PENSION

The numbers re lected in the table above, indicate that 87% of the total workforce belongs to a Pension
Fund.

Medical Aid Schemes
The following table illustrates information on the medical aid schemes in operation in the Municipality:
Scheme

Council’s Annual Contribution (Rand)

LA HEALTH

213,540.45

BONITAS

1,184,517.45

HOSMED

42,976.20

KEYHEALTH / MUNIMED

172,584.75

SAMWUMED

335,245.20
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Employment Equity

•

The employment equity policy of the Municipality aims to:

Prohibit and combat unfair discrimination
and harassment amongst employees

•

Provide reasonable accommodation of designated groups and, in particular, people
with disabilities

•

Foster diversity in the workplace

•

Eliminate all forms of discrimination

•

Ensure that all people in the region are equitably represented within the municipality
administration

•

Prepare the ground for eﬀective change
through appropriate and ongoing investment in training and development

The plan intends to address numerous af irmative actions such as the auditing of policies for
discriminatory clauses, diversity management interventions and an audit of the work environment
for friendliness” to people with disabilities. All
employment policies and practice are reviewed
to be in line with best practices and legislative requirements.

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Female

African

Male

Top Management

0

0

1

0

4

1

0

0

6

Senior Management

3

0

0

1

2

0

0

0

6

Professionally quali ied and
experienced specialists and middle
management

19

6

0

27

7

3

0

10

72

64

64

3

22

33

17

2

24

229

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making

144

109

2

6

98

58

1

33

451

Unskilled and de ined decision
making

504

174

1

5

95

22

0

2

803

Total Permanent

734

353

7

61

239

101

3

69

1,567

Temporary employees

185

71

0

7

93

35

0

8

399

Grand Total

919

424

7

68

332

136

3

77

1,966

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

2

4

Occupational Categories

Skilled technical and academically
quali ied workers, junior
management, supervisors, foremen
and superintendents

Persons with disabilities

Total

Currently, 100% of all executive managers on contract/all acting are from the designated groups.
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Disclosures concerning Councillors, Directors and Senior Of icials for the period 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011.
Table 8: Supporting table SA23 Salaries, Allowances and Beneϔits (political ofϔice bearers, Councillors and
senior managers
Disclosure of Salaries,
Allowances & Beneϔits 1

Ref

No.
10

Salary

Contrib.

(Rand per annum)
Councillors
Speaker
Chief Whip
Executive Mayor
Deputy Executive Mayor
Executive Committee
Total for all other
Councillors
Total Councillors
Senior Managers of the
Municipality
Municipal Manager (MM)
Chief Finance Of icer
Director - Strategy
Director -Infrastructure
Director Community
Services
Director - Corporate
Services

Allowances

Perf.
Bonuses

1.
4
5

1

504,191

1

594,278

In-kind
beneϔits

Total
Package

2.

3.

504,191
–
594,278
–
–

10
51

7,557,550

4,674,934

8,656,019

4,674,934

-

13,330,953

1,054,991
484,483
399,072
549,516
491,204

189,885
109,115
99,493
87,349
107,836

126,822
186,219
191,168
204,375
188,443

1,371,698
779,817
689,733
841,240
787,483

548,797

100,210

206,599

855,606

1

396,921

52,942

55,155

505,018

1
1

451,455
460,244

109,147
57,734

191,168
186,219

751,770
704,197

9

4,836,683

-

-

9

12,232,484

6

List of each of icial with
packages >= senior
manager
Head: Internal Audit &
Performance Management
Head: IDP
Head Of ice of PMU
Total Senior Managers
of the Municipality
A. Heading for Each
Entity
List each member of
7,8
board by designation
Total for municipal
9
entities
Total Cost of Councillor,
Director and Executive
Remuneration

62 13,492,702

913,711 1,536,168

–

–

7,286,562

-

-

-

-

5,588,645 1,536,168

–

– 20,617,515

-
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References

committee, the Councillor designated to exercise powers and duties of mayor (MSA s 57).

1

Pension and medical aid.

2

If bene its in kind are provided (e.g. provision of living quarters) the full market value
must be shown as the cost to the municipality.

3

Total package must equal the total cost to
the municipality.

4

List each political of ice bearer by designation. Provide a total for all other Councillors.

5

Political of ice bearer is de ined in MFMA s 1:
speaker, executive mayor, deputy executive
mayor, member of executive committee,
mayor, deputy mayor, member of mayoral

6

Also list each senior manager reporting to
MM by designation and each of icial with
package >= senior manager by designation.

7

List each entity where municipality has an
interest and state percentage ownership and
control.

8

List each senior manager reporting to the
CEO of an Entity by designation.

9

Must reconcile to relevant section of Table
A24.

10 Must reconcile to totals shown for the budget year of Table A22.

Table 9: Employee Cost in relation to total expenditure
2010/2011 (Rand)

2009/2010 (Rand)

Employee cost

377,670,689

315,780, 652

Total Expenditure

103,047,427

883,278,328

33.73%

35.87%

Employee Cost as percentage of
Total Expenditure

Table 10: Report on Debt for Councillors and Staff Members
Staff
Number of Debtors
Current

Number
1,077
0

Councillors

Number
46

0

0

0

Previous

R568,823.84

966

R26,948.57

32

30 days

R140,235.38

235

R5,955.43

12

60 days

R90,548.79

188

R3,759.93

7

R1,817,489.64

342

R26,486.03

6

R6,946.00

46

90 days and over
VAT

R255,761.27

1,077

Credits

(R15,237.05)

29

(R7,862.09)

4

R2,871,464.61

1,077

R70,096.59

46

Total

NOTE: Some of icials are living outside the borders of Sol Plaatje (e.g. Barkly West) and some in areas
where there are no service charges.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

45

46

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

CHAPTER 4 AUDITED STATEMENTS AND RELATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
4.1. General Overview
The 2010/2011 inancial year was full of challenges especially in local government as was seen
in various towns and cities in the country, communities protesting for service delivery.
Service delivery is at the core of local government
but without adequate inances, the municipality
sits with the dif iculty of being unable to meet
community expectations. Sol Plaatje Municipality
inds itself in the same position as any other local municipality where the demand for services
is high, and the payment levels for services rendered is at all time low.
If one had to dissect the community of Sol Plaatje
Municipality in terms of sectors, government and
services sector are the major two sectors that offer employment, as such employment opportunities are very scarce for unskilled labour. This
statement is supported by the extent of growth
of the indigent households, thus requiring more
funding from the municipality government iscus.
The mining sector in the Sol Plaatje Municipal
area has been downsizing its operations since the
global economic recession and though markets
are slowly recovering, the mining giant is also hit
by the depletion of natural resources, thus contributing tremendously to unemployment and
job losses.
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On the other hand, as people lose jobs and those
new in the job market cannot secure or ind employment, the demand for municipal services is
increasing, whilst the payment levels are steadily
decreasing.
The number of indigent households are increasing exponentially year on year, and government
subsidies will in future not be suf icient to subsidise citizens who cannot aﬀord municipal services.
The other observation in the economy of Sol
Plaatje Municipality is the fact that young pupils
study outside the city, in other provinces to obtain
post Matric quali ications and after they graduate, do not return to seek employment within the
city, thus leaving the elderly behind who have to
take care of everything including the municipal
account.
With the policy of free for all water, the threat to
revenue enhancement cannot be left unnoticed
which is something worth reviewing by Council
and administration.
All of these and other observations have led to
rather an average performance of the municipality for the period.

4.2 Financial Performance

Sol Plaatje Municipality has endeavoured during
the past years to improve on general compliance
with legislation, and is inally getting the basics
right. However, supply chain management remains a management concern. We are working
hard to capacitate the division with skills and
expertise. Continuous research is being done on
valuable lessons that can be learnt from case law,
continuous interaction with provincial treasury
and regular meetings with various committees
responsible for the implementation of this policy
and related legislation and practice notes.
Like all other business and government entities,
Sol Plaatje Municipality is subjected to credit
rating. Over the last four (4) years, our credit
rating has been stable at A3.za, which is not the

best but SPM is one of the few municipalities that
maintained their credit rating despite the credit
crunch and high job losses that pose a huge risk
in the cash low position and increased debtors
balances in arrears.
The municipality spent a lot of time on internal
controls to ensure that management is assured of
compliance, and ideal execution of responsibilities within the inancial services directorate. The
results of these eﬀorts will bear fruit in the short
to medium term.
Performance management is implemented and
will soon become the order of the day. This will
enable management to monitor the outputs and
outcomes as agreed upon with staﬀ at the beginning of the period.
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4.3 High Level Summary of Performance per Sector

Financial Services Directorate is responsible for
the following areas:
•

Financial administration

•

Revenue management

•

Expenditure management

•

Supply chain management and contracts administration

•

Budget and treasury of ice

•

Assets management

•

Information communication technology

4.3.1

As mentioned in the paragraphs above, we
have worked hard to ensure compliance. Sol
Plaatje Municipality through its Budget and
IDP of ices tabled a process plan for the budget and IDP review processes and the major
timelines were adhered to for the duration
of the inancial year.
The audit process started immediately as
scheduled and the inal audit report was
signed oﬀ on 30 November 2011.

Financial Administration

This section of inancial management is responsible for providing management guidance and direction on issues of inancial
management, planning process and the work
of staﬀ, management of outcomes and outputs, ensuring general compliance with accounting framework and local government
legislation as well as advice to the municipal
manager, senior managers and executive
mayor on inancial management and reporting issues. We facilitate the process of policy
review, public participation processes and
adoption of policies and budget.
The directorate has focused on analysing the
execution of various tasks within the directorate and concluded procedure manuals
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to ensure compliance and consistency, thus
building staﬀ con idence in the execution of
their duties.
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Review of policies
As required by legislation and related regulations,
budget related policies are reviewed annually.
SPM is however putting emphasis on policy development on various issues to ensure certainty
and consistency across the municipal functional
areas.
To enhance the control environment, the directorate has taken serious note of procedure manuals for various tasks, critical and routine and in
areas where there are speci ic regulations. The
directorate provides support to staﬀ by ensuring
that there are procedures in place to boost their
level of con idence in executing their responsibilities and ensuring business continuity when staﬀ
retire for various reasons.

4.4 Budget to Actual Comparison
4.4.1 Capital budget comparison
Financial
Variance %

Physical
Progress %

Detail Capital Project Progress Report as at 30 June 2011

Dunston Shopping Centre

230,000

0

0.00

100

L Molawa

2010/07/01

2010/10/29

Project 99% completed. Trees to be planted and concrete chairs to be installed.

Fencing Florianville Clinic

105,278

90,040

0.00

100

J Britz

2011/02/17

2011/06/30

Project completed

1,100,000

1,052,525

0.00

0

A Samson

2010/07/02

2011/06/30

Project Name

Budget

Fleet replacement Electricity & Finance

Actuals

Project Manager

Start Date

End Date

Comments

Galeshewe Sport Node

6,000,000

169,089

0.00

63

Z Mguza

2010/09/15

2011/09/30

Site meeting was held with contractor on 5/7/2011 and contractor is busy with
excavation and there are boulders that have delayed the project for seven days and
have increased the contractor’s budget. Contractor is expected to hire an excavator
to make up for lost days.

Gurp : Maintenance of Parks

1,500,000

857,523

46.62

100

Z Mguza

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

The successful bidder was noti ied via telephone to come sign the contract.

Informal Trade Facilities Motswedimosa, Ritchie

1,300,000

1,107,497

0.00

75

M Mathebula

2010/09/01

2011/07/29

Top structure 85% completed, fence 100% completed and the gates have been
installed. Paving contractor will only lay paving once the electric cable has been laid.
SPM are waiting on Eskom to connect the electricity cable to the facility.

10,000,000

0

0.00

25

W Swiegers

2010/10/25

2012/12/14

Only R18m available on DBSA loan. Balance to come from Transnet. Grant of R74m
has been approved. Letter to amend EIA for bigger size pipe has been tabled. The EIA
process for balance of project has commenced. Approval to use pan at Droogtfontein
has been obtained. All other EIA processes in progress. A problem in crossing land
of farmers adjacent to pipe line has developed. MoU has been drafted and this will
hopefully solve the crisis.

Phutanang Clinic

300,000

0

0.00

100

D Seeco

2010/07/01

2010/12/31

Project completed and close-out certi icate submitted.

Tlhageng Shopping Centre

140,000

0

0.00

100

L Molawa

2010/07/01

2010/10/29

Pavement project is completed.

Upliftment of looded houses

500,000

0

0.00

0

M Mguza

2010/12/01

2011/06/30

One trial house has been done and quotations have been received for additional four
houses to be done. Contractor has already been appointed.

Kamfersdam Water Balancing

Soul City 818 housing
Virtualization of e-Venus server

0

43,680

-

41

T Bonokwane

2010/07/28

2012/03/30

Tender has been awarded to Motheo Construction Group for the demolishing and rebuild of the recti ication process of Soul City. The actual work started on 16/5/2011,
21 houses are under construction with one show house completed and occupied.

315,000

51,809

16.45

100

H Niemann

2011/04/11

2011/05/13

The project has been completed. The only action outstanding is the payment to the
supplier. SPM is still awaiting invoice.

Playing equipment Ipeleng & Kagisho Parks

200,000

113,735

56.87

100

M Mazzoncini

2010/08/02

2010/10/29

The placement of tables and benches in Ipeleng and Kagisho Parks have been
awarded to N12 Construction and projects. Service provider was unable to ful il his
obligation within the prescribed period. Service provider informed Project Manager
that sub-contractor stole funds that were meant for purchase of materials.

Server Virtualisation

350,000

155,144

44.33

100

W Gouws

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

Project completed.
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Actuals

Physical
Progress %

Budget

Financial
Variance %

Project Name

Project Manager

Start Date

End Date

Comments

Intrusion Detection and Management Software

240,000

160,622

66.93

100

W Gouws

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

With the savings realised on the project it was possible to procure an ITSM system
as well. Project completed.

Parks - Maintenance Equipment 09/10

330,206

263,809

79.89

100

M Mazzoncini

2009/07/01

2010/06/30

Transnet strikes aﬀected delivery dates at harbour, consequently service provider,
Kalil Nissan, was unable to honour previous delivery dates. Cab/ chassis arrived
October and was sent to body builders for construction of the body.

2012/03/30

Building Works - building unit 1-10 of the ground loor and internal plastering have
been completed.
Electrical pipe work of all the ground loors has been completed. All stabilan blocks
have been completed.
Stoep wall for the ground loor has been completed. Toilet facilities 30% done. Reception area and of ice is 30% completed.
Units 12,14,15 and 16 are 15% done. Unit 11 all brickwork is completed.

2011/06/30

256 poles planted, 246 panels welded and 9 poles remaining without panels. Panels
itted thus far is 738 metres in total. Painting of panels to back section of RDP houses is 38% complete. Casting of concrete for Barkly Rd section posts to commence
from 27/1/2011. Devils fork fencing project is on schedule.

6,100,000

SMME Village Galeshewe 09/10

Fencing Witdam

500,000

1,313,961

426,872

6.99

85

28

100

M Mathebula

Frankie Calvert

2009/09/01

2010/07/01

Electri ication Madalane-Mathibe shacks 27 erven

500,000

443,729

88.75

100

Fuad Aysen

2010/10/01

2011/06/30

24 houses in Mathibe Str electri ied. Additional four in Stamper Str. Project 100%
complete. Nine Additional houses electri ied in Solly Legodi Area. Total of 37 houses
completed.

Riverton Reservoir

530,000

462,537

87.27

66

W Swiegers

2010/07/01

2012/06/30

Advertised for professional services on 20/8/2010.
Await con irmation of funding from loan.

1,807,241

792,187

25.63

92

M Mazzoncini

2010/08/02

2011/06/30

Work has stopped due to complications between the members of the joint venture
- the situation is being addressed. Further complications have arisen as the contractor currently does not have the necessary funding to continue with the project.

2011/12/16

Phase 1 : Completed.
Phase 2 : appointment letters issued to both Civil & Electrical contracts. Roofs on
both digesters have been refurbished. Chlorine building on window height. Excavation of mixing channel 80%. Contractor busy with workshop drawings and manufacturing.

New Cemetery : Detail Planning & Fencing

4,039,000

Refurbish & upgrade Beacons ield WWTW

509,839

12.62

78

B Dhluwayo

2010/07/01

Ritchie Waste Water Treatment Works 09/10

806,800

942,018

63.58

79

B Dhluwayo

2010/07/01

2012/02/28

Only one bidder passed functionality and his inancial oﬀer has been evaluated. The
contract will be awarded to this bidder after the budget maintenance has been done
to the MIG business plan.

Replacement programme : IT Hardware 10/11

650,000

536,930

82.60

79

W Gouws

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

Machines have been delivered. Due to personnel shortages installations are taking
longer than planned. We expect to have all PCs installed by end of July 2011.

Erection of CCTV cameras in Galeshewe 09/10

1,000,000

626,566

62.66

78

Z Mguza

2010/04/01

2011/06/30

We are still awaiting a progress report from the Consultants. We have been trying to
get hold of the contractor but all our eﬀorts were in vain. To date there is no
signi icant progress on site when compared to the last month milestone.

2011/05/27

The project is jointly implemented by the internal roads section and Pescodia bricks,
the roads section will assist with the resealing of the parking area while Pescodia bricks
will repave the drive way. There have been delays to the project due the major pothole
drive that is pushed by the roads section which hampered progress on the craven resealing project. We have written a letter to the taxi association asking them to re-route
traf ic once SPM is re-paving . Despite numerous attempts they have not yet responded.
The project is envisaged to be completed before the end of the inancial year.

900,000

CBD Upgrade Projects

52

782,653

80.26

100

D Seeco
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Actuals

Physical
Progress %

Budget

Financial
Variance %

Project Name

Project Manager

Start Date

End Date

Comments

Water Promised Land

1,500,000

1,492,752

56.13

79

W Swiegers

2010/07/01

2012/02/29

Contractor has established on site and once labour problems have been sorted out
actual work will commence.

Kimberley Streetlights and High Masts 2010/2011

1,500,000

1,031,167

68.74

99

F Aysen

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

Gregory Park Hi mast: Project 80% completed.

Electri ication Greenpoint 10/11

2,500,000

1,141,796

45.67

100

F Aysen

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

Contractor busy with low voltage ABC network. Project 100% complete 63 houses
electri ied, rain and water logged roads delayed progress of work. Installing meters,
installing prepayment meters and ready boards to the rest of houses. Project to be
completed in July 2011.

Electri ication Soul City 10/11

1,500,000

1,474,521

98.30

100

F Aysen

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

Project 100% completed. 194 houses completed.

Upgrading of gravel roads

2,799,000

1,633,554

58.36

100

M Keetse

2010/07/01

2011/06/30

All construction work is completed, various roads were paved with a total length of
1,664 km.

Galeshewe Tourism Route - Electrical supply point

2,161,252

1,856,762

76.15

100

L Molawa

2010/07/19

2010/10/29

The project is 100% complete.

Non Revenue Water Minimization

5,500,000

Replacement of Prepaid Meters

6,009,587

Upgrade swimming pools 09/10

3,105,602

Control Panels/Switchgear at Southridge S/S

5,100,000

54

1,927,833

2,652,000

3,012,584

3,138,235

35.05

44.13

97.00

61.53

29

49

69

77

B Dhluwayo

D Mooketsi

M Mazzoncini

D Jacobs
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2010/11/01

2009/07/01

2009/07/01

2010/05/04

2012/01/31

Project progress in accordance to programme. Delays (about four weeks) were
experienced in getting a proper link between cadastral map information and billing
records. A spatial link is required between the billing records and the cadastral.

2011/12/30

This project has been stopped with immediate eﬀect. Received 3000 prepaid
meters of which 2911 have been installed and 89 still outstanding. There are still
340 bypassed prepaid meters that must be removed. An electrician is going to be
permanently appointed to replace bypassed meters.
We need funds to complete this project as the vote nr has no funds at the moment.
We must continue with this project so that SPM can get revenue for the electricity
usage from consumers. Should this project be cancelled there will be again a high
number of bypassed meters in the ield as all Plessey meters must be removed and
new STS meters installed. On-going process as meters are bypassed every single day.
Installation of meters for indigents have not commenced as ready boards must irst
be installed in houses.

2011/06/30

Karen Muir: Completed. Project closure on 30/6/2011.
Florianville : Work per activity list has been completed. Maintenance work on buildings will however continue until end of iscal year. Project closure on 30/6/2011.
Galeshewe : Due to increased costs for replacement of iltration system at Karen
Muir and Florianville SP work at Galeshewe SP will be put on hold until the Lotto
funding is secured. Project closure on 30/6/2011.
Roodepan. Project closure on 30/6/2011. Final meeting with all role players was
held on 1/6/2011.

2011/05/31

The tender was awarded to Consolidated Power Project by the B.A.C on the 24 June 2010.
The irst kick-oﬀ meeting of the project was held on the 21 July 2010. The contractor
will commence with actual work after being supplied with the construction drawings. The duration of the project will be eight (8) months. The plinth will be ready
to accommodate the 30 MVA transformer by end November 2010. During the curing
process, the bund wall and oil catchment dam will be constructed. The transformer
has been installed at the substation.
The cold commissioning is in progress and shall be completed by 10 December 2010.
Cold commissioning and all relevant tests on transformer have been completed.
The project will be delayed by two weeks due to ABB switchgear overseas supplier
not being able to deliver on time. There will however be penalty charges included for
late delivery and delay of the project.
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Actuals

Physical
Progress %

Budget

Financial
Variance %

Project Name

Project Manager

Start Date

End Date

Comments

Civil construction work still continues as per schedule. The switchgear has now been
installed and is ready to be commissioned on the 12th April 2011. The switchgear
has been successfully commissioned.
All certi icates to be handed over after the energization of the transformer, switchgear and control panels. Energization to be executed on the 13 May 2011.
The transformer has been energized and is operational. We are now in the process of
completing all close-out reports and documentation.
Bicycle Lanes Barkly Rd/Ritchie

3,144,702

3,144,701

100.00

100

M Keetse

2009/07/01

2010/08/31

The Project has been successfully completed. The contractor has attended to all
defects on site.

Resealing of Roads : Kimberley

2,428,223

3,321,922

136.80

100

M Keetse

2010/02/12

2010/04/16

Project is complete. Contractor is attending to all construction defects.

Homevale WWTW Extension 15 ML

9,967,919

4,310,605

43.24

54

W Swiegers

2011/07/01

2012/07/02

Contract 1: Civil contract has been awarded but work cannot commence due to a
court interdict.
Contract 2: M & E contract has been awarded and manufacturing of certain equipment is in progress. Progress of M & E contract is dependent on progress by civil
contractor.

Galeshewe Streets & Taxi Routes (Proj 107) 09/10

3,583,470

4,499,561

125.56

100

M Keetse

2009/07/01

2010/11/30

The contractor has repaired all defects as per instruction of the site engineer. The
consulting engineer will soon be doing a formal site hand over to SPM.

2012/07/02

Contract 1: Completed
Contract 2: Completed
Contract 3: Phase 1 is 100% complete; Phase 2 - Completed. There are a few problems relating to SCADA system to be attended to.
Contract 4: Completed. VO on landscaping is in progress.
Contract 5: SST4 Completed.
Apart from the Landscaping as well as a few niggles regarding the SCADA system to
be sorted out, the project is completed.

2012/09/28

The budget quotation was accepted by the Municipal Manager. The quotation was
accepted by the Municipal Manager. The new Noti ied Maximum Demand will be
130MVA and the project amount is R46,849,233.50 VAT included.
Project on schedule. An amount of R12,63,679.42 VAT included is payable to Eskom
on 16 September 2011 for ordering of long lead material.

Homevale Waste Water Works

Add Bulk Elect from Eskom (80 MVA) (Application)

13,500,000

15,796,874

14,400,000

16,610,741

Link Mpiwa and Silson rds

217,667

Paving of Streets (Proj 105)
Donkerhoek Bus and Taxi Routes (Proj 73)
TOTAL

88

B Dhluwayo

P Loots

2008/07/01

115.35

95

190,935

88

100

Roll over projects from 2009/2010 inancial year.

198,082

198,082

100

100

Roll over projects from 2009/2010 inancial year.

910,000

858,936

94

100

Roll over projects from 2009/2010 inancial year.

66.29

55

119,469,029 79,196,326

56

117.01
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The Adjustment Budget 2010/2011 was tabled
and approved on 28 February 2011 of which the
total operating budget was adjusted upwards to
R1,037,897,956 and the total capital budget was
adjusted downwards to R119,469,029.

4.4.2 Comparison Actual to Original
Operating Budget and Adjustment Budget
In terms of sections 24(1) and 24(2)(a) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No.
56 of 2003) a Council must consider the annual
budget for approval at least 30 days before the
start of the inancial year and approve the annual
budget before the start of the inancial year. On 31
May 2010, Council approved Sol Plaatje Municipality’s original budget for the 2010/2011 inancial year. The total operating budget amounted to
R1,018,429,956 and the capital budget amounted
to R304,672,000.

4.4.3 Operating Expenditure
The total operating expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2011 amounted to R1,039,061,342.
In comparison with the original budget this constitutes a total over-expenditure of 2,03% and
0.11% compared to the Adjustment Budget, as
indicated in the table below:

2010 / 2011

Expenditure by Type

Employee Related costs

Actual

Original
Budget

Variance
Original
Budget
(%)

Adjustment
Budget

Category
Variance of Expend.
Adjustment
as % of
Budget
Total
(%)
Expend.

364,339,736

329,042,530

10.57

361,242,530

0.71

35.01

Remuneration of Councillors

13,330,953

14,612,146

-7.07

13,112,146

3.56

1.31

Impairment Losses

97,383,130

95,000,000

1.61

95,000,000

1.61

9.29

147,448

1,145,000

-87.12

1,145,000

-87.12

0.01

Depreciation

38,592,691

49,732,000

-22.40

33,960,000

13.64

3.71

Repairs & Maintenance

51,065,386

56,678,260

-9.90

57,783,260

-11.63

4.91

Finance Costs

14,697,358

20,685,829

-28.95

16,685,829

-11.92

1.41

234,314,846

241,000,000

-2.77

239,000,000

-1.96

22.55

3,191,000

1,450,000

3,191,000

0.00

0.31

212,983,878

209,084,191

6.72

216,778,191

2.93

21.47

Total Operating Expenditure 1,030,046,427 1,018,429,956

2.03

1,037,897,956

0.11

100.00

Collection Costs

Bulk Purchases
Grants & Subs Paid
General Expenses Other

Below follows an explanation of the signi icant
variances on expenditure greater than 10% in relation to the original budget:

Repairs and Maintenance
The state of infrastructure for service delivery is
very critical. In the absence of maintenance plans,
it is very dif icult to project maintenance requirements per asset class. Though it seems like re-

120.07

pairs and maintenance was under-spent (actual:
R51,065,386 compared to adjustment budget:
R57,783,260), this was mainly due to qualifying
asset expenditure transferred to capital.

Finance Costs
For the 2009/2010 inancial year new loans
raised amounted to R10,463,371 in comparison to 2010/2011 where new loans were raised
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amounted to only R39,818,246. The repayment
on these annuity loans for the 2010/2011 inancial year amounted to R2,111,980. The new loan
raised of R230 million was only approved in February 2011. The loan was phased in over three
years and this resulted in the municipality having
a substantial saving on interest for the current
year.

General Expenses

Grants and Subsidies Paid

Impairment Losses

The grants to the festivals are to promote economic growth. The subsidy to the SPCA is to assist the municipality to care for stray animals and
other related tasks. The subsidy is paid on an annual basis.

The total amount on Impairment Losses was
overspent due to the impairment of debtors being
increased. The calculation of Impairment losses
was changed from a global to individual debtor
impairment as required by the GRAP standards.

The over-expenditure on General expenses is attributable to two major items namely transfer
of non-qualifying asset expenditure transferred
from capital to operational and bypassed prepaid
meters amounting to R21 million and R10 million
respectively.

Graph: Expenditure by Type: Original budget vs Adjustment budget compared with actual
1,200,000,000
1,000,000,000
800,000,000
600,000,000
400,000,000

The graph above illustrates that the municipality’s major cost drivers are Employee Related
costs, Bulk purchases and General Expenses while
Impairment losses also play an important role.
It also depicts that the current spending trends
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Total Operating
Expenditure

General Expenses
Other

Grants & Subs Paid

Bulk Purchases

Finance Costs

Repairs &
maintenance

Depreciation

Collection Costs

Impairment Losses

Remuneration of
Councillors

0

Employee Related
costs

200,000,000

of the municipality are in line with its budget. It
should be noted, as depicted in the table, that the
actual expenditure compared to the original budget varies by 2,03% whilst in relation to the adjustment budget it varies by only 0.11%.

In relation to the original budget and adjustment
budget the actual expenditure is on target, thus
validating that the municipality has the capability
to exercise proper inancial management, discipline and control within its operational requirements and available resources.

The personnel expenditure can be attributed to
the amount of manpower required to deliver an
ef icient and eﬀective service to the citizens of
our municipality and taking into the account the
annual wage increases for the 2010/2011 inancial year. The implementation of Post Retirement
Provisions also aﬀected the operational budget
expenditure. Expenditure on overtime remains
a concern. Management should implement clear
measures and procedures on the management of
overtime in the 2011/2012 inancial year. General
expenses constitute a large number of items with
a wide scope, but these include inter alia professional fees, audit fees, subsidy for income indigent
households as well as various operational project
expenditure and administrative costs.

4.4.4 Operating Revenue
The total operating revenue for the year ended 30
June 2011 amounted to R1,069,156,986. In comparison to the original budget. It is 5% below the
adjusted budget of R1,118,101,956.

2010 / 2011
Source
Variance of Income
Adjustment
as % of
Budget
Total
(%)
Income

Actual

Original
Budget

Variance
Original
Budget
(%)

Property Rates

209,350,661

208,319,706

2%

212,388,706

-1%

0%

Service Charges

871,405,692

582,599,961

1%

585,599,961

-2%

1%

12,740,245

13,289,282

0%

13,289,282

-4%

0%

Interest Earned - Ext
Investments

4,801,581

6,000,000

-33%

4,000,000

20%

0%

Interest Earned Out
Debtors

31,282,531

38,000,000

-8%

35,000,000

-11%

0%

Fines

3,634,590

5,778,000

0%

5,778,000

-37%

0%

Licenses & Permits

3,125,280

2,891,100

0%

2,891,100

8%

0%

Income for Agency Services

3,488,878

2,600,000

0%

2,600,000

34%

0%

190,806,628

228,709,070

-6%

215,443,432

-11%

0%

0

0

26,288,454

29,914,837

0%

29,914,837

-12%

0%

1,056,924,539 1,118,101,956

-1%

1,106,905,318

-5%

1%

Revenue by Source

Rent of Facilities &
Equipment

Grants & Subsidies
Public Contribution &
Donation
Other Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

Adjustment
Budget

0

0%

Below follows an explanation of the signi icant variances on revenue greater than 10% in relation to
the original budget:
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Property Rates

Rental of Facilities and Equipment

Property Rates are levied on an annual basis at
the beginning of the inancial year for certain categories of ratepayers and consumers including
businesses who prefer to be billed annually. The
movement on Property Rates represents the subsequent adjustments made in respect of supplementary valuations which are processed when
necessary to take into account changes in individual property values due to alterations, subdivisions and the rest of consumers who get billed
on a monthly basis.

Various factors including the current economic
climate and consumer spending trends resulted
in revenue from Rental of facilities and equipment not being realised.

Interest on External Investments
The declining interest rate and the state of investments necessitated Sol Plaatje Municipality
to adjust its budget on Interest from external investments downwards. In light of the adjustment
it resulted in the municipality exceeding its budgeted total of R4 million.

Graph: Revenue by source: Original budget vs Adjustment budget compared with Actual
1,200,000,000
1,000,000,000
800,000,000
600,000,000
400,000,000

The graph above illustrates that the Municipality’s major sources of revenue are Property Rates
(19,56%), Service Charges (54,40%) and Grant &
subsidies (17,85%). It also gives an indication of
the performance of the Municipality in relation
to the original budget in comparison to its adjustment budget and actual which is fairly good
considering the current economic climate, the
challenges facing all municipalities to be able to
do more with less and enhancing sound inancial
management, building capacity and ensuring a
motivated staﬀ complement who put the interest
of the community irst.
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Total Operating
Revenue

Other Revenue

Public Contribution &
Donation

Grants & Subs capital

Grants & Subs
operating

Income for Agency
Services

Licences & Permits

Fines

Interest Earned Out
Debtors

Interest Earned Ext Investments

Rent of Faciities &
equipment

Service Charges

0

Property Rates

200,000,000

There is always room for improvement, and the
following key areas are identi ied as priorities for
Sol Plaatje Management:
•

improve on the current collection rate

•

reducing the outstanding debtor’s book

•

building the municipality’s reserves in order
to provide a sustainable service to the community we are serving

•

utilising these resources cost eﬀectively

•

enhancing the quality of life for all citizens.

Sources of information: Statistics South Africa

Capital Budget
Council approved an adjustment budget of
R119,395,374 in January 2011 which was a downward adjustment from R304,672,702 originally
adopted by Council in April 2010. This downward
adjustment was mainly due to a long-term loan
from DBSA which only came to fruition late in the
inancial year.

Category

Actual
(Rand)

Actual
Under
Construction

The Municipality’s ef iciency in capital spending for the 2010/2011 inancial year re lects an
overall performance of 66% (2009/2010 – 67%)
against a target of 85%. This is similar to the performance in 2009/2010, but considerably better
than in prior years.
Actual versus Budget (Acquisition of Property, Plant
and Equipment) for the year ended 30 June 2011

2010 / 2011
Actual
Actual
Additions
Budget
(Rand)
(Rand)

%
Spent

Explanation
of Variances

Executive and Council

105,764

-

105,764

106,000

100

Municipal General

395,767

-

395,767

414,000

96

Municipal Manager

36,294

-

36,294

37,000

98

Corporate Services

271,349

-

271,349

280,000

97

Community Services

2,889,268

4,799,798

7,689,066

7,923,914

97

Financial Services

1,947,842

-

1,947,842

1,990,000

98

Strategic and Economic
Development

1,353,596

-

1,353,596

19,631,252

7

NDPG and GURP
projects in the process
of being rolled over.

19,349,984

48,046,664

67,396,648

89,086,863

76

Various projects in the
process of construction
being rolled over.

79,196,326 119,469,029

66

Non qualifying assets
expenditure transferred
to operational budget.

Infrastructure and
Services
TOTAL

26,349,864 52,846,462

Twenty seven (27) of the 44 approved projects
were 100% completed during the inancial year
and ive were between 90%-100% completed
by 30 June 2011. Only twelve projects could not
be completed on time, and the following reasons
were recorded for not completing on time:
•

Poor performance of service providers and
contractors ..................................................................3

•

Excessive rain .............................................................1

•

Funding not suf icient or released later than
anticipated...................................................................4

•

Long procurement process ..................................1

•

Inadequate project management capacity ....6

According to this information the supply chain
management processes improved since the previous year as it was then the main reason for
projects not being completed on time. Serious attention should therefore be given to enhance the
municipality’s project management focus and related issues such as approving projects only once
project management related concerns have been
resolved.
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4.5 Inter-governmental Grants

Municipalities are responsible for planning municipal infrastructure and for using MIG to deliver
the infrastructure. Sol Plaatje Municipality is one
of the bene iciaries of such a grant and the funds
are focused on addressing backlogs in water, sanitation, roads (including storm water) and electricity (street lights). All projects identi ied by the
municipality form part of the IDP. Reporting relating to MIG issues con irms with DoRA requirements and MIG conditions.

An amount of R34,494,000 was allocated at the
beginning of the inancial year. At year end 100%
expenditure was reported as spent.
Sol Plaatje Municipality has planned and implemented projects ranging from; Street lights; Upgrading of Roads; Water and Sanitation bulk and
reticulation infrastructure. The following projects
were embarked on during 2010/2011 Financial
Year:

Project Name
Kimberley: Streetlights (Project 55)
Homevale Wastewater Treatment Works (Project 243)
Homevale Upgrading of Sewerage Works (Project 951)
Galeshewe Bus and Taxi Routes (Project 107)
Ritchie Waste Water Treatment Works (Project 244)
The Promised Land Water Reticulation (Project 150)
Beacons ield: Upgrading of Waste Water Treatment Works (Project 977)

The following deliverables were achieved under each project:
Project Name

Project Deliverables

Kimberley: Streetlights
(Project 72) National Code

14 Streetlights and one High Mast light were completed under this
project.

Kimberley: Streetlights (Project 55)

21 Streetlights and one High Mast light were completed under this project.

Homevale Waste Water Treatment
Works (Project 243)

The Rehabilitation of the Waste Water Treatment Works to its original
operating capacity of 30Ml/Day. Out of this project an additional 3Ml/
Day was achieved which resulted in the provisional uplifting of the
moratorium on development placed in 2008.

Homevale Upgrading of Sewerage
Works (Project 951)

This project involves the extension of capacity at the Homevale WWTW.
The professional planning and designs have now been completed. The
tender process was being inalised at the end of the inancial year. This
project will continue into the new inancial year.
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Project Name
Galeshewe Bus and Taxi Routes
(Project 107)

Ritchie Waste Water Treatment
Works (Project 244)

The Promised Land Water
Reticulation (Project 150)

Beacons ield: Upgrading of Waste
Water Treatment Works
( Project 977)

Project Deliverables
This involved the provision of roads to surfaced standards. At the end
of the inancial year the project was completed and 3,6km paved streets
were achieved.
The completed work involved the planning and designs of the existing
oxidation ponds in Ritchie in preparation for refurbishment and upgrading of the plant. At the end of the inancial year the municipality had
already called for tenders for the proposed work. A budget maintenance
will be required for the continuation of the project. This project will continue into the new inancial year.
This project entails the construction of a water reticulation network for
the community of Promised Land (794 Households). At the end on the
inancial year, planning and design was complete, the contractor had established site and was ready to start with construction. This project will
continue into the new inancial year.
The project involves the refurbishment of the Beacons ield WWTW.
Planning and design is complete. Two contractors have been on site since
April 2011 and the project will continue into the new inancial year.

Though not a project the Project Management Unit set-up is inanced from MIG funding which includes equipment, personnel and other operational costs that are being incorporated to make the unit fully functional.

Despite the actual project outputs, the following
outcomes bene ited the community of Sol Plaatje
Municipality through the MIG programme:

•

•

•

The refurbishment of bulk infrastructure led
to the upliftment of the moratorium on development, which resulted in development
and possible economic growth within the
city.

•
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The community bene ited from employment
generated through labour-intensive methods of construction which temporarily reduced the levels of poverty.
Reduction in crime through installation of
high mast and street lights in some of the
identi ied crime hot spots.
Improved access to residential and business
areas through upgrading of streets.
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Proposed MIG Multi-year Plan: 2011/2014
Project Name

2011/2012 (Rand)

2012/2013 (Rand)

2013/2014 (Rand)

PMU

1,378,000

1,466,914

1,547,595

Street lights (Projects 55 & 70)

1,500,000

1,500,000

0

Promise Land (700 erven-water)

5,300 000

0

0

Promise Land (700 erven-water)

0

2,000,000

10,000,000

7,500,000

0

0

Ritchie WWTW

15,250,000

0

0

Homevale WWTW

14,435,000

18,090,000

34,832,220

0

0

10,401,496

45,363,000

23,056,914

56,781,311

Beacons ield WWTW

Roads and Storm water MIG Projects
TOTAL

4.5.2 Galeshewe Urban Renewal
and Neighbourhood Partnership Development Grants
The Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme receives funding from National Treasury through
the Neighbourhood Development Partnership
Grant (NDPG) which is part of the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2010 (Act No. 1 of 2010,
as amended) (DoRA).
The grant is twofold; Technical Assistance (TA)
and Capital Grant (CG), with the initial allocation
for TA being R5 million and CG R30 million respectively.
Both allocations were adjusted to R2 million TA
and R15 million until the end of 2009/2010. TA
was mainly used to inalise ive business cases including project management, whilst CG could not
be spent due to:
•

Delays emanating from National Treasury
on how best projects could be implemented
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•

Approvals of business plans as submitted to
Treasury before any project can commence

•

Limited time to go out on tender to secure
appropriate service providers.

The nature of NDPG is that unspent funds remain
in an ‘envelope’ and are only shifted once a project is ready for implementation. Thus, none of the
budget has been lost.
Through provincial COGHSTA, GURP had an allocation of R7 million and the entire allocation was
spent on the Resealing of Roads project.
All funds received from National Treasury have
met the grant conditions and all of the Technical
Assistances projects are at a inal stage. The rationale in developing these divergent business plans
will inform the roll out of projects in Galeshewe
in a systematic way.
The R7 million received from COGHSTA had an
impact as most of the roads in the Sol Plaatje jurisdiction were resealed as part of the 2010 FIFA
World Cup legacy projects, and created both professional and labour intensive type of jobs.

4.6 Report of the Audit Committee

The municipality’s annual inancial statements
were audited by the provincial auditor general
and the inal audit report was signed and delivered on 30 November 2011.
The report was then tabled to Council in its ordinary Council meeting on 13 December 2011 and
was so accepted.
The audit opinion expressed by the Provincial
Auditor General is a quali ied audit opinion and
the quali ication was expressed in various areas
as will be seen in the report below.
Management and Council accepted the opinion
and have already begun to develop an action plan
to address the audit indings, which will be aimed
at addressing the root causes as highlighted in
the management letter and clearing these for the
follow up audit in 2012, ensuring that similar instances are not highlighted by the Auditors when
conducting the 2012 audit.
Name of the Member

Position

Overview
The Audit & Risk Committee (ARC) and Performance Audit Committee (PAC) are formal committees of the Council and its functions are as per
section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003).
We are pleased to present our report for the inancial year ended 30 June 2011.

Audit & Risk Committee Members
and Attendance
The Audit & Risk Committee consists of the
members listed hereunder, and meets as often
as deemed necessary as per the approved terms
of reference. With eﬀect from June 2011 the contract of the audit committee members has been
extended for the next three years ending June
2014 and one additional member has been appointed.
Date Appointed

Number of meetings attended

Viren Magan

Chairperson

June 2008

4 out of 4

Thiru Mudaly

AC member

June 2008

4 out of 4

Oupa Makhale

AC member

June 2008

4 out of 4

Peace Ntuli

AC member

May 2011

N/A

During the period under review, there were four
meetings held.

Audit & Risk Committee responsibility
The Audit & Risk Committee has ful illed its responsibilities as stipulated in the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of
2003) in conjunction with the Treasury Regulations. The committee has adopted an appropriate

formal charter, which regulates its aﬀairs. It has
also discharged its responsibilities in compliance
with the approved audit charter.

The effectiveness of internal control
In line with the MFMA and the latest King III Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and
management with assurance that the internal
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controls are appropriate and eﬀective. This is
achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identi ication of corrective
actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.

Risk management
Risk management has been adopted by the municipality and on a yearly basis risks are reviewed.
The top 20 risks facing the municipality have
been identi ied, and a dedicated of icer appointed
to monitor the implementation thereof.

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors,
the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and the management report of the AuditorGeneral South Africa, it was noted that signi icant
matters were reported that indicated material
de iciencies in the system of internal control or
any deviations therefrom.

Establishment of Performance Audit
Committee
The municipality further appointed a performance audit committee in accordance with Regulation 14(2) (a) of the Municipal Planning and
Performance Management Regulations, 2001.

There were instances where matters reported by
internal audit were not satisfactorily and/or fully
resolved.

The overall purpose of the Performance Audit
Committee is to assist the Accounting Of icer in
discharging his/her responsibilities as stipulated
in terms of Chapter 6 of the Municipal Systems
Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000).

Accordingly, we report that the system of internal
control over inancial reporting for the period under review was not ef icient and not eﬀective.

Governance

In order to curb costs the municipality appointed
only the chairperson with expertise in performance management and related and two members from the audit committee were seconded to
this committee.

The vacancy in top structure has to some extent
had a negative eﬀect in the moving of the municipality to its strategic direction.
We acknowledge that the performance contracts
for the Accounting Of icer and managers directly
accountable to him were in place, and evaluations
have been done quarterly.
Name of the Member

Position

PAC and AC meetings are arranged back to back
so that they sit on the same day in order to cut
costs.
Date Appointed

Number of meetings attended

Izak Bredenkamp

Chairperson

June 2010

2 of 2

Viren Magan

PAC member

June 2010

2 of 2

Oupa Makhale

PAC member

June 2010

2 of 2

Linkage with National Key Performance Areas for Local Government
Sol Plaatje Municipality, through its IDP endorsed
the ive National Key Performance Areas, namely:
•

Local Economic Development

•

Basic and Sustainable Service Delivery and
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Infrastructure Development
•

Municipal Financial Viability and Management

•

Municipal Institutional Development and
Transformation

•

Good Governance and Public Participation

Within each of the KPAs the Municipality developed its own strategic objectives – to address its
own unique key priority issues. These emphasis shifts were needed on the one hand to make
the objectives attainable in the speci ic context
of SPM circumstances, and on the other to emphasise the overarching objectives related to the
space-economy and long term growth.

agement reports were compiled and submitted
timeously as required in terms of legislation,
however we are of the opinion that the information reported to some extent lacked the detail description to enable the reader to understand and
interpret correctly.

To ensure that the above objectives
will be met the following was done:

We have:

Evaluation of Financial Statements
•

Reviewed and discussed the audited annual
inancial statements to be included in the annual report with the Auditor-General South
Africa and the Accounting Of icer

•

Strategic and operational plans with budget
alignment for each area

•

The appointment of a performance manager

•

•

The implementation of a performance management system to allow for dash board reporting

Reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa’s
management report and management’s response thereto

•

Reviewed changes in accounting policies and
practices

•

The signing of performance contracts with
the MM and the section 56/57 managers

•

Reviewed the municipality’s compliance with
legal and regulatory provisions

•

Quarterly performance reviews of the MM
and sections 56/57 managers

•

Reviewed signi icant adjustments resulting
from the audit.

The following remain challenges that will be
addressed in the future:
•

A more eﬀective use of the performance
management system to ensure that data is
current and accurate.

•

Further alignment of the KPA and KPI with
the IDP budget and speci ic attention to making the KPI more speci ic and measurable for
performance reviews.

•

The implementation of performance management principles that will include corrective action for poor performance and reward
for exceptional performance.

Submission of in-year management and
monthly/quarterly reports in terms of the
Municipal Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations
The committee has been informed by management that the monthly/quarterly in-year man-

We concur with and accept the Auditor-General
of South Africa’s report on the annual inancial
statements, and are of the opinion that the audited annual inancial statements should be accepted, read together with the report of the Auditor-General South Africa.

Internal audit
We are satis ied that the internal audit function
is operating ef iciently and eﬀectively and that it
has addressed the risks pertinent to the municipality in its audits.

Auditor-General South Africa
We have met with the Auditor-General South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

Conclusion
The Audit Committee has noted the matters and
concerns raised by the Auditor-General and accept that there is still a signi icant improvement
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required in the accounting and internal control
environment at the municipality.
The Audit Committee has also noted that the
overall inancial performance and governance
of the municipality has improved, and this is relected in the movement of the audit opinion from
a disclaimer in the previous year to a quali ication in the current year. This notwithstanding,
it is recognised that much work still lies ahead,
and the Committee will continue to monitor the
various interventions aimed at ensuring that improved audits are achieved in the years ahead.

Appreciation
The committee expresses its sincere appreciation
to the Honourable Executive Mayor, Accounting
Of icer, Senior management team, Internal Audit
and the Auditor-General.
V Magan
Chairperson of the Audit & Risk Committee
I Bredenkamp
Chairperson of the Performance Audit
Committee
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1 Bauser R
2 Bishop PD
3 Boqo AN
4 Dawids RM
5 Frans T
6 Jacobs M
7 Johnson E
8 Kruger LE

Ward
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

Councillor/Alderman
Lekoma MD
Leven MM
Ludick RA
Matika OM
Mazabane J
Mfulo A
Mogorosi SR
Morudi GD
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Ward
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Councillor/Alderman
Mthukwane KG
Ndlazi SP
Ngobeza WN
O’Neil Couts PA
Pietersen J
Setlhabi EK
Stan ley SH
Steyn JL

Ward
25
26
27
28
29

Councillor/Alderman
Srauss PAS
Tarentaal WSJ
Vilakazi PM
Visser MD
Voster PJ

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Sol Plaatje Municipality
for the year ended 30 June 2011

I am accountable for the preparation of these annual inancial statements, which are set out on pages
4 to 78, in terms of Section 126(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act and which I have signed
on behalf of the Municipality.
I certify that the salaries, allowances and bene its of Councillors as disclosed in note 30 of these annual
inancial statements are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Of icer Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and
Local Government’s determination in accordance with this Act.

GH Akharwaray
Municipal Manager
31 August 2011
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 June 2011
Description
ASSETS
Current Assets
Inventory
Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale
Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Trade Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Operating Lease Assets
VAT Receivable from Exchange Transactions

Note

2011
R

2010
R

2011 Budget
R

367,050,711
18,941,978
643,888
145,028,013
122,850,811
70,002,668
90,342
9,493,012

340,383,583
15,733,318
596,460
149,601,321
119,375,672
51,238,735
84,604
3,753,474

374,226,897
16,205,317
158,817,366
134,115,960
65,000,000
88,254
-

910,392,198
792,556,915
2,485,582
115,349,700
1,277,442,909

869,473,699
749,931,361
3,425,872
116,116,467
1,209,857,282

789,213,159
731,409,358
3,597,165
54,206,635
1,163,440,056

13
14
15
16
17
6
18

177,140,513
11,857,366
4,767,854
112,989,700
9,238,545
10,971,434
9,418,186
17,897,429

190,844,040
10,225,457
5,299,684
106,265,502
3,436,299
30,212,211
25,067,445
10,337,441

210,913,215
10,838,987
5,617,665
113,564,041
46,664,708
25,819,468
8,408,346

18
19
20

264,669,861
96,758,275
135,684,739
32,226,847

210,258,820
66,611,996
114,140,484
29,506,340

253,596,595
92,891,958
123,842,425
36,862,212

Total Liabilities
Total Assets and Liabilities

441,810,374
835,632,535

401,102,860
808,754,422

464,509,810
698,930,246

NET ASSETS
Accumulated Surplus

835,632,534
835,632,534

808,754,422
808,754,422

698,930,246
698,930,246

835,632,534

808,754,422

698,930,246

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Investment Property
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Consumer Deposits
Provisions
Creditors
Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
VAT Payable from Exchange Transactions
Bank Overdraft
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Retirement Benefit Liabilities
Non-current Provisions

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10
11

21

Total Net Assets
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 June 2011
Budget 2010
R

Budget 2011
R

Note

Description

Actual 2011
R

Actual 2010
R

REVENUE
Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
190,313,244
5,280,000
2,491,100
2,322,800
225,222,561
-

488,541,307
12,722,508
4,000,000
43,250,000
45,229,766
1,019,373,286

212,388,706
5,778,000
2,891,100
2,600,000
215,443,432
-

Property Rates
Fines
Licences and Permits
Income for Agency Services
Government Grants and Subsidies Received
Public Contributions and Donations

585,599,961
13,289,282
4,000,000
35,000,000
29,914,837
-

Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Service Charges
Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Interest Earned - External Investments
Interest Earned - Outstanding Debtors
Other Income
Gains on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

300,269,021
11,523,385
1,095,000
48,191,482
89,000,000
53,097,340
12,221,964
202,000,000
1,350,000
183,029,582

13,112,146
1,145,000
33,960,000
95,000,000
57,783,260
16,685,829
239,000,000
3,191,000
216,778,191

117,595,512

209,350,661
3,634,590
3,125,280
3,488,878
190,806,628
-

189,423,946
3,776,691
3,089,183
3,244,760
219,084,299
3,877,500

571,405,692
12,740,245
4,801,581
31,282,531
26,288,454
-

471,453,386
11,130,646
3,984,460
39,476,418
25,425,876
-

1,056,924,539

973,967,166

29

364,339,736

304,399,586

30

13,330,953
147,448
38,592,691
97,383,130
51,065,386
14,697,358
234,314,846
3,191,000
212,983,878

11,380,466
265,302
33,681,856
96,732,663
53,826,249
10,473,243
196,224,388
350,000
175,944,576

1,030,046,427

883,278,328

26,878,112

90,688,837

26
27

24
25
23
23
28

1,106,905,318 Total Revenue
EXPENDITURE
361,242,530 Employee Related Costs

901,777,774

22

Remuneration of Councillors
Collection Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation
Impairment Losses
Repairs and Maintenance
Finance Costs
Bulk Purchases
Grants and Subsidies Paid
General Expenses

31
32
33
34
35
36

1,037,897,956 Total Expenditure
69,007,362 SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Refer to Appendix E(1) for explanation of budget variances
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Balance at 30 June 2011

`

1,409,116

(15,182,611)

Property, Plant and Equipment purchased

Contribution to Insurance Reserve

15,000,000

1,591,726

1,591,726

Transfer to Capital Replacement Reserve

Surplus for the year

Restated Balance

2011

Balance at 30 June 2010

Contribution to Insurance Reserve

(9,483,124)

Property, Plant and Equipment purchased

74,851

74,851

11,000,000

39

Note

Transfer to Capital Replacement Reserve

Surplus for the year

Restated Balance

Correction of Error

Balance at 30 June 2009

2010

Description

Capital
Replacement
Reserve(CRR)
R

18,561,409

1,743,584

16,817,826

16,817,826

84,064

16,733,761

16,733,761

8,726,551

869,855

7,856,696

7,856,696

307,617

7,549,079

7,549,079

Accumulated Surplus Account
Self
COID
Insurance
Reserve
Reserve
R
R

806,935,459

(2,613,439)

15,182,611

(15,000,000)

26,878,112

782,488,174

782,488,174

(391,681)

9,483,124

(11,000,000)

90,688,837

693,707,894

177,491,527

516,216,367

R

Accumulated
Surplus

835,632,534

-

-

-

26,878,112

808,754,422

808,754,422

-

-

-

90,688,837

718,065,585

177,491,527

540,574,058

Total for
Accumulated
Surplus
Account
R

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2011

835,632,534

-

-

-

26,878,112

808,754,422

808,754,422

-

-

-

90,688,837

718,065,585

177,491,527

540,574,058

R

Total

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2011
Description

Note

Actual 2011
R

Actual 2010
R

Budget 2011
R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from Ratepayers, Government and Other

41

924,143,358

792,696,760

977,477,000

Cash paid to Suppliers and Employees

41

869,264,567

706,556,438

877,252,000

Cash generated from / (utilised in) Operations

41

54,878,791

86,140,322

100,225,000

Interest received

23

36,084,112

43,460,878

14,440,000

Interest paid

33

(14,697,358)

(10,473,243)

(16,685,000)

76,265,544

119,127,958

97,980,000
(119,469,000)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

9

(79,196,326)

(103,358,636)

Purchase of Intangible Assets

10

(362,292)

(128,453)

Purchase of Investment Property

11

-

(3,877,500)

(Increase) / decrease in Long-term Receivables

12

-

113,424

-

(79,558,618)

(107,251,164)

(119,469,000)

New Loans raised

39,818,246

10,463,371

36,630,000

Loans repaid

(2,111,980)

(10,557,701)

(7,746,000)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

37,706,266

(94,330)

28,884,000

34,413,192

11,782,464

7,395,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

26,171,290

14,388,826

63,000,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

60,584,482

26,171,290

70,395,000

NET CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

6
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Accounting Policies to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2011

1. Basis of presentation
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are
in accordance with the historical cost convention,
except where indicated otherwise.
The inancial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the eﬀective Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
1.1 Changes in accounting policy and comparability
Accounting Policies have been consistently
applied, except where otherwise indicated
below:
For the years ended 30 June 2009 and 30
June 2010 the municipality has adopted the
accounting framework as set out in point 1
above. The details of any resulting changes
in accounting policy and comparative restatements are set out below.
The municipality changes an accounting policy only in the following instances:
(a) is required by a Standard of GRAP; or
(b) results in the inancial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the eﬀects of transactions,
other events or conditions on the entity’s
inancial position, inancial performance
or cash low.
1.2 Critical judgements, estimations and assumptions
In the application of the municipality’s accounting policies, which are described be-
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low, the management are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may diﬀer from
these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision aﬀects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if
the revision aﬀects both current and future
periods.
The following are the critical judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, that
the management have made in the process
of applying the municipality’s Accounting
Policies and that have the most signi icant
eﬀect on the amounts recognised in Annual
Financial Statements:
1.2.1

Revenue Recognition
Accounting Policy 10.2 on Revenue from
Exchange Transactions and Accounting
Policy 10.3 on Revenue from Non-exchange
Transactions describes the conditions under which revenue will be recorded by
the management of the municipality.
In making their judgement, the management considered the detailed criteria for
the recognition of revenue as set out in
GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions and GAMAP 9: Revenue, as far as
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transac-

methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
The management of the municipality is
satis ied that the impairment of inancial
assets recorded during the year is appropriate.

tions is concerned (see Basis of Preparation Accounting Policy 10). In particular,
whether the municipality, when goods
are sold, had transferred to the buyer the
signi icant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and when services is
rendered, whether the service has been
rendered. Also of importance is the estimation process involved in initially measuring revenue at the fair value thereof.
The management of the municipality is
satis ied that recognition of the revenue
in the current year is appropriate.
1.2.2

• Impairment of trade receivables
The calculation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on an
assessment of the extent to which
debtors have defaulted on payments
already due, and an assessment of
their ability to make payments based
on their creditworthiness.

Financial Assets and Liabilities
The classi ication of inancial assets and
liabilities, into categories, is based on
judgement by management. Accounting
Policy 6.1 on Financial Assets Classi ication and Accounting Policy 6.2 on Financial Liabilities Classi ication describe the
factors and criteria considered by the
management of the municipality in the
classi ication of inancial assets and liabilities.

This was performed across all classes
of debtors.
1.2.4

As described in Accounting Policies 3.3,
4 and 5 the municipality depreciates/
amortises its property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the assets at the end of
their useful lives, which is determined
when the assets are available for use. The
useful lives and residual values of the assets are based on industry knowledge.

In making the above-mentioned judgement, management considered the de inition and recognition criteria for the
classi ication of inancial instruments as
set out in IAS 32: Financial Instruments
- Presentation and IAS 39: Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement.
1.2.3

Impairment of Financial Assets

Useful lives of Property, Plant and
Equipment, Intangible Assets and Investment Property

1.2.5

Accounting Policy 6.4 on Impairment
of Financial Assets describes the process followed to determine the value
by which inancial assets should be impaired. In making the estimation of the
impairment, the management of the municipality considered the detailed criteria of impairment of inancial assets as
set out in IAS 39: Financial Instruments
- Recognition and Measurement, and
used its judgement to select a variety of

Impairment: Write down of Property,
Plant and Equipment and Inventories
Accounting Policy 3.9 on PPE - Impairment of assets and Accounting Policy 4.2
on Intangible assets - Subsequent Measurement, Amortisation and Impairment
and Accounting Policy 8.2 on Inventory Subsequent measurement describes the
conditions under which non- inancial
assets are tested for potential impairment losses by the management of the
municipality. Signi icant estimates and
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1.2.6

judgements are made relating to PPE
impairment testing, Intangible assets
impairment testing and write down of
Inventories to the lowest of Cost and Net
Realisable Values (NRV).

1.4 Going Concern Assumption

In making the above-mentioned estimates and judgement, management considered the subsequent measurement
criteria and indicators of potential impairment losses as set out in GRAP 17:
Property, Plant and Equipment, GRAP
12: Inventory and GRAP 102: Intangible
assets. In particular, the calculation of
the recoverable service amount for PPE
and intangible assets and the NRV for inventories involves signi icant judgment
by management.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have
not been oﬀset except when oﬀsetting is required
or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.

1.5 Off-setting

1.6 Standards, amendments to standards,
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following GRAP standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet eﬀective
and have not been early adopted by the municipality:
GRAP 18

Segment Reporting - issued
March 2005

GRAP 21

Impairment of Non-cash-generating
Assets - issued March 2009

GRAP 23

Revenue from Non-Exchange
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)
- issued February 2008

GRAP 24

Presentation of Budget Information
in Financial Statements - issued
November 2007

GRAP 25

Employee Bene its - issued
December 2009

GRAP 26

Impairment of Cash-generating
Assets - issued March 2009

Deϐined Beneϐits Plan Liabilities
As described in Accounting Policy 13,
the municipality obtains actuarial valuations of its de ined bene it plan liabilities. The de ined bene it obligations of
the municipality that were identi ied are
Post-retirement Health Bene it Obligations, Long-service Awards and Ex-gratia
Awards. The estimated liabilities are recorded in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 (Employee Bene its).
Details of the liabilities and the key assumptions made by the actuaries in estimating the liabilities are provided in
Notes 19 and 20 to the Annual Financial
Statements.

1.2.7

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Management judgement is required
when recognising and measuring provisions and when measuring contingent
liabilities as set out in notes, 20 and 51
respectively. Provisions are discounted
where the eﬀect of discounting is material using actuarial valuations.

1.3 Presentation Currency
The Annual Financial Statements are presented in
South African Rand, rounded oﬀ to the nearest Rand,
which is the municipality’s functional currency.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

79

GRAP 103 Heritage Assets - issued July 2008
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments
- October 2009
The Minister of Finance announced that the application of GRAP 21, GRAP 23, GRAP 24, GRAP 26,
GRAP 103 will be eﬀective for reporting periods
commencing after 1 April 2012. All other standards as listed above will only be eﬀective when a
date is announced by the Minister of Finance.
ASB Directive 5 paragraph 29 sets out the principles for the application of the GRAP 3 guidelines in the determination of the GRAP Reporting
Framework hierarchy, as set out in the standard
of GRAP 3 on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

•

Where a standard of GRAP is approved as eﬀective,
it replaces the equivalent statement of International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board,
International Financial Reporting Standards or
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Where a standard of GRAP has been issued, but
is not yet in eﬀect, an entity may select to apply
the principles established in that standard in developing an appropriate accounting policy dealing with a particular section or event before applying paragraph 12 of the Standard of GRAP on
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

2

2.2 Self insurance reserve
A general insurance reserve has been established, and subject to reinsurance where
deemed necessary, it covers claims that may
occur. Premiums are charged to the respective services and credited to the operating
accounts as per budgeted amount. Reinsurance premiums paid to external reinsurers
and other expenditure are regarded as an
expense, and are debited against the operating accounts. The net surplus or de icit on
the insurance operating accounts is transferred to or from the insurance reserve via
the Statement of Changes in Net Assets.

Statutory Funds and Reserves

Included in the accumulated surplus of the municipality, are the following reserves that are
maintained in terms of speci ic requirements:
2.1 Capital replacement reserve (CRR)
In order to inance the provision of infrastructure and other property, plant and
equipment from internal sources, amounts
are transferred from the accumulated surplus to the CRR in terms of delegated powers.

The balance of the self-insurance reserve
is invested in short-term cash investments.
Interest earned on the insurance reserve is
recorded as interest earned in the Statement
of Financial Performance.
2.3 Compensation for occupational injuries
and diseases (COID) reserve
The Entity has been exempted from making
contributions to the Compensation Commissioner for occupational injuries and diseases
in terms of Section 84 of the COID Act (Act
No. 130 of 1993). The certi icate of exemption issued by the Commissioner, and as prescribed by the COID Act, requires that the
Entity deposits cash and/or securities with
the Commissioner. Premiums are charged to
the respective services and credited to the
operating accounts as per budgeted amount.
Reinsurance premiums paid to external reinsurers and other expenditure are regarded
as an expense, and are debited against the
operating accounts. The net surplus or de icit on the COID operating account is transferred to or from the COID reserve via the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets.

The following provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of the CRR:
•

The cash funds that back up the CRR
are invested until utilised. The cash may
only be invested in accordance with the
investment policy of the Entity.

•

The CRR may only be utilised for the
purpose of purchasing items of property,
plant and equipment, and may not be
used for the maintenance of these items.

•

Whenever an asset is purchased out of
the CRR, an amount equal to the cost
price of the asset is transferred from
the CRR, and the accumulated surplus is
credited by a corresponding amount.

If a pro it is made on the sale of assets,
the pro it on these assets is re lected in
the Statement of Financial Performance
and is not transferred to the CRR, as it is
regarded as revenue.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

3.1 Initial recognition
Property, plant and equipment are tangible
non-current assets (including infrastructure
assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to
others, or for administrative purposes, and
are expected to be used during more than
one year.
The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and
only if it is probable that future economic
bene its or service potential associated with
the item will low to the municipality, and if
the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially
recognised at cost on its acquisition date
or in the case of assets acquired by grant or
donation, deemed cost, being the fair value
of the asset on initial recognition. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment
is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the
municipality. Trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost
also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring
the site on which it is located.

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment acquired in exchange for a nonmonetary assets or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary
assets is measured at its fair value. If the acquired item could not be measured at its fair
value, its cost was measured at the carrying
amount of the asset given up.
Major spare parts and servicing equipment
qualify as property, plant and equipment
when the municipality expects to use them
during more than one period. Similarly, if the
major spare parts and servicing equipment
can be used only in connection with an item
of property, plant and equipment, they are
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
3.2 Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised if
it is probable that future economic bene its
or potential service delivery associated with
the subsequent expenditure will low to the
entity and the cost or fair value of the subsequent expenditure can be reliably measured.
Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is only capitalised when it increases the
capacity or future economic bene its associated with the asset. Where the municipality
replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises
the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new component.

When signi icant components of an item of
property, plant and equipment have diﬀerent useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequently all property plant and equipment, including Infrastructure Assets, are
measured at cost (or deemed cost), less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Where an asset is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e.
a non-exchange transaction), the cost is
deemed to be equal to the fair value of that
asset on the date acquired.

Compensation from third parties for items of
property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up is included in surplus
or de icit when the compensation becomes
receivable.
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which the asset’s future economic bene its
or service potential are expected to be consumed by the municipality.

3.3 Depreciation
Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as
having an unlimited life. Depreciation on assets other than land is calculated on cost, using the straight line method, to allocate their
cost to their residual values over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The depreciation method used re lects the pattern in
Description

Components of assets that are signi icant in
relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The depreciation rates are based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Years

Infrastructure

Description
Buildings

Years
30

Roads and Paving

10-50

Electricity

15-80

Other

Water

15-100

Specialist vehicles

Sewerage

10-55

Other vehicles

Land ill sites

25-30

Of ice equipment

3-7

Furniture and ittings

10

Bins and containers

5

Community
Recreational facilities
Public safety

15-30
3-5

Depreciation only commences when the asset is available for use, unless stated otherwise.

5

Specialised plant and equipment

2-15

Other items of plant and equipment

2-15

3.6 Heritage assets
Heritage assets, which are culturally signi icant resources of nature (examples are statues, graves, memorial assets, libraries, canons, etc.) and accordingly to GRAP 17 should
be shown at cost and are not depreciated owing to uncertainty regarding their estimated
useful lives. However as GRAP 103 is not effective, heritage assets are shown at a zero
value for the inancial year under review.

The assets’ residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed
annually, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, at each reporting date.
3.4 Incomplete construction work
Incomplete construction work is stated at
historical cost. Depreciation only commences when the asset is available for use.

5-15

3.7 Infrastructure assets
Infrastructure assets are any assets that are
part of a network of similar assets. Infrastructure assets are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment.

3.5 Finance leases
Assets capitalised under inance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful lives
on the same basis as PPE controlled by the
entity or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease if there is no reasonable certainty
that the municipality will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term.

Infrastructure assets are treated similarly to
all other assets of the municipality in terms
of the asset management policy.
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3.8 Derecognition of property, plant and
equipment

or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or de icit.

The carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic bene its
or service potential are expected from its
use or disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised for
cash-generating units if the recoverable
amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets of the unit as follows:

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or de icit when
the item is derecognised. Gains are not classi ied as revenue.

•

Gains or losses are calculated as the diﬀerence between the carrying value of assets
(cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses) and the disposal proceeds is included in the Statement
of Financial Performance as a gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised
in prior periods for assets may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of those assets are estimated.

3.9 Impairment of assets
3.9.1

The increased carrying amount of an
asset attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods.

Impairment of cash generating assets
The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the municipality
estimates the recoverable amount of the
individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is
an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at
cost less any accumulated depreciation
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To the assets of the unit, pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in surplus or de icit.
3.9.2

Impairment of non-cash generating
assets
The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service
amount of the asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable service amount of the individual
asset, the recoverable service amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable service amount is the
higher of a non-cash generating asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The value in use for a non-cash
generating asset is the present value of
the asset’s remaining service potential.

4

Intangible assets

4.1 Initial recognition
Identi iable non–monetary assets without
physical substance are classi ied and recognised as intangible assets. The municipality
recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is
probable that the expected future economic
bene its or service potential that are attributable to the asset will low to the municipality and the cost or fair value of the asset can
be measured reliably.

If the recoverable service amount of an
asset is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable service amount. That
reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at
cost less any accumulated depreciation
or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or de icit.

Internally generated intangible assets are
subject to strict recognition criteria before
they are capitalised. Research expenditure is
recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are ful illed:

An impairment loss is recognised for
cash-generating units if the recoverable
amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets of the unit as follows:
• To the assets of the unit, pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit.
The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised
in prior periods for assets may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable service
amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an
asset attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or de icit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.

•

it is technically feasible to complete the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use

•

management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it

•

there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset

•

it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic bene its

•

adequate technical, inancial and other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available

•

the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development
can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent pe-
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riod. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is ready
for use on a straight-line basis over its useful
life, not exceeding ive years. Development
assets are tested for impairment annually, in
accordance with IPSAS 21/IAS 36.

gible assets are deemed to have an inde inite
useful life, such intangible assets are not amortised, for example servitudes obtained by
the municipality give the municipality access
to land for speci ic purposes for an unlimited
period - however, such intangible assets are
subject to an annual impairment test.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at
cost. The cost of an intangible asset is the
purchase price and other costs attributable
to bring the intangible asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the
municipality, or where an intangible asset is
acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, the
cost shall be its fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the cost. Intangible
assets acquired separately or internally generated are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Where an intangible asset is acquired
in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the
cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was
not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the assets given up.

Intangible assets are annually tested for impairment, including intangible assets not
yet available for use. Where items of intangible assets have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss,
which is recognised as an expense in the period that the impairment is identi ied except
where the impairment reverses a previous
revaluation. The impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and
the recoverable amount.
The estimated useful life, residual values
and amortisation method are reviewed annually at the end of the inancial year. Any
adjustments arising from the annual review
are applied prospectively as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial Performance.
4.3 Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised when the
asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic bene its or service potential
expected from the use of the asset. The gain
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the net disposals proceeds
and the carrying value and is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

4.2 Subsequent Measurement, Amortisation
and Impairment
After initial recognition, an intangible asset
is carried at its cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
In terms of GRAP 102, intangible assets are
distinguished between internally generated
intangible assets and other intangible assets.
It is further distinguished between inde inite
or inite useful lives. Amortisation is charged
on a straight-line basis over the intangible
assets’ useful lives, which are estimated to
be between three to ive years, the residual
value of assets with inite useful lives is zero,
unless an active market exists. Where intan-
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5

Investment Property

5.1 Initial recognition
Investment property includes property (land
or a building, or part of a building, or both
land or buildings held under a inance lease)
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, rather than held to meet service
delivery objectives, the production or supply

ied as Property, Plant and Equipment, Inventory or Non-Current Assets Held for Sale,
as appropriate:

of goods or services, or the sale of an asset in
the ordinary course of operations.
At initial recognition, the municipality measures investment property at cost including
transaction costs once it meets the de inition
of investment property. However, where an
investment property was acquired through
a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where it acquired the investment property for no or a
nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at
the date of acquisition.

•

Property intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations or in the process of construction or development for
such sale.

•

Property being constructed or developed
on behalf of third parties.

•

Owner-occupied property, including
(among other things) property held for
future use as owner-occupied property,
property held for future development
and subsequent use as owner-occupied
property, property occupied by employees such as housing for personnel
(whether or not the employees pay rent
at market rates) and owner-occupied
property awaiting disposal.

•

Property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment
property.

•

Property that is leased to another entity
under a inance lease.

•

Property held to provide a social service
and which also generates cash in lows,
e.g. property rented out below market
rental to sporting bodies, schools, low
income families, etc.

•

Property held for strategic purposes or
service delivery.

The cost of self-constructed investment
property is the cost at date of completion.
Based on management’s judgement, the following criteria has been applied to distinguish investment properties from owner occupied property or property held for resale:
•

•

•

•

All properties held to earn market-related
rentals or for capital appreciation or both
and that are not used for administrative
purposes and that will not be sold within
the next 12 months are classi ied as Investment Properties.
Land held for a currently undetermined
future use. (If the Municipality has not
determined that it will use the land as
owner-occupied property or for shortterm sale in the ordinary course of business, the land is regarded as held for
capital appreciation).
A building owned by the entity (or held
by the entity under a inance lease) and
leased out under one or more operating leases (this will include the property portfolio rented out by the Housing
Board on a commercial basis on behalf of
the municipality).

5.2 Subsequent Measurement - Cost Model
Investment property is measured using the
cost model. Investment Property is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated on cost, using the straight-line
method over the useful life of the property,
which is estimated at 20 - 30 years. Components of assets that are signi icant in relation
to the whole asset and that have diﬀerent
useful lives are depreciated separately.

A building that is vacant but is held to be
leased out under one or more operating
leases on a commercial basis to external
parties.

The following assets do not fall in the ambit
of Investment Property and shall be classi-
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The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an
investment property is determined as the
diﬀerence between the sales proceeds and
the carrying value and is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.
5.3 Derecognition
An investment property shall be derecognised (eliminated from the statement of inancial position) on disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
bene its or service potential are expected
from its disposal.

6

Financial Instruments

The municipality has various types of inancial instruments and these can be broadly categorised
as either inancial assets, inancial liabilities or
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement. The municipality only recognises a inancial instrument
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial recognition
Financial assets and inancial liabilities are recognised on the entity’s Statement of Financial Position when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity does not oﬀset a inancial asset and
a inancial liability unless a legally enforceable
right to set oﬀ the recognised amounts currently
exist; and the entity intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Fair value methods
The fair values of inancial instruments are determined as follows:
•

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices.

If the market for a inancial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the company establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques. These in-
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clude the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash low analysis,
and option pricing models making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-speci ic inputs.
The effective interest rate method
The eﬀective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a inancial asset or
a inancial liability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The eﬀective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the inancial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the inancial
asset or inancial liability.
Amortised cost
Amortised cost is the amount at which the inancial asset or inancial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using
the eﬀective interest method of any diﬀerence
between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus any reduction for impairment
or uncollectability.
6.1 Financial assets - classiϐication
A inancial asset is any asset that is cash or a
contractual right to receive cash.
In accordance with IAS 39.09 the Financial
Assets of the municipality are classi ied as
follows into the four categories allowed by
this standard:
Loans and Receivables are non derivative
inancial assets with ixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months, which are classi ied as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the inancial asset. After

•

initial recognition Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost, using the eﬀective
interest rate method less a provision for impairment.

Available for sale investments are inancial
assets that are designated as available for
sale or are not classi ied as:

Held-to-Maturity Investments are inancial
assets with ixed or determinable payments
and ixed maturity where the municipality
has the positive intent and ability to hold the
investment to maturity.
Financial assets at fair value through pro it
or loss are inancial assets that meet either
of the following conditions:
•

they are classi ied as held for trading or

upon initial recognition they are designated as at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance.

•

Loans and Receivables

•

Held-to-Maturity Investments or

•

Financial assets at fair value through
pro it and loss.

The municipality has the following types of inancial assets as re lected on the face of the Statement
of Financial Position or in the notes thereto:

Type of Financial Investment

Classiϔication in terms of IAS 39.09

Short-term Investment Deposits – Call

Available for sale

Bank Balances and Cash

Loans and receivables

Long-term Receivables

Loans and receivables

Consumer Debtors

Loans and receivables

Other Debtors

Loans and receivables

Investments in Fixed Deposits

Held-to-maturity investments

the following types of inancial liabilities as
re lected on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes thereto:

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty
cash) and cash with banks (including call
deposits). Cash equivalents are short-term
highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash, that are
held with registered banking institutions
with maturities of three months or less and
are subject to an insigni icant risk of change
in value. For the purposes of the cash low
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call
with banks, net of bank overdrafts.

•

Long-term Liabilities

•

Certain Other Creditors

•

Bank Overdraft

•

Short-term loans

•

Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities

•

Consumer Deposits

There are three main categories of Financial
Liabilities, the classi ication determining
how they are measured. Financial liabilities
may be measured at:

The municipality categorises cash and cash
equivalents as inancial assets: loans and receivables.

(i) Fair value through pro it or loss

6.2 Financial Liabilities - Classiϐication

(ii) Other inancial liabilities (Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost), or

A inancial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another inancial asset to another entity. The municipality has

(iii) Financial guarantee contract.
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rectly attributable transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at fair
value with unrealised gains or losses
recognised directly in equity until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss recorded in
equity is recognised in the statement of
inancial performance, or determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss recorded in equity is recognised
in the statement of inancial performance.

Financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value through pro it or loss are inancial liabilities that are essentially held for trading
(i.e. purchased with the intention to sell or
repurchase in the short term; derivatives
other than hedging instruments, or are part
of a portfolio of inancial instruments where
there is recent actual evidence of short-term
pro iteering or are derivatives).
Any other inancial liabilities are classi ied
as “Other inancial liabilities” in accordance
with IAS 39.09.
Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the
facility utilised. Finance charges on bank
overdrafts are expensed as incurred.
6.3 Initial and Subsequent Measurement
6.3.1

Financial Assets
Held-to-maturity Investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the inancial asset.
Subsequently, these assets are measured
at amortised cost using the Eﬀective Interest Method less any impairment, with
revenue recognised on an eﬀective yield
basis.
Loans and Receivables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the inancial asset.
Subsequently, these assets are measured
at amortised cost using the Eﬀective Interest Method less any impairment, with
interest recognised on an eﬀective yield
basis.
Trade and other receivables (excluding
Value Added Taxation, prepayments and
operating lease receivables), loans to
group entities and loans that have ixed
and determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classi ied
as loans and receivables.
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets are
initially measured at fair value plus di-
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6.3.2

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value through pro it or loss are stated at fair value, with any resulted gain or
loss recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.
Financial Liabilities held at amortised
cost
Any other inancial liabilities are classi ied as “Other inancial liabilities” (All
payables, loans and borrowings are classi ied as other liabilities) and are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs. Trade and other payables, interest bearing debt including inance lease
liabilities, non-interest bearing debt
and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
eﬀective interest rate method. Interest
expense is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance by applying the
eﬀective interest rate. Bank borrowings,
consisting of interest-bearing short-term
bank loans, repayable on demand and
overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received.
Finance costs are accounted for using
the accrual basis and are added to the
carrying amount of the bank borrowing
to the extent that they are not settled in
the period that they arise. Prepayments
are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

on that inancial asset previously recognised
in Statement of Financial Performance. A
signi icant or prolonged decline in fair value
of the instrument below cost is an indicator
of impairment.

Financial guarantee contract
Financial guarantee contracts represent contracts that require the issuer to
make speci ied payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because
a speci ied debtor fails to make payments when they are contractually due.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. The
subsequent measurement of inancial
guarantee contracts is the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with
the policy on provisions as set out below,
or the amount initially recognised less
when appropriate cumulative amortisation.

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance for an investment in an equity instrument classi ied as
available-for-sale are not reversed through
the Statement of Financial Performance. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classi ied as available-forsale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance, the impairment loss must be reversed, with the amount
of the reversal recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

6.4 Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair
value through pro it or loss, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence
of impairment of Financial Assets (such as
the probability of insolvency or signi icant
inancial dif iculties of the debtor). If there
is such evidence the recoverable amount is
estimated and an impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 39.

Financial assets carried at amortised
cost
Accounts receivables encompasses long
term debtors, consumer debtors and other
debtors.
Initially Accounts Receivable are valued at
fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the eﬀective interest rate
method. An estimate is made for doubtful
debt based on past default experience of
all outstanding amounts at year-end. Bad
debts are written oﬀ the year in which they
are identi ied as irrecoverable. Amounts receivable within 12 months from the date of
reporting are classi ied as current.

Available-for-sale ϐinancial assets
When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale inancial asset has been recognised directly in net assets and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in net assets shall be removed
and recognised in the Statement of Financial
performance even though the inancial asset has not been derecognised. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is removed from
net assets and recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance is the diﬀerence
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss

A provision for impairment of accounts receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the municipality will not
be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. The provision is made in accordance with IAS 39.64
whereby the recoverability of accounts receivable is assessed individually and then
collectively after grouping the assets in inancial assets with similar credit risk char-
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acteristics. The amount of the provision is
the diﬀerence between the inancial asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash lows, discounted at the
original eﬀective interest rate. Future cash
lows in a group of inancial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Cash
lows relating to short-term receivables are
not discounted where the eﬀect of discounting is immaterial.
Government accounts are not provided for
as such accounts are regarded as receivable.
The carrying amount of the inancial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all inancial assets carried at amortised
cost with the exception of consumer debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
When a consumer debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written oﬀ against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written oﬀ are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.
With the exception of Available-for-Sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the
Statement of Financial Performance to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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6.5 Derecognition of Financial Assets
The municipality derecognises Financial Assets only when the contractual rights to the
cash lows from the asset expire or it transfers the inancial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity, except when Council
approves the write-oﬀ of Financial Assets
due to non recoverability.
If the municipality neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the municipality recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the municipality retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred inancial asset, the municipality continues to recognise the inancial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
6.6 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The municipality derecognises Financial Liabilities when, and only when, the municipality’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or they expire. The municipality recognises
the diﬀerence between the carrying amount
of the inancial liability (or part of a inancial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, in the Statement of Financial Performance.

7

Risk Management of Financial
Assets and Liabilities

It is the policy of the municipality to disclose information that enables the user of its inancial
statements to evaluate the nature and extent of
risks arising from inancial instruments to which
the municipality is exposed on the reporting
date.
The Municipality has exposure to the following
risks from its use of inancial instruments:
•

market risk

•

credit risk

•

liquidity risk

•

Each class of inancial instrument is disclosed separately.

•

Maximum exposure to credit risk not covered by collateral is speci ied.

•

Financial instruments covered by collateral
are speci ied.

Liquidity Risk
•

The Municipality’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have suf icient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Municipality’s reputation.

Risks and exposure are disclosed as follows:
Market Risk
•

•

•

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices will aﬀect
the Municipality’s income or the value of its
holdings of inancial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.

•

A maturity analysis for inancial assets and
liabilities that shows the remaining contractual maturities.

•

Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that
all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to cash low
requirements.

The maximum exposure to cash low and fair
value risk, price risk and foreign currency
risk.

Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all
contractual payments are met on a timeous
basis and, if required, additional new arrangements are established at competitive
rates to ensure that cash low requirements
are met.

Sensitivity analysis for each of the market
risks.

Credit Risk
•

Credit risk is the risk of inancial loss to the
Municipality if a customer or counterparty
to a inancial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investment securities.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Municipality will encounter dif iculty in meeting the
obligations associated with its inancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another inancial asset.

•
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A maturity analysis for inancial liabilities
(where applicable) that shows the remaining undiscounted contractual maturities is
disclosed in note 48.9 to the annual inancial
statements.
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8

Inventories

8.1 Initial Recognition
Inventories comprise current assets held
for sale, current assets for consumption or
distribution during the ordinary course of
business. Inventories are initially recognised
at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase
price, plus taxes, transport costs and any
other costs in bringing the inventories to
their current location and condition. Where
inventory is manufactured, constructed or
produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during
the manufacturing process.
Where inventory is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e.
a non-exchange transaction), the cost is
deemed to be equal to the fair value of the
item on the date acquired.
Direct costs relating to properties that will
be sold as inventory are accumulated for
each separately identi iable development.
Costs also include a proportion of overhead
costs.
8.2 Subsequent Measurement
Consumable stores, raw materials, work-inprogress and inished goods
Consumable stores, raw materials, work-inprogress and inished goods are valued at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
In general, the basis of determining cost is
the irst in irst out (FIFO) method. If inventories are to be distributed at no charge or
for a nominal charge they are valued at the
lower of cost and current replacement cost.
Water inventory
Water is regarded as inventory when the
municipality purchases water in bulk with
the intention to resell it to the consumers or
to use it internally, or where the municipality has incurred puri ication costs on water
obtained from natural resources (rain, rivers, springs, boreholes, etc.). However, water
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in dams, that are illed by natural resources
and that has not yet been treated, and is under the control of the municipality but cannot be measured reliably as there is no cost
attached to the water, is therefore not recognised in the statement of inancial position.
The basis of determining the cost of water
purchased and not yet sold at statement of
inancial position date comprises all costs of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventory to its
present location and condition, net of trade
discounts and rebates. Water and puri ied
ef luent are valued by using the weighted
average method, at the lowest of puri ied
cost and net realisable value, insofar as it is
stored and controlled in reservoirs at year
end.
Unsold properties
Unsold properties are valued at the lower of
cost and net realisable value on a weighted
average cost basis. Direct costs are accumulated for each separately identi iable development. Cost also includes a portion of overhead costs, if this relates to development.
Redundant and slow-moving inventories
are identi ied and written down from cost
to net realisable value with regard to their
estimated economic or realisable values and
sold by public auction. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Diﬀerences arising on the
valuation of inventory are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance in the
year in which they arose. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories
arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the
inventory was sold, distributed, written oﬀ
or consumed, unless that cost quali ies for
capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

9

from other tiers of government and revenue
from trading activities, interest and other
services provided. Revenue is recognised
when it is probable that future economic
bene its or service potential will low to the
municipality and these bene its can be measured reliably, except when speci ically stated otherwise.

Non-current Assets Held for Sale

9.1 Initial Recognition
Non-current Assets and Disposal Groups are
classi ied as held-for-sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classi ication.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the municipality’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value added tax, returns, rebates and discounts.
The municipality recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
bene its will low to the municipality, and
when speci ic criteria have been met for each
of the municipality’s activities as described
below.

9.2 Subsequent Measurement
Non-current Assets (and Disposal Groups)
classi ied as held-for-sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
A non-current asset is not depreciated (or
amortised) while it is classi ied as held for
sale, or while it is part of a disposal group
classi ied as held for sale.

The amount of revenue is not considered to
be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The municipality bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and
the speci ics of each arrangement.

Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classi ied
as held for sale are recognised in surplus or
de icit.

Revenue from exchange transactions refers
to revenue that accrued to the municipality directly in return for services rendered/
goods sold, the value of which approximates
the consideration received or receivable.

The gain or loss on the eventual sale of noncurrent assets held for sale is included in the
Statement of Financial Performance as gain
or loss on sale of assets. The gain or loss on
the eventual sale of non-current assets held
for sale, is calculated on the diﬀerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the individual asset or the
disposal group.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
refers to transactions where the municipality received revenue from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal
value in exchange.

10 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from non-exchange transactions is
generally recognised to the extent that the
related receipt or receivable quali ies for
recognition as an asset and there is no liability to repay the amount.

10.1 General
Revenue, excluding value-added taxation
where applicable, is derived from a variety
of sources which include rates levied, grants
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10.2

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

10.2.1 Service Charges
Service charges relating to solid waste,
sanitation and sewage are levied in terms
of the approved tariﬀs.
Service charges relating to electricity and
water are based on consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are
recognised as revenue when invoiced.
Provisional estimates of consumption,
based on the consumption history, are
made monthly when meter readings
have not been performed.
The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue when
invoiced, except at year-end when estimates of consumption up to year-end
are recorded as revenue without being
invoiced. Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the
invoicing period in which meters have
been read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period.
In respect of estimates of consumption
between the last reading date and the
reporting date, an accrual is made based
on the average monthly consumption of
consumers.
Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis in
arrears by applying the approved tariﬀ
to each property that has improvements.
Tariﬀs are determined per category of
property usage, and are levied monthly
based on the number of refuse containers
on each property, regardless of whether
or not all containers are emptied during
the month.
Service charges from sewerage and sanitation are based on the type of service
and the number of sewer connections
on all developed property, using the tariﬀs approved by Council and are levied
monthly.
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In circumstances where services cannot
readily be measured and quanti ied, a
lat rate service charge is levied monthly
on such properties.
10.2.2 Pre-paid Electricity
Revenue from the sale of electricity
pre-paid meter cards are recognised at
the point of sale. An adjustment for an
unutilised portion is made at year-end
based on the average consumption history.
10.2.3 Finance Income
Interest earned on investments is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the time proportionate basis that takes into account the eﬀective
yield on the investment.
Interest earned on the following investments is not recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance:
•

Interest earned on trust funds is allocated directly to the fund.

•

Interest earned on unutilised conditional grants is allocated directly to
the creditor: unutilised conditional
grants, if the grant conditions indicate that interest is payable to the
funder.

10.2.4 Tariff Charges
Revenue arising from the application of
the approved tariﬀ of charges is recognised when the relevant service is rendered by applying the relevant authorised tariﬀ. This includes the issuing of
licences and permits.
10.2.5 Income from Agency Services
Income for agency services is recognised
on a monthly basis once the income collected on behalf of agents has been quanti ied. The income recognised is in terms
of the agency agreement.

10.2.6 Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions
have been met:
•

The municipality has transferred to
the buyer the signi icant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

•

The municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with
ownership nor eﬀective control over
the goods sold.

•

The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

•

It is probable that the economic bene its or service potential associated
with the transaction will low to the
municipality.

•

The costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

10.3

10.3.1 Rates and Taxes
Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entitlement to this
revenue arises. Collection charges are
recognised when such amounts are legally enforceable.
Penalty interest on unpaid rates is recognised on a time proportion basis with
reference to the principal amount receivable and eﬀective interest rate applicable. A composite rating system charging
diﬀerent rate tariﬀs is employed.
Rebates are granted to certain categories
of ratepayers and are deducted from revenue.
10.3.2 Fines
Fines constitute both spot ines and summonses for which revenue is recognised
when it is probable that future economic
bene its will be received.

10.2.7 Rentals
Revenue from the rental of facilities and
equipment is recognised on a straightline basis over the term of the lease
agreement.

Fines are recognised on the best estimate
of the recovery of ines issued.
10.3.3 Public Contributions

10.2.8 Dividends

Revenue from public contributions is
recognised when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met
or where the contribution is to inance
property, plant and equipment, when
such items of property, plant and equipment are brought into use. Where public
contributions have been received and the
municipality has not met the condition, a
liability is recognised.

Dividends are recognised on the date
that the municipality becomes entitled
to receive the dividend in accordance
with the substance of the relevant agreement, where applicable.
10.2.9 Royalties
Royalties are recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreement. Royalties determined on a time basis are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period
of the agreement. Royalty arrangements
that are based on production, sales and
other measures are recognised by reference to the underlying arrangement.

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

10.3.4 Other Donations and Contributions
Donations are recognised on a cash receipt basis or where the donation is in
the form of property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant
and equipment are available for use.
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10.3.5 Revenue from Recovery of Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful
Expenditure
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful
expenditure is based on legislated procedures, including those set out in the
Municipal Finance Management Act
(Act No. 56 of 2003) and is recognised
when the recovery thereof from the responsible councillors or of icials is virtually certain. Such revenue is based on
legislated procedures.
10.4 Transitional Provisions
Revenue is initially recognised at fair value
for the year ended 30 June 2009 (and retrospectively, where practicable) by discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate
of return in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 9, GRAP 3 and SAICA circular
09/2006.

11 Conditional Grants and Receipts
Income received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to
the extent that the municipality has complied
with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations
embodied in the agreement. To the extent that
the criteria, conditions or obligations have not
been met a liability is recognised.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate inancial
support to the municipality with no future related
costs are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period in which they become
receivable.
Government grants and conditional receipts are
recognised as revenue when:
•

it is probable that the economic bene its or
service potential associated with the transaction will low to the entity,

•

the amount of the revenue can be measured
reliably,
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•

to the extent that there has been compliance
with any restrictions associated with the
grant.

Interest earned on investments is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it is payable to
the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor
and if it is the municipality’s interest it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of Financial Performance.

12 Provisions
A provision is de ined as a liability of uncertain
timing and amount. Provisions for environmental restoration, rehabilitation, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when the municipality has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an out low of resources embodying economic
bene its or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the obligation.
Future events that may aﬀect the amount required to settle an obligation are re lected in the
amount of a provision where there is suf icient
objective evidence that they will occur. Gains from
the expected disposal of assets are not taken into
account in measuring a provision. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses. The
present obligation under an onerous contract is
recognised and measured as a provision. An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic bene its expected
to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract re lect the least net cost of exiting
from the contract, which is the lower of the cost
of ful illing it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to ful il it - this unavoidable
cost resulting from the contract is the amount of
the provision to be recognised.
Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and the
amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation. When the eﬀect of discounting is material, provisions are determined by discounting

the expected future cash lows that re lect current
market assessments of the time value of money.
The impact of the periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance as a inance cost as it occurs.

13 Employee Beneϐits
13.1 Short-term Employee Beneϐits
Remuneration to employees is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance as
the services are rendered, except for nonaccumulating bene its, which are only recognised when the speci ic event occurs.

Provision for Restructuring cost
A provision for restructuring costs is recognised
only when the following criteria over and above
the recognition criteria of a provision have been
met:

The municipality treats its provision for
leave pay as an accrual.
The costs of all short-term employee bene its
such as leave pay, are recognised during the
period in which the employee renders the
related service. The liability for leave pay is
based on the total accrued leave days at year
end and is shown as a creditor in the Statement of Financial Position. The municipality
recognises the expected cost of performance
bonuses only when the municipality has a
present legal or constructive obligation to
make such payment and a reliable estimate
can be made.

(a) The municipality has a detailed formal plan
for the restructuring identifying at least:
•

the business or part of a business concerned

•

the principal locations aﬀected

•

the location, function, and approximate
number of employees who will be compensated for terminating their services

•

the expenditures that will be undertaken

•

when the plan will be implemented

(b) The municipality has raised a valid expectation in those aﬀected that it will carry out
the restructuring by starting to implement
that plan or announcing its main features to
those aﬀected by it.

13.2 Post Employment Beneϐits
The municipality provides retirement bene its for its employees and councillors in
terms of de ined bene it plans.
13.3 Deϐined Beneϐit Plans
A de ined bene it plan is a post-employment
bene it plan other than a de ined contribution plan.

Environmental Rehabilitation Provisions
Estimated long-term environmental provisions,
comprising rehabilitation and land ill site closure, are based on the Entity’s policy, taking into
account current technological, environmental
and regulatory requirements.

13.3.1 Post-retirement Health Care Beneϐits
The municipality has an obligation to provide Post-retirement Health Care Bene its
to certain of its retirees. According to the
rules of the Medical Aid Funds, with which
the municipality is associated, a member
(who is on the current Conditions of Service), on retirement, is entitled to remain
a continued member of the Medical Aid
Fund, in which case the municipality is liable for a certain portion of the medical
aid membership fee.

The provision for rehabilitation is recognised as
and when the environmental liability arises.
To the extent that the obligations relate to the
asset, they are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Any subsequent changes to an obligation that did not relate to the initial related
asset are charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance.
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The de ined bene it liability is the aggregate of the present value of the de ined
bene it obligation and unrecognised actuarial gains and losses, reduced by unrecognised past service costs. The plan
is unfunded. The present value of the
de ined bene it obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method,
incorporating actuarial assumptions and
a discount rate based on the government
bond rate. Valuations of these obligations are carried out every year by independent quali ied actuaries.
Actuarial gains or losses are accounted
for using the “corridor method”. Actuarial gains and losses are eligible for
recognition in the Statement of Financial
Performance to the extent that they exceed 10 per cent of the present value of
the gross de ined bene it obligations in
the scheme at the end of the previous reporting period. Actuarial gains and losses exceeding 10 per cent are spread over
the expected average remaining working
lives of the employees participating in
the scheme.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to
the pension plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for a
speci ied period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs
are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period.
13.3.2 Long-service Allowance
The municipality has an obligation to
provide Long-service Allowance Bene its to all of its employees. According to
the rules of the Long-service Allowance
Scheme, which the municipality instituted and operates, an employee (who is
on the current Conditions of Service), is
entitled to a cash allowance, calculated
in terms of the rules of the scheme, after
10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 years of continued
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service. The municipality’s liability is
based on an actuarial valuation. The projected unit credit method has been used
to value the liabilities. Actuarial gains
and losses on the long-term incentives
are accounted for through the statement
of inancial performance.
13.3.3 Provincially-administered Deϐined
Beneϐit Plans
The municipality contributes to various
National- and Provincial-administered
De ined Bene it Plans on behalf of its qualifying employees. These funds are multiemployer funds (refer to Note 49 of the
Annual Financial Statements for details).
The contributions to fund obligations for
the payment of retirement bene its are
charged against revenue in the year they
become payable. These de ined bene it
funds are actuarially valued triennially
on the Projected Unit Credit Method basis. De icits are recovered through lump
sum payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis from
all participating municipalities.

14 Leases
14.1 The Municipality as Lessee
Lease Classiϐication
Leases are classi ied as inance leases where
substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to the municipality.
Leases of property, plant and equipment, in
which a signi icant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classi ied as operating leases.
Finance Leases
At inception of an arrangement, the Municipality determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A speci ic asset is
the subject of a lease if ful ilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that

The lease liability is reduced by the lease
payments, which are allocated between the
lease inance cost and the capital repayment
using the eﬀective interest rate method.
Lease inance costs are expensed when incurred. The accounting policies relating to
derecognition of inancial instruments are
applied to lease payables. The lease asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life or the lease term.

speci ied asset. An arrangement conveys the
right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to the Municipality the right to control
the use of the underlying asset. At inception
or upon reassessment of the arrangement,
the Municipality separates payments and
other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those
for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Municipality concludes
for a inance lease that it is impracticable
to separate the payments reliably, an asset
and a liability are recognised at an amount
equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as
payments are made and an imputed inance
charge on the liability is recognised using the
Municipality’s incremental borrowing rate.
Where the Municipality enters into a inance lease, Property, plant and equipment
or Intangible Assets subject to inance lease
agreements are capitalised at amounts equal
to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease. Corresponding liabilities are included in the Statement of Financial Position
as Finance Lease Liabilities. The corresponding liabilities are initially recognised at the
inception of the lease and are measured as
the sum of the minimum lease payments due
in terms of the lease agreement, discounted
for the eﬀect of interest. In discounting the
lease payments, the municipality uses the
interest rate that exactly discounts the lease
payments and unguaranteed residual value
to the fair value of the asset plus any direct
costs incurred. Lease payments are allocated between the lease inance cost and the
capital repayment using the eﬀective interest rate method. Lease inance costs are expensed when incurred.

Operating Leases
The municipality recognises operating lease
rentals as an expense in the statement of inancial performance on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. The difference between the amounts recognised as
an expense and the contractual payments
are recognised as an operating lease asset or
liability.
In the event that lease incentives are received
to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate bene it of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic bene its from the leased asset are consumed.
14.2 The Municipality as Lessor
Amounts due from lessees under inance
leases or instalment sale agreements are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Municipality’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease or instalment sale income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to relect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Municipality’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases or instalment sale
agreements.
Operating lease rental income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased
assets are accounted for in accordance with
the stated accounting policies applicable to
property, plant, equipment or intangibles.

100

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

15 Borrowing Costs

18 Unauthorised Expenditure

The municipality capitalises borrowing costs incurred that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset as part of the cost of that asset in accordance
with the requirements of GRAP 5.

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has
not been budgeted, expenditure that is not in
terms of the conditions of an allocation received
from another sphere of government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in the form
of a grant that is not permitted in terms of the
Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No 56
of 2003). Unauthorised expenditure is accounted
for as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

It is considered inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs where the link between the funds
borrowed and the capital asset acquired cannot
be adequately established - the municipality expenses borrowing costs when it is inappropriate
to capitalise it.
The municipality ceases to capitalise borrowing
costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use have been completed.
Where the construction of the qualifying asset is
completed in parts and each part is capable of being used while construction continues on other
parts, the entity shall cease capitalising borrowing costs when it completes substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare that part.

16 Grants-in-Aid
The municipality transfers money to individuals,
organisations and other sectors of government
from time to time. When making these transfers,
the municipality does not:
•

receive any goods or services directly in return, as would be expected in a purchase or
sale transaction

•

expect to be repaid in future

•

expect a inancial return, as would be expected from an investment.

19 Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act
(Act No 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act
(Act No 32 of 2000), the Public Of ice Bearers Act
(Act No 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the
Municipality’s or Municipal Entities’ supply chain
management policies.
Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for
as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance.

20 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been
avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted
for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

21 Changes in Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Errors

17 Value Added Tax

Changes in accounting policies that are eﬀected
by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements,
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-speci ic eﬀects or the cumulative eﬀect of the change in policy.

The Municipality accounts for Value Added Tax
on the payment basis.

In such cases the municipality shall restate the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and net as-

These transfers are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance as expenses in the period that the events giving rise to the transfer occurred.
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sets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable. Refer to note 38
for details of changes in accounting policies.
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements.
Details of changes in estimates are disclosed
in the notes to the annual inancial statements
where applicable.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in
the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements, except to
the extent that it is impracticable to determine
the period-speci ic eﬀects or the cumulative eﬀect
of the error. In such cases the municipality shall
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities
and net assets for the earliest period for which
retrospective restatement is practicable.

24 Foreign Currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded at the prevailing exchange rate on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such foreign currencies
are converted at the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange diﬀerences are included
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

25 Comparative Information
25.1 Current Year Comparatives
Budgeted amounts have, in accordance with
GRAP 1, been included in the inancial statements and form part of the audited Annual
Financial Statements.
25.2 Prior Year Comparatives
When the presentation or classi ication of
items in the Annual Financial Statements is
amended, prior period comparative amounts
are reclassi ied. The nature and reasons for
the reclassi ication are disclosed.

Refer to Note 37 to the Annual Financial Statements for details of corrections of errors recorded during the period under review.

22 Related Parties
Individuals as well as their close family members,
and/or entities are related parties if one party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or
jointly control the other party or exercise signi icant in luence over the other party in making inancial and/or operating decisions.
Key management personnel is de ined as the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Of icer and all
other managers reporting directly to the Municipal Manager or as designated by the Municipal
Manager.

23 Events after the Reporting Date
Events after the reporting date that are classi ied
as adjusting events have been accounted for in
the Annual Financial Statements.
The events after the reporting date that are classi ied as non-adjusting events after the reporting
date have been disclosed in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

26 Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities represent a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be con irmed only by an occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity.
A contingent liability can also arise as a result of
a present obligation that arises from past events
but which is not recognised as a liability either
because it is not probable that an out low of resources embodying economic bene its will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with suf icient
reliability. Contingent assets represent possible
assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be con irmed only by an occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are
not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in
the notes to the annual inancial statements.
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27 Commitments
Commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liability or as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

•

Items are classi ied as commitments where
the municipality commits itself to future
transactions that will normally result in the
out low of resources.

Commitments are disclosed for:

•

Contracts that are entered into before the
reporting date, but goods and services have
not yet been received, are disclosed in the
disclosure notes to the inancial statements.

•

Other commitments for contracts are noncancellable or only cancellable at signi icant
cost, contracts should relate to something
other than the business of the municipality.

•

Approved and contracted commitments, where
the expenditure has been approved and the contract has been awarded at the reporting date.

•

Approved but not yet contracted commitments,
where the expenditure has been approved and
the contract has yet to be awarded, or is awaiting inalisation at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2011
2011

2010

R

R

1. General information
Sol Plaatje Municipality (the municipality) is a local government institution in Kimberley, Northern
Cape. The addresses of its registered of ice and principal place of business are disclosed under “General Information” included in the Annual Financial Statements. The principal activities of the municipality are prescribed by The Constitution.

2. Inventory
Inventory Stores - at cost
Water - at cost
Total Inventory

17,339,294

14,798,478

1,602,684

934,840

18,941,978

15,733,318

The net realisable value of the above water inventory is seen as higher than the cost as stipulated
above.
The cost of Inventories recognised as an expense (included in general expenses) in respect of write
downs of Inventory to Net Realisable Value and which was approved by Council amounted to:
139,493

77,932

The cost of Inventories recognised as an expense during the period was:
29,186,782

25,756,182

Other Assets Held-for-Sale

643,888

596,460

Net Assets classiϐied as Held-for-Sale

643,888

596,460

3. Non-current assets held-for-sale

3.1 Property Held-for-Sale
The municipality intends to dispose some of its Property, Plant and Equipment (all comprising of vehicles) through public auction within the next ten months. No impairment loss was recognised on reclassi ication of the property as held-for-sale at 30 June 2011.
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4. Trade receivables from exchange transactions
Gross
Balances

Provision for
Impairment

Net
Balances

391,611,691

251,014,321

140,597,370

Electricity

79,614,542

51,031,137

28,583,404

Refuse

23,590,589

15,121,039

8,469,550

Sewerage

26,962,897

17,282,613

9,680,284

Water

78,374,525

50,236,315

28,138,210

183,069,139

117,343,217

65,725,922

734,722

470,940

263,782

11,606,131

7,439,270

4,166,861

403,952,544

258,924,531

145,028,013

533,160,870

387,703,432

145,457,439

Electricity

65,812,093

42,720,162

23,091,932

Refuse

43,657,195

32,138,358

11,518,837

Sewerage

52,998,063

39,072,894

13,925,170

Water

123,856,707

88,361,199

35,495,508

Miscellaneous

246,836,812

185,410,820

61,425,992

879,328

421,460

457,868

13,900,899

10,214,884

3,686,015

547,941,097

398,339,776

149,601,321

As at 30 June 2011
Service Debtors:

Miscellaneous
Market
Housing Debtors
Total Consumer Debtors
As at 30 June 2010
Service Debtors:

Market
Housing Debtors
Total Consumer Debtors

Consumer Debtors are billed monthly, latest end of month. No interest is charged on trade receivables
for the irst 30 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter interest is charged at a rate determined
by council on the outstanding balance. The municipality strictly enforces its approved credit control
policy to ensure the recovery of Consumer Debtors.
The municipality receives applications that it processes. Deposits are required to be paid for all water accounts opened. There are no consumers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of Consumer
Debtors. The Municipality does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables, except for
consumer deposits made by consumers with the connection of water and electricity services.
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Consumer Debtors approximate their fair values.
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4.1 Ageing of Consumer Debtors

2011

2010

R

R

34,320,990

24,942,532

Electricity: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

5,174,863

5,092,732

61 - 90 Days

2,982,380

2,691,120

37,136,309

33,085,710

79,614,542

65,812,093

1,824,402

2,356,223

+ 90 Days
Total
Refuse: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

899,540

1,478,348

61 - 90 Days

746,332

1,383,230

20,120,314

38,439,394

23,590,589

43,657,195

+ 90 Days
Total
Sewerage: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

2,164,656

2,835,884

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

1,067,805

1,872,642

61 - 90 Days

904,646

1,802,530

22,825,790

46,487,008

26,962,897

52,998,063

12,402,956

13,233,943

+ 90 Days
Total
Water: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

Past Due

31 - 60 Days

3,490,177

7,458,312

61 - 90 Days

3,518,204

4,934,768

58,963,188

98,229,683

78,374,525

123,856,707

+ 90 Days
Total
Miscellaneous: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

8,963,247

9,680,387

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

4,716,978

6,648,137

61 - 90 Days

4,479,149

7,351,992

165,644,487

224,035,625

183,803,860

247,716,140

+ 90 Days
Total
Housing Rentals: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

397,028

496,980

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

299,325

387,584

61 - 90 Days

284,079

388,775

10,625,699

12,627,559

11,606,131

13,900,899

+ 90 Days
Total
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4.2 Summary of Consumer Debtors by Customer Classiϐication (Exhange and Non-Exchange
Transactions)
National and
Industrial/
Household
Provincial
Total
Commercial
Government
R
R
R
R
As at 30 June 2011
Current:

0 - 30 days

39,064,429

22,790,616

4,369,227

66,224,273

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

12,100,490

5,273,598

1,473,770

18,847,858

61 - 90 Days

10,540,485

3,304,443

1,231,185

15,076,113

268,334,810

63,347,815

79,333,310 411,015,935

Sub-total

330,040,214

94,716,473

86,407,492 511,164,179

Less: Provision for Impairment

212,738,555

46,185,976

- 258,924,531

Total Debtors by Customer Classiϐication 117,301,659

48,530,497

86,407,492 252,239,648

+ 90 Days

As at 30 June 2010
Current:

0 - 30 days

65,327,803

17,280,803

3,651,853

86,260,459

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

19,632,538

4,903,537

2,384,215

26,920,290

61 - 90 Days

16,027,882

3,953,582

2,005,528

21,986,992

409,216,420

50,095,173

57,000,618 516,312,211

Sub-total

510,204,644

76,233,095

65,042,214 651,479,953

Less: Provision for Impairment

396,079,739

2,260,037

- 398,339,776

Total Debtors by Customer Classiϐication 114,124,905

73,973,058

65,042,214 253,140,177

+ 90 Days

The amount for debtors past due more than the impairment loss provided for is seen as recoverable
therefore no impairment loss has been provided for this excess amount. Management is of the opinion
that the current debtors is fully recoverable.
2011
2010
4.3 Reconciliation of the Provision for Impairment
R
R
Balance at beginning of year

398,339,776

293,134,698

Impairment Losses recognised

105,223,655

104,693,453

(246,368,291)

(58,176)

1,729,391

569,802

258,924,531

398,339,776

Amounts written oﬀ as uncollectable
Amounts reversed
Balance at end of year

In determining the recoverability of debtors, the municipality has placed strong emphasis on verifying
the indigent status of consumers. Provision for impairment of Consumer Debtors has been made for
all consumer balances outstanding based on the payment ratio over 12 months per service type. No
further credit provision is required in excess of the Provision for Impairment.
4.4 Ageing of impaired Consumer Debtors
0 - 30 Days

2,085,279

16,152,343

31 - 60 Days

1,590,616

7,043,359

61 - 90 Days

1,390,207

6,602,485

253,858,429

368,541,589

258,924,531

398,339,776

+ 90 Days
Total
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5. Trade receivables from non-exchange
transactions
Assessment Rates
Government Subsidy Claims
Miscellaneous debtors

2011
R

2010
R

107,211,635

103,538,855

15,071,901

11,359,448

567,274

4,477,369

122,850,811

119,375,672

-

-

122,850,811

119,375,672

Less: Provision for Impairment
Total Other Debtors

Management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of trade receivables from nonexchange transactions approximate their fair value.
The average credit period for Government Grants and Subsidies is dependent on the Government
Department involved and the nature of the claim. No interest is charged on outstanding Government
Grants and Subsidies. The subsidies is payable to the municipality due to allocations made in the DORA
or based on agreements between the municipality and the relevant departments.
5.1 Ageing of Consumer Debtors
Rates: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

8,364,944

10,797,129

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

3,199,171

3,955,318

61 - 90 Days

2,161,323

3,412,904

93,486,198

85,373,505

107,211,635

103,538,855

Cash and Cash Equivalents

70,002,668

51,238,735

Bank Overdraft

(9,418,186)

(25,067,445)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

60,584,482

26,171,290

+ 90 Days
Total

6. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash
Equivalents include Cash-on-Hand and Cash in Banks, net of outstanding Bank Overdrafts.
6.1 Current Investment Deposits
Call Deposits
Notice Deposits
Total Current Investment Deposits

67,673,203

48,910,000

2,297,808

2,297,808

69,971,011

51,207,808

Call Deposits are investments with a maturity period of less than three months and earn interest rates
varying from 3.8% to 5.65% per annum.
Notice Deposits are investments with a maturity period of less than twelth months and earn interest
rate of 6.33% per annum.
A ixed deposit of R2,297,808 (2010: R2,297,808) was made as a security to the Self-Insurance Workman Compensation reserve as required by the Department of Labour - Compensation Commissioner.
A ixed deposit of R20,973,203 was invested and ceded to Development Bank of South Africa representing the equivalent of one instalment of a loan taken up during the current inancial year.
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6.2 Bank Accounts
Cash book balance
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

2011

2010

R

R

(25,067,445)
(9,418,186)

(2,349,909)
(25,067,445)

The following disclosures in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) section 125 2(a):
Current Account (Primary Bank Account)
The Municipality has the following main bank account:
Standard Bank Kimberley Old Main Road
Account Number 040065367
Primary Bank account 040065367
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

2,210,113
5,403,112

7,353,379
2,210,113

6,407
10,570

58,529
6,407

-

-

(6,691)

(33)
-

(240)
-

(33)
(240)

-

(33
-

Sub account - Resort 040039072
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)
Sub account - Trafϐic 040036340
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)
Sub account - Stores 040065405
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)
Sub account - Salary 040065391
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)
Sub account - Market 040065383
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

Interest on overdrawn current accounts are charged at the bank’s prime rate per annum. Interest is
earned at diﬀerent rates per annum on favourable balances.
6.3 Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash Floats and Advances

31,657

30,927

Cash on hand in Cash Floats, Advances and Equivalents

31,657

30,927

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Bank Balances, Cash
and Cash Equivalents recorded at amortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements approximate their
fair values.
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7. Operating Lease Assets / Receivables

2011

2010

R

R

Operating Leases are recognised on the straight-line basis as per the requirement of GRAP 13. In respect of Non-cancellable Operating Leases the following assets have been recognised:
Balance as at 30 June

84,604

78,787

Operating Lease expenses recorded

498,894

444,575

Operating Lease payments eﬀected

(493,156)

(438,758)

90,342

84,604

Total Operating Lease Assets

Operating Lease Assets have been restated to due to an error in the prior year. Refer to Note 39.1 on
“Correction of Error” for details of the restatement.
7.1 Leasing Arrangements
The Municipality as Lessor:
Operating Leases relate to property owned by the municipality with lease terms of between 1 to 10
years. The lessees do not have an option to purchase the property at the expiration of the lease period.
Operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option
to renew.
Rental Revenue earned from Investment Property

25,200

25,200

7.2 Amounts receivable under Operating Leases
At the Reporting Date the following minimum lease payments were receivable under Non-cancellable
Operating Leases for Property, Plant and Equipment, which are receivable as follows:
Up to 1 year

399,890

448,098

2 to 5 years

526,124

710,721

622

38,957

926,636

1,197,776

More than 5 years
Total Operating Lease Arrangements

The impact of charging the escalations in Operating Leases on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease has been an increase in current year income of R5,142 (2010: R5,817).
The following restrictions have been imposed by the municipality in terms of its lease agreements:
(i)

The lessee shall not have the right to sublet, cede or assign the whole or any portion of the premises let.

(ii) The lessor or its duly authorised agent, representative or servant shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the premises let.
(iii) The lessee shall use the premises let for the sole purpose prescribed in the agreement.

8. VAT receivable from exchange transactions
VAT Receivable from Exchange Transactions

9,493,012

3,753,474

VAT is payable on the payment basis. Only once payment is received from debtors, VAT is paid over to
SARS. No interest is payable to SARS if the VAT is paid over timeously, but interest for late payments is
charged according to SARS policies. The municipality has inancial risk policies in place to ensure that
payments are aﬀected before the due date.
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9. Property, plant and equipment
30 June 2011
Reconciliation of Carrying Value
Description

Infrastructure
R

Community

Other

R

R

Leased
Infrastructure
R

Total
R

Carrying values at 01 July 2010

508,674,342

193,107,560

42,648,429

5,501,030

749,931,361

Cost

796,192,154

222,059,097

67,232,436

8,850,021

1,094,333,708

723,538,813

218,062,498

67,232,436

8,850,021

1,017,683,767

72,653,341

3,996,600

-

-

76,649,941

-

-

-

-

-

Accumulated Depreciation:

(287,517,812)

(28,951,537)

(24,584,007)

(3,348,991)

(344,402,347)

-

(287,517,812)

(28,951,537)

(24,584,007)

(3,348,991)

(344,402,347)

Acquisitions

16,212,282

4,909,939

5,227,643

-

26,349,864

Capital under Construction
Additions

48,046,664

4,799,798

-

-

52,846,462

-

48,046,664

4,799,798

-

-

52,846,462

Depreciation:

(17,329,677)

(8,724,032)

(9,093,969)

(1,375,665)

(36,523,343)

-

(17,329,677)

(8,724,032)

(9,093,969)

(1,375,665)

(36,523,343)

-

-

(47,428)

-

(47,428)

-

Completed Assets

-

Under Construction

Accumulated Impairment Losses

Cost

Cost

Based on Cost

Carrying value of Transfers to
Held-for-Sale:
-

Cost

(105,917)

-

Accumulated Depreciation

-

Based on Cost

-

-

(105,917)

58,489

-

58,489

58,489

58,489

Capital under Construction
-

Completed

(13,729,098)

Other Movements

13,729,098

-

13,729,098

Cost

(13,729,098)
-

-

-

13,729,098
13,729,098

Carrying values at 30 June 2011

555,603,611

194,093,265

38,734,674

4,125,365

792,556,915

Cost

860,451,100

231,768,834

72,354,162

8,850,021

1,173,424,116

-

Completed Assets

753,480,193

222,972,436

72,354,162

8,850,021

1,057,656,812

-

Under Construction

106,970,907

8,796,398

-

-

115,767,305

Accumulated Depreciation:

(304,847,489)

(37,675,569)

(33,619,487)

(4,724,656)

(380,867,201)

-

(304,847,489)

(37,675,569)

(33,619,487)

(4,724,656)

(380,867,201)

Cost
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30 June 2010
Reconciliation of Carrying Value
Description

Infrastructure
R

Carrying values at 01 July 2009
Cost
- Completed Assets
- Under Construction
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Accumulated Depreciation:
- Cost
Correction of error (Note 39)
- Cost
- Accumulated Depreciation
- Accumulated Impairment
Losses
Restated carrying values at
01 July 2009
Acquisitions
Capital under Construction
- Additions
- Cost
- Borrowing Costs Capitalised
Reversals of Impairment Losses
Depreciation:
- Based on Cost
Carrying value of Transfers to
Held-for-Sale:
- Cost
- Accumulated Impairment
Losses
- Accumulated Depreciation
- Based on Cost
Capital under Construction
- Completed
Other Movements
- Cost
Carrying values at 30 June 2010
Cost
- Completed Assets
- Under Construction
Accumulated Impairment Losses
Accumulated Depreciation:
- Cost

425,870,131
697,694,757
661,883,359
35,811,398
(271,824,626)
(271,824,626)

Community

Other

R

R

199,186,908
219,731,845
218,062,498
1,669,347
(20,544,937)
(20,544,937)

(452,130)
(447,914)

Leased
Infrastructure
R

Total
R

57,809,225
77,739,103
77,739,103
(19,929,878)
(19,929,878)

6,677,732
8,913,239
8,913,239
(2,235,507)
(2,235,507)

(11,626,747)
1,846,945

(63,219)
20,590

689,543,997
1,004,078,944
966,598,199
37,480,745
(314,534,948)
(314,534,948)

-

-

-

-

-

424,970,088
55,153,842

199,186,908
-

48,029,423
2,081,856

6,635,103
-

689,543,997
57,235,698

43,795,685
43,795,685
(15,245,273)
(15,245,273)

2,327,253
2,327,253
(8,406,600)
(8,406,600)

(6,866,391)
(6,866,391)

(1,134,074)
(1,134,074)

46,122,938
46,122,938
(31,652,337)
(31,652,337)

-

-

(596,460)
(961,776)

-

(596,460)
(961,776)

-

-

365,317
365,317

-

-

-

-

193,107,560
222,059,097
218,062,498
3,996,600
(28,951,537)
(28,951,537)

42,648,429
67,232,436
67,232,436
(24,584,007)
(24,584,007)

5,501,030
8,850,021
8,850,021
(3,348,991)
(3,348,991)

(6,953,742)
6,953,742
6,953,742
508,674,342
796,192,154
723,538,813
72,653,341
(287,517,812)
(287,517,812)

365,317
365,317
(6,953,742)
6,953,742
6,953,742
749,931,361
1,094,333,708
1,017,683,767
76,649,941
(344,402,347)
(344,402,347)

Refer to Appendices B, C and E (2) for more detail on Property, Plant and Equipment, including those in
the course of construction. Property, Plant and Equipment have been restated to include certain assets
which were previously erroneously excluded from the Municipality’s Asset Register. Refer to Note 39.6
on “Correction of Error” for details on the restatement.
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9.1 Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment
retired from active use and held for disposal:
Other

2011

2010

R

R

(47,428)

(596,460)

(47,428)

(596,460)

Carrying Value of PPE retired from active use and held
for disposal
9.2 Assets pledged as security:
The municipality’s obligations under Finance Leases (see Appendix B) are secured by the lessors’ title
to the leased assets, which have a carrying amount of:
4,125,365
5,501,030
9.3 Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment temporarily idle:
An element of plant of the Municipality is currently temporarily not in use. The carrying amount of
this asset, which is included in the reconciliation of the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment as above, is as follows:
5,366,786
5,618,243

10. Intangible assets
At Cost less Accumulated Amortisation and Accumulated Impairment Losses
2,485,582
The movement in Intangible Assets is reconciled as follows:
Carrying values at 01 July 2010

Computer
Software

3,425,872
Total

3,425,872

3,425,872

6,357,222
(2,931,350)
362,292
362,292
(1,302,582)
(1,302,582)

6,357,222
(2,931,350)
362,292
362,292
(1,302,582)
(1,302,582)

2,485,582

2,485,582

6,719,514

6,719,514

(4,233,932)

(4,233,932)

Carrying values at 01 July 2009

4,560,172

4,560,172

Cost
Accumulated Amortisation
Acquisitions during the Year:
Purchased
Amortisation during the Year:
Purchased
Carrying values at 30 June 2010
Cost
Accumulated Amortisation

6,228,770
(1,668,598)
128,453
128,453
(1,262,753)
(1,262,753)
3,425,872
6,357,222
(2,931,350)

6,228,770
(1,668,598)
128,453
128,453
(1,262,753)
(1,262,753)
3,425,872
6,357,222
(2,931,350)

Cost
Accumulated Amortisation
Acquisitions during the Year:
Purchased
Amortisation during the Year:
Purchased
Carrying values at 30 June 2011
Cost
Accumulated Amortisation

The amortisation expense has been included in the line item “Depreciation and Amortisation” in the
Statement of Financial Performance (see Note 31).
All of the municipality’s Intangible Assets are held under freehold interests and no Intangible Assets
had been pledged as security for any liabilities of the municipality.
No restrictions apply to any of the Intangible Assets of the municipality.
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2011

2010

R

R

115,349,700

116,116,467

116,116,467

113,005,733

116,994,100

113,116,600

(877,633)

(110,867)

Accumulated Impairment Losses

-

-

Acquisitions during the Year

-

3,877,500

Depreciation during the Year

(766,767)

(766,767)

-

-

115,349,700

116,116,467

116,994,100

116,994,100

(1,644,400)

(877,633)

-

-

116,994,600

117,474,296

11. Investment property
At Cost less Accumulated Depreciation
The movement in Investment Property is reconciled as follows:
Carrying values at 1 July
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

Impairment Losses during the Year
Carrying values at 30 June
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment
Estimated Fair Value of Investment Property at 30 June

Revenue and Expenditure disclosed in the Statement of Financial Performance include the following:
Rental Revenue earned from Investment Property

25,200

25,200

All of the municipality’s Investment Property is held under freehold interests and no Investment Property had been pledged as security for any liabilities of the municipality.
There are no restrictions on the realisability of Investment Property or the remittance of revenue and
proceeds of disposal.
There are no contractual obligations on Investment Property.

12. Long-term receivables
Staﬀ were previously entitled to loans from the Municipality. This practice has been phased out by the
Municipality in terms of the requirements of the MFMA. Subsequent to this change in policy, all loans
have been repaid.

13. Consumer deposits
Electricity and Water
Total Consumer Deposits
Guarantees held in lieu of Electricity and Water Deposits

11,857,366

10,225,457

11,857,366

10,225,457

3,306,746

2,375,610

Consumer Deposits are paid by consumers on application for new water and electricity connections.
The deposits are repaid when the water and electricity connections are terminated. In cases where
consumers default on their accounts, the municipality can utilise the deposit as payment for the outstanding account. No interest is paid on Consumer Deposits held.
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Consumer Deposits
approximate their fair values.
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14. Provisions

2011

2010

R

R

Current Portion of Post-retirement Medical Aid Bene its Liability
(See Note 19 below)

3,257,460

2,905,680

Current Portion of Non-Current Provisions (See Note 20 below):

1,510,394

2,394,004

-

-

1,510,394

2,394,004

-

-

4,767,854

5,299,684

Trade Creditors

78,006,029

62,052,668

Payments received in Advance

10,464,892

23,096,751

6,770,637

5,884,932

52,944

52,884

17,695,200

15,178,267

112,989,700

106,265,502

Ex-Gratia Arrangements
Long-term Service
Rehabilitation of Land- ill Sites
Total Provisions

15. Creditors

Staﬀ Bonuses
Other Creditors
Accrued Leave
Total Creditors

Various immaterial individual creditor balances have been restated for the prior year. Refer to Note 39
on “Correction of Error” for the quantum of the restatement as at 30 June 2011.
The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from the receipt of the invoice, as determined by the
MFMA. No interest is charged for the irst 30 days from the date of receipt of the invoice. Thereafter
interest is charged in accordance with the credit policies of the various individual creditors that the
municipality deals with. The municipality has inancial risk policies in place to ensure that all payables
are paid within the credit timeframe.
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Creditors approximate
their fair values.
Accrued Leave accrues to the staﬀ of the municipality on a monthly basis, subject to certain conditions.
The accrual is an estimate of the amount due at the reporting date.

16. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
16.1 Conditional Grants from Government
Financial Management Grant (FMG)
Frances Baard District Municipality Grant (FBDM Grant)
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)
Provincial Grants
Total Conditional Grants and Receipts

9,238,545

3,436,299

-

-

1,208,696

2,381,493

-

255,596

8,029,848

799,211

9,238,545

3,436,299

See Note 26 for the reconciliation of Grants from Other Spheres of Government. The municipality complied with the conditions attached to all grants received to the extent of revenue recognised. No grants
were withheld. Refer to Appendix F for more detail on Conditional Grants.
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2011

2010

R

R

10,971,434

30,212,211

17. VAT payable from exchange transactions
VAT Payable from Exchange Transactions

VAT is payable on the payment basis. Only once payment is received from debtors, VAT is paid over to
SARS. No interest is payable to SARS if the VAT is paid over timeously, but interest for late payments is
charged according to SARS policies. The municipality has inancial risk policies in place to ensure that
payments are aﬀected before the due date.

18. Long-term liabilities
Annuity Loans

99,804,371

66,591,061

Finance Lease Liabilities

14,851,333

10,358,377

114,655,704

76,949,438

17,897,429

10,337,441

7,187,644

6,190,928

10,709,785

4,146,513

96,758,275

66,611,996

Sub-total
Less: Current Portion transferred to Current Liabilities
Annuity Loans
Finance Lease Liabilities
Total Long-term Liabilities

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Long-term Liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements approximate their fair values.
R24,000,000 of the Debtors book as well as an investment of R20,973,203 with Standard Bank have
been ceded as security on two loans with the DBSA.
Refer to Appendix A for more detail on Long-term Liabilities.
18.1 Obligations under Finance Lease Liabilities
The Municipality as Lessee:
Finance Leases relate to Office Equipment with lease terms of between three and five years
(2010: three and ive years). The eﬀective monthly interest rate on Finance Leases is between 0.88%
and 9.83% (2010: 0.88% and 9.83%).
The municipality does not have an option to purchase the leased Of ice Equipment at the conclusion of
the lease agreements. The municipality’s obligations under Finance Leases are secured by the lessors’
title to the leased assets.
The obligations under Finance Leases are as follows:
Minimum Lease
Payments
2011
2010
Amounts payable under ϐinance leases:
R
R
Within one year

Present Value of
Minimum Lease Payments
2011
2010
R
R

15,729,963

8,183,356

10,709,785

4,146,513

4,894,487

8,944,104

4,141,548

6,211,864

20,624,450

17,127,460

14,851,333

10,358,377

5,773,118

6,769,082

-

-

14,851,332

10,358,378

14,851,333

10,358,377

within 12 months (Current Portion)

10,709,785

4,146,513

Finance Lease Obligations due for settlement after 12 months
(Non-current Portion)

4,141,548

6,211,864

In the second to ifth years, inclusive
Less: Future Finance Obligations
Present Value of Minimum
Lease Obligations
Less: Amounts due for settlement
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The municipality has inance lease agreements for the following signi icant classes of assets:
- Of ice Equipment
Included in these classes are the following signi icant leases:
(i)

Itec Digital Copier
- Instalments are payable monthly in advance
- Average period outstanding

15 months

- Average eﬀective interest rate

4.08%

- Average monthly instalment

32,000

(ii) Samsung Of ice Server 500
- Instalments are payable monthly in advance
- Average period outstanding

2 months

- Average eﬀective interest rate

2.67%

- Average monthly instalment

22,890

19. Retirement beneϐit liabilities

2011

2010

R

R

117,046,164

113,425,731

(2,905,680)

(2,634,996)

-

-

Expenditure incurred

18,078,392

17,434,617

Actuarial (gain)/loss

6,723,323

(11,179,188)

-

-

138,942,199

117,046,164

(3,257,460)

(2,905,680)

135,684,739

114,140,484

19.1 Post-retirement Health Care Beneϐits Liability
Balance at beginning of Year
Contributions to Provision
Increase due to Discounting

Reduction due to Re-measurement
Balance at end of Year
Transfer to Current Provisions
Total Post-retirement Health Care Beneϐits Liability

The municipality provides certain post-retirement health care bene its by funding the medical aid contributions of qualifying retired members of the municipality. According to the rules of the medical aid
funds, with which the municipality is associated, a member (who is on the current Conditions of Service) is entitled to remain a continued member of such medical aid fund on retirement, in which case
the municipality is liable for a certain portion of the medical aid membership fee. The municipality
operates an unfunded de ined bene it plan for these qualifying employees. No other post-retirement
bene its are provided to these employees.
The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the de ined bene it obligation were carried out at 30 June 2011 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa.
The present value of the de ined bene it obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The members of the Post-employment Health Care Bene it Plan are made up as follows:
In-service (employee) members

1,261

1,329

In-service (employee) non-members

656

614

Continuation Members (retirees and widowers)

136

148

2,053

2,091

Total Members
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2011

2010

R

R

100,818,735

86,450,752

38,123,464

30,595,412

138,942,199

117,046,164

The liability in respect of past service has been estimated as follows:
In-service Members
Continuation Members
Total Liability

The municipality makes monthly contributions for health care arrangements to the following Medical
Aid Schemes:
• Bonitas

• Hosmed

• Key Health

• LA Health

• Samwumed

The Current-service cost for the year ending 30 June 2011 is R7,441,600, whereas interest cost for
the year is R10,636,792 the cost for the ensuing year is estimated to be R8,898,172 and R11,972,189
respectively (2010: R7,441,600 and R10,636,792 respectively).
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:
Discount Rate

8.72%

10.68%

Health Care Cost In lation Rate

7.34%

9.56%

Net Eﬀective Discount Rate

1.29%

1.02%

Expected Rate of Salary Increase

6.25%

5.55%

Expected Retirement Age - Females

58

58

Expected Retirement Age - Males

62

62

Movements in the present value of the Deϐined Beneϐit Obligation were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year

117,046,164

113,425,731

7,441,600

7,375,261

Interest cost

10,636,792

10,059,356

Bene its paid

(2,905,680)

(2,634,996)

6,723,323

(11,179,188)

138,942,199

117,046,164

-

-

138,942,199

117,046,164

Current service costs

Actuarial losses / (gains)
Present Value of Fund Obligation at the end of the Year
Actuarial losses / (gains) unrecognised
Total Recognised Beneϐit Liability

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
Present value of fund obligations
Total Beneϐit Liability

138,942,199

117,046,164

138,942,199

117,046,164

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:
Current service cost

7,441,600

7,375,261

Interest cost

10,636,792

10,059,356

18,078,392

17,434,617

Total Post-retirement Beneϐit included in
Employee Related Costs (Note 29)
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The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:
2011
R
Present Value of
De ined Bene it
Obligation

2009
R

2008
R

2007
R

138,942,199

117,046,164

113,425,731

98,197,330

-

-

-

-

-

-

138,942,199 117,046,164

113,425,731

98,197,330

-

Fair Value of
Plan Assets
Deϐicit

2010
R

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS 19 Employee Bene its in December 2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from the 2008 reporting period.
The eﬀect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of health care cost in lation is as follows:
Increase:
Eﬀect on the aggregate of the current service cost
and the interest cost
Eﬀect on the de ined bene it obligation

2011

2010

R

R

20,747,000

20,279,600

163,083,000

132,363,000

15,597,200

14,790,900

119,503,000

102,739,000

Decrease:
Eﬀect on the aggregate of the current service cost
and the interest cost
Eﬀect on the de ined bene it obligation

Refer to Note 49 “Multi-employer Retirement Bene it Information” to the Annual Financial Statements
for more information regarding the municipality’s other retirement funds that are Provincially and
Nationally administered.

20. Non-current provisions
Provision for Ex-Gratia Arrangements
Provision for Long Service Awards
Provision for Rehabilitation of Land- ill Sites
Total Non-current Provisions

477,682

381,297

8,208,229

6,674,375

23,540,936

22,450,668

32,226,847

29,506,340

Non-current Provisions have been restated to adhere to the disclosure provisions of IAS 19. Refer to
Note 39 on “Correction of Error” for details of the restatement.
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The movement in Non-current Provisions are reconciled as follows:
Ex-Gratia
Arrangements
R

Long Service
Awards
R

Land-ϐill
Sites
R

30 June 2011
Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Expenditure incurred / Contribution
Actuarial Loss / (Gain)

Transfer to current provisions
Balance at end of year

381,297

9,068,379

-

1,718,741

34,348

712,884

-

(2,394,004)

62,037

612,623

477,682

9,718,623

-

(1,510,394)

477,682

8,208,229

Ex-Gratia
Arrangements
R

22,450,668

1,090,268

23,540,936

23,540,936

Long Service
Awards
R

Land-ϐill
Sites
R

30 June 2010
Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Expenditure incurred / Contribution
Actuarial Loss / (Gain)

Transfer to current provisions
Balance at end of year

413,564

8,770,794

25,060,000

-

1,634,749

-

38,071

712,659

-

-

(2,017,860)

(2,609,332)

(70,338)

(31,963)

-

381,297

9,068,379

22,450,668

-

(2,394,004)

-

381,297

6,674,375

22,450,668

20.1 Ex-Gratia Arrangements
Ex-gratia pensions are pensions that are paid by the Municipality from its revenue i.e. they are not
funded or paid from one of the Municipality’s pension arrangements. Provision has therefore not been
made in this valuation for the possibility that future employees might be entitled to these annuities.
The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the de ined bene it obligation were carried out at 30 June 2011 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa.
The present value of the de ined bene it obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
At year end, two employees were eligible for Ex-gratia arrangement awards.
The interest costs for the current year is estimated to be R34,348 (2010: R38,071).
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2011

2010

R

R

Discount Rate

8.33%

9.01%

Cost In lation Rate

6.35%

5.60%

Net Eﬀective Discount Rate

0.00%

3.22%

Expected Rate of Salary Increase

0.00%

5.55%

Expected Retirement Age - Females

58

58

Expected Retirement Age - Males

62

62

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

Movements in the present value of the Deϐined Beneϐit Obligation were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year

381,297

413,564

Interest cost

34,348

38,071

Actuarial losses / (gains)

62,037

(70,338)

477,682

381,297

-

-

477,682

381,297

Present Value of Fund Obligation at the end of the Year
Actuarial losses / (gains) unrecognised
Total Recognised Beneϐit Liability

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:
Interest cost

34,348

38,071

Actuarial losses / (gains)

62,037

(70,338)

Total Post-retirement Beneϐit included in Employee
Related Costs

96,385

(32,267)

The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:
2011
R

2010
R

2009
R

2008
R

2007
R

Present Value of De ined
Bene it Obligation

477,682

381,297

413,564

396,597

-

Fair Value of Plan Assets

-

-

-

-

-

477,682

381,297

413,564

396,597

-

Deϐicit

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS 19 Employee Bene its in December 2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from the 2008 reporting period.
The eﬀect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of long service cost in lation is as follows:
Increase:
Eﬀect on the aggregate of the interest cost
Eﬀect on the de ined bene it obligation

37,628

42,034

519,115

417,709

31,350

34,476

439,492

348,021

Decrease:
Eﬀect on the aggregate of the interest cost
Eﬀect on the de ined bene it obligation
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20.2 Long Service Awards
A long-service award is granted to municipal employees after the completion of ixed periods of continuous service with the Municipality. The provision represents an estimation of the awards to which
employees in the service of the Municipality may become entitled to in future, based on an actuarial
valuation performed.
The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the de ined bene it obligation were carried out at 30 June 2011 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa.
The present value of the de ined bene it obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
At year end, 1,838 employees were eligible for Long-service Awards.
The current service cost for the year is estimated to be R1,718,741 (2010: R1,634,749), whereas the
interest costs for the current year is estimated to be R712,884 (2010: R712,659).
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

2011

2010

R

R

Discount Rate

7.65%

10.97%

Cost In lation Rate

6.25%

9.09%

Net Eﬀective Discount Rate

0.00%

1.72%

Expected Rate of Salary Increase

0.00%

5.55%

Expected Retirement Age - Females

58

58

Expected Retirement Age - Males

62

62

Movements in the present value of the Deϐined Beneϐit Obligation were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year

9,068,379

8,770,794

Current service costs

1,718,741

1,634,749

Interest cost

712,884

712,659

Bene its paid

(2,394,004)

(2,017,860)

612,623

(31,963)

9,718,623

9,068,379

-

-

9,718,623

9,068,379

Actuarial losses / (gains)
Present Value of Fund Obligation at the end of the Year
Actuarial losses / (gains) unrecognised
Total Recognised Beneϐit Liability

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
Present value of fund obligations
Total Beneϐit Liability

9,718,623

9,068,379

9,718,623

9,068,379

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:
Current service cost

1,718,741

1,634,749

712,884

712,659

-

-

(2,394,004)

(2,017,860)

Actuarial losses / (gains)

612,623

(31,963)

Total Post-retirement Beneϐit included in Employee
Related Costs (Note 29)

650,244

297,585

Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Bene its paid
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The overall expected rate of return is a weighted average of the expected returns of the various categories of plan assets held. The management’s assessment of the expected returns is based on historical
return trends and analysts’ predictions of the market for the asset in the next twelve months.
The actual return on plan assets was R0 (2010: R0).
The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:
2011
R

2010
R

2009
R

2008
R

2007
R

Present Value of De ined
Bene it Obligation

9,718,623

9,068,379

8,770,794

8,371,062

-

Fair Value of Plan Assets

-

-

-

-

-

9,718,623

9,068,379

8,770,794

8,371,062

-

Deϐicit

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS 19 Employee Bene its in December 2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from the 2008 reporting period.
The eﬀect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of long
service cost in lation is as follows:

2011

2010

R

R

Increase:
Eﬀect on the aggregate of the current service cost and the
interest cost

2,551,158

2,456,845

10,060,000

9,486,000

Eﬀect on the aggregate of the current service cost and the
interest cost

2,322,008

2,247,076

Eﬀect on the de ined bene it obligation

9,398,000

8,680,000

Eﬀect on the de ined bene it obligation
Decrease:

20.3 Rehabilitation of Land-ϐill Sites
In terms of the licensing of the land ill refuse sites, the municipality will incur the following licensing
and rehabilitation costs to restore the site at the end of its useful life, estimated to be in 2025 (provision
has been made for the net present value of this cost, using the average cost of borrowing interest rate):
23,540,936

22,450,668

An independent valuer performed the valuation. The valuer based his calculations on the rehabilitation costs incurred on a similar site in the Border area.

21. Accumulated surplus
The Accumulated Surplus consists of the following Internal Funds and Reserves:
Capital Replacement Reserve (CRR)

1,409,116

1,591,726

18,561,409

16,817,826

8,726,551

7,856,696

Accumulated Surplus / (De icit) due to the results of Operations 806,935,459

782,488,174

Self-insurance Reserve
COID Reserve

Total Accumulated Surplus

835,632,534

808,754,422

The Capital Replacement Reserve is a reserve to inance future capital expenditure and is fully cash
backed.
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The Self-insurance Reserve covers all internal and external insurance claims against Council. Council
is externally insured for catastrophic events.
The COID Reserve arises on the exemption from making contributions to the Compensation Commissioner
for Occupational Injuries and Diseases in terms of Section 84 of the COID Act, 1993 (Act 130 of 1993). A
ixed deposit as determined by the Commissioner was made as a security to the Self-Insurance Workman
Compensation Reserve.
Refer to Statement of Changes in Net Assets for more detail and the movement on Accumulated Surplus.
Property
July 2010
R

Valuations
July 2009
R

Actual

Levies

R

R

Residential

9,141,002

9,029,693

72,243,648

61,973,170

Business

1,773,188

1,775,045

45,083,120

42,590,438

Residential Business

247,770

259,252

3,624,197

3,712,231

Rural

330,248

291,440

454,217

359,479

Industrial

115,311

116,911

4,172,528

3,891,032

PSI

618,000

613,840

1,539,975

1,187,780

1,314,240

1,312,664

81,670,314

75,184,120

4,005

3,995

562,662

525,696

State
Mining Areas
Exempt

393,443

Total Assessment Rates

13,937,207

366,463
13,769,304 209,350,661

189,423,946

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every four years in terms of the Municipal Property
Rates Act, 2004 (Act No 6 of 2004) (MPRA). The last general valuation came into eﬀect on 1 July 2007.
Supplementary valuations are processed when necessary to take into account changes in individual
property values due to alterations, subdivisions, etc. Rates are levied on an annual basis with the inal
date of payment being 30 September each year. Ratepayers can apply to pay rates monthly. A general
valuation has been performed during the inancial year and will be applied with eﬀect 1 July 2011. Assessment Rates are levied on the value of land and improvements, which valuation is performed every
four years. Interim valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual property values due to alterations and subdivisions.
A rebate of 20% (2010: 20%) was allowed on residential properties for pensioners based on the annual
income of the ratepayer’s household.
2011
2010

23. Interest earned

R

R

External Investments:
Interest

4,801,581

3,984,460

31,282,531

39,476,418

36,084,112

43,460,878

Outstanding Debtors:
Outstanding Debtors
Total Interest Earned

Interest Earned on Financial Assets, analysed by category of asset, is as follows:
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables

4,801,581

3,984,460

31,282,531

39,476,418

36,084,112

43,460,878
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2011

2010

R

R

Sale of Electricity

360,484,993

299,849,953

Sale of Water

132,726,907

102,037,221

Refuse Removal

32,932,403

29,329,663

Sewerage and Sanitation Charges

45,180,404

39,920,760

80,985

315,789

571,405,692

471,453,386

24. Service charges

Other
Total Service Charges

The amounts disclosed above for revenue from Service Charges are in respect of services rendered
which are billed to the consumers on a monthly basis according to approved tariﬀs, which are billed to
the consumers on a monthly basis according to approved tariﬀs.

25. Rental of facilities and equipment
Rental Revenue from Facilities and Equipment
Total Rental of Facilities and Equipment

12,740,245

11,130,646

12,740,245

11,130,646

Rental revenue earned on Facilities and Equipment is in respect of Non- inancial Assets rented out.

26. Government grants and subsidies
Provincial Equitable Share

121,743,177

95,167,000

Provincial Health Subsidies

2,306,000

2,301,000

Other Subsidies

1,677,000

1,545,000

Operational Grants

125,726,177

99,013,000

Conditional Grants

65,080,451

120,071,299

National: FMG

1,200,000

750,000

National: MIG

34,749,596

39,207,404

National: Grants

8,084,577

3,339,197

National: EPWP

9,649,080

5,728,100

Provincial: Grants

6,325,903

69,422,879

Local Government: Local Municipalities Grant

2,066,303

1,572,337

Other Spheres of Government: Various Grants

3,004,992

51,381

190,806,628

219,084,299

121,743,177

95,167,000

Total Government Grants and Subsidies
Operational Grants:
26.1 National: Equitable Share

This unconditional grant is partly used to subsidise the provision of basic services to registered and
veri ied indigent community members.
26.2 Provincial: Health Subsidies
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts - included in Public Health vote
- Environmental Health
- Primary Health
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

-

-

2,306,000

2,301,000

-

208,000

2,306,000

2,093,000

(2,306,000)

(2,301,000)

-

-

The Municipality renders health services on behalf of the Provincial Government and is refunded the
gazette amount. This grant has been used exclusively for health services (included in Appendix F).
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26.3 Other Subsidies

2011

2010

R

R

Balance unspent at beginning of year

-

-

Current year receipts:

1,677,000

1,545,000

- Library

1,100,000

1,001,000

577,000

544,000

(1,677,000)

(1,545,000)

-

-

- Provincial Resort subsidy
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

The Municipality renders services on behalf of the Provincial Government and is refunded the gazette
amount. This grant has been used exclusively to resort expenditure (included in Appendix F). The conditions of the grant have been met.
Conditional Grants:
26.4 National: FMG Grant
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

-

-

1,200,000

750,000

(1,200,000)

(750,000)

-

-

Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

The Financial Management Grant is paid by National Treasury to high capacity municipalities to help
implement the inancial reforms required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), 2003
(Act no 56 of 2003). The FMG Grant also pays for the cost of the Financial Management Internship Programme (e.g. salary costs of the Financial Management Interns). The grant is spent in accordance with
National Treasury guidelines (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.
26.5 National: MIG Funds
Balance unspent at beginning of year

255,596

-

Current year receipts

34,494,000

39,463,000

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

(1,137,736)

(923,095)

(33,611,859)

(38,284,310)

-

255,596

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

This grant was used for various projects (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.
26.6 National: Funds
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

-

146,393

16,114,425

3,192,804

(750,000)

(996,393)

(7,334,577)

(2,342,804)

8,029,848

-

This grant was used for various projects (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.
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26.7 National - EPWP
Balance unspent at beginning of year

2011

2010

R

R
-

-

9,649,080

5,728,100

(9,649,080)

(5,728,100)

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses

-

-

Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

-

-

Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

This grant was used for various projects (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.
26.8 Provincial: Grants
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

799,211

4,254,376

5,526,693

65,967,714

-

(45,840,106)

(6,325,903)

(23,582,773)

-

799,211

The grant is spent in accordance with business plans approved by the Provincial Government (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.
26.9 Local Government - Local Municipalities
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

2,381,493

1,977,095

893,506

1,976,735

(500,000)

(558,111)

(1,566,303)

(1,014,226)

1,208,696

2,381,493

The grant is spent in accordance with business plans approved by the FBD Municipality (included in
Appendix F). No funds have been withheld
26.10 Other Grants
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

-

51,381

3,004,992

-

-

-

(3,004,992)

(51,381)

-

-

The grant is spent in accordance with business plans approved by the relevant grantor (included in
Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.
26.11 Changes in levels of Government Grants
Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, (Act No 2 of 2008), government grant
funding is expected to increase over the forthcoming three inancial years.
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27. Public contributions and donations

2011

2010

R

R

Donations Received

-

3,877,500

Total Public Contributions and Donations

-

3,877,500

Donations Received comprise of a farm that was donated to the Municipality during the previous year.

28. Other income
Premiums received and claims recovered

3,419,905

3,151,891

Burial fees

1,340,736

1,305,796

Disconnections

6,657,812

5,989,940

Dues

3,406,021

3,340,479

Miscellaneous revenue

5,199,881

7,611,164

Sale of goods and land

2

11,793

6,264,097

4,014,814

26,288,454

25,425,876

Other Income
Total Other Income

The amounts disclosed above for Other Income are in respect of services, other than described in Notes
22 to 26, rendered which are billed to or paid for by the users as the services are required according to
approved tariﬀs

29. Employee related costs
Employee Related Costs - Salaries and Wages

202,879,937

179,459,667

Employee Related Costs - Contributions for UIF and
Medical Aids

26,310,274

21,486,515

Employee Related Costs - Contributions for Pensions

32,157,708

27,033,124

Travel, Motor Car, Accommodation, Subsistence and
Other Allowances

54,306,973

49,044,630

2,111,306

2,201,948

Overtime Payments

12,078,850

10,922,840

Long-service Awards

6,552,340

5,712,254

27,942,348

8,538,607

9,160,341

9,010,010

11,384,024

10,810,086

7,397,983

(11,281,489)

364,339,736

304,399,586

Housing Bene its and Allowances

De ined Bene it Plan Expense:
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Net Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised
Total Employee Related Costs
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Remuneration of the Municipal Manager
Annual Remuneration

2011

2010

R

R

1,381,270

1,054,991

-

-

Car Allowance

150,000

126,822

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

255,385

189,885

1,786,655

1,371,697

523,649

484,483

-

-

Car Allowance

186,219

186,219

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

110,885

109,115

Total

820,753

779,817

Performance Bonus

Total
Remuneration of the Director: Finance
Annual Remuneration
Performance Bonus

The post is vacant. Salary shown here is for the person acting in this position.
Remuneration of the Director: Corporate Services
Annual Remuneration

698,348

548,797

-

-

Car Allowance

211,619

206,599

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

108,576

100,210

1,018,543

855,606

Performance Bonus

Total

Remuneration of the Director: Strategy, Economic Development and Planning
Annual Remuneration

630,576

399,072

-

-

209,791

191,168

93,831

99,493

934,198

689,733

601,955

491,204

-

-

Car Allowance

188,443

188,443

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

108,818

107,836

Total

899,216

787,483

Performance Bonus
Car Allowance
Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Total
Remuneration of the Director: Community Services
Annual Remuneration
Performance Bonus

The post is vacant. Salary shown here is for the person acting in this position.
Remuneration of the Director: Technical Services
Annual Remuneration

529,511

549,516

-

-

Car Allowance

186,219

204,375

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

101,488

87,349

Total

817,219

841,240

Performance Bonus

The post is vacant. Salary shown here is for the person acting in this position.
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2011

2010

R

R

The following compensation was payable to key management personnel
in terms of IAS 19 as at 30 June:
Staff Leave Beneϐits:
Municipal Manager

130,088

75,593

Chief Financial Of icer

-

-

Director Community

-

-

Director Corporate

26,275

58,392

Director SED

51,005

36,782

-

89,329

207,368

260,097

Executive Mayor

594,278

505,658

Speaker

504,191

407,775

Councillors

7,557,550

6,287,740

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds and
other allowances

4,674,934

4,179,293

13,330,953

11,380,466

Director Technical
Total

30. Remuneration of councillors

Total Councillors’ Remuneration
In-kind Beneϐits

The Councillors occupying the positions of Executive Mayor, Speaker and the Mayoral Committee serve
in a full-time capacity. They are provided with of ice accommodation and secretarial support at the
expense of the municipality in order to enable them to perform their of icial duties. Council owned
vehicles are made available for of icial duties.

31. Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation: Property, Plant and Equipment

36,523,343

31,652,337

1,302,582

1,262,753

766,767

766,767

38,592,691

33,681,856

97,383,130

96,732,663

97,383,130

96,732,663

97,383,130

96,732,663

Loans and Payables at amortised cost

8,736,269

6,494,138

Finance Leases

5,961,089

3,979,105

14,697,358

10,473,243

-

-

14,697,358

10,473,243

Amortisation: Intangible Assets
Depreciation: Investment Property
Total Depreciation and Amortisation

32. Impairment losses
32.1 Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
Impairment Losses Recognised:
Consumer Debtors
Total Impairment Losses

33. Finance costs

Total Interest Expense
Less: Amounts included in the Cost of qualifying Assets
Total Interest Paid on External Borrowings
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34. Bulk purchases
Electricity
Water
Total Bulk Purchases

2011

2010

R

R

213,319,748

168,913,892

20,995,098

27,310,497

234,314,846

196,224,388

Bulk Purchases are the cost of commodities not generated by the municipality, which the municipality distributes in the municipal area for resale to the consumers. Electricity is purchased from Eskom
whilst water is purchased from the Department Water Aﬀairs and Forestry.

35. Grants and subsidies paid
Diamonds and Dorings Festival

1,000,000

-

Gariep Festival

1,000,000

-

Other Grants

741,000

-

Subsidy paid to SPCA

450,000

350,000

3,191,000

350,000

Total Grants and Subsidies

The grants to the festivals are to promote economic growth. The subsidy to the SPCA is to assist the
municipality to care for stray animals and other related tasks. The subsidy is paid on an annual basis.

36. General expenses
Audit fees

3,731,873

2,838,929

408,820

361,074

1,046,808

908,730

559,674

1,133,848

7,030,887

2,854,225

423,214

330,743

Conferences and seminars

4,447,851

2,920,070

Course fees/Central training fund

2,966,740

1,613,972

Discount on early payment

2,674,033

-

27,300,973

24,809,590

7,356,527

6,678,789

578,714

365,026

1,113,401

1,957,816

Indigent subsidy

34,378,808

14,221,993

Insurance - other

2,364,487

2,445,773

Insurance - vehicles

543,000

617,966

Laboratory

508,355

157,624

6,706,536

5,820,037

955,827

798,044

Membership fees

1,810,271

1,669,662

Postage

1,599,753

1,452,188

Printing and stationary

3,665,332

3,820,344

18,545,017

20,995,239

Audit committee
Bank charges
Claims paid
Clari ication/Puri ication
Cleaning material

Electricity
Fuel
FMG Interns
Hire of labour

Job creation cleaning project
Legal expenses

Professional fees
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2011

2010

R

R

43,596,603

30,668,008

Projects EPWP

9,649,080

-

Protective clothing

1,202,059

1,017,146

Refuse removals

477,449

422,570

Sanitation

914,932

918,421

Sport

522,732

-

1,590,660

1,252,175

-

23,582,773

269,819

412,351

Telephone expenditure

5,185,666

4,704,658

Training

1,312,409

854,306

Uniforms

1,030,058

713,086

Water

4,757,175

5,297,898

Ward committee activities

3,494,923

1,151,865

Workmen’s compensation insurance

1,325,242

1,158,708

Other General Expenses

6,938,169

5,018,930

212,983,878

175,944,576

Projects

Stores
Subsidy services projects
Sundries

Total General Expenses

The comparative igures for General Expenses have been restated to correct errors contained in the prior year Financial Statements. Refer to note 39 on Correction of Errors for details of the restatement.
The amounts disclosed above for Other General Expenses are in respect of costs incurred in the general
management of the municipality and not direct attributable to a speci ic service or class of expense.

37. Discontinued operations
No operations have been discontinued.

38. Change in accounting policy
There were no changes in accounting policy during the current inancial year.

39. Correction of error
Corrections were made and appropriated to the Accumulated Surplus Account during the inancial
year ended 30 June.
Details of the appropriations are as follows:
Unappropriated Surplus Account:
Corrections to Debtors

(1,674,274)

Corrections to Expenditure

1,395,591

Corrections to Other Income

104,639

Corrections to Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

1,419,621

Corrections to Income

(3,954)

Corrections to Investment Property

65,147,000

Corrections to Property, Plant and Equipment

111,102,904

Increase / (Decrease) in Unappropriated Surplus Account

177,491,527

Increase / (Decrease) in Accumulated Surplus Account

177,491,527
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39.1 Restatement of Revenue:
The prior year igures of Revenue Classes have been restated to correctly classify the nature of Revenue
of the municipality. Refer to note 39.8 for further details regarding the nature of these errors and how
it was recti ied.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
2010
Revenue

2010
Correction

Restated
Amount

Government Grants and Subsidies Received

218,639,955

444,343

219,084,299

Service Charges

489,460,439

(18,007,053)

471,453,386

Rental of Facilities and Equipment

11,126,139

4,507

11,130,646

Other Income

24,968,641

457,235

25,425,876

744,195,175

(17,100,968)

727,094,207

39.2 Restatement of Expenditure:
The prior year igures of Expenditure Classes have been restated to correctly classify the nature of
Expenditure of the municipality. Refer to note 39.6 and 39.9 for further details regarding the nature of
these errors and how it was recti ied.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
2010
Revenue
Employee Related Costs

Restated
Amount

304,106,014

293,572

304,399,586

29,803,795

3,878,061

33,681,856

8,930,826

1,542,416

10,473,243

192,049,294

(16,104,718)

175,944,576

534,889,929

(10,390,669)

524,499,260

Depreciation and Amortisation
Finance Costs
General Expenses

2010
Correction

39.3 Restatement of Statement of Financial Position:
The prior year balances of items on the Statement of Financial Position have been restated to correctly
classify the nature of the balances.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
2010
Revenue

2010
Correction

Accumulated Surplus

629,922,885

178,831,537

808,754,422

Long-term Liabilities

63,609,046

3,002,951

66,611,996

Non-Current Provisions

34,775,672

(5,269,332)

29,506,340

107,135,888

(870,386)

106,265,502

8,163,443

2,173,999

10,337,441

645,900,329

104,031,032

749,931,361

51,625,367

64,491,100

116,116,467

Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions

151,254,634

(1,653,313)

149,601,321

Trade Receivables from Non-Exchange
Transactions

119,746,393

(370,721)

119,375,672

84,051

553

84,604

Creditors
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Property

Operating Lease Assets
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Restated
Amount

39.4 Restatement of Non-current Provisions:
The Municipality has an obligation to rehabilitate its land ill site at the expected date of closure of 2025.
In calculating the estimated liability as at 30 June 2011, the independent valuer tasked with preparing
the valuation, revisited certain assumptions previously used in determining the Municipality’s obligation.
As a result, the Municipality’s estimated obligation as at 30 June 2010 has been restated to incorporate
these changes. This change resulted in the gross cost price of the land ill asset as well as the provision
at 30 June 2010 to decrease by R5,269,332.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Non-current
Provisions
Balances as per AFS previously published for 2009/2010

34,775,672

Restatement of non-current liabilities

(5,269,332)

Balances as per current AFS published for 2009/2010

29,506,340

39.5 Restatement of Finance Lease Liabilities:
Discrepancies were found in relation to the non-payment of instalments owing on a number of contracts entered into with a certain service provider during the current and previous inancial years. As
a result, inance costs increased by R1,542,416, general expenses increased by R1,627,589, while the
inance lease liability owing at 30 June 2010 increased by R5,176,949.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Finance Lease
Liabilities
Balances as per AFS previously published for 2009/2010

5,181,428

Restatement of Finance Lease Liabilities

5,176,949

Balances as per current AFS published for 2009/2010

10,358,377

39.6 Restatement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation:
The Municipality unbundled its Asset Register during the prior inancial year. Certain errors (duplications and omissions) were discovered on the Asset Register during the current inancial year. As a
result, Property, Plant and Equipment (refer to note 9) and the Depreciation expense (refer to note 31)
have been restated to re lect these changes for the 2009/2010 year, while the adjustment to Accumulated Surplus is as indicated above.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Property, Plant
and Equipment

Depreciation
on PPE

Balances as per AFS previously
published for 2009/2010

645,900,329

28,430,176

Restatement of Property, Plant and
Equipment(PPE) and Depreciation

104,031,032

3,222,161

Balances as per current AFS published
for 2009/2010

749,931,361

31,652,337
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39.7 Restatement of Investment Property:
The Municipality erroneously did not include certain items of Investment Property (see Note 11) in the
Asset Register during the previous inancial years. These assets are now accounted for and, as a result,
the prior years’ balances have been amended as indicated.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Investment
Property (IP)

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2009/2010

Depreciation
on IP

51,625,367

(221,733)

Restatement of Investment Property and Depreciation

64,491,100

(655,900)

Balances as per current AFS published for 2009/2010

116,116,467

(877,633)

39.8 Adjustment of Revenue:
The prior year balance for Service Charges has been restated to exclude the estimation of revenue from
bypassed electricity meters which was previously erroneously included in revenue. The restatement
has the eﬀect that Service Charges was reduced by R18,007,053.
The prior year balance for Government Grants and Subsidies has been restated due to an erroneous
journal that was passed during the prior year. The restatement has resulted in an increase in Revenue of
R444,344, an increase in the balance Trade Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions of R222,177,
while the creditors’ balance decreased by R222,217.
Included in the restated prior year igures for Other Income (refer to Note 28) is an amount of R88,848
which was previously erroneously credited against a debtor’s account which has now been reclassi ied
as revenue.
The prior year balance for Rental of Facilities and Equipment has been restated due to an erroneous
journal that was passed during the prior year. The restatement has resulted in an increase in Revenue
of R4,507 and the Operating Lease Asset for the 2009/2010 year, while Accumulated Surplus as at 30
June 2009 decreased by R3,954.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Service
Charges

Government
Grants and
Subsidies
Received

Other Income
Facilities and

Rental of
Equipment

Revenue as per AFS previously
published for 2009/2010

489,460,439

218,639,955

24,968,641

11,126,139

Adjustment of prior period revenue

(18,007,053)

444,344

457,235

4,507

Revenue as per AFS currently
disclosed for 2009/2010

471,453,386

219,084,299

25,425,876

11,130,646

39.9 Adjustment of Expenses:
The prior year igure for Employee Related Costs has been restated due to back-pay paid accrued (in
relation to the previous two inancial years) for four employees who received retrospective salary adjustments. As a result of the retrospective application of these salary adjustments, the Accumulated
Surplus balance as at 30 June 2009 decreased by R309,267 while the 2009/2010 igure increased by
R708,961. Furthermore, an error was discovered within the calculation of the annual accrued leave
balances as at 30 June 2009 as well as 30 June 2010. The result of the correction of these errors was
that Accumulated Surplus as at 30 June 2009 increased by R76,575, while Employee Related Cost for
the 2009/2010 year decreased by R415,390.
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The prior year igure for Finance Cost (refer to Note 33) have been restated due to the discovery of the
non-payment of the number of inance lease contracts as mentioned in note 39.5 as above. This oversight has been recti ied and the restated igure is re lected below.
The prior year igures for General Expenses (Note 36) has been restated due to three prior period
errors which were discovered during the current inancial year. Included in the decreased restated
amount, is an amount of R1,627,589 in respect of the reclassi ication of the erroneously captured inance lease transactions (increase in General Expenses as detailed in note 39.5 as above), an amount
of R18,007,053 in respect of estimated losses on bypassed electricity meters which was previously erroneously included (decrease in General Expenses) as well as an additional payment made to SALGA in
respect of recalculated arrears membership fees of R192,157 (increase in General expenses).
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Expenses as per AFS previously published
for 2009/2010

Employee
Related Costs

Finance
Cost

304,106,014

8,930,826

192,049,294

293,572

1,542,417

(16,104,718)

304,399,586

10,473,243

175,944,576

Adjustment of prior period expenses
Expenses as per AFS currently disclosed
for 2009/2010

General
Expenses

39.10 Creditors:
Included in the prior year’s restated creditors’ balance is an amount of R222,217 (decrease in creditors
and increase in revenue - refer to note 39.8) in respect of an incorrect journal passed in relation to Government Grants and Subsidies and an amount of R141,873 in respect of previously unknown deposits
recognised as revenue (decrease in creditors and increase in revenue).
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Creditors
Balances as per AFS previously published for 2009/2010

107,135,888

Adjustment for prior period error
Balances as per current AFS published for 2009/2010

(870,386)
106,265,502

39.11 Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions:
Included in the prior year’s restated balance for Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions is an
amount of R1,674,274 (decrease in Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions as well as Accumulated Surplus) in respect of land sales which was recognised prior to the comparative inancial year,
which was subsequently cancelled, and which is now reversed.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Trade
Receivables
from Exchange
Transactions
Balances as per AFS previously published for 2009/2010

151,254,634

Adjustment for prior period error

(1,653,313)

Balances as per current AFS published for 2009/2010
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40. Change in accounting estimates
The Municipality amended its criteria in terms of which it calculated its annual provision for the impairment of its consumer debtors as at 30 June 2011. Each individual debtor’s individual credit risk
rating was assessed as at year end and was for the irst time factored into the impairment calculation
(as required in terms of IAS 39). As a result, the provision for the impairment of the Municipality’s
consumer debtors increased by R8,698,190 as at 30 June 2011 by using the amended methodology
instead of the previous methodology.
2011
2010

41. Cash generated by operations

R

R

26,878,112

90,688,837

-

5,002,905

38,592,691

33,681,856

105,223,655

104,693,453

1,729,391

569,802

(246,368,291)

(58,176)

(36,084,112)

(43,460,878)

14,697,358

10,473,243

(95,331,195)

201,591,041

(3,208,660)

516,520

143,988,553

(88,341,767)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Debtors

(3,475,139)

(48,225,227)

(Increase)/Decrease in VAT Receivable

(5,739,538)

(2,175,373)

(5,738)

(5,817)

Increase/(Decrease) in Consumer Deposits

1,631,909

1,244,604

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors

6,724,198

28,055,292

Increase/(Decrease) in Conditional Grants and Receipts

5,802,245

(2,992,946)

23,732,932

1,276,419

(19,240,777)

(4,802,425)

54,878,791

86,140,322

1,056,924,539

973,967,166

Investment income

(36,084,112)

(43,460,878)

(Increase)/decrease in Consumer Debtors

143,988,553

(88,341,767)

1,729,391

569,802

(246,368,291)

(58,176)

(5,738)

(5,817)

1,631,909

1,244,604

(3,475,139)

(48,225,227)

5,802,245

(2,992,946)

924,143,358

792,696,760

Surplus / (Deϐicit) for the Year
Adjustment for:
Adjusting non cash low items prior errors
Depreciation and Amortisation
Contribution to Impairment Provision
Bad Debts Recovered
Bad Debts Written-oﬀ
Investment Income
Finance Costs
Operating surplus before working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Consumer Debtors

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Lease Assets

(increase)/Decrease in provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in VAT Payable
Cash generated by / (utilised in) Operations
Income for the year
Adjustment for:

Bad Debts Recovered
Bad Debts Written-oﬀ
(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Lease Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Consumer Deposits
(Increase)/decrease in other debtors
(Decrease)/increase in conditional grants and receipts
Cash receipts from ratepayers, government and other
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Expenditure for the year

2011
R
1,030,046,427

2010
R
883,278,328

38,592,691

33,681,856

105,223,655

104,693,453

-

5,002,905

14,697,358

10,473,243

871,532,722

729,426,872

(3,208,660)

516,520

6,724,198

28,055,292

23,732,932

1,276,419

-24,980,315

-6,977,797

869,264,567

706,556,438

54,878,791

86,140,322

Adjustment for:
Depreciation
Contribution to bad debt provision
Adjusting non cash low items prior errors
Interest paid
Operating expenditure before working capital changes:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors
(Increase)/Decrease in provisions
(Decrease)/Increase in VAT
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated by/(utilised in) operations

42. Non-cash investing and ϐinancing transactions
The municipality did not enter into any Non-cash Investing and Financing Transactions during the
inancial year.

43. Financing facilities
Unsecured Bank Overdraft Facility payable at call:
-

Amount used

-

-

-

Amount unused

-

400,000

114,655,704

76,949,438

(114,655,704)

(76,949,438)

44. Utilisation of long-term liabilities reconciliation
Long-term Liabilities (See Note 18)
Used to inance Property, Plant and Equipment - at cost

Long-term Liabilities have been utilised in accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act,
2003 (Act No 56 of 2003).

45. Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure disallowed
45.1 Unauthorised Expenditure
To management’s best of knowledge no Unauthorised Expenditure was incurred during the year under
review.
Reconciliation of Unauthorised Expenditure:

2011
R

2010
R

Opening balance

1,778,280

1,778,280

1,778,280

Unauthorised Expenditure current year

1,592,925

-

-

(1,515,226)

-

-

1,855,979

1,778,280

1,778,280

Approved by Council or condoned
Unauthorised Expenditure awaiting authorisation
Incident
Budget overspending not yet authorised by
Council as per the inancial statements

2009
R

Causes
Item was tabled to Council but it was not clear in
terms of authorisation which must be cleared.
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45.2 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

2011

2010

R

R

Reconciliation of Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure:
Opening balance

727,289

669,351

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure current year

582,678

57,938

(727,289)

-

582,678

727,289

Condoned or written oﬀ by Council
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure awaiting condonement
Incident

Causes

Ex-gratia payments

Ex-gratia payments were made to of icials who
do not qualify for these payments.

45.3 Irregular Expenditure
Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure:

2011
R

Opening balance

2010
R

2009
R

102,005,664

66,538,092

36,116,457

Irregular Expenditure current year

9,930,194

35,467,573

30,421,635

Condoned or written oﬀ by Council

(71,454,969)

-

-

40,480,889

102,005,664

66,538,092

Irregular Expenditure awaiting condonement
Incident

Amount

Causes

Suppliers in service of the
state

1,095,939

Awards were made to suppliers in service of the state,
in contravention of the Supply Chain Management
Regulations. The suppliers failed to declare the fact.

Diamond and Dorings

2,368,500

After having followed supply procedure of advertising,
it was impractical to appoint a consultant and an
executive decision was made to appoint a consultant on
a deviation basis which the auditors did not agree with.
The matter is still being dealt with through the internal
procedures.

World Travel

122,503

Of icials and Policticians were requested by the
Premier’s of ice to be part of the entourage overseas to
bid for the hosting of Uruguay in Kimberley.
The premier’s of ice made all arrangements and
municipality had to pay the invoices. Unfortunately,
no evidence was submitted by the Premier’s of ice that
supply chain procedures were followed.

Overpayment of councillors

542,299

Councillors were not remunerated in accordance with
the upper limits as determined by the gazette issued in
terms of the Remuneration of Public Of ice Bearers Act.

Supply chain management
procedures not adhered to

34,136,236

Contracts extended without
obtaining the required
authorisation

2,215,412
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Various non-compliance with the Supply chain
management regulations occurred, such as tax
clearance certi icates not being obtained, three
quotations not being obtained, inaccuracies in the
application of the point system, proper tender
processes not being implemented.
Two contracts were extended without obtaining the
necessary authorisation or following the required
processes as prescribed by the supply chain
management regulations.
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2011

2010

R

R

46. Additional disclosures in terms of municipal ϐinance management act
46.1 Contributions to organised local government - SALGA
Opening Balance

-

-

1,804,735

1,467,624

(1,804,735)

(1,467,624)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

-

-

3,731,873

2,838,929

(3,731,873)

(2,838,929)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

Council Subscriptions
Amount Paid - current year

46.2 Audit Fees
Opening Balance
Current year Audit Fee
Amount Paid - current year

46.3 VAT
VAT inputs receivables and VAT outputs receivables are shown in Note 8 and 17. All VAT returns have
been submitted by the due date throughout the year.
46.4 PAYE and UIF
Opening Balance

-

-

39,314,918

29,718,762

(39,314,918)

(29,718,762)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

-

-

87,948,701

71,961,371

(87,948,701)

(71,961,371)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

Current year Payroll Deductions
Amount Paid - current year

46.5 Pension and Medical Aid Deductions
Opening Balance
Current year Payroll Deductions and Council Contributions
Amount Paid - current year
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46.6 Councillor’s arrear Consumer Accounts
The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days as at:
30 June 2011

Total

Outstanding
up to
90 days

Outstanding
more than
90 days

Hale EM

25,664

2,747

22,918

Dawids RM

35,072

3,875

31,197

Doman WP

6,373

6,373

-

Johnson E

12,192

1,473

10,719

Lekoma MD

16,387

630

15,757

Manyungwana M

13,115

1,711

11,404

Matsio FF

20,090

2,778

17,312

Ludick RA

1,210

-

1,210

Matika OM

6,179

1,255

4,924

Mfulo A

7,492

1,585

5,907

Modise AA

26,903

2,141

24,762

Morwe RT

20,599

3,345

17,255

1,582

436

1,146

151

-

151

Ndlazi SP

2,254

224

2,030

Pienaar D

24

-

24

343

343

-

24,937

945

23,992

Stout BJ

449

44

405

Tarentaal WSJ

260

-

260

Tsimakwane E

1,773

250

1,524

10,548

183

10,365

Visser MD

2,376

-

2,376

Leven MM

4,512

428

4,084

Morudi GD

92

-

92

Kruger LE

959

-

959

Mathe E

2,465

585

1,879

Ntlhangula A

2,280

1,245

1,035

Pietersen J

746

173

573

Beylefeld, MJ

602

84

518

Chwarisang, M

628

-

628

Britz, DP

191

191

-

de Kock, KJ

774

37

737

Everyday, P

1,738

1,738

-

466

465

0

Mthukwane KG
Mpampi ZJ

Pitt DH
Selao OG

Vilakasi PM

Legwabe, HP
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1,896

Outstanding
up to
90 days
430

Outstanding
more than
90 days
1,467

57,535

4,959

52,576

812

812

-

1,091

-

1,091

Mohulatsi, KB

259

13

246

Modise, ML

162

162

-

Mgwazeni, M

403

160

243

Motsage, J

8,237

619

7,618

Nkomo, MS

1,222

299

923

Smit, J

1,647

1,503
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Phitlho, MP

248

248

-

Sebego, M

147

147

-

Sello, R

784

784

-

10,793

833

9,960

210

-

210

1,572

207

1,365

338,444

46,459

291,985

Outstanding
up to
90 days

Outstanding
more than
90 days

Total
Mashodi, SC
Matsekete, LT
Mogoje, TT
Mbasa W

Swanepoel,
Williams, LE
Thole, MK
Total Councillor Arrear Consumer Accounts
30 June 2010

Total

Beylefeld MJ

682

682

-

De Kock KJ

507

398

109

Kruger LE

21,632

3,065

18,568

Leven MM

1,737

1,737

-

Louw PJF

1,600

1,600

-

Mashodi SC

2,254

983

1,271

Mathe E

5,448

868

4,580

Matsekete LT

28,989

3,218

25,771

Mohulatsi KB

244

244

-

Morwe RT

11,224

1,861

9,362

Motsage J

8,147

3,290

4,857

Ngobeza WN

128

128

-

Nkomo MS & GR

940

940

-

Settley V

2,202

159

2,043

Swanepoel F

7,499

719

6,779

Williams LE

11,277

1,390

9,887

104,509

21,282

83,226

Total Councillor Arrear Consumer Accounts

46.7 Non-Compliance with Chapter 11 of the Municipal Finance Management Act
No known matters existed at the reporting date.
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46.8 Deviation from, and ratiϐication of minor breaches of, the Procurement Processes
In terms of section 36(2) of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from
the Supply Chain Management Policy needs to be approved/condoned by the Municipal Manager and
noted by Council.
The Municipality has deviated from the procurement policy, the details of which were reported to council (refer to appendix G).
2011
2010
46.9 Material losses

R

R

In terms of section 125(d)(i) of the Municipal Finance Management Act disclosure regarding water
losses as a result of various factors for example burst pipes and stand pipes not metered is 17.54%
(2010: 35.38%) is disclosed to the amount of:
23,279,988
10,126,587

47. Commitments for expenditure
47.1 Capital Commitments
Commitments in respect of Capital Expenditure:
- Approved and Contracted for:

60,077,528

6,644,905

60,077,528

6,644,905

428,547,320

533,862,000

337,983,475

349,042,000

14,768,000

122,600,000

-

-

75,795,845

62,220,000

488,624,848

540,506,905

External Loans

226,000,000

230,000,000

Government Grants

225,624,848

263,506,905

37,000,000

47,000,000

488,624,848

540,506,905

Infrastructure
- Approved but Not Yet Contracted for:
Infrastructure
Community
Heritage
Other
Total Capital Commitments
This expenditure will be inanced from:

Own Resources

47.2 Lease Commitments
Commitments under Finance Leases are disclosed in Note 18.
47.3 Other Commitments
Retention Money (not included in creditors)

9,972,829

Retentions refer to construction contracts.
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8,099,845

2011
R

48. Financial instruments

2010
R

48.1 Classiϐication
Financial assets:
In accordance with IAS 39.09 the Financial Assets of the municipality are classi ied as follows:
Financial Assets
Consumer Debtors
Electricity
Refuse
Sewerage
Water
Miscellaneous
Market
Housing Debtors
Other Debtors
Assessment Rates
Government Subsidy Claims
Miscellaneous debtors
Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents
Call Deposits
Notice Deposits
Cash Floats and Advances
Operating Lease Assets
Operating Lease Assets / Receivables
Summary of ϐinancial assets
Held to maturity:
Short-term Investment Deposits
Loans and Receivables
Consumer Debtors
Consumer Debtors
Consumer Debtors
Consumer Debtors
Consumer Debtors
Consumer Debtors
Consumer Debtors
Consumer Debtors
Other Debtors
Other Debtors
Operating Lease Assets

Available for Sale:
Bank Balances and Cash
Short-term Investment Deposits
Total Financial Assets

Classiϐication
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables

28,583,404
8,469,550
9,680,284
28,138,210
65,725,922
263,782
4,166,861

23,091,932
11,518,837
13,925,170
35,495,508
61,425,992
457,868
3,686,015

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables

107,211,635
15,071,901
567,274

103,538,855
11,359,448
4,477,369

67,673,203
2,297,808
31,657

48,910,000
2,297,808
30,927

90,342

84,604

2,297,808

2,297,808

107,211,635
28,583,404
8,469,550
9,680,284
28,138,210
65,725,922
263,782
4,166,861
15,071,901
567,274

103,538,855
23,091,932
11,518,837
13,925,170
35,495,508
61,425,992
457,868
3,686,015
11,359,448
4,477,369

90,342
267,969,166

84,604
269,061,597

31,657
67,673,203
337,971,834

30,927
48,910,000
320,300,332

Available for sale
Held to maturity
Available for sale
Loans and receivables

Notice Deposits
Assessment Rates
Electricity
Refuse
Sewerage
Water
Miscellaneous
Market
Housing Debtors
Government Subsidy Claims
Miscellaneous debtors
Operating Lease Assets/
Receivables

Cash Floats and Advances
Call Deposits
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Financial liabilities:

2011

2010

R

R

In accordance with IAS 39.09 the Financial Liabilities of the municipality are classi ied as follows:
Financial Liabilities

Classiϐication

Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans
Finance Lease Liabilities
Consumer Deposits
Electricity and Water
Creditors
Trade Creditors
Other Creditors
Payments received in Advance
Staﬀ Bonuses
Accrued leave
Finance Lease Liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

92,616,727
14,851,333

60,400,132
10,358,377

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

11,857,366

10,225,457

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

78,006,029
52,944
10,464,892
6,770,637
17,695,200
10,709,785

62,052,668
52,884
23,096,751
5,884,932
15,178,267
4,146,513

9,238,545
-

3,436,299
-

9,418,186

25,067,445

7,187,644

6,190,928

92,616,727
14,851,333
11,857,366
78,006,029
52,944

60,400,132
10,358,377
10,225,457
62,052,668
52,884

9,238,545
9,418,186

3,436,299
25,067,445

7,187,644

6,190,928

10,464,892

23,096,751

Financial Liabilities
Classiϐication
Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
Conditional Grants from
Government
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other Conditional Receipts
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Bank Overdraft
Bank Overdraft
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current Portion of Long-term
Liabilities
Annuity Loans
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Summary of ϐinancial liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans
Long-term Liabilities
Finance Lease Liabilities
Consumer Deposits
Electricity and Water
Creditors
Trade Creditors
Creditors
Other Creditors
Unspent Conditional Grants
and Receipts
Conditional Grants from Government
Bank Overdraft
Bank Overdraft
Current Portion of Long-term
Liabilities
Annuity Loans
Creditors

Payments received in Advance

Creditors

Staﬀ Bonuses

6,770,637

5,884,932

Creditors

Accrued leave

17,695,200

15,178,267

Creditors

Finance Lease Liabilities

10,709,785

4,146,513

268,869,285

226,090,654

Total Financial Liabilities
Finance Lease payments in default:

A number of payments on some of the Municipality’s existing Finance Lease contracts were not made
during the current and prior inancial years. The non-payment of these amounts stems from a contractual dispute between the Municipality and some of its service providers, which was not yet resolved as
at the reporting date.

146

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

48.2 Fair Value
The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are determined as follows:
•

the fair value of inancial assets and liabilities were determined after considering the standard
terms and conditions of agreements entered into between the municipality and other parties as
well as the current payment ratio’s of the municipality’s debtors.

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements approximate their
fair values.
The fair value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities were determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into between the municipality and other parties as
well as the current payment ratio’s of the municipality’s debtors.
30 June 2011
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
R
R

30 June 2010
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
R
R

Held to maturity:

69,971,011

69,971,011

51,207,808

51,207,808

Call Deposits

67,673,203

67,673,203

48,910,000

48,910,000

2,297,808

2,297,808

2,297,808

2,297,808

Loans and Receivables

267,969,166

267,969,166

269,061,597

269,061,597

Consumer Debtors

252,239,648

252,239,648

253,140,176

253,140,176

15,639,176

15,639,176

15,836,817

15,836,817

90,342

90,342

84,604

84,604

-

-

-

-

Available for Sale

31,657

31,657

30,927

30,927

Bank Balances and Cash

31,657

31,657

30,927

30,927

337,971,834

337,971,834

320,300,332

320,300,332

Designated as FVTPL:

243,308,167

243,308,167

211,585,764

211,585,764

Unsecured Bank Facilities:

102,034,913

102,034,913

85,467,577

85,467,577

- Annuity Loans

92,616,727

92,616,727

60,400,132

60,400,132

- Bank Overdraft

9,418,186

9,418,186

25,067,445

25,067,445

Trade and Other Payables:

141,273,254

141,273,254

126,118,186

126,118,186

- Consumer Deposits

11,857,366

11,857,366

10,225,457

10,225,457

112,989,700

112,989,700

106,265,502

106,265,502

- Unspent Conditional Grants

9,238,545

9,238,545

3,436,299

3,436,299

- Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities

7,187,644

7,187,644

6,190,928

6,190,928

243,308,167

243,308,167

211,585,764

211,585,764

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Notice Deposits

Other Debtors
Operating Lease Assets
Current Portion of Long-term Receivables

Total Financial Assets
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

- Creditors

Total Financial Liabilities

(25,561,117.68)
Total Financial Instruments
Unrecognised Gain / (Loss)

94,663,667

(14,504,890.20)
94,663,667

108,714,568

-

108,714,568
-

48.3 Capital Risk Management
The municipality manages its capital to ensure that the municipality will be able to continue as a going
concern while delivering sustainable services to consumers through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.
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The capital structure of the municipality consists of debt, which includes the Long-term Liabilities disclosed in Note 18, Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Equity, comprising Funds, Reserves and Accumulated Surplus as disclosed in Note 6 and the Statement of Changes in Net Assets.
2011

2010

R

R

Net Debt

243,308,167

211,585,764

Equity

835,632,534

808,754,422

29.12%

26.16%

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:

Net debt to equity ratio

Debt is de ined as Long- and Short-term Liabilities, as detailed in the notes.
Equity includes all Funds and Reserves of the municipality, disclosed as Net Assets in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
48.4 Financial Risk Management Objectives
The Directorate: Financial Services monitors and manages the inancial risks relating to the operations
through internal policies and procedures. These risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and procedures is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous
basis, and annually by external auditors. The municipality does not enter into or trade inancial instruments for speculative purposes.
Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential risk, reports periodically to the municipality’s audit committee, an independent body that monitors
the eﬀectiveness of the internal audit function.
48.5 Signiϐicant Accounting Policies
Details of the signi icant Accounting Policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect
of each class of Financial Asset, Financial Liability and Equity Instrument are disclosed in the Accounting Policies to the Annual Financial Statements.
48.6 Market Risk
The municipality’s activities expose it primarily to the inancial risks of changes in interest rates (see
Note 48.6 below). No formal policy exists to hedge volatilities in the interest rate market. There has
been no change to the municipality’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.
48.6.1 Foreign Currency Risk Management
The municipality’s activities do not expose it to the inancial risks of foreign currency and therefore has
no formal policy to hedge volatilities in exchange rate luctuations.
48.6.2 Interest Rate Risk Management
Interest Rate Risk is de ined as the risk that the fair value or future cash lows associated with a inancial instrument will luctuate in amount as a result of market interest changes.
Potential concentrations of interest rate risk consist mainly of ixed deposit investments, long-term
receivables, consumer debtors, other debtors, bank and cash balances.
The municipality limits its counterparty exposures from its money market investment operations by
only dealing with well-established inancial institutions of high credit standing. The credit exposure to
any single counterparty is managed by setting transaction/exposure limits, which are included in the
municipality’s Investment Policy.
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Consumer debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across diﬀerent industries and
geographical areas. Consumer debtors are presented net of a provision for impairment.
In the case of debtors whose accounts fall into arrears, it is endeavoured to collect such accounts by
“levying of penalty charges”, “demand for payment”, “restriction of services” and, as a last resort, “handed over for collection”, whichever procedure is applicable in terms of Council’s Credit Control and Debt
Collection Policy.
Long-term Receivables and Other Debtors are individually evaluated annually at Balance Sheet date for
impairment or discounting. A report on the various categories of debtors is drafted to substantiate such
evaluation and subsequent impairment/discounting, where applicable.
The municipality is exposed to interest rate risk as the municipality borrows funds at both ixed and
loating interest rates. The risk is managed by the municipality by maintaining an appropriate mix between ixed and loating rate borrowings.
The municipality’s exposures to interest rates on Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are detailed
in the Credit Risk Management section of this note.
Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis below was determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the reporting date. For variable rate long-term instruments, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the
instrument outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point
increase or decrease was used, which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS - INTEREST RATE
Eﬀect of a change in interest rate on interest bearing inancial assets and liabilities
2011
Financial Assets
Classiϐication
R
External investments:

2010
R

Call Deposits

Held to maturity

67,673,203

48,910,000

Notice Deposits

Held to maturity

2,297,808

2,297,808

Bank Balances

Available for Sale

31,657

30,927

70,002,668

51,238,735

4,801,581

3,984,460

7%

8%

Interest received
Interest Earned - External Investments
Interest rate

Effect of a change in interest rate on interest earned from external investments:
Eﬀect of change in interest rate

%

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

%

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

Rand value

6%

7%

4,101,554

3,472,073

8%

9%

5,501,608

4,496,847

Outstanding debtors:
Consumer Debtors

Loans and receivables

252,239,648

253,140,176

Other Debtors

Loans and receivables

15,639,176

15,836,817

Loans and receivables

-

-

267,878,824

268,976,993

Current portion
- Long-term Receivables
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Interest received

2011

2010

R

R

Interest Earned
- Outstanding Debtors
Interest rate

31,282,531

39,476,418

12%

15%

Effect of a change in interest rate on interest earned from outstanding debtors
Eﬀect of change in interest rate

%

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

%

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Financial Liabilities

Classiϐication

11%

14%

28,603,743

36,786,648

13%

16%

33,961,319

42,166,188

Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans

Not valued at FVTPL

92,616,727

60,400,132

Annuity Loans - current portion

Not valued at FVTPL

7,187,644

6,190,928

99,804,371

66,591,061

14,697,358

10,473,243

15%

16%

Interest paid
Long-term Liabilities
Interest rate

%

Effect of a change in interest rate on interest paid on long-term liabilities
Eﬀect of change in interest rate

%

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

%

Eﬀect of change in interest rate

Rand value

150

14%

15%

13,699,315

9,807,332

16%

17%

15,695,402

11,139,153
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10.00%
12.00%
12.00%

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

Loan No 101452 : DBSA
10.91%
Loan No 102855/1 : DBSA
12.61%
Loan No 102855/2 : DBSA
13.12%
Loan No 102855/3 : DBSA
6.75%
Loan No 102855/4 : DBSA
6.75%
Loan No 103958/2 : DBSA
12.445%
Loan No 6
: DBCM
11.25%
Loan No 7
: DBCM
11.25%
Loan No 8
: DBCM
11.25%
Loan No 9
: DBCM
11.25%
Loan No 10
: DBCM
11.25%
Total Fixed Rate Instruments
VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS
Short-term Investment Deposits
Bank Balances and Cash
Housing gurantees
Total Variable Rate Instruments

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS
Bank Facilities
Loan No 10112
: DBSA
Loan No 10113
: DBSA
Loan No 10616
: DBSA

Description

30 June 2011

69,971,011
31,657
27,900
70,030,568

10,750,821
17,508,642
5,000,641
4,286,609
3,995,596
34,808,419
14,865
17,291
32,630
4,875
4,115
99,804,370

99,804,370
9,966,739
9,462,593
3,950,534

R

Total

31,657

31,657

14,865

14,865

14,865

R

6 Months
or less

69,971,011

69,971,011

17,291

17,291

17,291

R

6 - 12
Months

-

37,505

32,630
4,875

37,505

R

1-2
Years

-

4,115
28,429,684

3,995,596

5,000,641

28,429,684
9,966,739
9,462,593

R

2-5
Years

27,900
27,900

71,305,025

34,808,419

4,286,609

10,750,821
17,508,642

3,950,534

71,305,025

R

More than
5 Years

In accordance with IAS 32.67(a) and (b) the following tables indicate the average eﬀective interest rates of Income-earning Financial Assets
and Interest-bearing Financial Liabilities at the reporting date and the periods in which they mature or, if earlier, reprice:

48.7 Effective Interest Rates and Repricing Analysis
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10.91%
12.61%
13.12%
6.75%
6.75%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%

10.00%
12.00%
12.00%

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

51,207,808
30,927
230,600
51,469,335

11,490,516
15,821,851
5,774,831
2,880,248
3,403,515
11,472
666
42,264
32,791
51,589
6,939
5,471
66,591,061

30,927

30,927

11,472

11,472

11,472

R

R

66,591,061
11,908,635
10,779,936
4,380,336

6 Months
or less

Total

666

666

666

51,207,808

51,207,808

R

6 - 12
Months

-

75,055

42,264
32,791

75,055

R

1-2
Years

-

.
51,589
6,939
5,471
11,972,634

11,972,634
11,908,635

R

2-5
Years

230,600
230,600

54,531,233

11,490,516
15,821,851
5,774,831
2,880,248
3,403,515

10,779,936
4,380,336

54,531,233

R

More than
5 Years

The municipality is not exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments as the municipality does not trade these investments.

48.8 Other Price Risks

Loan No 101452 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/1 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/2 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/3 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/4 : DBSA
Loan No 4
: DBCM
Loan No 5
: DBCM
Loan No 6
: DBCM
Loan No 7
: DBCM
Loan No 8
: DBCM
Loan No 9
: DBCM
Loan No 10
: DBCM
Total Fixed Rate Instruments
VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS
Short-term Investment Deposits
Bank Balances and Cash
Housing gurantees
Total Variable Rate Instruments

FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS
Bank Facilities
Loan No 10112
: DBSA
Loan No 10113
: DBSA
Loan No 10616
: DBSA

Description

30 June 2010
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Non-interest Bearing
- Consumer Deposits
- Creditors
- Unspent Conditional Grants
Variable Interest Rate Instruments
- Bank Overdraft
Fixed Interest Rate Instruments
Loan No 10112
: DBSA
Loan No 10113
: DBSA
Loan No 10616
: DBSA
Loan No 101452 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/1 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/2 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/3 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/4 : DBSA
Loan No 103958/2 : DBSA
Loan No 6
: DBCM
Loan No 7
: DBCM
Loan No 8
: DBCM
Loan No 9
: DBCM
Loan No 10
: DBCM
Finance Lease Liabilities
Total

Description

30 June 2011

10.00%
12.00%
12.00%
10.91%
12.61%
13.12%
6.75%
6.75%
12.45%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

131,704,815

1,543,007
1,286,590
471,574
987,050
1,252,446
753,827
256,712
522,400
2,183,756
15,702
9,383
12,122
1,394
967

9,418,186

9,418,186
12,344,053
12,865,902
5,658,888
16,779,847
43,835,602
6,784,439
6,417,811
4,701,598
95,907,631
15,702
18,763
36,368
5,579
4,835
20,624,450
369,505,265

112,989,700

R

R
11,857,366
112,989,700
9,238,545

6 Months
or less

Total

9,380
12,122
1,394
967
15,729,963
34,249,733

1,543,007
1,286,590
471,574
987,050
1,252,446
753,827
256,712
522,400
2,183,756

9,238,545

R

6 - 12
Months

18,981,960

12,124
2,791
1,934

3,086,013
2,573,180
943,148
1,974,100
2,504,892
1,507,653
513,425
1,044,800
4,817,901

R

1-2
Years

966
4,894,487
57,428,548

6,172,026
7,719,541
2,829,444
5,922,299
7,514,675
3,769,133
1,540,275
2,611,999
14,453,703

R

2-5
Years

127,140,208

72,268,514

3,850,687

943,148
6,909,349
31,311,144

11,857,366

R

More than
5 Years

The following tables detail the municipality’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative inancial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash lows of inancial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the municipality can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash lows.

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Council. The municipality manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash lows. Included in the note is
a listing of additional undrawn facilities that the municipality has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk (cash).

48.9 Liquidity Risk Management
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Non-interest Bearing
- Consumer Deposits
- Creditors
- Unspent Conditional Grants
Variable Interest Rate Instruments
- Bank Overdraft
Fixed Interest Rate Instruments
Loan No 10112
: DBSA
Loan No 10113
: DBSA
Loan No 10616
: DBSA
Loan No 101452 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/1 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/2 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/3 : DBSA
Loan No 102855/4 : DBSA
Loan No 4
: DBCM
Loan No 5
: DBCM
Loan No 6
: DBCM
Loan No 7
: DBCM
Loan No 8
: DBCM
Loan No 9
: DBCM
Loan No 10
: DBCM
Finance Lease Liabilities
Total

Description

30 June 2010

10.00%
12.00%
12.00%
10.91%
12.61%
13.12%
6.75%
6.75%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

137,083,087

375,658
12,118
362
15,702
9,383
12,122
1,394
967

753,827

1,686,506
1,390,120
504,931
987,050

25,067,445

25,067,445
20,621,464
17,595,911
7,474,452
18,730,565
14,190,958
9,633,514
4,271,371
4,130,347
12,118
724
62,807
56,289
60,613
8,368
6,770
17,127,460
258,978,432

106,265,502

R

R
10,225,457
106,265,502
3,436,299

6 Months
or less

Total

362
15,702
9,383
12,122
1,394
967
8,183,356
17,916,154

1,686,506
1,390,120
504,931
987,050
394,193
753,827
164,284
375,658

3,436,299

R

6 - 12
Months

12,592,270

31,403
18,762
24,244
2,789
1,934

3,373,012
2,780,239
1,009,863
1,974,100
788,387
1,507,653
328,567
751,317

R

1-2
Years

18,762
12,124
2,791
2,902
8,944,104
46,520,096

10,119,037
8,340,718
3,029,589
5,922,299
2,365,160
4,522,960
985,701
2,253,951

R

2-5
Years

44,866,826

3,756,403
3,694,714
2,425,137
8,860,067
10,643,219
2,095,248
2,792,820
373,762

10,225,457

R

More than
5 Years

48.10 Credit Risk Management
Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
inancial loss to the municipality.
Potential concentrations of credit rate risk consist mainly of variable rate deposit investments, longterm receivables, consumer debtors, other debtors, bank and cash balances.
The municipality limits its counterparty exposures from its investment operations ( inancial assets
that are neither past due nor impaired) by only dealing with well-established inancial institutions of
high credit standing. The credit exposure to any single counterparty is managed by setting transaction/
exposure limits, which are included in the municipality’s Investment Policy.
Trade Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries in the geographical area of the municipality. Periodic credit evaluation is performed on the inancial condition of
accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee is increased accordingly.
Consumer Debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across diﬀerent industries
and geographical areas within the jurisdiction of the municipality. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the inancial condition of these debtors. Consumer debtors are presented net of a provision
for impairment. In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, it is endeavoured to collect
such accounts by “levying of penalty charges”, “demand for payment”, “restriction of services” and, as a
last resort, “handed over for collection”, whichever procedure is applicable in terms of Council’s Credit
Control and Debt Collection Policy.
Long-term Receivables and Other Debtors are evaluated annually at balance sheet date for impairment.
The municipality does not have any signi icant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The municipality de ines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.
The table below shows the balance of the ive major counterparties at the balance sheet date. Management is of the opinion that, although these parties are the ive counterparties with highest outstanding
balances, no signi icant credit risk exposure exists.
30 June 2011
Carrying
Amount
R

30 June 2010
Carrying
Amount
R

Call Investment Deposits

69,971,011

51,207,808

Department of Public Works

25,995,362

5,311,505

Department of Housing and Local Government

16,629,564

15,357,717

7,606,307

7,035,527

11,483,809

10,381,154

Counterparty and Location

Department of Transport
National Road Agency

Except as detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of inancial assets recorded in the Annual Financial Statements, which is net of impairment losses, represents the municipality’s maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained:
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2011

2010

R

R

The maximum credit and interest risk exposure in respect of the
relevant inancial instruments is as follows:
Fixed Deposit Investments

69,971,011

51,207,808

Finance Lease Receivables

926,636

1,197,776

Consumer Debtors

145,028,013

149,601,321

Other Debtors

122,850,811

119,375,672

Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents

31,657

30,927

Operating Lease Assets

90,342

84,604

Housing Guarantees

27,900

230,600

338,926,370

321,728,708

Maximum Credit and Interest Risk Exposure

49. Multi-employer retirement beneϐit information
All participating councillors belong to the Pension Fund for Municipal Councillors.
Employees belong to a variety of approved Pension and Provident Funds as described below.
These schemes are subject to either a tri-annual, bi-annual or annual actuarial valuation, details which
are provided below.
The Municipal Councillors Fund and the Cape Retirement Fund are de ined contribution plans, whereas
the other funds are de ined bene it plans. All of these afore-mentioned funds are multi-employer plans.
Suf icient information is not available to use de ined bene it accounting for the pension and retirement
funds, due to the following reasons:
(i)

The assets of each fund are held in one portfolio and are not notionally allocated to each of the
participating employers.

(ii) One set of inancial statements are compiled for each fund and inancial statements are not drafted
for each participating employer.
(iii) The same rate of contribution applies to all participating employers and no regard is paid to diﬀerences in the membership distribution of the participating employers.
It is therefore seen that each fund operates as a single entity and is not divided into sub-funds for each
participating employer.
The only obligation of the municipality with respect to the retirement bene it plans is to make the
speci ied contributions. Where councillors/employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the municipality are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.
The total expense recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance represents contributions
payable to these plans by the municipality at rates speci ied in the rules of the plans.
These following contributions have been expensed:

32,157,708

27,033,124

The Retirement Funds have been valued by making use of the Discounted Cash Flow method of valuation.
None of the below mentioned Funds are State Plans.
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Municipal Councillors Pension Fund:
The actuarial valuator of the Pension Fund for councillors stated that the fund is in a sound inancial
position as at 30 June 2010.
The Municipal Councillors Pension Fund operates as a de ined contribution scheme. The contribution
rate paid by the members (13.75%) and Council (15%) is suf icient to fund the bene its accruing from
the fund in the future.
Cape Joint Pension Fund:
The scheme is subject to a bi-annual actuarial valuation. The last statutory valuation was performed as
at 30 June 2010 and has been valued by making use of the Discounted Cash Flow method of valuation.
The statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2010 revealed that the fund had a surplus of R0 (30
June 2009: R0), with a funding level of 100% (30 June 2009: 100%). The recommended total contribution rate of 32.06% of pensionable salaries exceeds the total current contribution of 27% of salaries.
This shortfall translates to about R9.8 million per year.
Cape Retirement Fund:
The valuator stated that Cape Retirement Fund is in a sound inancial condition as at 30 June 2010.
The Cape Retirement Fund operates as a de ined contribution scheme. The last actuarial valuation
performed for the year ended 30 June 2010 revealed that the fund has a funding level of 100.3% (30
June 2009 - 103.3%). The contribution rate paid by the members (9%) and Municipalities (18%) is suficient to fund the bene its accruing from the fund in the future.
SALA Pension Fund:
At the valuation date of 1 July 2010 the SALA pension fund was 96% (1 July 2009: 96%) funded. The
valuator indicated that although the fund was less than 100% funded at the valuation date, no additional action was required at that stage to rectify the situation. The valuator recommended that the
employers continue to contribute at the current rate.
Municipal Employees Pension Fund:
At the valuation date of 29 February 2008 the Municipal Employees Pension Fund was 108.2% (28
February 2005: 106.9%) funded. The valuator stated that the fund was in a sound position as at 29
February 2008, having suf icient assets to cover its obligations.
National Fund for Municipal Workers:
At the valuation date of 1 July 2008 the National Fund for Municipal Workers was 99.83% (1 July 2007:
100.26%) funded. The valuator stated that he was satis ied that the fund will continue to be able to
meet its liabilities.
South African Municipal Workers Union National Provident Fund:
The SAMWUN Provident Fund operates as a de ined contribution fund. At the last valuation date of
30 June 2005 the Fund was 100% funded. The valuator recommended that to retain a sound inancial
position, the members and employer continue to contribute at the current rate.
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50. Related party transactions
50.1 Interest of Related Parties
Councillors and/or management of the municipality have relationships with businesses as indicated
below:
Name of Related Person

Designation

Description of Related Party Relationship

Akharwaray, GH

Directorships - GHA Property Investment, Gulshin
Municipal Manager Properties, PARMTRO Investment, Swanvest 356,
Vecto Trade 465, Price Smart Technologies.

Mahloko, ZL

Acting CFO

50% interest in Intelligence Combinations Trading
CC.

Sebolecwe, KR

Acting Executive
Director: CS

Directorship & Partnerships – Clisa 22 CC
(Commercial).

Tyabashe-Kesiamang, N

Executive Director: JM & N Trading CC (member), Nqobile Planners &
Development Specialists T/a N12 CC (member).
SEDP

Setlogelo, S

Policy Manager

Seasons Find 45, Magogorwane Traders, Multi Shelf
Contractors, Iphitlhelo Trading CC.

Stols, MM

IDP Manager

Directorships & Partnerships - Leopont 553
Properties (Pty) Ltd.

Molepo, NP

Acting Manager:
Internal Audit

Directorship & Partnerships - Rebaummogo Bed &
Breakfast.

Matsie, S

Communication
Manager

Ukunzalwa Mining Trust, Sello Matsie Family Trust,
Silver Solutions 851 CC, Metswi Productions. BEE
partner in Balmoral Investments - 26%, Diney
Investments - 26% and Wheat ields Investments 168.

Chwarisang, M

Councillor

Directorship – Thara Shera & Imvusa Trading
Company (dormant).

Diraditsile, MV

Councillor

Directorship – Kutlwanong Civic Integrated Housing Trust; IMVume CC21 (Dormant); Sponsorships
& Grants – Pikwane Diamonds, Bafana Supporters
Sports Shirts.

Everyday, P

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships – Oliday Mining (not
yet operational).

Fourie, OC

Councillor

Shares – Rooiheuwels Sand (Bpk) Minerals;
Directorships & Partnerships – ERO Sales, Services
& Manufacturing CC (Engineering) (Dormant).

Leven, MM

Councillor

Shares – Linri SA (Pty) Ltd (Sole proprietor) (Dormant).

Louw, PJF

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships PM Family Trust,
Gentec, Wibec.

Mbasa, W

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships – Coalition Trading.

Nhlapo, MG

Councillor

Shares – 60% interest Gopelang Cleaning Service;
Directorships & Partnerships – Gopolang Cleaning
Service.

Sebolai, LM

Councillor

Directorships, Partnerships and shares – Mot Quick
Pulse.
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Tier, F

Councillor

Consultancies & retainerships - IDF, Sponsorships &
Grants - IDF.

Jacobs (Maphage), M

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships - Reatlegile Funeral
Burial Scheme.

Lewis, CB

Councillor

Shares - Anglo American, Directorships & Partnerships - CB Lewis Taxis.

Ludick, RA

Councillor

Shares - Bon-Appetite Caterers.

Mfulo, AT

Councillor

Shares - Sasol Inzako, Old Mutual, Directorships &
Partnerships - Diamond Ronen Promotions & Event
Management

Pienaar, D

Councillor

Shares - KDC Transport; Directorships & Partnerships - KDC Transport.

Pietersen, J

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships - Zintle’s Funeral Undertaking.

50.2 Services rendered to Related Parties
During the year the municipality rendered services to the following related parties that are related to
the municipality as indicated:
Rates
Charges
R

Service
Charges
R

Sundry
Charges
R

Outstanding
Balances
R

For the Year ended 30 June 2011
Councillors
Municipal Manager and
Section 57 Personnel
Total Services

134,338

442,680

-

338,444

57,064

450,160

-

8,924

191,402

892,840

-

347,368

103,882

540,410

-

104,509

55,846

150,067

-

4,529

159,728

690,477

-

109,038

For the Year ended 30 June 2010
Councillors
Municipal Manager and
Section 57 Personnel
Total Services

The services rendered to Related Parties are charged at approved tariﬀs that were advertised to the
public. No Bad Debts were written oﬀ or recognised in respect of amounts owed by Related Parties.
50.3 Loans granted to Related Parties
In terms of the MFMA, the municipality may not grant loans to its Councillors, Management, Staﬀ and
Public with eﬀect from 1 July 2004.
50.4 Compensation of Related Parties
Compensation of Key Management Personnel and Councillors is set out in Notes 29 and 30 respectively,
to the Annual Financial Statements.
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50.5 Purchases from Related Parties

2011

2010

R

R

The municipality bought goods from the following companies, which are considered to be Related Parties:
Name
Supplier

Related
Person

Municipal
Capacity

Purchases
for the year

Purchases
for the year

N B Mechanical Sales

S Barnes

Nursing Sister

3,727,521

6,416,394

S&R Enterprises

S Barnes

Nursing Sister

1,303,556

1,812,003

Irrigation Equipment

B Julius

Demand Manager

550,700

433,621

Land Irrigation Suppliers B Julius

Demand Manager

615,761

1,262,405

Benlin Computers

V Gous

IT

122,794

287,737

Qongo TG Trading

Mother

Nursing Sister

728,120

306,942

Naledi Chemicals

D De Haast

Department of Education

579,597

238,068

Mr I’s A1 Auto

C Jenneke

Financial Manager

2,780

-

Linri Enterprises

MM Leven

Councillor

169,467

57,684

7,800,297

10,814,854

Total Purchases

51. Contingent liabilities
51.1 Guarantees:
The municipality pledged the following amounts as guarantee for employees’ housing bonds:
27,900

230,600

The validity of these bonds in terms of the original conditions at which they were issued could not
be veri ied with the respective banks. The banks have misplaced the guarantee documents and have
exonerated the municipality from such liability. For instances where bank con irmation could not be
obtained, a possible liability exists.
51.2 Court Proceedings:
51.2.1 High Court matters

56,767,790

56,152,160

17,025,627

8,186,298

620,000

620,000

158,380

369,535

74,571,798

65,327,993

Various claims and litigation in process.
51.2.2 Litigation and claims in process
Various claims and litigation in process.
51.2.3 Labour matters (SALGBC)
A case of unfair promotion is referred to the Labour Court.
51.2.4 Magistrate court matters
Various cases involving Council.

All the above cases are being defended.

160

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

51.3 Other liabilities:
51.3.1 Various cases: SALGA relating to issues regarding Task’s implementation date and possible back pay.
51.3.2 Upgrade cases: Various claims between employees and Council is in process.

52. Contingent assets
The municipality was not engaged in any transaction or event during the year under review involving
Contingent Assets.

53. In-kind donations and assistance
The municipality received the following in-kind donations and assistance during the year under review:
(i)

A secondment of a inance expert and an engineer by the DBSA.

54. Comparison with the budget
The comparison of the municipality’s actual inancial performance with that budgeted, is set out in Annexures E (1) and E (2).

55. Private public partnerships
The municipality was not a party to any Private Public Partnerships during the 2010/2011 inancial
year.

56. Events after the reporting date
Management have not identi ied any matter or circumstance (adjusting or non-adjusting) since the
end of the inancial year, that has signi icantly aﬀected, or may signi icantly aﬀect, the operations, the
results of those operations, or the state of aﬀairs of the municipality in future inancial years.

57. Comparative ϐigures
The comparative igures were restated as a result of the eﬀect of Prior Period Errors (Note 39).

58. Standards and interpretations in issue not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of these Annual Financial Statements the municipality has not applied the
following GRAP standards that have been issued, but are not yet eﬀective:
GRAP 18 Segment Reporting - issued March 2005
GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets - issued March 2009
GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers) - issued February 2008
GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements - issued November 2007
GRAP 25 Employee Bene its - issued December 2009
GRAP 26 Impairment of Cash-generating Assets - issued March 2009
GRAP 103 Heritage Assets - issued July 2008
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments - October 2009
Application of all of the above GRAP standards will be eﬀective from a date to be announced by the
Minister of Finance. This date is not currently available.
Management has considered all the GRAP standards issued but not yet eﬀective and anticipates that
the adoption of these standards will not have a signi icant impact on the inancial position, inancial
performance or cash lows of the municipality.
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Various Finance Leases
TOTAL EXTERNAL LOANS

DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
Sub total DBCM
Total Annuity loans
LEASE LIABILITY

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
ANNUITY LOANS
DBSA Loan @ 10%
DBSA Loan @ 12%
DBSA Loan @ 12%
DBSA Loan @ 10.91%
DBSA Loan @ 12.61%
DBSA Loan @ 13.12%
DBSA Loan @ 6.75%
DBSA Loan @ 6.75%
DBSA Loan @ 12.445%
Sub total DBSA

EXTERNAL LOANS

4
5
6
7
8
9
10

10112
10113
10616
101452
102855/1
102855/2
102855/3
102855/4
103958/2

30-09-2010
31-03-2011
30-09-2011
31-03-2012
30-09-2012
31-03-2013
30-09-2013

30-06-2015
30-06-2016
30-06-2017
31-12-2019
31-12-2028
31-12-2015
31-12-2023
31-12-2015
30-06-2031

R

Loan Redeemable
Number
Date

10,358,377
76,949,438

11,472
666
42,264
32,791
51,589
6,939
5,471
151,192
66,591,061

66,439,869

11,908,635
10,779,936
4,380,336
11,490,516
15,821,851
5,774,831
2,880,248
3,403,516

R

Balance at
30/06/10
period

39,818,246

39,818,246

1,654,040
1,358,904
34,808,419
39,818,246

1,996,882

Received
during the
during the
period
R

(4,492,955)
2,111,980

11,472
666
27,398
15,500
18,959
2,064
1,356
77,415
6,604,936

6,527,520

1,941,896
1,317,344
429,802
739,695
310,091
774,190
247,680
766,824

R

Redeemed
written off

Sol Plaatje Municipality: Schedule of External Loans as at 30 June 2011
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14,851,333
114,655,704

14,865
17,291
32,630
4,875
4,115
73,777
99,804,371

9,966,739
9,462,593
3,950,534
10,750,821
17,508,642
5,000,641
4,286,609
3,995,596
34,808,419
99,730,594

Balance at
30/06/11

4,125,365
77,684,062

73,558,697

73,558,697

Carrying
Value of
Property,
Plant & Equip
R

-

-

Other Costs
in accordance
with the
MFMA
R

APPENDIX B

Sol Plaatje Municipality : Analysis of Property Plant and Equipment
As At 30 June 2011
Cost/Revaluation
Directorate

Infrastructure
Electricity
Roads
Sewerage
Street Lights
Storm Water
Landfill Site
Water
Community Assets
Community Buildings
Parks and Gardens
Recreational Facilities
Heritage Assets
Heritage Assets
Leased Assets
Various
Other Assets
Bins and Containers
Other Buildings
Emergency Equipment
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Kitchen Equipment
Laundry Equipment
Medical Equipment
Maintenance Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Office Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Software
Water Craft
Total

Opening
Balance

Work in
Progress
Additions

Additions

3,723,455
9,233,199
729,346
1,398,185

Accumulated Depreciation
Work in Progress (WIP)

Disposals

159,880,746
251,568,138
115,569,983
17,414,316
51,870,145
22,450,668
177,438,158
796,192,154

4,486,713
3,122,771
33,473,572

1,090,268
37,828
16,212,282

6,963,609
48,046,664

179,952,482
1,683,744
40,422,872
222,059,097

1,294,500
442,355
3,173,083
4,909,939

2,438,791
2,142,193
218,814
4,799,798

Opening
Balance

Commissioned

Closing
Balance

Closing
Balance

Opening
Balance

68,172,793
61,104,978
40,290,439
5,123,002
37,149,882
1,566,250
74,110,468
287,517,812

2,657,642
7,430,102
1,577,088
507,085
1,052,098
1,392,295
2,713,367
17,329,677

18,594,742
40,632
10,316,163
28,951,537

7,395,921
39,325
1,288,785
8,724,032

18,823,598
11,401,382
39,173,559

9,658,252
1,965,153

23,310,311
4,865,902
70,681,978

615,503

521,882

93,621

-

2,639,298
72,653,340

1,583,812
13,729,098

8,019,095
106,970,906

168,090,914
263,924,107
149,772,901
18,812,501
51,870,145
23,540,936
184,439,595
860,451,100

-

2,550,632
558,574
887,394
3,996,600

-

4,989,423
2,700,767
1,106,208
8,796,398

183,685,773
4,268,291
43,814,769
231,768,834

Additions

-

-

8,850,021
8,850,021

-

8,850,021
8,850,021

3,348,991
3,348,991

1,375,665
1,375,665

4,121
4,329
4,008
2,965,971
2,668,907
245,263
9,639
36,757
771,191
17,208,032
506,882
3,250
152,558
3,098
24,584,007
344,402,347

3,757
29,012
2,703
1,525,320
1,456,515
117,672
4,652
31,118
214,563
5,460,408
243,151
3,655

115,767,304

20,526
432,594
29,788
14,013,680
9,884,155
1,167,465
77,108
380,497
1,928,903
42,388,457
1,800,667
36,914
152,558
40,849
72,354,161
1,173,424,116

20,526
157,168
29,788
12,943,118
7,585,473
1,014,548
77,108
324,273
1,783,591
41,294,494
1,772,029
36,914
152,558
40,849
67,232,436
1,094,333,707

-

-

-

-

-

275,427
1,070,563
2,298,683
152,917
56,223
145,312
1,199,880
28,638

5,227,643
26,349,864

164

(105,917)

52,846,462

(105,917)
(105,917)

76,649,940

13,729,098
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1,442
9,093,969
36,523,343

165

Closing
Balance

Disposals

Carrying Value

-

70,830,436
68,535,080
41,867,527
5,630,087
38,201,980
2,958,545
76,823,835
304,847,489

97,260,478
195,389,027
107,905,375
13,182,414
13,668,165
20,582,391
107,615,760
555,603,611

-

25,990,663
79,957
11,604,949
37,675,568

157,695,111
4,188,334
32,209,821
194,093,265

-

-

4,724,656
4,724,656

4,125,365
4,125,365

7,879
33,342
6,711
4,491,291
4,125,422
362,935
14,291
67,875
985,754
22,609,951
750,033
6,905
152,558
4,540
33,619,487
380,867,201

12,647
399,253
23,077
9,522,389
5,758,733
804,530
62,817
312,621
943,149
19,778,506
1,050,634
30,009
36,309
38,734,674
792,556,915

-

(58,489)

(58,489)
(58,489)

APPENDIX C
Sol Plaatje Municipality: Segmental Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment
As at 30 June 2011

Cost
Directorate

Opening
Balance

Work in
Progress
Additions

Additions

Disposals

Accumulated Depreciation

Work in Progress (WIP)
Opening
Closing
Commissioned
Balance
Balance

Closing
Balance

Opening
Balance

Additions

Disposals

Closing
Balance

Carrying
Value

Executive and Council

427,764

105,764

533,528

110,581

11,560

122,141

411,386

Municipal General

897,910

395,767

1,293,677

292,096

26,571

318,667

975,010

Municipal Manager

1,586,956

36,294

1,623,250

526,685

2,978

529,663

1,093,587

Corporate Services

27,495,072

271,349

27,766,421

7,324,367

1,393,162

8,717,529

19,048,892

Community Services

133,739,251

2,889,268

141,428,317

26,062,925

9,611,178

35,674,103

105,754,214

Financial Services

17,944,713

1,947,842

19,892,555

4,752,399

1,332,093

6,084,492

13,808,063

Strategic and Economic Development

34,232,436

1,353,596

35,586,032

10,984,335

1,332,010

12,316,345

23,269,687

878,009,605

19,349,984

48,046,664

(105,917)

72,653,340

13,729,098

106,970,907

945,300,336

294,348,959

22,813,791

(58,489)

317,104,261

628,196,075

1,094,333,707

26,349,864

52,846,462

(105,917)

76,649,941

13,729,098 115,767,305

1,173,424,116

344,402,347

36,523,343

(58,489)

380,867,201

792,556,915

Infrastructure and Services
TOTAL

4,799,798

166

3,996,600

8,796,398
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APPENDIX D

Sol Plaatje Municipality: Segmental Statement of Financial Performance for the Year
Ended 30 June 2011
2010
Actual
Income
R

2010
Actual
Expenditure
R

2010
Surplus/
(Deficit)
R

2011
Actual
Income
R

Description

61,381

26,030,399

(25,969,018)

Executive and Council

239,628,672

155,192,987

84,435,685

Municipal General

1,328,016

8,478,630

(7,150,614)

2,094,919

30,549,677

19,740,517

34,633

2011
Actual
Expenditure
R

2011
Surplus/
(Deficit)
R

29,261,925 (29,227,292)

223,672,432

212,522,657

11,149,776

Municipal Manager

1,559,154

9,966,785

(8,407,630)

(28,454,758)

Corporate Services

2,552,879

35,355,014 (32,802,135)

95,074,478

(75,333,961)

Community Services

21,005,650

108,198,685 (87,193,035)

198,759,645

53,071,512

145,688,133

Financial Services

7,572,148

24,668,515

(17,096,367)

Strategic and Economic Development

504,781,869

530,903,060

(26,121,191)

Infrastructure and Services

973,967,166

923,969,257

49,997,908

(40,690,929)

40,690,929

973,967,166

883,278,328

219,531,226

Sub Total

155,933,132

6,178,654

25,698,816 (19,520,162)

582,389,911

592,474,728 (10,084,817)

1,056,924,539 1,077,076,703 (20,152,164)

Less Inter-Departmental Charges
90,688,837

63,598,095

Total

168

(47,030,276)

47,030,276

1,056,924,539 1,030,046,427

26,878,112
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2011
Actual
R

2011
Budget
R

REVENUE
Property Rates
209,350,661
208,319,706
Property rates - penalties imposed and
collection charges
Service Charges
571,405,692
582,599,961
Rental of Facilities and Equipment
12,740,245
13,289,282
Interest Earned - External Investments
4,801,581
6,000,000
Interest Earned - Outstanding Debtors
31,282,531
38,000,000
Fines
3,634,590
5,778,000
Licences and Permits
3,125,280
2,891,100
Income for Agency Services
3,488,878
2,600,000
Government Grants and Subsidies
190,806,628
228,709,070
Public Contributions and Donations
0
Other Income
26,288,454
29,914,837
Total Revenue
1,056,924,539 1,118,101,956
EXPENDITURE
Employee Related Costs
364,339,736
329,042,530
Remuneration of Councillors
13,330,953
14,612,146
Impairment Losses
97,383,130
95,000,000
Collection Costs
147,448
1,145,000
Depreciation
38,592,691
49,732,000
Repairs and Maintenance
51,065,386
56,678,260
Finance Costs
14,697,358
20,685,829
Bulk Purchases
234,314,846
241,000,000
Grants and Subsidies Paid
3,191,000
1,450,000
General Expenses - Other
212,983,878
209,084,191
Total Expenditure
1,030,046,427 1,018,429,956
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
26,878,112
99,672,000

Description

(14,194,269)
(549,037)
801,581
(3,717,469)
(2,143,410)
234,180
888,878
(24,636,804)
(3,626,383)
(49,980,779)
3,097,206
218,807
2,383,130
(997,552)
4,632,691
(6,717,874)
(1,988,471)
(4,685,154)
(3,794,313)
(7,851,529)
(42,129,250)

3,000,000
585,599,961
13,289,282
(2,000,000)
4,000,000
(3,000,000)
35,000,000
5,778,000
2,891,100
2,600,000
(13,265,638)
215,443,432
0
29,914,837
(11,196,638) 1,106,905,318
32,200,000
361,242,530
(1,500,000)
13,112,146
95,000,000
1,145,000
(15,772,000)
33,960,000
1,105,000
57,783,260
(4,000,000)
16,685,829
(2,000,000)
239,000,000
1,741,000
3,191,000
7,694,000
216,778,191
19,468,000 1,037,897,956
(30,664,638)
69,007,362

2011
Variance
R
(3,038,045)

2011
Final Budget
R
212,388,706

4,069,000

2011
Adjustment
R

1%
2%
3%
-87%
14%
-12%
-12%
-2%
0%
-2%
-1%
-61%

0
-2%
-4%
20%
-11%
-37%
8%
34%
-11%
0%
-12%
-5%

-1%

2011
Variance
R

Mainly due to the increase in the impairment of debtors,
general expenses and a decrease in income.

Non-qualifying asset expenditure transferred.

Due to provision health incurring acturial loss.
Implementing of new council and mayoral committee.
Impairment of debtors being increased.
Due to savings.
Due to error correction on asset register.
Qualifying asset expenditure transferred to capital.
Due to savings (loan phased in over three years).

Various miscellaneous income not realising.

Due to increase in transactions.
Various grants not realising.

Due to rentals and hire income not realizing.
Due to increase in investments.
Due to declining interest rate and indigents written off.
Due to fines not realising.

0%

Explanation of Significant Variances
greater than 10% versus Budget

Sol Plaatje Municipality: Actual Versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure) for the Year Ended 30 June 2011

APPENDIX E(1)

170

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

1,947,842
1,353,596
19,349,984 48,046,664 67,396,648 249,415,000 (160,328,137)

26,349,864 52,846,462 79,196,326 304,672,000 (185,202,971) 119,469,029 (40,272,703)

Strategic and Economic Development

Infrastructure and Services

TOTAL

-

1,353,596

1,947,842

7,689,066
26,900,000

1,990,000
(7,268,748)

-

25,530,000 (17,606,086)

-

(42,158)

(234,848)

(8,651)

(706)

89,086,863 (21,690,215)

19,631,252 (18,277,656)

1,990,000

7,923,914

280,000

37,000

(18,233)

Financial Services

4,799,798

280,000

-

414,000

2,889,268

271,349

37,000

-

Community Services

-

36,294

414,000

271,349

(236)

Corporate Services

-

395,767

106,000

R

2011
Variance

36,294

-

2011
Final
Budget
R

Municipal Manager

-

106,000

R

2011
Adjustment

395,767

105,764

2011
Original
Budget
R

Municipal General

-

2011
2011
Under
Total
Construction Additions
R
R

105,764

R

2011
Actual

Executive and Council

Description

Sol Plaatje Municipality:

-34%

-24%

-93%

-2%

-3%

-3%

0%

-4%

0%

Non qualifying assets expenditure transferred
to operational budget.

Various projects in the process of
construction being rolled over.

NDPG and GURP projects in the process of
being rolled over.

2011
Explanation of Significant Variances
Variance
greater than 5% versus Budget
%

Actual Versus Budget (Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment) for the Year Ended 30 June 2011

APPENDIX E(2)
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Provincial

Provincial

Provincial

National

National

National

National

National

National

National

Municipality

Provincial

Provincial

DBSA

Primary Health

Subsidy Resort

EPWP

Neighbourhood development

Equitable Share

Department Water Affairs

Financial Management Grant

MIG

MSIG

DOE

Frances Baard Municipality

GURP

Provincial projects

DBSA Grant

Total

Provincial

Library Services

Name of Grants

Name of
organ of
state or
municipal
entity

181,536,971

1,645,863

-

-

893,506

2,500,000

750,000

34,494,000

1,200,000

3,864,425

121,743,177

9,000,000

3,023,000

-

1,323,000

69,063,450

3,004,992

799,211

5,526,693

2,066,303

1,689,845

750,000

34,749,595

1,200,000

3,864,425

N/A

1,780,307

9,649,080

577,000

2,306,000

1,100,000

Total

Total
1,100,000

Total
Expenditure
for the Year

Total Receipts
for the Year

-

15,071,901

1,359,129

-

5,526,693

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,626,080

577,000

983,000

Total

Delay/
withheld

Grants and Subsidies received for the year ended 30 June 2011

Sol Plaatje Municipality

206,452,000

N/A

N/A

7,500,000

N/A

2,500,000

750,000

34,494,000

1,200,000

N/A

121,741,000

19,300,000

14,984,000

577,000

2,306,000

1,100,000

Total

Gazette amount
Municipal year

Late Payment. Revenue accrued.

None

No Payment. Revenue accrued.

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

No Payment. Revenue accrued.

Late Payment. Revenue accrued.

Late Payment. Revenue accrued.

None

Reason for delay/
withholding of funds

Disclosure of Grants and Subsidies in Terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act

APPENDIX F

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes / No

Did the
municipality
comply with
conditions in
terms of grant
framework in the
latest Division of
Revenue Act

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Reason for
noncompliance
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16/2010/11
17/2010/11
18/2010/11
19/2010/11
20/2010/11
21/2010/11
22/2010/11
23/2010/11

15/2010/11

1/2010/11
2/2010/11
3/2010/11
4/2010/11
5/2010/11
6/2010/11
7/2010/11
8/2010/11
9/2010/11
10/2010/11
11/2010/11
12/2010/11
13/2010/11
14/2010/11

DocNo.

Service Rendered / Product Purchased

Hiring of a private refuse compactor
Upgrading of Pescodia Swimming Pool
Hiring of private refuse compactor
Hiring of a free standing tent
T Shirts for Base Camp Uruguay (2010 W. Cup)
Staging of soccer clinics for 2010 Programmes
Youth Bash on June 16. 2010 Progress
Trial run of the Public Viewing Area
Staging of Public Viewing Events (2010 W. Cup)
Staging of Public Viewing Events (2010 W. Cup)
Repairs to front end loader
Install PVC curtains at Platfontein School
Repairs to landfill Compactor
Hiring of private refuse compactor
Refurbishment and Maintenance work at Beaconsfield Waste Water
Kwezi V3 Engineers
Treatment Work
C-Pac Pumps & Valves
Repair of Pump Station
Super Armature Winding
Repair of HL Pump
Mc Gregor Shop
Decoration of all Municipal buildings for the 2010
ICTV & Radio
Diski Truck was specially commissioned for Sol Plaatje staff soccer day
Aqua Transport and Plant Hire
Hiring of refuse compactor
Hi-Five Crystal Enterprises
Procuring clothing for the Sol Plaatje team SAMSRA GAMES 2010
Adreach-North Central Region T/A Pole Ad Hired for Marketing and branding
Big Sky Coaches Kimberley
Only company offering luxury coaches for the specified amount

Masingita Group
Toughflex Coatings (PTY) LTD
Masingita Group
Prigoso Enterprise
Poloko Trading 688 CC
Adistra 11 CC
Wydex
Kahlola Trading
Tsameka Entertainment
Tsameka Entertainment
Barloworld
Northern Cape Canvas and Nets
Bell Equipment
Aqua Transport and Plant Hire

Service Provider

For the year ended 30 June 2011

Sol Plaatje Municipality: Disclosures of Deviations from Procurement Policy

APPENDIX G

35,811
82,424
41,189
34,200
202,297
67,099
171,000
47,600

595,216

100,035
58,174
109,782
173,100
230,000
187,925
250,000
116,700
353,874
289,680
77,397
35,139
207,085
162,671

MG Usher
SH Coetzee
C Bosman
C Bosman
KD Williams
OG Manong
C Bosman
OG Manong

B Dhluwayo

KD Williams
F Calvert
KD Williams
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman
N Poolo
C Bosman
C Bosman
Y Snyders
MW Pretorius
Y Snyders
KD Williams

Financial
Line Manager
Implications

An Emergency
An Emergency Sole Provider
Sole Supplier
Sole Supplier Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider Exceptional cases
Sole Provider Exceptional cases
Sole Provider Exceptional cases

Exceptional cases

Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Sole Supplier
Sole Supplier
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Exceptional cases

Motivation
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Gariep Motors
CQS
Navil Hill Lodge

Authentix
Sight Lines Pipe Survey Services
Elster
Blue Print
(1) Navil Hill Lodge
(2) Mary Jay’s Place
(3) Shawu Lodge

40/2010/11
41/2010/11
42/2010/11

43/2010/11
44/2010/11
45/2010/11
46/2010/11

47/2010/11

Dawson Lemma arts and Crafts

Trek Scale Company

36/2010/11

39/2010/11

Aqua Transport and Plant Hire
Premier Auto
Force Eng / Mayibuye
ICTV& Radio
ICTV& Radio
ICTV& Radio
Walker Mare Quantity Surveyors
Bell Equipment
Orange Toyota

27/2010/11
28/2010/11
29/2010/11
30/2010/11
31/2010/11
32/2010/11
33/2010/11
34/2010/11
35/2010/11

Gariep Motors
C-Pac Pumps & Valves

Lincru Security Company

26/2010/11

37/2010/11
38/2010/11

Road Lodge Potchefstroom
C-Pac Pumps & Valves

Service Provider

24/2010/11
25/2010/11

DocNo.

Accommodation

Procuring a new product (detection marker)
Specialised equipment required
Replacement of multiplexer cards
Reprinting of Brochures and street maps

Only available accommodation to house the entire team
Repair and replace all stolen Electrical components at Camilla Pimp Station
Rendering Security Services during the staging of the PVA at Galeshewe
Stadium
Hiring of refuse compactor
Repair of refuse truck
Repair of samag vehicles
Hiring of diski dance truck
Hiring of diski dance truck
Hiring of diski dance truck
Acquiring the professional services of a quality serveying firm
Repair Bomag Landfill Compactor
Repairs to vehicle D908
Upgrade of Software to Comply with standards set by Road Traffic Act 93
of 1996
Remove and replace with shift controller on freightliner
Supply and install of Chemical dosing Equipment
Purchase the work of arts with faces of K Galeshewe and ST Plaatje on
animal skin
Emergency Repairs on vehicle (Fire)
Provide software to draft financial statements for 2011
Accommodation (Boarding and Lodging)

Service Rendered / Product Purchased

544,500

210,000
104,300
85,380
70,110

39,520
161,740
34,650

75,000

57,163
578,234

32,490

109,198
45,417
42,292
34,200
39,900
68,400
114,000
141,718
100,416

91,571

173,546
127,398

C Langford

JB Anthony
DH Leeuw
D Mooketsi
N Poolo

N Sephiri
R Booysen
C Langford

GH Akharwaray

MW Pretorius
M Mazzoncino

MG Alfonse

KD Williams
Y Snyders
K Williams
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman
S Mathebula
K Williams
Y Snyders

C Bosman

OG Manong
D H Leeuw

Financial
Line Manager
Implications

Exceptional cases

Sole Provider
An Emergency
Sole Provider
Sole Provider

An Emergency Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Exceptional cases

Work of Art or historical object

An Emergency Sole Provider
Exceptional cases

Sole Provider

An Emergency Exceptional cases
An Emergency Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Exceptional cases Sole Provider
Exceptional cases Sole Provider
Sole Provider Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Sole Provider

Sole Provider Exceptional cases

Sole Provider Exceptional cases
An Emergency

Motivation
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68/2010/11
69/2010/11
70/2010/11

67/2010/11

51/2010/11
52/2010/11
53/2010/11
54/2010/11
55/2010/11
56/2010/11
57/2010/11
58/2010/11
59/2010/11
60/2010/11
61/2010/11
62/2010/11
63/2010/11
64/2010/11
65/2010/11
66/2010/11

50/2010/11

49/2010/11

48/2010/11

DocNo.

(1) Golden Rewards t/a Gosiame
(R515 900)
Hiring of toilets (R42 500)
(2) SJC Glass Work (R22 640)
(3) Big Five Construction of Shanties
(R768 075)
Marvin Marketing
(1) Lecflo (R62 997.54)
(2) C-Pac (R127 805.40)
Lexis Nexis
Aqua Agri Solution
Lexis Nexis
Kimberley Electroplating and Engineering
Parsons Home Appliances CC
Golden Rewards t/a Gosiame Construction
Mpho Catering and Hiring Services
Golden Rewards t/a Gosiame Construction
Letlhabile Coaches
Golden Rewards t/a Gosiame Construction
Linsumi Investments (PTY) LTD
Highbury Safika Media (PTY) LTD
E. Hassen & Sons Trading CC
Trellidor T/A K & M Marketing Enterprises
Mpho,s Catering and Hiring Services
Bentley Systems SA (PTY) LTD
Hendri Badenhorst Eiendomwaardeerders
en Ass.
Cinogen Trading cc
Business Connexion
Ronre Electrical Enterprises CC

Service Provider

Procurement of new testing equipment
Migration of Venus and Cashdrawer to new servers as Virtual Machines
Repair injection Equipment master controller PC cards

Procure the services of a professional Valuer

Road Traffic / Transport ACT 93 Of 1996:Issue 28 Delivery & Handling
Urgent purchase of chemicals from supplier in Bloemfontein
Road Traffic / Transport ACT 93 Of 1996:Issue 27 Delivery & Handling
Refurbishment of the tram
Purchase of furniture for MAYCO Members
Catering Flood Disaster
Catering Flood Disaster
Catering Flood Disaster
Transport for sport team
Catering Flood Disaster
Hiring of Toilets Flood Disaster
The annual advert for the Indaba Issue
New Furniture for Council Chamber
Machine room doors (Galeshewe, Ritchie and main Station)
Catering commemoration service (Soul Spoort)
Purchasing of the Microstation CAD Program

Repair Flight Pump Model PC 7050 75 KW 380V

Urgent purchase of chemicals .

Disaster relief programme

Service Rendered / Product Purchased

208,000
307,507
189,202

199,044

46,461
263,397
43,588
167,000
210,000
539,000
156,500
367,500
32,650
539,000
97,500
79,800
46,700
66,900
120,000
42,850

190,803

107,730

1,349,115

MG Alfonse
H Niemann
D Mooketsi

EM Baise

CFM Langford
B Dhluwayo
CFM Langford
N Poolo
G Lesenyo
N Moatswi
N Moatswi
N Moatswi
OG Manong
N Moatswi
N Moatswi
N Poolo
L Fouche
MW Pretorius
N Moatswi
MEL Myburgh

B Dhluwayo

B Dhluwayo

N Moatswi

Financial
Line Manager
Implications

Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
An Emergency Sole Provider

Exceptional cases

Sole Provider
An Emergency Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
An Emergency
Exceptional cases
An Emergency
Exceptional cases
An Emergency
An Emergency
Sole Provider
Sole Provider Exceptional cases
An Emergency Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider

An Emergency

An Emergency Exceptional case

An Emergency

Motivation
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Service Provider

Golden Rewards T/A Gosiame Construction
Golden Rewards T/A Gosiame Construction
Retlaikemela Trading CC
Nkgabise Construction
Tshireletso Trading CC
Freshmark Systems
Lexis Nexis
Linri Enterprises CC
Linsumi Investment (PTY) LTD
Mario’s Restaurant
Golden Rewards T/A Gosiame Construction
Golden Rewards T/A Gosiame Construction
MC Suppliers
Linsumi Investment (PTY) LTD

DocNo.

71/2010/11
72/2010/11
73/2010/11
74/2010/11
75/2010/11
76/2010/11
77/2010/11
78/2010/11
79/2010/11
80/2010/11
81/2010/11
82/2010/11
83/2010/11
84/2010/11

Catering Flood Relief
Catering Flood Relief
Repair of water pipes and leaks
Repair of water pipes and leaks
Repair of water pipes and leaks
Upgrade Freshmark system
Road Traffic /Transport Act 93 of 1996, amendment nr.30
Printing of 300 colour copies of annual report 2009/2010 period
Hiring of Toilets Flood Relief
Catering for new Councillors
Catering Flood Relief
Catering Flood Relief
Patching of Potholes
Patching of Potholes

Service Rendered / Product Purchased
367,500
367,500
39,800
68,799
83,328
377,800
31,458
108,027
97,500
36,007
367,500
236,250
859,085
391,126

N Moatswi
N Moatswi
B Dhluwayo
B Dhluwayo
B Dhluwayo
Kelvin Smith
CFM Langford
B Vermeulen
N Moatswi
Kerileng
N Moatswi
N Moatswi
T Raseobi
T Raseobi

Financial
Line Manager
Implications
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
An Emergency
Sole Provider
An Emergency
An Emergency
An Emergency
An Emergency

Motivation

4.8 REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE NORTHERN
CAPE PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE AND THE COUNCIL
ON THE SOL PLAATJE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
Introduction
I have audited the accompanying inancial statements of the Sol Plaatje Local Municipality, which comprise the statement of inancial position as at 30 June 2011, and the statement of inancial performance, statement of changes in net
assets and cash low statement for the year then ended, and a summary of signi icant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, as set out on pages 73 to 76.

Accounting ofϐicer’s responsibility for the ϐinancial statements
The accounting of icer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the inancial statements in accordance
with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP), the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and Division of
Revenue Act of South Africa, 2010 (Act No. 1 of 2010, as amended) (DoRA), and for such internal control as management determines necessary to enable the preparation of inancial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) and section
4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on
the inancial statements based on my audit.
I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued
in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the inancial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the inancial
statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the inancial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the eﬀectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the inancial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suf icient and appropriate to provide a basis for my quali ied audit
opinion.

Basis for qualiϐied opinion
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment amounting to R792,556,915 (2010: R749,931,361) was disclosed in note 9 to the inancial statements.
I was unable to obtain suf icient appropriate audit evidence to conclude on the completeness and existence of property,
plant and equipment, due to the following:
Property, plant and equipment amounting to R45,140,946 could not be veri ied due to incorrect or inaccurate locations
included in the asset register.
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Physically identi ied infrastructure assets, community assets and other assets could not be traced to the asset register.
Property, plant and equipment amounting to R926,211 was incorrectly included as repairs and maintenance instead of
being capitalised as property, plant and equipment.
Alternative procedures were attempted, including the utilisation of global positioning system locations and computerassisted techniques, to search for the items causing the diﬀerences. However, the entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures regarding the existence and completeness of property, plant and equipment.
The SA Standards of GRAP, GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment states that subsequent to initial recognition at cost,
an item of property, plant and equipment should be carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, or at a revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation and accumulated depreciation as disclosed in note 9 to the inancial statements were calculated:
•
•
•
•
•
•

using incorrect useful lives
using incorrect depreciation percentages
using inaccurate purchase dates
not taking residual values into account
work in progress assets commissioned during the year not yet fully componentised
depreciation calculated on land when in accordance with the accounting policy land is not depreciated.

This resulted in depreciation amounting to R38,592,691 disclosed in the statement of inancial performance being
overstated by R9,685,553, accumulated depreciation amounting to R380,867,201 being overstated by R64,184,481,
and accumulated surplus amounting to R835,632,534 being understated by R54,498,908.
Investment property
Investment property amounting to R115,349,700 (2010: R116,116,467) was disclosed in note 11 to the inancial statements. The completeness of investment property could not be con irmed due to the investment property register not
including all items identi ied as investment property. The entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative
audit procedures regarding the completeness of amounts disclosed as investment property. Consequently, I did not
obtain all the information and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as to the completeness of investment property.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets amounting to R2,485,582 (2010: R3,425,875) were disclosed in note 10 to the inancial statements.
The completeness of intangible assets could not be con irmed due to the intangible asset register not including all
software and computer programs. The entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures
regarding the completeness of amounts disclosed as intangible assets. Consequently, I did not obtain all the information
and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as to the completeness of intangible assets.
Receivables
Trade receivables from exchange and non-exchange transactions amounting to R267,878,824 (2010: R268,976,993)
were disclosed in notes 4 and 5 to the inancial statements. The existence and valuation of receivables amounting to
R131,855,166 (2010: R34,554,473) could not be con irmed, as suf icient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained. Alternative procedures could not be performed due to the lack of available documentation.
Paragraph 69 of SA Standards of GRAP 1 Presentation of Financial Statements states that the standard uses the term
non-current assets to include tangible, intangible and inancial assets of a long-term nature. Receivables as disclosed in
the statement of inancial position were overstated by R7,559,787 and long-term receivables understated by the same
amount, due to receivables that were of a long-term nature being classi ied as current assets.
Paragraph 4.2.7 of the municipal indigent management policy states that debt write-oﬀ for indigent households should
occur every two years, subject to the re-veri ication of the indigent status. Consumer debtors as disclosed in the statement
of inancial position were understated by R24,346,564 and the bad debt write-oﬀ as disclosed in the statement of inancial
performance was overstated by the same amount, as the status of indigents was not veri ied before the write-oﬀ.
Revenue
The completeness of conventional metered water and electricity revenue amounting to R381,771,218 (2010:
R304,172,557) included in service charges amounting to R571,405,692 (2010: R471,453,386), as disclosed in note
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24 to the inancial statements, could not be con irmed. Suf icient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained, as
meters identi ied for the current and prior year during the physical veri ication of water and electricity meters were
not included in the meter reading listings. The readings on these meters had not been recorded, indicating a potentially
material understatement of revenue. Alternative procedures could not be performed due to the lack of documented
evidence regarding the reading of these meters.
Irregular expenditure
The completeness of irregular expenditure of R40,480,889 (2010: R102,005,664) as disclosed in note 45 to the inancial statements could not be con irmed, as suf icient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained to con irm that
the municipality had adhered to proper supply chain management (SCM) processes. The weaknesses in the system over
document control did not permit the application of alternative procedures.
Expenditure
The occurrence and accuracy of expenditure amounting to R8,878,380 (2010: R1,418,284) included in general expenditure amounting to R212,983,878 (2010: R175,944,576), as disclosed in note 36 to the inancial statements, could
not be con irmed, as it was not supported by suf icient appropriate audit evidence. No alternative procedures could be
considered in the absence of supporting documentation.
Qualiϐied opinion
In my opinion, except for the possible eﬀects of the matters described in the basis for quali ied opinion paragraphs, the
inancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the inancial position of the Sol Plaatje Local Municipality as
at 30 June 2011, and its inancial performance and cash lows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards
of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and DoRA.
Emphasis of matters
I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modi ied in respect of these matters:
Signi icant uncertainties
With reference to note 51.2 to the inancial statements, the municipality is the defendant or the claimant in several
lawsuits. The ultimate outcome of the matters cannot presently be determined, and no provision for any liability that
may result has been made in the inancial statements.
Restatement of corresponding ϐigures
As disclosed in note 39 to the inancial statements, the corresponding igures for 30 June 2010 have been restated as a
result of errors discovered during 2010/2011 in the inancial statements of the Sol Plaatje Municipality at, and for the
year ended, 30 June 2010.
Material losses and impairments
A signi icant provision for the impairment of receivables was created, which constituted 49,19% (R258,924,531) of the
total trade receivable balance (R526,378,019).
As disclosed in note 4.3 to the inancial statements, the municipality wrote oﬀ bad debts amounting to R246,368,291
during the year, mainly consisting of indigent debtors. The write-oﬀ of the debtors was mainly due to the municipality
not implementing its credit control policy related to indigent usage in excess of subsidised amounts. No measures were
implemented to limit consumption by indigents in excess of their subsidised amounts.
The municipality suﬀered a signi icant water loss during the year under review of 17,54% (2010: 15,38%), with an
estimated value of R23,279,988 (2010: R10,126,587).
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15
December 2010, I include below my indings on the annual performance report as set out on pages 18 to 29 and material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the municipality.

Predetermined objectives
Usefulness of information
The following criterion is relevant to the indings below:
Measurability: Indicators are well de ined and veri iable, and targets are speci ic, measurable and time bound.
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Audit ϐindings
Planned and reported targets were not time bound (measurability).
For the selected programme (basic service delivery), 14% of the planned and reported targets were not time bound in
identifying the nature and the required level of performance.
Reliability of information
The following criteria are relevant to the indings below:
Validity: Actual reported performance has occurred and pertains to the entity.
Accuracy: Amounts, numbers and other data relating to reported actual performance have been recorded and reported
appropriately.
Audit ϐindings
Reported performance against targets was not valid and accurate when compared to source information (reliability).
The following material reported target was recalculated and did not agree to the information disclosed in the annual
performance report:
Target

Reported in performance report

Recalculated

Electricity connection

336 houses

294 houses

For the selected programme (basic service delivery), 29% of the reported targets were not valid and accurate based on
the source information or evidence provided.
The validity and accuracy of the reported performance against targets could not be con irmed as no supporting source
information was provided (reliability).
For the selected programme (basic service delivery), the accuracy of 10% of the reported targets could not be established, as suf icient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided.

Compliance with laws and regulations
Strategic planning and performance management
Contrary to the requirement of section 41 of the MSA, the system applied by the municipality was not devised in such a
way that it could serve as an early warning indicator of underperformance.
The key performance indicators did not include all general key performance indicators as set out by Northern Cape’s Provincial
Growth and Development Strategy for 2014, applicable to the municipality, as prescribed in terms of section 43(1) of the MSA.

Budgets
The municipality incurred expenditure in excess of the limits of the amounts provided for in the votes in the approved
budget, in contravention of section 15 of the MFMA.
Annual ϐinancial statements, performance report and annual report
The inancial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. Material misstatements in current assets, liabilities, revenue, expenditure and
disclosure items identi ied by the auditors were subsequently corrected, but the uncorrected material misstatements
resulted in the inancial statements receiving a quali ied audit opinion.
The municipal Council did not adopt an oversight report containing the Council’s comments on the annual report within two months from the date on which the 2009/2010 annual report was tabled in the Council, as required by section
129(1) of the MFMA.

Human resource management
Some employees earned overtime in excess of 30% of their monthly compensation, contrary to section 10(1) of the
Basic Conditions of Employment Act of South Africa, 1997 (Act No. 75 of 1997).
Contrary to the Income Tax Act of South Africa, 1994 (Act No. 164 of 1994), no employee tax was deducted on ex gratia
payments to employees.
The Councillor remuneration paid was in excess of the amount gazetted, contrary to section 167 of the MFMA.
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Procurement management
The accounting of icer did not take all reasonable steps to ensure that the municipality had and maintained a management, accounting and information system that recognised expenditure when it was incurred, as required by section
65(2)(b) of the MFMA.
Suf icient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that invitations for competitive bidding had been advertised for the required minimum period, as per SCM Regulation 22(1) and 22(2).
The performance of contractors and providers was not monitored on a monthly basis, as required by section 116(2)(b)
of the MFMA.
The contract performance measures and the methods whereby they were monitored were insuf icient to ensure eﬀective contract management, as per the requirements of section 116(2)(c) of the MFMA.
Five service providers failed to declare if they were in the service of the state, as required by SCM Regulation 13(c).
Awards were made to these providers, who were persons in the service of other state institutions, in contravention of
the requirements of SCM Regulation 44.
Two contracts were extended or modi ied to the extent that competitive bidding processes were circumvented, contrary
to the requirement of a fair SCM system in section 112 of the MFMA. Two contracts were extended without tabling the
reasons for the proposed amendment in the Council of the municipality, as required by section 116(3) of the MFMA.
Suf icient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts and quotations had been procured in accordance with legislative requirements and the SCM policy.

Asset management
The accounting of icer did not take all reasonable steps to ensure that the municipality had and maintained an eﬀective
system of internal control for assets, as required by section 63(2)(c) of the MFMA.

Revenue management
The credit control and debt collection policy was not maintained and implemented for all debtors in arrears, as required by section 96(b) of the MSA.

Internal control
In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15
December 2010, I considered internal control relevant to my audit, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the eﬀectiveness of internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the signi icant de iciencies that resulted
in the basis for the quali ied opinion, the indings on the annual performance report and the indings on compliance
with laws and regulations included in this report.

Leadership
The Council did not exercise speci ic oversight responsibility over inancial and performance reporting, compliance
with laws and regulations as well as internal control. The action plans compiled to address the previous year’s audit
indings were not monitored and reviewed to determine if the reported progress on the plans related to actual improvements.
The delays in the approval of management’s recommendation to consolidate supply chain and contract management
led to management being unable to address weaknesses in asset management and SCM, which resulted in non-compliance with the relevant regulations. In turn, non-compliance with SCM prescripts gave rise to irregular expenditure.
Management proposed the establishment of a fully ledged asset management unit within the inance directorate to
enable the accounting of icer to exercise his responsibilities as required in terms of section 63(2)(c) of MFMA. As this
unit was not approved and established in time it led to insuf icient capacity within the municipality to deal with the
responsibilities of identifying, safeguarding and maintaining the movable and immovable assets of the municipality.
Exception reports were not developed and utilised on a monthly basis to ensure the completeness, existence and accuracy of transactions within the areas where high volumes of transactions were processed, such as revenue, receivables,
salaries and wages.
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The chief inancial of icer’s focus on the development and enhancement of internal controls within inancial management responsibilities led to the inadequate monitoring of these controls during the year, as some pertinent reconciliations were not performed as per policy requirements.
The leadership did not adequately monitor the municipality’s compliance with laws, regulations and internally designed policies and procedures, as management mainly focused on the establishment and strengthening of the internal
control environment. As a result, material non-compliance issues were noted.

Financial and performance management
The diﬀerent directorates within the municipality did not take collective responsibility for the disclosures within the
inancial statements, performance reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The control environments related to inancial and performance reporting did not reside within the budget and treasury of ice or the integrated
development plan unit, but with every directorate within the municipality.
The lack of a fully ledged asset management section within the inance directorate led to the inability to componentise
newly acquired infrastructure assets and update asset registers timeously, resulting in signi icant calculation errors on
depreciation.
The inancial statements and other information to be included in the annual report were not adequately reviewed for
completeness and accuracy prior to submission for auditing. The inancial statements were subject to material corrections resulting from the audit, which can be attributed to the lack of a risk assessment, weaknesses in the design and
implementation of internal control in respect of inancial management and inancial reporting, and weaknesses in the
information systems. This also resulted in the prior year’s audit indings not being substantially addressed in certain
instances.
The municipality did not prepare quarterly interim inancial statements to identify and rectify any inancial statement
errors early on. The chief inancial of icer and the municipal manager should review the inancial statements for completeness and accuracy, and submit them to the internal audit unit for review.
The municipal Council did not write oﬀ debtors con irmed to be non-recoverable, resulting in a quali ication on the
existence of debtors.
The municipality did not review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The municipality did
not have a delegated employee that had been trained and had the necessary technical skills to address and monitor new
legislative changes aﬀecting the municipality.
Record management and maintenance disciplines were not included in the daily key controls, and reviewed and monitored by a management member at the appropriate level.

Governance
Due to the focus on inancial sustainability and infrastructure development for service delivery, monitoring and supervision were not satisfactorily undertaken to enable an assessment of the eﬀectiveness of internal controls over inancial
and performance reporting.
Internal controls were not monitored to prevent, detect and correct material misstatements in inancial reporting and
reporting on predetermined objectives.
The capacity of the internal audit unit had to be supplemented, as consultants were sourced to assist with the internal
audit plan.
The recommendations of the internal audit unit were not implemented.

OTHER REPORTS
Investigations
Investigations are being conducted by the Public Protector to probe the manner in which SCM processes were adhered
to. The investigations were still ongoing at the reporting date.

Auditor-General Kimberley
30 November 2011

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

181

4.9 The Audit Action Plan – Clean Audit
The municipality developed the action plan to address audit indings
The major focus of the action plan is to address
assets, revenue related quali ications and other
compliance matters that were emphasised in the
audit report (performance management report,
compliance with legislation
There are engagements with National Treasury to
resolve some of the issues raised and the Auditor
General is kept abreast of the progress

The Annual Financial Statements
The Accounting Of icer of the municipality submitted the annual inancial statements to the Auditor General on the 30th of August 2011 in line
with the requirements of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (56 of 2003) section 126 (1)(a).
The audited inancial statements are as re lected
on page 70 - 175 herein.

Limitation of scope is a major risk but there are
mitigating programmes that have been put in
place to ensure that documents are properly managed and responsibilities are assigned to custodians in each section especially in the inance
All eﬀorts are put in place to ensure that an improved audit opinion is achieved

4.9.1 Action Plan Achievements
•

A compliant asset register

•

Componentised infrastructure

•

Clearing of disclosure related quali ications

•

Reduction of limitations of scope

•

Improved internal control environment
through regular policy reviews and development of procedure manuals

•

Review of organisational structure with the
view of strengthening supervisory controls
and segregation of powers

•

More co-ordinated audit process

•

Increase in transparent reporting in line
with legislative requirements

•

Maintain an acceptable con idence level on
the going concern of the municipality
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CHAPTER 5 FUNCTIONAL SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING
General Information
Reporting Level

Detail

Information

Geography
1

Total
1,873 Km2

Geographical area in square kilometres
Demarcation Board

Demography
2

Total population

245,606

Statistical Services SA, Community Survey 2007

3

Indigent Population

74,147

Global Insight, August 2008

4

Total number of voters

97,281

IEC: Voter Turnout Report: Local Government Elections 2000

5

Aged breakdown
•

65 years and over

12,512

•

between 40 and 64 years

52,052

•

between 15 and 39 years

92,335

•

14 years and under

57,967

Global Insight, August 2008

6

Key Performance
Area

Household income
•

over R3,499 per month

33,465

•

between R2,500 and R3,499 per month

5,088

•

between R1,100 and R2,499 per month

10,350

•

under R1,100 per month

6,705

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance
See section 2.3
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Function

Executive and Council

Sub-function

N/A

Reporting Level

Detail
Sol Plaatje Municipality chose to adopt an Executive Mayoral system. The following
committees form part of Council’s structure:
• Finance
• Aesthetic and Development, Planning and Infrastructure Committees
• Housing
• Local Economic Development
• MIG and IGR
• Organisational Development
• Security and Protection Services
• Social Development and Health
• Sport, Arts and Culture
• Policy
• Rules

Overview

Council consists of 55 members, 26 female and 29 male.
This report re lects council for period to May 2011. After the demarcation process
the number of wards increased to 31, and the councillors to 62.
The function of executive and Council within the municipality is administered as
follows and includes:
The Municipality, categorised as “B“, has an Executive Mayor as head of Council
which consists of 55 members of which 28 are ward representatives and 27 elected
on a proportional basis.
The Executive Mayor is assisted by a Mayoral Committee consisting of ten members (apart from Executive Mayor). The members of the mayoral committee are the
chairpersons of the standing committees of Council as set out in the overview.
Description of the
Activity

The Speaker of the Council is a Councillor elected as chairperson of Council (within
legislation) and presides over the meetings of Council. The Speaker ensures compliance in the Council and Council committees according to the Code of Conduct,
Schedule 5 of the Local Government Municipal Structures Act, 1998, (Act No. 117 of
1998 as amended).
The Municipality has a mandate to
• Provide democratic and accountable government for local communities
• Ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner
• Promote social and economic development
• Promote a safe and healthy environment
• Encourage the involvement of communities and community organisations in
the matters of local government.

Analysis of the
Function

Statistical information
Councillor detail
Total number of Councillors
Number of Councillors on Executive Committee
Ward detail
Total number of Wards

1

2
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Total

55
10
28

Number and type of Council and Committee meetings
Aesthetic
Development, Planning & Infrastructure

Finance

Housing
Local Economic Development

MIG & IGR

Ordinary/Special/Informal Council

Organisational Development

Security & Protection Services
Social Development & Health

Sports, Arts & Culture

Policy

Oversight
Audit
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1 meeting 1 cancelled
8 Meetings
1 Cancelled
1 Special
3 Joint
7 Meetings
(Inc 1 no quorum)
2 Special
(both no quorum)
1 Cancelled
6 Meetings
1 Postponed
9 Meetings
(Inc 6 no quorums)
1 Joint
6 Meetings
(Inc 6 No quorums)
1 Advanced
1 Postponed
9 Ordinary Meetings
(Inc 1 no quorum)
8 Special
(Inc 2 no quorums)
1 Postponed
4 Informal
1 Inaugural
9 Meetings
(Inc 4 no quorums)
2 Special
(Inc 1 no quorum)
1 Postponed
10 Meetings
(Inc 1 no quorum)
8 Meetings
(Inc 3 no quorum)
3 Postponed
1 Special Ext
7 Meetings
2 Postponed
(Inc 1 no quorum)
2 Special
(Inc 1 no quorum)
3 Meetings
2 Joint
1 special (no quorum)
10 Meetings
4 Meetings
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Function

Finance and Administration

Sub-function

Financial Services

Reporting Level

Detail
The Department of Financial Services is responsible for the following key
performance areas:
•

Ensuring sustained inancial viability for maximum development support

•

Sound inancial administration

•

Financial monitoring and reporting

•

Internal control over Council’s inancial activities and provide inancial
advisory support to all internal stakeholders.

The department consists of the following sub directorates:

Overview

•

Directorate Finance Administration

•

Revenue Management

•

Expenditure Management

•

Budget & Treasury Of ice

•

Asset & Risk Management

•

Contract Management

•

Supply Chain Management

•

ICT Management.

The function of inance within the municipality is administered as follows and
includes:

Description of the
Activity

•

Directorate Finance: This Directorate is mainly responsible for the eﬀective and
ef icient oversight and management of the Council’s assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenditure according to prescribe legislation.

•

Expenditure Management: This Sub-Directorate is solely responsible for the
eﬀective and ef icient management of expenditure and payroll management.

•

Revenue Management: This Sub-Directorate is solely responsible for the
eﬀective and ef icient management of revenue including the General Valuation
Roll & debt collection; providing and administering indigent support services
to the community.

•

Budget & Treasury Ofϐice: Is primarily responsible for the municipality’s
inancial reporting and budgeting as per MFMA requirements and guidelines
provided by National Treasury. The unit also plays a signi icant inancial
management support role to Council, and all internal and external stakeholders. Implementing the newly developed inancial and budgeting reforms
framework adopted and prescribed by National Treasury.

•

Asset and Risk Management: is provided to assist Management and Of icials of
Sol Plaatje Municipality on Asset related issues and to ensure consistent,
eﬀective and ef icient asset management principles.

The strategic objectives of this function are to ensure sound inancial management in accordance with the MFMA and related matters.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
•
•
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Operation Clean Audit - Complete action plan on Clean Audit Report Strategy to
be tabled to Council in June.
Revenue enhancement - Develop a revenue enhancement strategy by
August 2010.
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•

Debt management - The debt collection policy has been reviewed and to be
adopted by June 2010.

•

Cash low management eight weeks coverage.

•

To improve on the total percentage spent on capital projects to 85%.

•

Indigent register - Indigent policy to be reviewed and adopted by May 2010
and to increase the number of indigents to 17 000.

•

Submission of Annual Financial Statements (AFS) for audit purposes - To have
submitted the AFS to AG by 31 August 2011.

•

General valuation roll - Progress with valuation of properties in preparation of
new GV for 2011 80% of properties must be revaluated by December 2010.

•

Asset management - Asset Management policy is approved by Council Asset
Register to be GRAP compliant by 31 August 2010.

•

Infrastructure assets unbundled by 23 June 2010.

•

Supply Chain Management - Complete the review process of the policy by
March 2010
•

Approval of policy by Council

•

Tabling of a revised organogram of Supply Chain that encompasses
functions and responsibilities executed in the Contracts Department
encompasses functions and responsibilities executed in the Contracts
Department.

Statistical information
Details of tender committees
Bid Adjudication Committee
Chairperson: Ms ZL Mahloko, Acting CFO
Members
Ms R Sebolecwe, Acting Executive Director
Ms N Tyabashe-Kesiamang, Executive Director
Mr F Barnard, Head of Supply Chain Division
Analysis of the
Function

Bid Evaluation Committee
Chairperson: Ms G Jele
Members
Mr GJ Mopharing
Mr J Samuels, Senior of icial Supply Chain
Mr A Klopper, GM: Revenue Management
User department of icial, co-opted member
Bid Speciϐication Committee
Chairperson: Mr N Sonqishe
Mr B Anthony, Budget and Treasury Of ice
User department of icials, co-opted
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
241

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

42,363,325
9,667,225

Total Employee Related Costs
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(Rand)

52,030,550
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Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Current

100% of the capital budget (including grants) spent
by 30 June 2013.

66%

85%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Implementation of an eﬀective and ef icient Supply
Chain Management System by decreasing the number
of successful appeals to 5% by 30 June 2013.

0%

10%

Improve in Revenue enhancement by ensuring a
collection rate of 92% of billing by 30 June 2010.

85%

85%

Increase the cost coverage ratio to 3:1 annually or
maintain the current status by 30 June 2013.

year-end

1:2

Increase the municipal reserves by at least 10%
per annum from the previous year’s actual balance.

year-end

10%

Maintain the debt coverage ratio at current levels or
at least 2:1 against net assets of the municipality.

year-end

1:1

Reducing the ratio of outstanding service debtors to
revenue to 10% by 30 June 2013.

20%

20%

Target

Non-qualifying assets transferred to Operational
Expenditure, thus reducing Capex signi icantly.
Development of a Revenue Enhancement Strategy by
30 September 2010.
Ensure provision of free basic services in line with
the SPMs approved Indigent Policy annually.
18,569 indigents bene ited for the inancial year
under review.
Financial Viability
and Management
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Function

Finance and Administration

Sub-function

ICT Management

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

The ICT Unit of the municipality provides a comprehensive range of ICT services to
the municipality.
The function of ICT Unit within the municipality is administered as follows and
includes the services indicated below:
• Network Services: Local and Wide area network services using wired and
wireless technologies.
• Email Services: Sending and receiving of email, electronic diary and calendar
functions and sharing of public folders.
• Logon Services: Providing desktop logon for enhanced PC security and
traceable network use.
• Internet Services: Provisioning of safe internet access including managing of
bandwidth and irewalls.
• File Services: Provisioning of common ile storage to enable secure backups
and sharing of iles.
• Computer Services: Provisioning of desktop computers and thin clients for the
delivery of municipal services.
• User Support Services: Help desk services to support users in their day-to-day
computer tasks and operations.
• Hosting Services: Provisioning of a secure and stable, redundant environment
for the hosting of departmental and transversal software systems such as
E-Venus, Payday and Intenda.
• Archiving, Backup and Business Continuity Services: Ensuring business
continuity by providing a ire resistant, secure environment for hardware and
network services.
• GIS Services: Provisioning of Geographic Information Systems.
• Software Maintenance and Development Services: Development and
enhancements to software systems such as GIS, Web and E-Venus.
• Software Support Services: Providing a central port of call for support and
interacting with suppliers and vendors of systems in the municipality, such as
E-Venus, Payday, Prepaid Electricity System, etc.
• Installing and Accrediting Services: Evaluating and installing of upgrades and
new systems on the technical infrastructure.
The strategic objectives of this function are to provide stable, secure, ef icient and
well supported ICT infrastructure, systems and services to the municipality capable
of reinforcing its strategic objectives.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
• In accordance with recommendations contained in the SPM ICT Disaster
Recovery plan, SPM invested in three new high capacity servers and an
Enterprise Virtual Array during the course of the 2010/2011 Financial year.
• The new infrastructure replaces 23 aging physical servers by consolidating
them to 16 Virtual Machines hosted on said new infrastructure.
• The conversion of physical servers to Virtual Machines is in accordance with
recommendations contained within the SPM ICT Disaster Recovery Plan and
will not only improve overall server performance and the ef icient use of
available server resources, but will also streamline and simplify ICT business
continuity and disaster recovery processes.

Description of the
Activity

Analysis of the
Function
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•

During the 2011/2012 inancial year, SPM will strengthen it’s oﬀsite data
centre by procuring suf icient nearline storage in conjunction with old servers
relocated from the production data centre, which will be used to host backup
images of production Virtual Machines. Again this initiative is in line with provisions contained within the ICT Disaster Recovery Plan.
To improve internal controls and achieve audit compliance, an ITIL IT Services
Management System was procured and implemented during the course of the
2010/2011 inancial to ensure that ICT Incident Management and ICT Change Management are conducted according to best practice methodology.
The system has drastically improved ICT response time to service requests, as it
allows for automatic escalation of service requests and incidents that have not
been resolved within the pre-set time frames, informs users via email whenever
the status of their service request changes and allows users to track the progress of
service requests that they have logged, via a web based client.
To improve internal controls and achieve audit compliance, SPM procured and
implemented GFI Languard and GFI Events Manager software.
Said software assisted ICT staﬀ in hardening network and server security by
identifying vulnerabilities and notifying administrators of noteworthy events that
demand their immediate attention.
To improve internal controls and achieve audit compliancy, ICT staﬀ focused on implementing all ICT Policies that were drafted and approved during the 2009/2010
inancial year.
In so doing staﬀ reduced the number of audit indings from the 2009/2010 inancial year from 38 to just ive.
ICT Staﬀ did a comprehensive audit/analysis of the SPM Telecommunications
environment and presented a proposal to the ICT Steering Committee that would
see the replacement of current infrastructure/system with a hosted Voice-over-IP
Solution.
The proposed solution can save the municipality in up to R150,000 p/m on telecommunication expenditure and was adopted by the ICT Steering Committee on 1
March 2011, but to date has not been rati ied by Executive Management.
ICT Staﬀ in conjunction with Risk Management developed a comprehensive ICT
Risk Register for the municipality.
As part of the ICT Risk Assessment, a fraud risk assessment was also performed and
presented to the ICT Steering Committee and the Accounting Of icer.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Total

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

10

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Municipal
Institutional
Development and
Transformation

190

2,743,707
626,049

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)

3,369,756
Current

Target

Annual software licence audit conducted

100%

100%

Viruses Reported attended to

100%

100%

Daily, Weekly and monthly back-up

100%

100%

Percentage of problems solved within two working days

98%

98%

Daily updates as per schedule

100%

100%

Quarterly meetings held

4

98% network availability

98%
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98%

Function

Finance and Administration

Sub-function

Revenue Management

Reporting Level

Detail
The Revenue Management Department is the largest in the Financial Services
Directorate with 162 staﬀ members. It comprises of several highly technical and
strategic professions viz.
1

Property Taxation Division
•
•

2

Billing Division
•
•
•

Overview
3

Property Valuations
Property Rates
Customer Services
Debtors Control
Water and Electricity

Debtors Management
•
•
•

Indigent Management
Legal Collections
Credit Control

The Department was formed in 2008 with the amalgamation of several sections,
divisions and functions. It has since re-created itself to align with the IDP objectives
of the municipality and continues to evolve both in function and internal structure
to improve on its historical performances.
The function of revenue within the municipality is administered as follows and
includes:
•

Description of the
Activity

Property Taxation Division
• Creation and maintenance of a General Valuation Roll
• Imposition of property rates on ixed property within Sol Plaatje Municipal
boundary
• Support to Property Services with ad hoc valuations
• Provision of specialised valuation services to the municipality e.g.
Valuations for updating of Fixed Asset Register.
• Billing Division
• Monthly billing of trade and other services
• Customer Services.
• Debtors Management
• Maintenance of Municipality’s Debtor’s Book
• Provision of assistance to Indigent customers
• Protection of SPMs income.
The strategic objectives of this function are to:
• Property Taxation Division
• Increase the skills level within the division
• Increase the tax base
• Complete the GV Roll 2011
• Billing Division
• Improve the accuracy of monthly billing
• Increase the skills level within the division
•

Improve relationship and reputation with customer base.
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•

Debtors Management
•

Reduce the value of the outstanding debtor’s book

•

Increase the skills level within the division

•

Provide a compassionate and fair/uniform service to the defaulting debtors.

The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
•

•

•

Property Taxation Division
•

Lack of formal quali ications for Assistant Valuers

•

Slow property market/retarded development due to the economy

•

Vacant Rates and Valuations Accountant position

•

No fully interfaced and implemented GIS system.

Billing Division
•

Staﬀ discipline at some sections

•

Manual Meter reading

•

High number of interim accounts.

Debtors Management
•

Poor economy putting strain on debtors’ ability to pay

•

Inadequate vehicle leet

•

No interface between the Prepaid Meter System and the Financial System.
Therefore unable to take action against those with prepaid meters.

Successes for 2010/2011 are:
•

•

Property Taxation Division
•

Completion and Certi ication of the General Valuation Roll 2011.

•

Relocation to new of ices.

Billing Division
•

•

Improved turnaround time for water meter replacements.

Debtors Management
•

Receipt of two new vehicles

•

A critical vacancy was illed

•

A special Government Debt “task force” was established and has yielded
tremendous results with the ageing debt being substantially reduced.

Statistical Information

2010/2011
(Rand)

Debtor billings: number and value of annual billings on an average
of 55,000 accounts per month:
Property Rates

176,174,275

Electricity

259,645,285

Water

145,198,526

Sanitation

44,549,390

Refuse

35,199,122

Interest Earned - Outstanding Debtors

36,228,931

Other Services

13,337,606

Total

192

710,333,135
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Debtor analysis: amount outstanding over 30, 60, 90 and 120 plus days:
0-30 days

31-60 days

Electricity

34,320,990

5,174,863

2,982,380

37,136,309

79,614,542

Water

12,402,956

3,490,177

3,518,204

58,963,188

78,374,525

Property
Rates

8,364,944

3,199,171

2,161,323

93,486,197

107,211,635

Sanitation

2,164,656

1,067,805

904,646

22,825,790

26,962,897

Refuse
Removal

1,824,402

899,540

746,332

20,120,314

23,590,589

Housing
(Rental
Income)

397,028

299,325

284,079

10,625,699

11,606,131

8,963,247

4,716,978

4,479,149 165,644,487

183,803,860

68,438,223

18,847,859

15,076,113 408,801,984

511,164,179

Other
Total By
Income
Source

61-90 days 91-120 days

Property Rates (Residential

Analysis of the
Function

•
•
•
•

Total

(Rand)

Number and value of properties rated
Number and value of properties not rated
Number and value of rate exemptions
Rates collectible for the current year

Property rates (Commercial)
• Number and value of properties rated
• Number and value of properties not rated
• Number and value of rate exemptions
• Rates collectible for the current year
Property valuation
• Year of last valuation
• Regularity of valuation

01.01.2007
4 year

Indigent Policy
• Quantity (number of households aﬀected)
• Quantum (total value across municipality)
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

18,569
34,378,808
Total
169

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Sustainable
Service Delivery

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

40,684,403
Current

To maximise the number of indigent households
receiving free basic water & electricity by 2011/2012
18,569
To maximise the number of indigent households
0
receiving free basic alternative energy by 2011/2012 Households
No free alternative basic energy is available at this
time and our eﬀorts to introduce such scheme
require further investigation and funding.
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32,689,569
7,994,833

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)

193

Target

26,000
100
Households

% increase in payment levels

77%

Critical Vacant Posts - City Valuer, Manager:
Property Taxation, Manager: Debt Management. Staﬀ
discipline is leading to poor productivity. System
constraints - the prepaid meter vending system not
integrated to the inancial system. Macro-economic
in luences of Eskom tariﬀ hike, and local economic
depression.
Financial Viability
and Management

194

Plans to improve performance
In terms of the Local Government: Municipal
Property Rates Act,2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004), a
municipality must at least every four years prepare
a General Valuation Roll. Sol Plaatje Municipality has
a valid and eﬀective General Valuation Roll dated
1 January 2007. We are currently concluding the
compilation of a General Valuation Roll to be dated
1 October 2010 to meet the minimum four year
criteria. This roll will be submitted to the Accounting
Of icer by 31 January 2011 and will be implemented
on 1 July 2011.
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87%

Function

Finance and Administration

Sub-function

Supply Chain Management

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Supply Chain Management is an integral part of inancial management. It is a
managerial activity that goes beyond the simple act of buying, and it includes the
planning and policy activities covering a wide range of related and complementary
activities. Included in such activities are the research and development required for
proper selection of materials and sources, the follow up to ensure proper delivery,
the inspection of incoming shipments to ensure both quantity and quality compliance with the order, the development of proper procedures, methods and forms to
enable the acquisitioning section to carry out established policies. Other activities
include traf ic, receiving, storekeeping, contract administration and accounting.

Description of the
Activity

Analysis of the
Function

The functions of Supply Chain Management within the municipality are administered as follows and include:
• Demand Management
Demand Management must ensure that the resources required to support the
strategic and operational commitments are delivered at the correct time, at the
right price and at the right location and that the quantity and quality satisfy
the needs. Here our cost centre managers are assisted with need analysis, determining of speci ications, cost analysis for the budget process and planning
the way forward. Currently Sol Plaatje faces a challenge as proper structures
still have to be established.
• Acquisition Management
Processes are followed for the selection of sources such as evaluation of
quotations and bids, the adjudication, making of awards and placing of orders.
Proper contracts management processes and procedures have been drafted
and await approval of the structure.
• Logistics and Disposal Management
This unit oﬀers a distribution service to minimise or eliminate disruptions in
service delivery. This must be achieved with a minimum investment in reserve
inventories.
Materials that have been classed as surplus or have become obsolete for the
cost centre managers are disposed of by following the approved procedures.
• Performance and Risk Management
The unit must provide an eﬀective system for the identi ication, consideration
and avoidance of potential risks in the supply chain management system. This
is also currently a challenge as structures still have to be approved.
Suppliers performance should be monitored and corrective actions should be
recommended where required.
Strategic objectives
The two main objectives of this unit can be summarised as follows:
• To provide an uninterrupted low of materials, supplies and services required
to operate this organisation.
• To keep inventory investment and loss at a minimum.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
Objective Achievements
1 Key Objective: To keep write-oﬀ/obsolete items and damaged stock at less
than 1% of stock value.
Achievement: An amount of R53,954.45 was written off due to stock being obsolete or damaged. This represents only 0.32% of total stock value.
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2

Key Objective: To keep write oﬀs of stock losses with stock take less than 4% of
stock value.
Achievement: An amount of R85,538.72 was written off which represents only
0.5% of total stock value.

3

Key Objective: To keep the turnover rate of the 20 highest value stock items
above two times in value per year.
Achievement: The turnover rate achieved was 2.28 times excluding emergency
stock.

4

Key Objective: To have less than ten cases of zero stock levels
Achievement: None were recorded.

5

Key Objective: To keep turnover rate between requisition to order status less
than one day.
Achievement: Only deviations due to system down time were recorded and delays
from service providers in submitting quotation.

Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Total

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

33

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

6,756,792
1,458,677

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)

8,215,469
Current

Improve turnaround time of SCM process to eight weeks
The SCM structures and processes have been
reviewed and implementation has started. Visible
improvement will be noticed during the irst quarter
of 2010/2011 during the third and fourth quarter.

Target

10

8

Stores records continuously kept up to date

100%

100%

Stock levels managed by re-ordering levels

100%

100%

Diﬀerence between stores records of stock and
actual stock according to annual stock take not more
than 4% in Rand.

0.50%

4%

95%

95%

55%

40%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Support to departments within 72 hours
Financial Viability Monitor procurement of goods in line BEE target/policy
and Management Receipt of the original tax clearance before
processing of order > than R30,000
SCM policy reviewed and updated

Challenges faced and plans to improve performance:
The restructuring of the Supply Chain Management Unit and Contracts Division is
once again to be a big challenge. A proposal must still be considered and approved.
It was an enormous task to compile a proposal to merge all functions, processes and
responsibilities.
New Challenges faced
Once the restructuring is inalised, processes must be implemented and staﬀ will
have to be trained. Take over of all relevant duties will have to be arranged.
Projections
The aim is to establish a new Supply Chain Management Unit as soon as possible,
but not later than 1 September 2011.
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Function

Sub-function

Finance and Administration

Sub-function

Human Resources

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Administration of all human resource activities within the Municipality Note: Read
in conjunction with Chapter 3 on Human Resource Management.
The function of human resource management within the municipality is
administered as follows and includes:
• Personnel Administration
• Labour relations
• Employee Assistance Programme
• Organisation development
• Employee equity
• Ethics management
• Recruitment and Selection.

Description of the
Activity

The municipality has a mandate to:
• Handle its own administration
• Conduct its own labour relations
• Recruit and appoint its own personnel
• Render its own EAP programme
• Compile and implement its own WSP
• Compile an equity plan according to guidelines of the Department of Labour
• Enhance and conduct ethics interventions.
The strategic objectives of this function are to:
• Ensure a smooth running of all personnel administration
• Strive towards creating a stable workforce
• Render an eﬀective personnel recruitment function
• Assist employees with speci ic psychological problems.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
• Completion of a Human Resource Strategy in draft format
• Micro-organisational structure designed, due for scrutiny by Corporate
Services & Human Resource Committee
• Streamlining of job description system
• Assist employees with speci ic psychological problems.
• Roll out of Performance Management System to line managers.

Analysis of the
Function

Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Total Employee Related Costs

Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Current

Target

Institutional Development and Transformation
Completion of an Integrated Human Resource
Strategy aligned with the IDP.
Service providers were appointed in May 2010 with
one of the targets being the draft of a HR Strategy,
Draft HR Plan envisaged by September 2010.

75%

100%
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Total
14
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(Rand)
5,506,669
1,109,771
6,616,440

Institutional
Development and
Transformation

Ensure that all Section 57 Managers comply with the
minimum competency levels as prescribed by the
Municipal Regulations on Minimum Competency
Levels by 2012.

80%

80%

Design an organisational structure by 2009/2010.
(The current structure that was tabled before
Council for approval was held in abeyance.
To be tabled to CSHR for scrutiny.)

100%

100%

Populate the organisational structure by 2011/2012.
(After approval by Council of the structure,
it will be populated.)

80%

60%

Ensure that all levels of personnel on the organogram
of SPM are 100% representative and in line with the
Employment Equity Plan of the Municipality by
June 2011.

70%

70%
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Function

Strategic Economic Development and Planning

Sub-function

SEDP Administration

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

The Urban Planning Division falls within the Directorate Strategy, Economic Development and Planning. The Division falls with the Development Programme as
speci ied in the Integrated Development Plan (IDP) - Five year Plan 2007/2008 to
2011/2012.
Principles to be addressed by the Urban Planning Division as per SPM vision statement:
• Urban ef iciency and social integration
• Sustainability
• Impact towards the shared and inclusive economic growth of the city.
The Spatial Planning (Spatial Development Framework - SDF) and Land Use Management (LUMS) are the main responsibilities of the Town Planning Section. This
is in accordance with the legally required sector plans as indicated by the IDP. The
Building Services Section is responsible for the control of the built environment,
as well as architecture design and maintenance of municipal buildings within the
LUMS.
The core functions of Strategy, Economic Development and Planning is to guide
infrastructure, service and development needs in accordance with the Spatial Development Framework, Land Use Management System and Building Regulations.

Description of the
Activity

Analysis of the
Function

The Municipality has a mandate to:
Prepare and administer a spatial development framework, land use management
system and building regulations, as well as to consider the approval of land use applications and building plans.
The strategic objectives of this function are to formulate and review spatial
strategies and administer the land use management system in accordance with the
spatial development framework, to ensure that complaint and structurally sound
buildings are constructed within the municipal area in accordance with the national building regulations and standard.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
General administration of the built environment (planning and building services),
the submission of the draft 2008 Spatial Development Framework for approval and
the amalgamation of diﬀerent zoning schemes in order to develop a new land use
management system (LUMS).
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
in the Director’s Ofϐice
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Total
3

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

(Rand)
1,187,944
207,830
1,395,774

Current

Target

100%

100%

Relationships formalised and working sessions
We have MOU with Department of Economic
Development and Tourism on diamond bene iciation
strategy as the result of this MOU we trained 150
learners in Diamond Bene iciation Skills and 50
learners graduated.
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We have signed MOU with CIDB in terms
development of Emerging Contractors and we have
trained 50 learners as emerging contractors.

100%

100%

We have MOU with Department of Economic
Development and Tourism on Kamfersdam Bird
viewing platform. The MOU is signed by all parties.
SPM and DEDAT allocated R800,000 toward the
building of platform collectively.

100%

100%

We have also draft MOU with Matlosana Local
Municipality completed but not signed.

50%

100%

We have MOU with Mangaung Local Municipality
and it signed by all parties.

100%

100%

We have working relationship with Eskom through
Business Adopt Municipality programme. The MOU is
still under development and Eskom will assist
SPM with Power Factor Correction; Adopting school
through Science and Mathematics programme;
developing of 15 learners in Electrical Apprenticeship,
allocation of bursaries and establishment of Call Centre.

60%

100%

100%

100%

Maintaining data and quarterly reporting on
economic indication with BC

Sustainable
Service Delivery

We used EconoMonitor to maintain data researched
and reporting was done quarterly until November 2010.
Which means we had only data for both irst quarter
and second quarter for 2010/2011
Man-days jobs provided LED Initiatives
We created jobs through BPO&O in terms of the
establishment of Call Centre.

228

We also created jobs through SMMEs Week

80

We created other jobs through tourism exhibitions shows.

397

Man-Days Jobs created: Projects
We created jobs through City beauti ication and
SMMEs (informal trading)
Improvement on turnaround time on applications for
building plan approval from date of receiving the
correct and complete application.

4
2 weeks

2 weeks

12 weeks

12 weeks

Moratorium on Development has in luenced the slow
progressing terms of processing building plans.
Improvement on turnaround time on processing of
land use applications: from date of submission to the
Development and Planning Committee for recommendations, Council decision and noti ication of applicant
receiving the correct and complete application.
The Moratorium on development in luence the slow
progress in terms of the process of submitting items
on development and planning committee for recommendation and Council for inal decision.
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GURP: The reminder of the TA Business plans where completed, which includes
Tourism strategy, Galeshewe Icons, Galeshewe Light Industrial Park and Crime
Prevention Through Urban Upgrade. All capital projects where completed in second
quarter of the 2010/2011 inancial year.
Market: Compared to the previous inancial year the market share have increased
from R4.3 million to R4.5 million
Urban Planning: Number of building plans assessed and approved. Non-achievement of target due to moratoria on densi ication-related applications and disposal
of municipal land.
Local Economic Development: Through the BPO&O 228 permanent and 477
temporary jobs were created. LED have successfully staged the Diamond and Dorings event which attracted visitors all over the country as a result have boosted the
economy of Kimberley. All CBD projects have been completed including the street
signature project and the resealing of market square and Craven taxi rank.
Properties: The moratorium on both the developments and sale of land have been
lifted, the land policy have been completed and approved by Council see Council
resolution
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Function

Strategic Economic Development and Planning

Sub-function

Urban Planning

Reporting Level

Detail
The Urban Planning Division falls within the Directorate Strategy, Economic Development and Planning. The Division falls with the Development Programme as
speci ied in the Integrated Development Plan (IDP) - Five year Plan 2007/2008 to
2011/2012.
Principles to be addressed by the Urban Planning Division as per SPM vision statement:
• Urban ef iciency and social integration
• Sustainability
• Impact towards the shared and inclusive economic growth of the city.
The Spatial Planning (Spatial Development Framework - SDF) and Land Use Management (LUMS) are the main responsibilities of the Town Planning Section. This
is in accordance with the legally required sector plans as indicated by the IDP. The
Building Services Section is responsible for the control of the built environment,
as well as architecture design and maintenance of municipal buildings within the
LUMS.
The core functions of Strategy, Economic Development and Planning is to guide
infrastructure, service and development needs in accordance with the Spatial Development Framework, Land Use Management System and Building Regulations.

Overview

Description of the
Activity

The Municipality has a mandate to:
Prepare and administer a spatial development framework, land use management
system and building regulations, as well as to consider the approval of land use applications and building plans.
The strategic objectives of this function are to formulate and review spatial strategies and administer the land use management system in accordance with the
spatial development framework, to ensure that complaint and structurally sound
buildings are constructed within the municipal area in accordance with the national
building regulations and standard.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
General administration of the built environment (planning and building services),
the submission of the draft 2008 Spatial Development Framework for approval and
the amalgamation of diﬀerent zoning schemes in order to develop a new land use
management system (LUMS).
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Analysis of the
Function

Key
Performance
Area

Total
45

Total Employee Related Costs
Details of building plans:
Number of building plans approved
Value of building plans approved (estimated)
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance
Preparation and administration of LUMS
Council approval of Land Use Management Scheme
(LUMS) subsequent to MEC-COGHSTA approval
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(Rand)
7,637,157
1,920,180
9,557,337

758
318,360,000
Current

Target

100%

100%
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Promulgation of LUMS subsequent to Council approval.

50%

100%

50%

100%

Compilation of Built Environment By-laws
Drafting of built environment by-laws for enforcement
of LUMS (Approved By-Laws ready for implementation
to give eﬀect to the LUMS by June 2012)
Number of Council Resolutions for approved
land use applications
Land use applications approved with Council
Resolutions

48

36

758

480

Building Services Records
Number of building plans assessed and approved.
Non-achievement of target due to moratoria on
densi ication-related applications and disposal of
municipal land.
Improvement on turnaround times for
applications
Improvement on turnaround time on applications for
building plan approval from date of receiving the
correct and complete application.
Moratorium (C351/09) on densi ication-related
development’s impact on the overall processing of
building (scrutiny and approval).

2 weeks

3 weeks

Improvement on turnaround time on processing land
use applications from date of submission of all line
departments’ commentary to the Development
and Planning Committee for recommendation,
Council decision and noti ication of applicant.
Moratorium (C351/09) on densi ication-related
development’s impact on the overall processing of
land use management application (scrutiny and
approval).

12 weeks

12 weeks

Plans to Improve on Performance (2011/2012)

Current

2011/2012

Approved By-Laws and ready for implementation to
give eﬀect to the LUMS by June 2012

75%

100%

Provincial Promulgation of LUMS for implementation

0%

100%

Improving the turnaround time for building plan
approval to four weeks by 30 June 2011
(NBRBSA - 103/1977 stipulates 30 days (four weeks)
for architectural buildings less than 500m² and 60 days
(eight weeks) for architectural buildings more than
500m² ) as at 1 July 2011

3 weeks

Improvement on turnaround time for processing of
development applications from date of receiving the
correct and complete information (commentary) from
internal departments

12 weeks
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<500m² 4 weeks
>500m²
- 8 weeks

12 weeks

Function

Strategic Economic Development and Planning

Sub-function

Fresh Produce Market

Reporting Level

Detail
Include all activities, duties and functions associated with the service provision of
and managing and administration of the Fresh Produce Market.

Overview

Strategic Objectives and Key Issues

Description of the
Activity

The overall performance of the fresh produce market is directly linked to both the
SEDP, SDBIP and the IDP objectives, i.e. LED, SPM should be an enabler of economic
development and not a creator of economic development. In realising its objectives
the Market embarked on a performance audit exercise that details how the Market
should operate optimally. The activities that we engage are directly linked to the
latter - Performance Audit.
Through the Municipal By-Laws and Agricultural Produce Agents Council, 1992
(Act No 12 of 1992) the Market is able to regulate competition, enforce compliance
and create a platform for new entrants such as more buyers, future farmers and
possibly new PDI Commission selling agents and or wholesalers.
Volatilities and commonalites across the industry dictate the luctuations of supply
and demand, at its heart is the pattern of growth and sustainability. Ensuring the
relevance of purpose as the preferred channel of distribution, the preservation of
the cold-chain and its subsequent improvement.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Analysis of the
Function
Key
Performance
Area

Total

(Rand)

27

2,413,864

Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Total Employee Related Costs
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance
Local Economic Development
Overall best performing Section of the Directorate as
it relates to the SDBIP 2010/2011,Allignment of
inancial systems
Historic signing of a performance agreement with all
commission selling agents i.e. Service Level Agreement
Financially performed exceptionally well and exceeded
set targets, i.e. 2009/2010 R4.30 million and now
R4.57 million giving a growth of R27,000.
Upgrading of the fresh mark system [Project refresh],
MAS-cold storage electronic monitoring system.
Beauti ication and landscaping.
Plans to improve Performance 2011/2012
Work towards intensifying Pro itability and sustain
growth
Intensify our marketing and advertising campaigns,
more awareness programmes.
Re-kindle processes to establish buyers forums and a
Hawkers Co-operative
Work more closely with all industry producer bodies
and all other structures and organisations sharing a
common interest as SPM, e.g. SA-PIP, Agri-Train,
SA AgricAcademy, National and Provincial Agriculture.
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506,237
2,920,101
Current

Target

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
Current

1
2011/2012

0

1

0

1

0

1

0

1
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Function

Strategic Economic Development and Planning

Sub-function

Properties

Reporting Level

Detail
Includes all activities associated with property development

Overview

•

Alienation of municipal owned land

•

All rentals associated with municipal owned land

•

Expropriation of land for municipal purposes.

The Municipality has a mandate:
To comply with legislation, policies and by-laws with regard to development. To
facilitate the growth of the overall economy of Kimberley.
Description of the
Activity

The strategic objectives of this function are to administrate and manage municipal
ixed assets.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
To uplift the moratorium on the alienation of municipal owned land. (Moratorium
was uplifted as from 1 July 2011.)
Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Analysis of the
Function

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
4

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

1,022,748
248,843

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)

1,271,591
Current

Target

10%

100%

90%

90%

85%

100%

100%

100%

Local Economic Development
Alienation of municipal owned land
Due to the moratorium only seven church erven were
alienated during this inancial year.
Administration of lease agreements
24 lease agreements were renewed during this
inancial year.
Asset register
All information in luencing the asset register was
forwarded to the asset manager.
Land policy
The land policy was adopted by Council on
13 April 2011 (Resolution C115/11).

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

205

Function

Strategic Economic Development and Planning

Sub-function

Local Economic Development

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Local Economic Development Unit is responsible for the promotion and the development of SMMEs, Tourism, including Area Based Development formerly known as
CBD. The other responsibility of LED is to attract, retain business and investors in
Sol Plaatje Municipality.

Description of the
Activity

The function of local economic development within the municipality is
administered as follows and includes:
The SMME Support sub-sectional LED unit consists of three sub-units namely, tender advice, informal trade and enterprise development, and provides the following
services to communities:
• Tender Advice to SMMEs through tender workshops
• Provision of procurement opportunities through the Tender Bulletin
• Registration on the data base of SMMEs as new vendors in terms of supply
chain management policy
• Informal Trader the SMMEs sub sectional unit of LED provides economic infrastructure in terms of hubs for informal sectors
• Provision of an enabling environment for our SMMEs through linkage of opportunities
• Provision of capacity building to SMMEs.
Tourism Promotion as the sub-sectional unit is responsible for:
• Positioning Sol Plaatje as a preferred tourist destination through available marketing channels.
• Management of the tourism information Centre.
The Area-Based Development sub-section is responsible for:
• Upgrading of the CBD
• Implementation of bylaws within CBD in terms of advertisements
• Serving the business communities through CBD forum.
The Investment Promotion sub sectional LED Unit is responsible for
• Positioning Sol Plaatje Municipality as a preferred/competitive business and
investment destination through the incentive strategy.
• Research on global and national economic trends to ensure relevant economic
sectors are promoted.
• Facilitation of partnerships and twinning arrangements with other stakeholders at both national and international levels.
The strategic objectives of this function are to:
• Align LED initiatives with PGDS and DGDS
• Align LED strategy and implementation plan with PGDS and DGDS. (Approved
by Council Resolution C493/10 in 2010.)
• Support and promote SMMEs
• Support and promote provincial tourism initiative
• Ensure an enabling environment for private sector to expand and invest in Sol
Plaatje
• Ensure that LED is infrastructure led and driven 2010/2011 and beyond
• Stimulate economic growth through the control of budget, policies, land use
management, infrastructure and provision of services
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•
•

Grow the economy by leveraging on infrastructure development
Align policies such as National Skills Fund, BPO&O with the present strategic
agenda
• Emerging Constructors, Electrical Apprenticeship, Diamond Bene iciation training projects were completed. The Department of Higher Education and Training conducted an audit on all the projects and indicated their satisfaction with
the work done.
• Anani Capital Training was handed over to the Department of Basic Education
to continue with the implementation.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
• LED Forums
• Tourism Exhibitions
• SMME Village
• Appointment of Contractor for SMME village
• Ritchie Incubator
• Investment Policy
• SMME Development and Training
• Diamond and Dorings
• SMME Week
• UDZ workshops
• Investment Summit
• Bird Viewing Platform
• CBD Upgrade
• Informal Trading Policy
• Relationships with other Stakeholders through MOUs.
• CBD Forums
• Inner City Revival Programme
• Job Creation
• Alignment of LED Strategy with DGDS and PGDS.
Analysis of the
Function

Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Total
23

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance
SMME Unit
Management of stalls: The issuing of permits to
informal traders.
Temporary Jobs Created:
50 - SMMEs Village
20 - Ritchie Incubator
15 - Global Entrepreneur Week.
Informal Trade Policy: The policy draft is being
developed only 40% is complete.
Galeshewe SMME Village: The overall status of the
SMME Village in terms of construction is 45% with
respect to the building only which is inclusive of the
10% of foundation built in 2009/2010.
Total amount spend by June 2011: R500,000.
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(Rand)
3,908,383
661,666
4,570,049

Current

Target

80

50

89
40%

60
100%

45%

100%
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Ritchie Informal Trade Facilities: The building is
constructed with Pre-Fabricated modular material, it
consists of nine shops, training room, of ice, computer rooms and ablution facilities. We have changed
from mortar bricks due to budget constraints as it required R4,9 million to construct with mortar bricks.
Total amount spent by June 2011: R1,034,493,000
SMME Satellite Ofϐices: We provide services in
advising informal traders in Ritchie; Riverton,
Galeshewe and Greenpoint
SMME Week: We conducted our third small business week successfully, organised and facilitated by
the SMME Support Unit. It was a three-day event
providing:
• Tangible business information
• Advice
• Identifying business opportunities
• Unlocking economic opportunities
• SMME Development and Promotion targeted for
entrepreneurs and prospective entrepreneurs.
We had presentations from various institutional leaders in the industry, discussions from the delegates
and a panel of experts sharing skills and knowledge
on diﬀerent topics related to small enterprise development.
Total spend for the three-day project R150,000.

70%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

1

4

2

2

Global Entrepreneurship Week
A Small business day was conducted where we oficially partnered with Endeavor SA-GEW.
• 11 partners 2010 – SPM is second municipality
and the irst to initiate it in the Northern Cape
• Activity summit: Business planning for consideration inancing.
• 60 seats – 64 attended
• 14 Business Plans were submitted, 10 were
considered for funding by Khula Enterprises
• Local partners: Khula, Nedbank, Business
Partners, NYDA, De Beers.
Total spend was R5,000.
Investment Promotion
Establishment of LED Forum: We were able to have
LED Forum in collaboration with Frances Baard
District Municipality.
UDZ Workshops: The UDZ incentive was advertised
in order to encourage city renovation and development in the UDZ Zone. UDZ application process was
developed. Two UDZ workshops were hosted in the
period. The keynote speaker was from the Department of Energy.
Investment Summit: We hosted an Investment
Summit in collaboration with Frances Baard District
Municipality.
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1

Job Creation through BPO&O: Through the BPO&O
programme we were able to create MBDs call centre
which created 228 permanent jobs. 22 additional
jobs were created during December 2010 intake
to reach a total of 228 jobs being created through
BPO&O programme.
Tourism Unit
Gariep Festival was held from the 2 to 5 September
2010. The exhibition space was shared with NCTA
and the city’s tourist attractions were marketed. A
sponsorship of R500,000 was given by SPM as the
festival contributes signi icantly to drawing a large
number of visitors into the city, buying crafts produced by locals, leading to a positive economic injection into the city.
Woman to Woman Show: The event was hosted
with the objective of developing and providing a
platform for arts in the form of drama and poetry
which contributes to domestic tourism. The threeday event was successfully hosted in August 2010.
Resuscitation of the Tram: This is key to positioning Kimberley as a preferred tourist destination; the
experience of riding on a tram is unique to Kimberley. During September 2010 the tram operation had
to be stopped as the wheels posed a threat of derailing. An advertisement was placed to acquire services
of experts to do a complete refurbishment of the
tram. An amount of R167,000 was spent by to ensure
that the tram is repaired to the required state as the
lives of tourists cannot be placed at any risk. Repair
progress was at 95% at the end of the inancial year
2010/2011.
Mural Arts: The objective of this project is to
promote domestic tourism through ine art, and to
strengthen the tourism activity route in Galeshewe.
The irst phase of project was implemented in November 2010 and successfully completed in February 2011. Four walls along the activity route were
identi ied and painted with mural art depicting the
story of events that took place in Kimberley.
Achievements with the project are:
• the itinerary of tourist guides has been expanded
• aesthetics of Galeshewe were improved
• negative graf iti is curbed
• local artists were developed and trained by a
renowned artist in Kimberley
• 13 temporary jobs were created through the
initiative
• a new tourism route has been developed.
A brochure to market the route has been developed
and the route was launched in February 2011 in
partnership with DEDAT (Department of Economic
Development & Tourism).
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100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Diamonds and Dorings Festival: This is one of
the main draw cards into Kimberley during Easter
period. The tenth Diamonds & Dorings Festival was
hosted in 2011 and included:
• a comedy show
• a fun run
• a youth festival
• ended with the main event at Langley Resort.
The project was successfully hosted and was recorded in local news media as a huge success as all races
gathered in one venue to enjoy the festival.
Mini stats were carried out randomly on accommodations and petrol stations to test and measure the
impact of the event to local businesses, with some
con irming a rise of 15% in income. 7,000 people
attended.
The business plan for the festival was successfully
developed and sent out to potential sponsors. SPM
sponsored R1 million, and additional sponsorships
to the value of just over R2 million were sourced in
partnership with the organiser.
Application has been completed and sent to Lotto
funding for the next inancial year, and acknowledgement of receipt of application was made by Lotto.
Local SMMEs bene ited through the festival as they
were subcontracted to provide various services and
a total of over 300 temporary jobs were created
through the festival.
Development of Tourism website: The layout was
completed, and 50% of data was submitted by Tourism Of ice to be uploaded.
Challenges were leading to not reaching the target:
• Compiling a website to the required standard,
internally.
• No funding available to advertise for an external
service provider.
N12 Promotion: This project is aimed at targeting
the motorists passing through Kimberley en route to
their destination during the December holiday period. The objective is to encourage motorists to spend
a minimum of three days in Kimberley during their
subsequent holidays.
Tourism interns disseminate tourism related information about Kimberley and promotional materials.
The project was successfully completed in partnership with NCTA during December 2010.
Barney Barnato Golf Tournament: The tournament
was successfully held from 23 to 30 October 2010.
SPM sponsored R20,000 towards this event, which is
instrumental in increasing tourist in lux into the city.
SPM was featured in the advertising booklet of the
tournament as a sponsor.

210

100%

100%

30%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Establishment of bird viewing platform at
Kamfersdam: Project cost is R800,000 of which
R500,000 is provided by DEDAT and R300,000 by
SPM. The objective of the project is to strengthen &
develop the current tourism portfolio of the city.
The inal MOU was successfully developed and signed
by SPM and NCR (Part owners of land) and awaiting
signature by DEDAT. (The NOU was 80% complete in
year ending June 2010.)
Due to heavy rains that were experienced in the early
months of 2011, the area earmarked for construction
was under lood. The water levels have been monitored and the situation has not improved.

0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Annual payment of Marketing Fee to NCTA: The
amount of R60,000 was facilitated from SPM through
the tourism sub-unit as NCTA is a provincial marketing agent.

100%

100%

Jobs Created: Approximate number of jobs that were
created in inancial year 2010/2011 is 397.

397

This has therefore delayed the project and it has been
concluded that to continue with construction under
the circumstances would be too costly.
The project could not be concluded and may be rescheduled to mid 2012 for completion.
Tourism Shows: These shows were utilised as a
platform to expose and market Kimberley’s tourist
attractions by tourism staﬀ.
•

DSTV Getaway Show

•

To-Go-To Expo

•

NOCCI Business Expo

•

Indaba Trade & Tourism Show

•

Sol Plaatje Literary Festival

•

Destinations Expo

•

Namibia Expo

•

Gariep Festival.

Advertising: To position Kimberley as the tourist
destination of choice, tourism attractions were marketed in the following magazines:
•

Equinox

•

Experience SA

•

Encounter Africa

•

Explore Magazine

•

Sowetan Soccer magazine

•

Kimberley Meander

•

Commuter SA

•

Euro SA Magazine

•

Northern Cape Tourism Directory.

A number of the above mentioned magazines are
published internationally to potential tourists.
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100

Management of Tourism Information Centre:
A registry was developed by the Tourism unit to measure the level of satisfaction from local residents and
tourists regarding the service received at the Information Centre. The service is ranking at 90% and above
on a monthly basis. Dissemination of tourism related
information is done manually and electronically.

95%

100%

80%

100%

An extension of Information centre was made at the
Kimberley airport through engagement with ACSA
management.
Curio Shop: The business plan has been successfully
developed and completed and sent to various potential sponsors to partner in the construction of the
curio shop which will provide service to bus commuters/tourists as well as providing a platform to locals
to sell their crafts.
To date, a sponsorship of R5,000 has been received
from De Beers.
Plans to Improve Performance in 2011/2012
Each Manager as Project Manager to sign a performance contract in terms of the SDBIP.

100%

The LED Unit will have a Strategic Planning session to
develop an LED Vision, goals and objectives in order
to enhance performance.

New

100%

LED Committee has developed terms of reference to
guide areas of focus as far as local economic development is concerned.

New

100%

The IDP for 2011/2012 to 2013/2014 is also completed with clear objectives for LED Unit in relation to
SDBIP or service delivery.

100%

Continuation of the implementation of Municipal
Turnaround Strategy.

100%

The implementation of the twelve Outcome Agreement as part of the programme of action from the
Presidency.

New

To have meetings with organised business and
spheres of government regarding LED through LED
Forums.

8

Jobs to be created in 2011/2012 in terms of Man-days
worked.

273,784

Procurement to be spent on local SMMEs and BEE
through SPMs Supply Chain Management.

60%

To have approved Investment Strategy or Policy by
31st December 2011.
To have job creation strategy be developed by 31st
December 2011.

212

100%

350,000
60%
100%

New
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100%

Function

Strategic Economic Development and Planning

Sub-function

Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

The function of the Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme is to promote and guide
development in Galeshewe as well as to lobby funding for GURP in accordance with
the GURP Business plan and other policies related to GURP.
Strategic Objectives
Implementing the GURP as a means of creating a better life for all.
Key Issues for 2010/2011

Description of the
Activity

Economic empowerment through creating enabling environment and enhancing
social security by increasing access to basic services and sustainable jobs.
To improve the environment and living conditions through infrastructural upgrade
and enhancing Public spaces.
To increase public sector investment in order to leverage private sector investment.
To expand URP to other townships, mainly to breach the development gap and to
bring these abreast with URP objectives.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
5

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Key
Performance
Area

1,864,437
288,395

Total Employee Related Costs

Analysis of the
Function

(Rand)

2,152,832

Type and number of grants and subsidies
received in 2010/2011

18,500,000

Neighbourhood Partnership Development Grant
(National Treasury). R19,3 million was gazetted for
the implementation of Capital projects for year
2010/2011 But it was adjusted downwards to R9 million.
For 2011/2012, for R10 million was gazetted.

1

9,000,000

An extra allocation of R2 million was gazetted to
complete ive business plans that needed more funding.

1

2,000,000

PIG COGHSTA (Province)

1

7,500,000

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Current

Target

Maintenance of twelve parks in Galeshewe

100%

100%

Tlhageng Shopping centre

100%

100%

Phutanang Clinic

100%

100%

Dunston Shopping Centre.

100%

100%

CCTV Camera Poles

90%

100%

SMME Village

40%

100%

Arti icial Turf & related Items

10%

100%

TRS Terms of Reference Completed

100%

100%

SMME Village

45%

100%

GURP Projects
Sustainable
Service Delivery

NDPG Projects
LED
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Submitted NDPG Business Plans
Galeshewe Light Industrial Park

100%

100%

Tourism Strategy & Projects

100%

100%

Galeshewe Icons Project

100%

100%

Terms of Reference for Galeshewe Festival

100%

100%

Crime Prevention Through Urban Upgrade

100%

100%

Greenbelt

100%

100%

Hostel Upgrade

100%

100%

Galeshewe

100%

100%

100%

100%

1

1

Current

2011/2012

Expansion of URP to other areas

0

2

To develop a Township Regeneration Strategy

0

1

Lobby for counter-funding

0

4

To increase the number of sustainable jobs to 25

15

25

NDPG Project Plans submitted 2010/2011

Achievements 2010/2011
NDPG Business plans Completed
Hosted Heritage day Commemoration
Created 15 sustainable jobs
Plans to improve Performance 2011/2012
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Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Personal Health Services (Clinics)

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes all activities associated with the provision of personal health.

Description of the
Activity

The function for the provision of personal health services within the
municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Mother/child health. Reproductive Health. STD (HIV/
Aids), TB control, curative services, chronic diseases,
mental health, rehabilitation, communicable disease
10 clinics
control, support services (HBC), professional development and training including student and in-service
6 municipal
training, ARV assessment and treatment, health educaclinics
245,000
tion, immunisation and child health, anti- and post natal care, PMTCT, minor ailments, geriatrics, oral health, 4 provincial
clinics
termination of pregnancy education, VCT, trauma and
injuries, nutritional services (PEM scheme), specialised
services including diabetes, epilepsy, etc.

The strategic objectives of this function are to:
Improve personal health services. Monitor and plan strategically. Empower the
community to take responsibility for their own health.
The key issues are:
• To provide a more accessible, quality service to the community.
• Decrease the number of communicable diseases.
• Improve quality of health.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Total
(Rand)
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
40
6,114,476
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
1,395,251
Total Employee Related Costs
7,509,727
Number, cost of public, private clinics servicing
population
Total
(Rand)
Public Clinics (owned by municipality)
6
8,568,633
Analysis of the
Function
Total annual patient head count for service provided by the municipality
5 years and older
294,847
under 5 years
44,955
Note: if no age range available, place to other.
Estimated backlog in number of and costs to build clinics
Only for extension of existing facilities
6
3,514,000
Type and number of grants and subsidies received
DOH
1,323,000
Performance
During
the
Year,
Performance
Key
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Current
Target
Performance
Improve Performance
Area
Number of patients reached by promoting health by
Sustainable
health education and immunisation. Also provide
Service Delivery
curative, rehabilitative and chronic services.
387,117
384,000
and Infrastructure Type and number of grants and subsidies received
100%
100%
Development
DOH
2,306,000
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Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Social Development

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes all activities associated with the Social Development unit.
The function of provision of TB/STI/HIV/Aids, Youth and Poverty Alleviation services within the Municipality is administered as follows and
includes:
Reduction in incident and impact of TB/STI/HIV/Aids and to care for those.
Ensure workplace awareness of impact of TB/STI/HIV/Aids.
Use appropriate Council resources to provide support for people living with HIV/
Aids.
Provision of support to infected and aﬀected employees by Peer Educators.

Description of the
Activity

Frequent visit to diﬀerent sections of the Municipality to oﬀer information and to
test for HIV.
Strategic Objectives
Education and Training
HIV counselling and Testing
Support
Promotion and Awareness
Key Issues for 2010/2011
Training more Peer Educators.
Reaching 70% of the workforce.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Analysis of the
Function

Total

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

2

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

551,474
99,962

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)

651,436
Current

Target

Number of employees attending information sessions

800

1,500

Number of employees who voluntarily tested for HIV
Sustainable
Service Delivery
Number of condoms distributed
and Infrastructure Number of support groups
Development
Number of Peer Educators trained

400

480

40,000

36,000

4

4

10

6

Number of households assisted with indigent funerals
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175,000

Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Library and Research Services

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes all activities associated with the provision of library and research services
The function of provision of library services within the municipality is
administered as follows and includes:
Eleven library service points are spread over Kimberley to bring this service to the
doorstep of each user.
Provide library and information services to all inhabitants.
The strategic objectives of this function are to:

Description of the
Activity

•

Improve the literacy rate in Kimberley and to support the education system.

•

Be an outstanding free service delivery unit educating the public for life and
addressing all information challenges facing our society.

•

Do research for national and international clients at the Africana Library.

The key issues are to:
•

Render an outreach programmes at all our services points to children to increase our membership.

•

Supply in all information needs of our users where possible.

•

Improve services to students.

•

Obtain and keep skilled professional information workers (librarians).

•

Provide continuous in-house training to all staﬀ members.

•

Preserve Africana collection for future generations.

Nature and extent of facilities provided
Library service points
Analysis of the
Function

11

Number of users

48,920

Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Total

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

54

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Sustainable
Service Delivery
and Infrastructure
Development

4,753,535
1,446,577

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)

6,200,112
Current

Target

Number of enquiries handled by staﬀ at counter

29,508

24,000

Number of children attending outreach programmes

18,032

15,000

DOH

100%

100%

Researches done for clients at Africana Library

1,595

1,200
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Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Emergency Services

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Rendering of an all inclusive emergency services to the residents of Sol Plaatje.

Description of the
Activity

The function of provision of emergency services within the municipality is
administered as follows and includes:

Analysis of the
Function

Eﬀective emergency services ( ire, rescue and disaster management) activities
through the following sections: Operational, Public Safety, Training and Logistical.
The strategic objective of this function is to render an eﬀective emergency service.
The key issues are:
Emergency service - operations activities, public safety, logistical management,
training and disaster management.
Nature and extent of facilities provided
Four ire stations.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Total

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

74

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

12,604,513
Current

Target

100%

95%

500 Fire prevention inspections and awareness
programmes per annum

950

500

12 Fire prevention programmes per annum

17

12

Develop and implement operational training
programme to comply with SANS 10090

624

228
(hours per
annum)

Compliance with National Disaster Management Tool

75%

75%

95% of call outs responded to within time limits as
prescribed in tables 1 and 2 of SANS 10090
Sustainable
Service Delivery
and
Infrastructure
Development

10,126,200
2,478,313

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)
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Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Traffic Services

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Ensure a road safety environment within SPM by means of law enforcement, road
marking and signs and collection of ines.
Ensure a road safety environment within Sol Plaatje Municipality by means of :

Description of the
Activity

Law Enforcement
Road markings and signs
Collection of ines
Execution of municipal by-laws
Road blocks
Parking control.
The strategic objectives of this function are to ensure that all road users adhere to
road traf ic legislation by means of road blocks, speed law enforcement, execution
of warrant of arrests. Also the erection of road traf ic signs and markings.
The key issues are to:
Review policy to address service norms and standards
Activities to improvement traf ic and pedestrian safety.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs:Salaries

Total
111

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

(Rand)
18,221,101
4,399,698

Total Employee Related Costs

22,620,799

Law Enforcement
Total hours worked

44,710.5

Percentage time on law enforcement

48.55%

Total cases handled

41,975

Statistics of Income: (Income description)
Fines

111,974

Fines summonses

5,584,677

Unclaimed ines

648,919

Miscellaneous revenue

231,319

Total number of call-outs attended
Emergency call-outs

15/week

Standard call-outs

75/week

Average response time to call-outs
Emergency call-outs

7 min

Standard call-outs

10 min

Total number of targeted violations e.g.
Traf ic oﬀences
Speed, motor defects, driver itness,
drunk driving, transportation, hawkers,
negligence and parking

41,975

Loss of life during emergencies gets attended to by
the SAPS.
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Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Basic Service
Delivery and
Infrastructure
Development

Current

Target

Section 341 notices issued

4,264

4,500

Speed oﬀences

3,808

4,500

Oﬀences by camera : Speed and red robots

2,171

3,000

Section 56

23,528

25,000

Summonses issued

7,925

9,000

Warrants of arrests executed

4,895

5,500

Accidents

5,500

90%

New Road markings (per square metre)

244.1

100%

25,590.77

30,000

Road signs replaced

587

600

New Road signs erected

191

300

1,081

1,100

Road signs cleaned

117

150

Road signs removed

192

80%

Road signs and poles re-erected

375

400

Repainted Road Markings (per square metre)
Good Governance
and Public
Participation

220

Road signs repainted
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Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Motor Registration and Licensing

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes all activities associated with the provision of registration of motor vehicles,
roadworthy and licensing of motor vehicles, learner and driving licences.
The function for the provision of motor registration and licensing services
within the municipality is administered as follows and includes :
Registrations of vehicles.
Licensing of vehicles

Description of the
Activity

Renewal of motor vehicles
Roadworthy and licensing of motor vehicles
Learner and driving licences.
The strategic objectives of this function are to ensure that all vehicles are registered and licensed and all drivers on national roads are legally permitted on the
road.
The key issues are:
To improve on service delivery.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
31

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

(Rand)
4,246,505
1,152,554

Total Employee Related Costs

5,399,059

Total annual transactions for services provided
by the municipality

Total

Drivers

37,668

Renewal of Licences

8,962

Temporary Drivers Licences

3,257

Professional Drivers Licence Permit

2,151

Authorised Drivers Licence

4,342

Application Learners Licences

6,414

Application Drivers Licences

7,626

Application Learners Licences

4,916

Registrations

80,130

Registrations

17,014

Licence Renewals

60,630

Duplicate Registration Certi icates

1,018

Temporary Permits

678

Special Permits

304

Scrapping

550

Searches

536

Roadworthy Tests
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1,068

221

Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Current

Authorisation of learners licences

6,562

9,000

Authorisation of drivers licences

5,675

7,200

Ensure that all motor vehicles in SPM area are roadworthy by testing roadworthiness to comply with
the Road Traf ic Act, 1996 (Act No 93 of 1996) and
SANS speci ications

Sustainable
Service Delivery
and
Infrastructure
Development

222

Target

933

Ensure that all motor vehicles are registered and
licensed by reducing the waiting period.

15 minutes

Ensure that all driver licences are renewed. Every
ive years motorists have to renew their driving
licenses and bi-annual renewal of PRDPs.

11,676
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960

20 minutes

12,000

Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Sustainable Energy and Climate Change Unit (SECCU)

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

To uphold and complement the city vision, policies and programmes identi ied in
the Integrated Development Plan (IDP). To implement, evaluate and maintain the
Sustainable Energy Strategy for the City and all its communities. To address energy
ef iciency and climate change mitigation at a local authority level thereby placing
the focus on our diminishing energy resources and also global warming. To develop
and Integrated Environmental Management Plan (IEMP) for Sol Plaatje Municipality.
The function of provision of SECCU within the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Stimulating sustainable energy approaches and practices within Sol Plaatje Municipality and the integration of energy ef iciency objectives into all its functions.
Complementing service delivery and inancial sustainability in Sol Plaatje Municipality’s operations.

Description of the
Activity

Improving the air quality, health and safety in communities by introducing and
promoting economic and innovative energy ef iciency practices.
The key issues are:
•

To initiate steps towards declaring Sol Plaatje Municipality a Solar City.

•

Climate mitigation tree planting.

•

Signing of MOU with SALGA to implement the Swiss Development Corporation
funded Energy Ef iciency Monitoring Programme

•

Installation of 7,836 passive SWHs in low cost houses. DORA funding through
Eskom.

Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Analysis of the
Function

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total

(Rand)

2

725,947

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

115,897

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

841,844

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Current

Target

Develop an Integrated Environmental Management
Plan by December 2011.

50%

100%

100%

100%

Sustainable
State of Environment report received for review.
Service Delivery
and Infrastructure Project commenced late due to securing the
necessary funding.
Development
Development and implementation of a Sustainable
Energy and Climate Change Strategy (SPECCS).
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Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Parks and Recreation Services

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

The provision of sport facilities, the provision of parks and gardens and other
horticulturist services and to provide quality cemetery facilities and services. The
Crematorium is privately owned and operated.
The function of provision of various parks and recreation services within
the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Provision and maintenance of facilities, preparation of facilities for sport. Provision,
development and maintenance of parks and gardens, open spaces, street trees, trafic islands/medians.
To provide a service to the community for the digni ied interment and remembrance of human remains.
Ensure that the Parks and Recreation Section delivers services eﬀectively and eficiently, thereby putting the Batho Pele principles into practice.
The strategic objectives of this function are to:
•
•
•
•
•

Description of the
Activity

Ensure provision of services in a sustainable manner.
Promote socio-economic development.
Promote a safe and healthy environment.
Encourage community involvement.
Provide and maintain adequate, safe swimming pools for recreational facilities
in terms of Council’s policy.
• Establish and undertake medium and long-term planning for the provision of
sport facilities.
• Provide horticulturist services with speci ic reference to: development and
maintenance of parks, open spaces and public gardens, beauti ication of entrance routes and traf ic islands/medians.
• Planting and maintenance of street trees.
• The control and eradication of declared weeds and invader species.
• The maintenance of irrigation network and playground equipment.
• The maintenance of plant material in a holding nursery.
• Prepare graves and burial of bodies.
• Maintain grounds and buildings.
• Provide administrative support.
• Booking of burials, updating of records and to ensure eﬀective revenue collection and banking of services rendered.
The key issues are:
• To create awareness amongst the community regarding the various sporting
codes, thereby promoting development sport.
• Promote accessibility of all facilities amongst the community and to increase
the number of play parks.
• To strive for customer service excellence through continuous assessment, innovation and improvement.
• To act ethically with professionalism and courtesy.
• To trust, support and cooperate with each other and the community.
• Care for the cemetery environment.
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Nature and extent of facilities provided

No. of
Facilities

No of
Users

Other community halls/facilities

10

1,031

Cemeteries and crematoriums (crematorium private)

12

2,332

2

247

Sporting facilities:
Stadiums
Sport Fields (Community Facility)
Analysis of the
Function

8
Caravan Park

1

7,071

Club

1

514

Swimming Pools

4

13,679

Parks, gardens, islands

83
(60Ha)

Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
202

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

21,489,567
5,708,106

Total Employee Related Costs
Key
Performance
Area

(Rand)

27,197,673
Current

Target

51%

100%

64%

100%

The planting of trees target was exceeded.

507 trees

360 trees

Eradication of alien vegetation was exceeded.

429 trees

200 trees

100%

100%

The set targets for the cutting of natural grass in
cemeteries was not achieved due to:
•

Above average rainfall resulting in an increase in
the growth rate

•

Transport and equipment shortages

•

Vast area to be cleaned with a limited workforce

•

Funding for equipment and herbicide was
received late in the iscal year

•

Unrealistic target was set - expectations could
not be met.

Grass cutting targets attained under dif icult circumstances is commendable. The high rainfall made it
almost impossible to adhere to the programme.
Transport and equipment challenges also had to be
overcome.

All complaints/requests by the public were
completed within the target time frames although
transport challenges were experienced.
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Function

Community and Social Development Services

Sub-function

Environmental Health Services (Cleansing Services)

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes refuse removal, solid waste disposal and land ill, street cleaning and recycling
The refuse collection functions of the municipality are administered as
follows and include:
Refuse removal takes place once per week. This is a door-to-door service and six
cubic metre bulk containers where access roads are not functional.

Description of the
Activity

These services extend to include operation of land ill sites, cleaning of open spaces
and administration, but do not take account of national roads which reside with the
jurisdiction of local government.
SPM has a mandate to operate in the Greater Kimberley, Ritchie, Modderriver, Platfontein, Riverton and Langleg.
The strategic objective of this function is to provide a clean and healthy environment for inhabitants of SPM.
The key issues are to:
Upgrade the service of the CBD area and all main entrances and open spaces.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
172

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

(Rand)
19,607,013
4,380,403

Total Employee Related Costs

23,987,416

Number of households receiving regular refuse removal services, and
frequency and cost of service
Removed by municipality at least once a week
Removed by municipality less often

51,000
6,240

Communal refuse dump used

0

Own refuse dump

2

No refuse disposal

0

Total and projected tonnage of all refuse
disposed
Domestic/Commercial
Garden

124,173
1,675

Total number, capacity and life expectancy of
refuse disposal sites
Domestic/Commercial (Number)

2

10 years

Garden (number)

1

Ongoing

Anticipated expansion of refuse removal
service
Domestic/Commercial (Number)
Garden (number)

156,629
1,690

Free Basic Service Provision
Domestic/Commercial (Number)

9,836

Garden (number)

4,814

226

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

Key
Performance
Area

Sustainable
Service Delivery

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Current

Target

4,300

4,300

Number of recycling projects

12

3/year

Cleaning of illegal dumping and removal thereof

300

300

18km/year

18Km/year

100%

100%

All households (formal and informal) provided with
once a week refuse removal and solid waste disposal
collection by 30 September 2010 (Backlog 4,300) additional households serviced

Cleaning of entrance routes
Develop an Integrated Waste Management Plan
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Function

Infrastructure and Services

Sub-function

Housing

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Housing includes all activities associated with provision of housing. Housing is not
necessarily a core function of the municipality at its delivery wing but accreditation
would bring that to full competency. The municipality is currently being conditionally accredited at level two.
The function of provision of housing within the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Housing Administration
Allocation of sites/transfers of properties to deserving bene iciaries, allocation of
municipal stock e.g. EEDBS programme, rentals.
Housing Development
Subsidy processing and construction of BNG houses.

Description of the
Activity

These services extend to include the municipal area, but do not take account of
projects directly implemented by the Province, which resides within the jurisdiction of Provincial government.
The municipality has a mandate to ensure provision of all basic housing to deserving communities.
The strategic objective of this function is to ensure provision of all basic housing
to deserving communities is achieved through the subsidy system.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are to build units at:
Dunston
Donkerhoek
Ritchie
In ill areas
Phutanang
Soul City Phase I and 2
Retswelele Ext
Zone II
Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Total

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

70

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

(Rand)
10,050,232
1,974,605

Total Employee Related Costs

12,024,837

Number and total value of current and planned
housing projects
No. of units

(Rand)

Current ( inancial year after year reported on)

384

11,008,000

5,541

343,542,000

1,592

87,002,800

Planned (future years) by 2014
Total type, number and value of housing provided
540 Donkerhoek
151 Ubuntu
408 Zone II
330 Phuthanang
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45 Tswelelang
18 Galeshewe In ill areas
100 Ritchie In ill areas
Total number and value of rent received from municipal owed rental units
Eugene

30

Krisant

32

Jonker

24

Eureka

20

Flamingo

48

Beacons ield

286

Dingaan

294

Impala

52

Hercules

60

Holland

36

Newton

24

Newpark

84

Tiﬀany

24

Santa

24

Roodepan

408

Total

1,446

2,319,676

Estimated backlog in number of (and costs to build) housing
Incremental formal housing: Self- inanced and
improved housing

349

Communal/transitional housing

146

BNG Housing: Municipal delivered stock for
ownership in areas of high growth

5,541

Social Housing: Mediuim to high-density social
housing in Hull Street and Soul City

2,803

Formalised home ownership: Mortgaged property
for the Gap market
Total

733
9,572

523,109,800

Type and number of grants and subsidies received
Provincial Department of COGSHTA at R54,560 per
subsidy
Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance
Number of subsidised houses provided

Sustainable
Service Delivery

Preparation and implementation of a ive-year
Integrated Human Settlement Plan (IHSP) aligned
with IDP/GDS by September 2011

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

639

34,897,325

Current

Target

584

546

100%

100%
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Function

Waste Water Management

Sub-function

Sewerage Services

Reporting Level

Detail
Includes provision of sewerage services not including infrastructure and water
puri ication, also includes toilet facilities.
The sewerage functions of the municipality are administered as follows
and include:
Provision of sanitation facilities to the community
Maintenance of the sanitation network and bulk infratructure
Management and operation of the Waste Water Treatment Works
Management of the puri ied ef luent quality
Attend to sanitation queries and complaints
The strategic objectives of this function is to provide an eﬀective sanitation service
to the residents of Sol Plaatje Municipality.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
Due to the bulk infrastructure challenges, the key issue for the inancial year is improving capacity and ef luent quality at the Wastewater Treatment Works facilities.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Total
(Rand)
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
122
15,634,336
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
3,322,808
Total Employee Related Costs
18,957,144
Number of households with sewerage services,
and type and cost of service
No. of units
(Rand)
Flush toilet (connected to sewerage system) cost at
20 000 per household.
49,650
165,000,000
Flush toilet (with septic tank)
168
Pit latrine with ventilation
1,070
Bucket latrine
9,177
Anticipated expansion of sewerage
Flush/chemical toilet
8,290
Free Basic Service Provision
Quantity (number of households aﬀected)
18,569
761,700
Quantum (value to each household)
Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans
Current
Target
to Improve Performance
No targets for the inancial year. Focus was placed on
the refurbishment of the Bulk Infrastruture. Work was
successfully completed on the Homevale and Beaconsield Waste Water Treatment Works refurbishment.
The work completed on Beacons ield Waste Water
Treatment Works was part of the phase 1 funded by
De Beers Mines.
0
0%
The moratorium on development with respect to the
capacity at Homevale Waste Water Treatment Works
has affected the planning and provision of sanitation
reticulation to the community. Focus for the ϔinancial
year under review was placed on bulk infrastructure
refurbishment.

Overview

Description of the
Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Key
Performance
Area

Sustainable
Service Delivery
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Function

Road Transport

Sub-function

Roads and Storm Water

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Construction and maintenance of roads within the municipality’s jurisdiction.

Description of the
Activity

The road maintenance and construction responsibilities of the municipality are administered as follows and include:
Construction,patching and resealing of roads
Re-gravelling and scraping of gravel roads cleaning, unblocking and repairing of
stormwater drains
Construction and repairing of sidewalks
Erecting and repairing of fences
Erecting and repairing of street names.
The strategic objectives of this function are to:
Maintain paved/surfaced roads to ensure that they are in an acceptable standard by
patching and resealing annually.
Maintain stormwater drains to ensure that runoﬀ water is drained adequately from
developed areas.
Manufacture and construct stormwater intake frames to ensure that all broken
stormwater intakes are replaced.
Maintain gravel roads to ensure that they are in an acceptable standards.
Maintain streets names and information signs to ensure easy access to surburbs
and business areas.
Maintain sidewalks to ensure safe accessibility by pedestrians.
Maintain municipal fences to ensure safety of pedestrian.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
Repairing and resurfacing of streets.
Scraping and re-gravelling of gravel roads.
Cleaning,unblocking and repairing of stormwater drains.
Repairing of pavements.
Construction of new roads.
Maintanence of streets names.
Patching of potholes.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
74

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Analysis of the
Function

New bitumenised/paved (number)

8,502,704
2,221,023

Total Employee Related Costs
Total number, kilometres and total value of
road projects planned and current

(Rand)

10,723,727
Units
5,26Km

(Rand)
7,317,000

Existing re-tarred (number)

0

0

New gravel (number)

0

0

Existing re-sheeted (number)

0

0

Bicycle lane project
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7.6
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3,912,000

Total kilometres and maintenance cost associated with existing roads
provided
Tar

40,665

Gravel

9,750,000

3.92

Average frequency and cost of re-tarring, re-sheeting roads
Tar

0

0

Gravel

0

0

Estimated backlog in number of roads, showing kilometres and capital cost
Tar
200
480,000,000
Gravel
Type and number of grants and subsidies received
Municipal infrustructure grant (Roll over)

6,250,000

Own municipal funding

2,799,000

Department of Roads, Transport and Public Works
(Roll over)

6,400,000

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Key
Performance
Area

Current

Target

0

5.8Km

3.9Km

30Km

9Km

480Km

Repairing and resealing of streets: A total of 32,9Km
of surfaced streets were acheived in the previous
inancial year (2009/2010) budget attributed to funds
allocated by the Department of Roads, Transport
and Public Works towards this function. As a result,
2010/2011 internal funds were reallocated to tar
patching to eradicate potholes backlog.
The focus is now more on applying preventative
measures such as resurfacing, crack sealing, etc. These
methods have proven to be more eﬀective than patching as they would increase enormously the lifespan of
our roads, thereby allowing us to spend less on maintenance and focus more on the construction of new roads.
Basic and
Sustainable
Service Delivery
and Infrastructure
Development

The roads infrastructure is a valuable asset to the municipality and has a high value. If not well maintained,
its lifespan will decrease rapidly.
Re-gravelling of streets: 30Km of gravel roads were
targeted for regravelling and re-shaping. This year
only 3.9Km of gravel roads were graded due to inadequate resources, continuous breakdown of dilapidated
machinery as well as the eﬀect of the new procurement
system (Intenda).
Scraping of gravel roads: 480Km of gravel roads were
targeted for scraping. This year only 9Km of gravel
roads were scraped. Challenges range from inadequate
resources and continuous breakdown of plant and
machinery.
The new procurement system should be improved to
increase the perfomance of this function.
The set target of 480Km is improper as the current
backlog is 200Km of gravel roads.
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Cleaning and repairing of stormwater drains:
Approximately 3,859m of lined canals/channels were
cleaned. Most of the budget allocated to this functinon is spent on internal labour and temporary labour
charge-outs which uses at least half of the allocation.
If personnel charges are sourced separately, then
more work will be achieved in a year.
Issuing of gravel and red soil: The total amount
of soil was issued to the public for storm water
complaints, and red soil was mostly bought by local
companies for private usage.
Repairing of pavements: The internal maintenance
team covered a total area of 2,928m² on repairing
pavements, inclusive of works orders from the Water
Works and Electrical sections. Charge-outs on job
orders should be properly monitored to improve the
perfomance of this function.

3,859m

13,000m

2,300

350

2,928m²

5,000m²

406,65m²

50,000m²

5.2Km

10Km

Patching of potholes: The internal maintenance
team covered a total area of 30,665m2, and the
local external service provider covered a total of
10,000m2. Due to the excessive rains we experienced
in the months of December 2010 and January 2011,
many roads deteriorated, and major roads have
developed potholes in a very short period of time,
recreating a backlog in terms of potholes that need to
be patched.
However,we developed an accelerated maintenance
plan to deal with the challenges, which includes
the involvement of private contractors to assist our
internal patching teams to deal with the maintenance
of the aging roads infrastructure within the municipality.
We are constantly looking at diﬀerent ways of improving our maintenance techniques to increase our
internal production capacity, assist the Municipality
in achieving their set target and enhance the quality
of work done by our teams.
Our plan is to secure external funding that will enable
us to focus more on applying preventative measures
to our roads such as resurfacing of roads.
Construction of roads (paving blocks): 10km of
roads were targeted for this function, but only 5.2Km
of roads (3.6Km from project 107 and 1.5Km from
Wards project) were paved.
The estimated length to be paved on Wards project is
1.5km.
Funds allocated were not suf icient to cover the set
annual target. We urge that more funding be allocated so that more roads can be paved.
Internal implemetation of roads projects is cost eﬀective and can result in set targets being reached, but is
however dependant on availability of resources and
skills.
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Function

Water

Sub-function

Water Distribution

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes the bulk purchase and distribution of water
The water purchase and distribution functions of the municipality are
administered as follows and include:

Description of the
Activity

•

Puri ication of bulk raw water to portable standards

•

Water quality monitoring to ensure that water complies with the SANS 241
requirements

•

Operation and of water distribution infrastructures

•

Ensure adequate water suply to the community and businesses

•

Provision of new water infrastructure to the local community

•

Provision of stand taps to informal settlement

•

Bulk infrastructure capacity planning and improvement to meet the current
and future water demand

The strategic objective of this function is to ensure sustainable service delivery in
respect of water services to all residents of Sol Plaatje Municipality.
The key issues for 2010/2011 are:
•

Provide 1,750 of additional households in formal areas with metered connec tion by June 2013.

•

Provide 330 standpipes in informal settlement within a radius of 200m.

•

Reduce water losses from 40% to 15% by 30 June 2014.

•

Achieve Blue Drop status by June 2011

•

Complete a Non-Revenue-Minimisation Study by 31 December 2011.

Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee Related Costs: Salaries

Total
163

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

(Rand)
17,934,665
4,169,033

Total Employee Related Costs

22,103,697

Water Sales per Annum

132,726,907

Number and total value of water projects planned (bulk Infrastructure)

Analysis of the
Function

Refurbishment of Riverton 20ML reservoir

1

5,800,000

Refurbishment of the 600 diameter water supply
main from Riverton to Kimberley

1

8,000,000

Refurbishment of Newton Reservoir complex

1

4,000,000

Installation of new pumps and back up equipment at
Riverton Water Puri ication Works

1

8,000,000

Non Revenue Water Minimisation study

1

3,900,000

Total

5

29,700,000

Number and total value of water projects planned (Yard connection)
Current: Provision of water to 700 stands at
Promised Land

1

5,000,000

Planned: Provision of water to 750 sites in Diamond
Park (Green Point)

1

4,500,000
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Anticipated expansion of water service
Piped water inside yard

1,210

Motswedi Mosa (Ritchie)

640

Rietvale (Ritchie)

150

Frazer Moleketsi (Ritchie)

420

Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m
from dwelling

8,290

Grand Total

7,200,000

49,700,000
56,900,000

Estimated backlog in number (and cost to provide) water connection
Piped water inside yard

1,960

Diamond Park 750 (Formal areas)

11,700,000

750

Ritchie 1210 ( Formal areas)

1,210

Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m
from dwelling

8,290

49,700,000

Free Basic Service Provision
Quantity (number of households aﬀected)

18,569

Quantum (value to each household)

10Kl

Type and number of grants and subsidies received
Key
Performance
Area

MIG for water provision to stands in Promised Land

700

68,700,000

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Current

Target

0

700

84%

75%

40%

50%

38.50%

33%

To provide households with metered water connections
To achieve 75% Blue Drop status
Basic and
To reduce water losses
Sustainable
As part of the process to reduce water losses a
Service Delivery
and Infrastructure Non-revenue Water Minimisation Study is presently
being conducted
Development
Preparation of a Non-revenue Water Minimisation
Study to reduce water losses by 31 December 2010
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Function

Electricity

Sub-function

Electricity Distribution

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes the bulk purchase and distribution of electricity.
The electricity purchase and distribution functions of the municipality are administered as follows and include:
These services extend to include the Kimberley area but do not take account of
Ritchie which resides within the jurisdiction of Eskom.
The municipality has a mandate to:
Provide and maintain the electrical infrastructure and to ensure the restoration of
and interrupted supply is in accordanse with NRS 047 and NRS 048 speci ications.
To provide all households access to basic electricity and to reduce electricity losses.

Description of the
Activity

The strategic objectives of this function are to:
•

Provide and maintain the electrical infrastructure and to ensure the restoration
of and interrupted supply is in accordance with NRS 047 and NRS 048 speci ications.

•

Provide all households access to basic electricity and to reduce electricity
losses.

The key issues for 2010/2011 are to:
•

Provide households with basic electricity utilising available funds.

•

Reduce electricity lossess.

•

Conduct maintenance on electrical infrastructure and associated equipment.

Number and cost to employer of all personnel

Total

Employee Related Costs: Salaries

(Rand)

92

16,579,481

Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

3,869,963

Total Employee Related Costs

20,449,445

Total quantity and cost of bulk electricity purchases in kilowatt hours and
rand, by category of consumer
Residential

220,255,385

69,010,417

Commercial

90,095,256

28,228,646

174,744,604

54,750,979

12,558,916

3,934,960

Industrial
Analysis of the
Function

Street lighting
Total

497,654,161 155,925,002

Total quantity and receipts for bulk electricity sales in kilowatt hours and
rand, by category of consumer:
Residential

180,120,315

182,487,000

Commercial

73,678,044

68,597,000

142,902,536

61,893,000

10,270,423

8,128,000

Industrial
Street lighting
Total

406,971,318 321,105,000

Total year-to-date electricity losses in kilowatt hours and rand
Average kWhr losses
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18.22%

Number of households with electricity access, and type and cost of service
Kimlite - Units
130,119,387 133,067,000
Kimpowere - Units
50,000,928 49,421,000
Kimpower Basic Charge
7,976,000
Small Power - Units
73,678,044 68,597,000
Small Power - Basic Charge
3,044,000
Large Power - Units
142,902,536 61,893,000
Large Power -Basic Charge
10,310,000
Total

396,700,895 334,308,000

Number and cost of new connections
Soul City
Greenpoint
Mathibe Grounds

194
105
37

1,475,000
1,405,000

Total

336

2,880,000

11,626

8,138,084

Number and cost of disconnections and
reconnections

Number and total value of electriϐication projects planned and current
Current ( inancial year after year reported on)
3
4,000,000
Planned (future years)
2
8,000,000
Total
Anticipated expansion of electricity service
Increase in bulk electricity

5

12,000,000

80MVA

16,384,644

Estimated backlog in number (and cost to provide) electricity connection
Number of backlogs is based on the Housing
Backlogs in terms of the Draft Integrated Human
Settlement Plan
3,000
Free Basic Service Provision
Quantity (number of households aﬀected)
Quantum (value to each household)

18,569
50kWh

Type and number of grants and subsidies received
Electri ication Greenpoint - DoE
Street Lighting and Hi Mast - MIG
Key
Performance
Area

Basic and
Sustainable
Service Delivery

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance
Repaired leaking 66kV circuit breakers and hot
connections
Replaced outdoor 11kV switchgear and transformer
with miniature substation
Replaced blown pole mounted transformers
11kV Circuit breaker maintenance
Greenpoint, Madelane Street and Soul City Low cost houses electri ied
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2,500,000
1,500,000
Current

Target

25

36

3
5
19

3
0
50

336

166
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Function

Electricity

Sub-function

Street Lighting

Reporting Level

Detail

Overview

Includes all activities associated with the provision of street lighting to the community.
These services extend to include Kimberley and Riverton areas for both street light
and hi mast lighting, and Ritchie hi mast lighting but do not take account of Ritchie
street lighting which resides within the jurisdiction of Eskom.

Description of the
Activity

The municipality has 3 street light attendands with elevated bucket vehicles to
maintain street light, high mast maintenance are conducted by a contractor on a
quotation basis. The community phones and report faulty lights to the 24 hour control room, who in turn captures relevant information on a daily report sheet which
is sent to the foreman every morning.
The strategic objective of this function is to:

Analysis of the
Function

•

Ensure that street light are designed in the most cost eﬀective and energy
ef icient manner, and also to adhere to SANS 10098-1.

•

To conduct maitenance on all reported lights.

Total bulk kilowatt hours consumed for street
lighting

10,270,423

8,128,000

Employee Related Costs:
The employees are included in Electrcity Distribution

Key
Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance

Basic and
Sustainable
Service Delivery

Current

Target

Conducted bulk lamp replacement on hi masts lights

95

120

Hi Masts installed

2

3

Street lights installed

48

48
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CHAPTER 6 OVERSIGHT REPORT IN RESPECT OF THE
2010/2011 ANNUAL REPORT
12 March 2012. The minutes are included at
the end of this report.

1. Purpose
To enable the committee to discharge its oversight responsibility in considering the Sol Plaatje
Municipality‘s Annual Report for 2010/11 in
terms of Section 129 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003) (MFMA).

2. For decision by Council

3.4 In terms of Section 129 of the MFMA, the
Council must adopt an Oversight Report
containing the Council’s comments on the
Annual Report, which must include a statement whether the Council:
(i) Has approved the Annual Report with or
without reservations;

The Council to adopt an Oversight Report in respect of the 2010/11 Annual Report.

(ii) Has rejected the Annual Report;

3. Executive Summary
3.1 MFMA Circular No. 32 recommend the establishment of an Oversight Committee for
the detailed analysis and review of the annual report, following its tabling in Council, receiving and reviewing representations made
by the public, inputs from other councillors
and then drafting an oversight report that
may be taken to full Council for discussion.
3.2 The Municipal Public Accounts Committee
(MPAC) is required to perform the responsibilities of the Oversight Committee as envisaged in MFMA Circular No. 32 and Section
129 of the MFMA. All council committees and
the public in public participation meetings
were requested to consider the Sol Plaatje
Municipality’s Annual Report for 2010/11,
with a view to providing comments to MPAC
for inclusion in the Oversight Report to be
prepared by MPAC and adopted by Council
on 31 March 2011.
Comments made by the diﬀerent stakeholders are included in the body of this report.
3.3 MPAC considered the 2010/11 Annual Report of the Sol Plaatje Municipality in three
meetings on 8 and 27 February 2012 and on
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(iii) Has referred the Annual Report back for
revision of those components that can be
revised.
3.5 In terms of MFMA Circular No. 32, in order
to approve the Annual Report without reservations, Council should be able to agree
that the information contained in the report
is a fair and reasonable record of the performance of the municipality in the inancial
year reported upon.
Approval means that the executive and administration have discharged in full, their
accountability for decisions and actions and
that their performance meets the criteria set
by performance objectives and measures
and is also acceptable to the public.

4. Recommendations
That Council having fully considered the 2010/11
Annual Report of the municipality and representations thereon:
(i)

Council adopts the Oversight Report

(ii) Council approves the Annual Report without
reservations.

and water provision within proximity of
their houses. The other concern was the
withdrawal of R2,9m earmarked for toilets.

5. The process followed in analysing the Annual Report
5.1 The Annual Report was tabled in Council on
25 January 2012 by the Executive Mayor as
per Section 127(2) of the MFMA.

Answer by Accounting Ofϐicer
The service delivery matters will be addressed by the administration in conjunction with the Ward Councillor. The
withdrawal of the R2,9 million was a
result of promises made by Council to
the community before the funds were
in fact in the coﬀers of the municipality
from COGHTA. These funds ended up not
being committed. However, the process
is now underway to build these toilets
from reallocated funds before the end of
the 2011/12 inancial year.

5.2 Immediately after tabling in Council the report was made public and local community
invited to make representations as per Section 127(5)(a) of Municipal Systems Act and
Section 21A and B of the MFMA.
5.3 MPAC considered and analysed the report
and conducted public participation meetings as per Section 129 of the MFMA.
5.4 MPAC prepared the Oversight Report and tabled it in Council for consideration by Council as per Section 129 of the MFMA.

(iii) Kimberley CBD

6. Summary of the process followed
in the review

The Annual report was welcomed by the
community.

(a) Public participation meetings:

(iv) Riverton

MPAC conducted six public participation
meetings in the following areas of Sol Plaatje
Municipality namely: Ritchie, Platfontein, Riverton, Roodepan, Galeshewe and Kimberley
CBD during the period 5 – 8 March 2012.

The community welcomed the Annual
Report. They indicated their displeasure
at the slow pace of delivering houses
to the community. The community has
mushrooming shacks and they are not
provided with basic needs.

(i) Galeshewe (5 March 2012)
The community welcomed the report
and enquired on the slow pace of illing empty stands between houses with
new houses to alleviate the dire need for
houses in the township.

Answer by Accounting Ofϐicer
The matter of new houses to replace the
shacks should be discussed during the
formulation of Integrated Development
Plans (IDP) with the of icial of the Municipality in conjunction with the Ward
Councillor.

Answer by Accounting Ofϐicer
These in ills should be properly identi ied and included in the IDP process
which is already underway to ensure
that this problem is addressed within the
next cycle of the IDP.

(v) Platfontein
The community welcomed the Annual
Report. They requested that the Municipality should build bigger houses for
them as they have big families.

(ii) Roodepan
The community welcomed the annual
report and applauded the municipality
for achieving a quali ied audit. However,
they complained about the poor service
delivery in the informal settlement in
Ward 29, e.g. refuse removal, sanitation

Answer by Accounting Ofϐicer
The matter will be looked into.
(vi) Ritchie
The meeting did not take place as the
community did not attend the meeting.
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Annexure A
Comments and Resoloutions from Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) in respect of the
2010/2011 Annual Report
Meeting

Date

MPAC

12 March 2012

Comments and Resolutions
Recommend to Council:
That, having fully considered the 2010/2011 Annual Report of the
Municipality and representations thereon, adopts the Oversight Report and approves the annual report, without reservations and note
the following resolutions adopted by MPAC.
Chapter 1 – Introduction and Overview
Noted.
Chapter 2 – Municipal Performance Highlights
Substantial downward revision of original budget at budget review
time a concern for MPAC. While performance against reviewed
budget is commendable, co mparison with original budget is disappointing. Emphasis was made that budgeting and planning at start
of the year should be realistic to ensure that adjustments are kept at
minimum levels.
Chapter 3 – Human Resource and other organizational management
Noted.
Chapter 4 – Audited Statements and related ϐinancial information
MPAC recommended the administration for achieving a quali ied
audit from a disclaimer of the previous few years.
Chapter 5 – Functional area service delivery reporting
Lack of information from Blueprint. Accuracy of Chapter 5 could not
be veri ied in terms of Blueprint system.

AGENDA AND MINUTES OF A MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 2011 AT 14:00
PRESENT: Members
Cllr P M Vilakazi (Chairperson), Cllr P D Bishop, Cllr E K Hale, Cllr D H Pitt, Cllr P J Vorster
Non-members
Cllr J L Steyn (until 14:35), Cllr E M Mathe
Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Of icer (Z L Mahloko), Acting ED: SEDP / Policy Manager (S Setlogelo) (from 14:18), Acting ED: Corporate Services/Communication Manager (S Matsie) (from 14:15 until
15:35), ED: Community & Social Development Services, ED: Infrastructure & Services (from 14:10),
PMU Manager (from 14:35), Chief Audit Executive (N Molepo), Chief: Committee Services and the Administrative Of icer: Committee Services

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report June 2011

241

A.

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE
Cllr A A Modise
ABSENT WITHOUT LEAVE - None

B.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

RESOLVED:
1.

That the agenda & minutes of the SCOPA Committee meeting held on 17 November 2011 be adopted and approved.

2.

That the records of the SCOPA Committee meeting held on 15 December 2011 (no quorum) be
noted.

C.

PRESENTATION

Audit report 2010/2011 (AGSA – Mr. Gert Kruger) – from 14:00 until 15:25.

SPECIAL AGENDA AND MINUTES OF A MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 20 FEBRUARY 2011 AT 14:00
PRESENT: Members
Cllr P M Vilakazi (Chairperson), Cllr P D Bishop, Cllr E K Hale, Cllr D H Pitt, Cllr P J Vorster
Non-members
Cllr W P Doman, Cllr R T Morwe, Cllr M D Lekoma, Cllr O R Moseki
Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Of icer (Z L Mahloko), Acting ED: SEDP / Policy Manager (S Setlogelo), ED: Infrastructure & Services, ED: Community & Social Development Services, IDP Manager,
Head: Committee Services, Administrative Of icer: Committee Services and the Control Administrative
Assistant: Committee Services.
A.

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE
None
ABSENT WITHOUT LEAVE - None

B.

BUSINESS:

Discussion of Annual Report 2010/11 (Chapters 1, 2 and 3)
Chapter 1
The MPAC requested that the following amendments and corrections be made in terms of Chapter 1:
•
The percentages as re lected on p. 6-7 should be veri ied for correctness.
•
The number of councillors and ward committees (p. 9) should be elaborated upon in order to
inform the reader of the number of councillors and ward committees that existed for the greater
part of the inancial year before the new local government elections.
•
The organisational structure as re lected on p. 10 should be replaced with that of p. 64.
•
In the paragraph “Water”, p. 13, more detailed should be captured in terms of water losses, aging
water infrastructure and the contributing factors thereto.
•
In the paragraph “Cleaning, Waste Removal”, p. 15, the sentence “the recent heavy rains...” should
be amended to read “the recent heavy rains (January – June 2011)”
•
In the paragraph “Financial Viability and Management”, p. 15, the sentence “end of inancial year
2911” should be amended to read “end of inancial year 2011”.
•

The abbreviation “ml” should be amended to read “Ml” as it is mega litres that are to be reported.
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Chapter 2
The MPAC requested that the following amendments and corrections be made in terms of Chapter 2:
•

The comment on p. 26, Roads and stormwater, should be amended to read, “With available funding
5.2 km was achieved.” The word “only” should be omitted.

•

The table headers currently on p. 60 should be correctly re lected on p. 61.

•

The paragraph “Approval of Building Plans”, p. 61, should be shifted to re lect above the table on p.
62.

Chapter 3
The MPAC requested that the following amendments and corrections be made in terms of Chapter 3:
•

The orientation of the table on p. 64 should be changed to be horizontal.

•

The igure R1,134,907-97, p. 65, should be amended to read R1,134,907.59.

•

The table on training courses, p. 67, should be reviewed in order to ensure that LGSETA accredited
training courses are also reported on.

•

The table on pension funds, p. 69, should be reviewed in order to determine whether Cape Joint
Retirement Fund or Cape Joint Pension Fund igures are re lected in the report.

Chapters 1, 2 and 3 were dealt with satisfactorily and the amendments proposed will be made by the
CFO and distributed to councillors.
After discussions it was:
MPAC04/12

RESOLVED:

That the amendments and corrections as requested be made by the CFO and distributed to councillors
before the Special MPAC meeting scheduled for 27 February 2012.
The meeting closed at 16:00.

RECORD OF A SPECIAL MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2011 AT 09:00
PRESENT: Members:
Cllr P M Vilakazi (Chairperson), Cllr D H Pitt, Cllr P J Vorster
Chief Financial Of icer (Z L Mahloko), ED: Infrastructure & Services (B Dhluwayo), Manager Internal
Audit (N Molepo), Head: Committee Services, Administrative Of icer: Committee Services and the Control Administrative Assistant: Committee Services.
A.

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE
Cllr A A Modise, Municipal Manager
ABSENT WITHOUT LEAVE - Cllr P D Bishop, Cllr E K Hale

The Chairperson indicated that Cllr Modise had to attend a court session and that she stated she would
join the meeting at a later stage. The chairperson stated that he could not get hold of Cllrs Bishop and
Hale. He proposed that the meeting re-convene at 14:00 since postponing the meeting to another
date will interfere with planning schedules of the annual report process and that the matters to be
addressed must be inalised before the public participation process in March 2012. He added that he
would request the Speaker’s Of ice to inform the councillors who were not present accordingly.
Since there was a no quorum, the meeting adjourned at 09:30 to reconvene at 14:00.
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AGENDA AND MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 12 MARCH 2011 AT 14:00
PRESENT: Members:
Cllr PM Vilakazi (Chairperson), Cllr PD Bishop, Cllr AA Modise, Cllr DH Pitt, Cllr PJ Vorster
Control Administrative Assistant: Committee Services.
A.

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE
Cllr E K Hale
ABSENT WITHOUT LEAVE - None

B.

BUSINESS:

Adoption of the Oversight Report
The Oversight Report was presented to the Municipal Public Accounts Committee.
The following comments were made in terms of the Oversight Report:
•

Public meetings were not well attended due to the events not being properly and timely advertised.

•

That on page 7 the sentence “the year and adjustment to minor at midterm” was amended to read
“the year and adjustment to be contained to a minimum level at midterm.”

•

In addition to page 8 in terms of Chapter 5: Functional Area Service Delivery Reporting it was
added that there is a lack of supporting information from the Blueprint system and that the accuracy of Chapter 5 could not be veri ied in terms of the Blueprint system.

MPAC05/12

RESOLVED:

That the Oversight Report be adopted by the Municipal Public Accounts Committee.
The meeting closed at 15:10.
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